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1            Rules 7-13-20

2            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    We have a

3 Rules Committee today.  We have a reconvening

4 of a full legislative meeting.  First thing

5 I'm going to do is to call the roll for the

6 Rules Committee.  There's one item in the

7 Rules Committee we're going to call first

8 which is the Transdev contract and then we're

9 going to put the Rules in recess, go into the

10 full legislative meeting to consider the

11 emergencies and come back to the Rules

12 Committee.

13            Michael, if you don't mind, could

14 you call the roll for the Rules Committee.

15            MR. PULITZER:    Yes, sir.

16 Legislator Siela Bynoe.

17            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Here.

18            MR. PULITZER:    Legislator Delia

19 DeRiggi-Whitton.

20            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:

21 Here.

22            MR. PULITZER:    Ranking member

23 Kevan Abrahams.

24            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    Here.

25            MR. PULITZER:    Legislator Steven
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2 Rhoads.

3            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Here.

4            MR. PULITZER:    Vice Chairman

5 Howard Kopel.

6            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Here.

7            MR. PULITZER:    Chairman Richard

8 Nicolello.

9            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Here.

10            MR. PULITZER:    We have a quorum

11 sir.

12            MR. PULITZER:    Legislator Laura

13 Schaefer.

14            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    Here.

15            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    I would

16 like to ask Legislator Laura Schaefer to lead

17 us in the Pledge of Allegiance please.

18            We are going to call Item 145 of

19 2020 which needs a motion to untable.  Moved

20 by Legislator Kopel.  Seconded by Legislator

21 Schaefer.  All in favor of untabling signify

22 by saying aye.  Those opposed?  Carries

23 unanimously.

24            This is the ordinance to authorize

25 the county executive to execute an amendment
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2 to a contract with Transdev Services, Inc. for

3 the management, operation and maintenance of

4 the Nassau County Bus System.  Mr. Arnold.

5            MR. ARNOLD:    Ken Arnold, Public

6 Works.

7            As the presiding officer said, this

8 is a contract amendment for Transdev.  It is

9 their seventh amendment and this is mainly to

10 deal with the COVID emergency that allows us

11 to accept the CARES Act funding at the service

12 reductions and also look to amend the

13 agreement for two additional years while we

14 procure new services.

15            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    I see that

16 Mr. Khzouz is here from Transdev.  I wanted to

17 recognize Duwayne Gregory, former presiding

18 officer of the Suffolk County Legislature, who

19 is here with us today.  Good to see you.

20            I think we would like to maybe have

21 a presentation from Mr. Khzouz.

22            MR. KHZOUZ:    Mr. Speaker, how are

23 you?  Legislators.  I'm here really just to

24 answer any questions regarding service.

25 Regarding service over the last few months or
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2 service planning going forward or any other

3 questions you may have regarding the contract

4 extension.

5            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:

6 Legislators?  Legislator DeRiggi-Whitton.

7            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    Good

8 afternoon.  How are you?

9            MR. KHZOUZ:    Good legislator.

10 How are you?

11            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    I

12 was just looking through the backup and I saw

13 that you are receiving a decent amount from

14 the CARES Act, correct?

15            MR. KHZOUZ:    Correct.

16            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    As

17 far as your losses, I don't know the exact

18 amount to date, how much of an impact do you

19 expect to have because of this CARES Act

20 funding?

21            MR. KHZOUZ:    The CARES Act

22 funding will ensure that we can stay at the

23 current level of full service through the end

24 of the year assuming no other funding is

25 loss.  So it really makes us for and keeps the
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2 current workforce in place.  But it makes up

3 mostly for costs associated with COVID but

4 also lost fare box revenue and those types of

5 things.  It's imperative that we obviously

6 have the funding to continue the service at

7 the level it is so that we can get people back

8 to work and hopefully back to school this

9 fall.

10            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    Do

11 you feel that it kind of indemnifies you?  Do

12 you feel the loss to COVID will not be an

13 issue for the upcoming months?  Should let's

14 hope for the best and we're not hit with it

15 again.

16            MR. KHZOUZ:    Right.  So this will

17 ensure, like I said, all things being equal

18 stays in place, we should not see any

19 deterioration of service hours or support for

20 the system.

21            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    So

22 just to put on the record, you are receiving

23 $33 million from the CARES Act?

24            MR. KHZOUZ:    Yes.  The county is.

25            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:
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2 We're giving it to you.

3            MR. KHZOUZ:    Exactly.

4            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    As

5 far as the state funding do you have any

6 concerns as to -- or has this amount been

7 guaranteed the 12 point --

8            MR. KHZOUZ:    Well, yeah, funding

9 from the state side obviously could be an

10 issue.  It just depends on how the rest of the

11 year goes.  How tax revenue holds up.  And we

12 know that tax revenue is under strain right

13 now.  But there's always a possibility of

14 having to make adjustments and it's all based

15 on funding availability.

16            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    I

17 know we are in unprecedented times and

18 everyone is sort of unclear as to where their

19 financial bearings will be in the future.

20 We've kind of had a lot of discussions as to

21 what to do with this.  My hope is as long as

22 you really make every effort possible not to

23 cut any routes and not to raise fares, and I

24 have enjoyed working with you in the past, so

25 I am going to be supporting this but I do know
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2 that some of the legislators are concerned

3 because we just don't want to be hit with that

4 scenario and really have no negotiations

5 because we are extending the time.

6            MR. KHZOUZ:    I understand your

7 concerns.  Certainly it is not to our benefit

8 to cut routes or service.  That means we have

9 to reduce our workforce.  That means we have

10 to adjust all the schedules.  It does not

11 benefit us at all and that's the last thing we

12 want.

13            Again, we are bound by the county

14 agreement to balance the budget and based upon

15 the available funding we have to adjust

16 accordingly.  That being said, being who we

17 are, and hopefully many of you know us, we

18 tend to be very innovative.  We tend to be

19 very creative.  We tend to figure out ways to

20 stretch the value of the services we offer.

21 But again, we have to do that as situations

22 change, right?

23            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:

24 Again, I enjoyed working with you from the

25 Port Washington shuttle.  I'm hoping we can
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2 continue efforts like that.  All right.

3 Again, I'm going to support it but we do

4 appreciate you making every effort.

5            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    How is

6 ridership looking?  Is it starting to come

7 back?

8            MR. KHZOUZ:    Currently we are on

9 the fixed route side at 58 percent pre-COVID

10 levels.  Which is pretty strong for the

11 Northeast.  We are well above what the MTA is

12 showing as a fixed route bus ridership.  We're

13 well above Westchester County and well above

14 Suffolk.  So, it's coming back at about the

15 rate of five to ten percent a week.  I haven't

16 seen today's numbers from last week.  But we

17 are fairly confident that we will see about 75

18 percent of the ridership come back before the

19 end of the year.  Maybe even a little higher

20 depending on how school attendance is for in

21 classroom training.

22            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    I'm

23 assuming you're doing all sorts of cleaning

24 and all sorts --

25            MR. KHZOUZ:    Yes, sir.  We clean
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2 our vehicles three times a day minimum.  They

3 get cleaned when they pull into Hempstead

4 Transit Center and they get sanitized there.

5 Plus they get decleaned overnight plus one

6 more time midday.  It's a multistep process.

7 Very time consuming.  Very labor intensive but

8 it's certainly worth it.

9            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    I know

10 this is difficult to do, but have you been

11 able to do any sort of projections as to what

12 the ridership is going to look like in say

13 2021?

14            MR. KHZOUZ:    It is difficult.

15 That's the hard part.  We don't.  We're all

16 sort of making this up as we go along, right?

17 All these new protocols and procedures.  We

18 don't know exactly.  We are anticipating

19 possibly up to 80, 85 percent return.  But at

20 this point, you all know me, I'm pretty

21 honest, it is a guess at this point.  Based

22 upon how things are coming back currently

23 there is no reason why we should not make that

24 goal.  But that still leaves a 15 percent

25 deficit which is quite a bit in our service.
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2            On the paratransit side it's much

3 slower return.  We're only at about 35 percent

4 of pre-COVID levels.  We anticipate maybe

5 getting up to 60 percent for next year.  But

6 that again is somewhat of a guess.  There is a

7 lot of wiggle room there.  But I'm working

8 very closely with the all the systems in

9 New York to compare and contrast and look at

10 different best practices to get people back on

11 the vehicles.

12            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Now, if it

13 returns to 80 to 85 percent is that a model

14 that allows NICE bus to continue to be a

15 profitable venture or even break even?

16            MR. KHZOUZ:    Again, we have to

17 adjust.  Just like any business we do have to

18 adjust our expenses to match the available

19 funding.  So it's a proportional level of

20 adjustment.  So, that's what we have to do.

21 But we also have to be very aggressive on the

22 state level -- I say that with all warmth --

23 to ensure that the state understands what our

24 needs are and properly communicate that.

25            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Just
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2 briefly and I will turn it to over to other

3 legislators, but if there is a proposal to

4 change routes or anything of that nature it

5 would have to go to the transit committee,

6 correct?

7            MR. KHZOUZ:    Yes, sir.

8            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    It would

9 require approval from the transit committee,

10 there would be a public notice and public

11 comment and participation involved, right?

12            MR. KHZOUZ:    Correct.

13            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    But you

14 already made a representation that you will do

15 everything in your power to avoid that,

16 correct?

17            MR. KHZOUZ:    Yes sir.

18            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

19 Walker.

20            LEGISLATOR WALKER:    Obviously

21 when everything sort of stopped with COVID,

22 how were we with the I think it was more or

23 less like a trial where you were having people

24 in certain areas call in rather than be a

25 steady bus, you know, certain times the bus
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2 would -- you'd have people call and kind of

3 arrange for the bus to come.

4            MR. KHZOUZ:    Yes, Legislator

5 Walker.  Back in 2016 and 2017 we were the

6 first hailed microtransit public transit

7 system in the US.  We launched a trial called

8 Link in Freeport.  I will say that we were

9 probably a little early and the technology

10 wasn't quite there yet.  Operationally we

11 weren't quite there yet.  And I don't think

12 our passengers weren't there quite yet.

13            We learned a lot from that and took

14 some of the experience we took from that and

15 took them to Port Washington and took them to

16 Elmont, flex seat, and really succeeded

17 there.  There are new models coming up that

18 might serve the county very well.  The

19 evolution of that technology has come a long

20 way.

21            LEGISLATOR WALKER:    Because, you

22 know, I know we would try very, like you said,

23 you would really try hard not to have to cut

24 any of our routes.  But if as time passes and

25 you realize that there's two people on this
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2 route or whatever, I mean, it would be much

3 easier, I think it would be more beneficial to

4 you and for them to be able to focus on those

5 two people than you know.

6            MR. KHZOUZ:    Yes ma'am.  Those

7 are the types of scenarios that we are looking

8 at and continue to study.

9            LEGISLATOR WALKER:    Thank you.

10            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Minority

11 Leader Abrahams.

12            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    Thanks

13 Rich.  I appreciate it.  My question is more

14 tied to piggyback for the things we talked

15 about in terms of the route reductions as well

16 as the fare increases.  Obviously we don't

17 envision anything for 2020, but we are

18 extending the contract two years beyond 2021

19 and I know no one has a crystal ball but

20 however I am concerned to some degree that we

21 are extending Transdev without having any type

22 of assurances.  Things could look better in

23 Albany or if things look better anywhere else

24 and if there's an increase in funding, by

25 extending the contract for two more years we
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2 don't have a greater understanding or knowing

3 of whether or not there will be protections in

4 place.

5            I guess what I'm going ask Transdev

6 and we can work on it over the next couple of

7 weeks as we go into committee, are we open to

8 any level of agreement or understanding that

9 going forward if there is additional monies

10 that come in or anything that's discussed in

11 terms of route reductions or fare funds

12 increases should have some type of act on the

13 agreement from my standpoint.

14            I think Legislator DeRiggi-Whitton

15 said we plan to vote for it today in

16 committee.  We have every anticipation of

17 voting for it in the full leg.  But at the

18 same time, we do want to try to protect the

19 riders as much as we can, and I think not

20 having some level of assurance in the greater

21 outer two years but at the same time extending

22 a contract for two years is a little bit

23 concerning.

24            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Thank you

25 Kevan.  Legislator Rhoads.
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2            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    And

3 essentially that's the same concern that we

4 have.  I represent the 19th District which is

5 the communities of Freeport through Seaford

6 along the south shore.  We probably lost about

7 half a dozen routes over the last course of

8 the last several years.  There's been

9 restoration of N-36 and N-62 but we are still

10 negative on that.

11            The Link program was actually a

12 program that was operating in my district

13 which was then discontinued sort of a makeup

14 for some of the routes that we had lost so

15 there would be some service.

16            The concern is by extending this

17 contract two years it denies us the

18 opportunity to see if there's a better deal

19 for our commuters potentially either with

20 Transdev or with some other company.  I'm just

21 concerned that there is no assurance that by

22 doing this that there's going to be a

23 guaranteed preservation of routes going

24 forward.

25            I understand and I appreciate the
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2 representation.  As Minority Leader Abrahams

3 mentioned, nobody has a crystal ball to be

4 able to look into and see what the future

5 holds.  But I would really ask that Transdev,

6 assuming this goes through today and assuming

7 it goes through the full legislature, do

8 everything in its power to avoid further route

9 reductions and see if there are alternatives

10 out there to be able to make restorations to

11 provide some sort of service to residents in

12 my district that have lost so much.

13            MR. KHZOUZ:    I understand sir.

14            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Anyone

15 else?  All right.  Thank you Mr. Khzouz.

16 Appreciate it.  Hearing no further discussion,

17 call for a vote on this item.  All in favor

18 signify by saying aye.  Those opposed?

19 Carries unanimously.  That will be before the

20 full legislature in three weeks.

21            Going to put the Rules Committee in

22 recess and now we are going to go to the

23 emergency agenda for the full legislature.

24            (Committee was recessed at 1:38

25 p.m.)
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2            (Committee was reconvened at 2

3 p.m.)

4            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Item 139

5 of 2020 is a local law to extend the deadline

6 for the imposition of penalties and interest

7 for the late payment of general taxes due on

8 July 1st in the year 2020 on property owned by

9 deceased health care workers.  That title

10 should actually include also front line

11 workers.

12            That's moved by Legislator

13 Drucker.  Seconded by Legislator Gaylor.  Do

14 you want to say a few words about that?

15            LEGISLATOR DRUCKER:    Thank you

16 presiding officer.  It's extremely gratifying

17 that the presiding officer and Legislator

18 Gaylor has cosponsored this with me in an

19 effort to do as much as we can.  This is a

20 debt of gratitude we owe to the front line

21 workers and first responders that can never be

22 repaid.  Any bit of comfort and relief we can

23 afford them is something we should always

24 endeavor to try to do and this bill is

25 designed to do just that.  Give some more



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

20

1            Rules 7-13-20

2 breathing room to families who have gone

3 through the tragedy of losing a loved one to

4 COVID-19.  Especially those that have

5 sacrificed and put their lives in jeopardy by

6 fighting this virus each and every day and

7 unfortunately succumbed to it.

8            It takes a lot of time to get their

9 estates up and running and providing them this

10 relief and this delay, this deferment of taxes

11 is one measure that we can employ.  And I'm

12 grateful for the majority for putting this on

13 the calendar and for allowing it to go

14 further.  Thank you very much.

15            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Thank you

16 Arnie.  Good idea and we are wholly supportive

17 obviously.  It's just a way to give some

18 relief to the families of those who have lost

19 their lives in this pandemic.

20            Anyone else want to add anything?

21 Hearing none, all in favor signify by saying

22 aye.  Those opposed?  That carries

23 unanimously.

24            147-2020 is a resolution to

25 ceremonially designate a portion of the county
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2 road known as Charles Lindbergh Boulevard from

3 the intersection of Geoffrey Avenue to the

4 intersection of Earle Ovington Boulevard in

5 Uniondale as William M. Wheeler Way and

6 directing the Department of Public Works to

7 install conspicuous signage along said

8 roadway.

9            Moved by Minority Leader Abrahams.

10 Seconded by Legislator Bynoe.  Any debate or

11 discussion on this?  Hearing none, all in

12 favor signify by saying aye.  Those opposed?

13 Carries unanimously.

14            Item 149 is a local law to amend

15 the Nassau County Administrative Code in

16 relation to amending the Nassau County Human

17 Rights Law to preclude discrimination based on

18 certain visible characteristics.

19            Moved by Legislator McKevitt.

20 Seconded by Legislator Gaylor.  This is

21 actually patterned off of a local law that was

22 passed in Suffolk within the last month which

23 expands the human rights law to prohibit

24 discrimination based on individual traits such

25 as natural hair texture, protective hair
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2 styles and the donning of religious garments

3 or items.

4            It's important in this day and age,

5 especially with the diversity of our county,

6 that we recognize that these hair styles,

7 garments are important to people's different

8 cultures and faiths and that they should be

9 able to have those things without worrying

10 about discrimination in terms of employment or

11 housing or anything else.  I think it's a very

12 useful addition to our human rights law.

13 Anyone else want to discuss this?  Debate

14 this?

15            LEGISLATOR GAYLOR:    I just wanted

16 to reiterate what you said.  In this county we

17 have such a large and growing Asian

18 population, large populations with unique

19 religious traditions and it's important that

20 we take the time to recognize that fact and

21 have such an ordinance as is before us right

22 now.  It's very important to recognize the

23 cultural differences as well and we just can't

24 accept anything with discrimination against

25 any one particular group of people or class of
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2 peoples based really for any reason.

3            So I'm glad to see this legislation

4 going forwarded today and I appreciate all the

5 positive votes that I expect we will get

6 today.

7            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Thank you

8 Bill.  Just to reiterate, even thought this is

9 the Rules Committee and there are only seven

10 members, every member is invited to speak on

11 any item that they want to.  Obviously the

12 seven of us can vote on it.  Since we are not

13 having the other committees it's important

14 that every legislator here today gets a chance

15 to have their say.

16            Legislator Drucker.

17            LEGISLATOR DRUCKER:    Thank you

18 very much Presiding Officer.  I think this is

19 a very worthwhile bill.  I think it is

20 necessary and you're right, in this day and

21 age any opportunity that we can get to codify

22 legislation to protect people who are unfairly

23 discriminated against is worthwhile.

24            I just feel that we are falling a

25 little short here in that over the past few



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

24

1            Rules 7-13-20

2 years I've introduced a bill to amend the

3 human rights charter to include protection for

4 the transgender community.  And I think now

5 more than ever we're seeing evidence of the

6 transgender community, especially minority

7 women who are victims of terrible violence and

8 tragedy, this would be a perfect opportunity

9 to add the transgender population to this

10 bill.

11            They are an unfairly discriminated

12 against group.  They're not covered by the

13 current code and the current charter.

14 Although some might argue that they are but it

15 has been proven that they are not in terms of

16 discrimination in housing and employment and

17 economic benefits.  And especially now that

18 they are targeted in various other ways just

19 like people are targeted because of the way

20 they appear, which this bill is trying to

21 address.  I think we have an opportunity now

22 to include that group of people, that

23 community, and I would really urge this body

24 to consider that.

25            I have refiled the bill that I
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2 filed a couple of years ago, and I'm hoping

3 that perhaps the majority would consider it

4 again in light of what's going on right now.

5 Thank you very much Presiding Officer.

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Thank

7 you.  I think we respectfully disagree on

8 that.  I think we disagree on the first part

9 is that when the change to the human rights

10 law was made years ago it was anticipated that

11 it would cover transgender and they also

12 included language that was general enough and

13 broad enough that it would cover that group.

14 What we favor is that general language.

15 Because when you start specifying things you

16 would wind up having to change the code on a

17 regular basis.  Just over the last few years

18 the terminology has changed.  By having the

19 general catchall language in there you

20 actually accomplish what you want to

21 accomplish without specific changes that

22 you're seeking.

23            LEGISLATOR DRUCKER:    I would just

24 add to that that really the only addition to

25 qualify or to make it clear is just two words,
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2 just gender identity.  I think gender identity

3 is something that would cover it and it

4 doesn't really open up the door to so much

5 more interpretation.  The way the code reads

6 now you're talking about sexual orientation.

7 That's not what gender identity is about.

8 It's just something that is a hole that can be

9 filled.  I know, like you said, we disagree

10 but I would hope that perhaps it can be

11 brought to this body for discussion and have

12 an open dialogue about it and then have it be

13 voted on.  That's all I'm asking for.

14            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    The

15 language that I think we go on learn is in

16 referenced to perceived gender which certainly

17 covers a whole wide range of people's whatever

18 gender or transgender or whatever.  I think

19 that language is sufficient to do what we need

20 it to do.  And then on top of that you

21 actually have New York State law changed and

22 the Supreme Court which has weighed in in the

23 last month or so.  So I think there's

24 certainly strong and adequate protection on

25 the books.



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

27

1            Rules 7-13-20

2            Anyone else?  Okay.  Hearing none,

3 all in favor signify by saying aye.  Those

4 opposed?  Carries unanimously.

5            Item 151-2020 is a resolution to

6 establish a committee to study alternative

7 approaches to mental health response and

8 intervention by law enforcement.

9            Moved by Legislator Bynoe.

10 Seconded by Legislator Lafazan.  So this is

11 before the legislature.  Anyone want to speak

12 on this?

13            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I can.  Thank

14 you Presiding Officer.  So this resolution as

15 stated is to set up a committee that would

16 study how we could better serve individuals

17 that are suffering with mental health here in

18 Nassau County when there is an aided call to

19 911.  Similar to when there is an aided call

20 to 911 and it is a medical issue, a physical

21 medical issue, we dispatch EMTs.  I believe

22 that when there is an aided call that comes in

23 and it's clear it is a mental health issue

24 that we could respond differently other than

25 just sending police.
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2            So Legislator Lafazan and myself

3 were working on this separate and apart from

4 each other and came to the realization that

5 there could be two different approaches.  We'd

6 like a committee set up to look at the two

7 different approaches that we have put forward

8 and also include anything that the committee

9 might come up with as well in how we can

10 better serve those that are here in our county

11 that are suffering from mental health.  This

12 committee would be chaired by the commissioner

13 of police along with the commissioner of human

14 services.

15            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    I was

16 going to ask whether there was any specific

17 incident that gave rise to wanting to form the

18 committee?  Was there a specific trend, a

19 specific incident or I'm wondering about the

20 origins.

21            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Of this bill?

22            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Yeah.

23            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    The bill is

24 birthed out of there was an incident in

25 Oceanside a little while ago, I think last
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2 year some time, where the person was suffering

3 from mental health issues and the police came

4 and unfortunately it didn't end well.  We can

5 go very recent, as in I think about last

6 month, where Suffolk County police responded

7 to an incident in Northport where the father

8 called in and said my son is suffering with

9 mental health and armed with a BB gun and

10 nonetheless that didn't end well either.

11            Then more recent was the incident

12 that occurred on the boardwalk in Far Rockaway

13 when it was very clear that there was some

14 mental health issues that were being exhibited

15 and played out on the boardwalk and the police

16 intervened and it didn't end well there

17 either.

18            So I think there are many other

19 incidents that are playing out across this

20 nation similarly and I think this is an

21 opportunity for us to look at how we can

22 address that particular population in a way

23 that we can have better outcomes.

24            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    That is a

25 very sensitive area obviously just in terms of
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2 individuals who have disabilities or

3 evidencing disabilities.  The sense of the

4 manner in which you have to treat them.  So

5 certainly, I mean, if there's any level of

6 additional training that would be of

7 assistance to our law enforcement we'd be

8 interested or additional resources.

9            One thing we would like to see is

10 maybe representatives of the minority and

11 majority on the committee.  Not necessarily

12 legislators but representatives from both of

13 our caucuses just to be there, participate and

14 see about the direction it's going.  We will

15 likely be making an amendment to do that going

16 forward.  Legislator.

17            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Can I just

18 respond to that?  So, I understand why you

19 would think it's important to have

20 representation from the minority or the

21 majority.  I respectfully disagree because

22 what I'm not trying to do is make this

23 political.  I think experts should be on that

24 body.  Individuals who are steeped in police

25 law enforcement experience skills and also
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2 those that are skilled in mental health.  This

3 is not a political issue.  This is an issue

4 where we are trying to aid those that are

5 suffering, and I think that what's appropriate

6 at this time is that those that have the

7 expertise be on that body.

8            We could have inserted ourselves.

9 I mean, we put the bill together for the

10 purpose of having this study and we did not

11 think to include -- we thought about it but we

12 knew we were not experts.  That's why we want

13 experts to convene and to be able to then

14 provide to this body and to the county

15 executive a plan.  Something that would be

16 very well thought out, deliberately.

17 Everything done in decency and order.  I don't

18 think that I personally wouldn't have any

19 expertise to sit on that body.  I think that

20 that needs to come from the experts.

21            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    I will

22 turn it over to the deputy presiding officer.

23 I think in terms of expertise it's not really

24 what we would be looking for.  It would be

25 more of somebody representing of this body who
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2 are the elected officials in the county who

3 would have an interest in terms of being a

4 public policy -- of representing the peoples'

5 interest.  Not necessarily someone with a

6 degree or doctorate or anything like that.

7            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I think we get

8 that opportunity because the report is to come

9 to this body.  The purpose of the report is to

10 then be provided to this body.  They're not

11 empowered to make a vote on our behalf.  They

12 will put the plan together and then give it to

13 us.  That's when we have an opportunity to

14 have our voices registered.

15            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    I also

16 think it would give us a little bit more

17 information as the process unfolds.  Again,

18 depending on the size of the committee we are

19 not talking about legislators actually, we're

20 talking about staff.  They wouldn't be really

21 guiding the committee.  Simply be more to

22 provide an input from the legislators as well

23 to keep an understanding of the direction of

24 the committee is going with.

25            Deputy Presiding Officer.
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2            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Thank you

3 Presiding Officer.  I'm a little bit wary of

4 some of the direction of the way that this is

5 framed.  I think that it's very hard for

6 anyone to argue that we ought not to have some

7 better training and to make sure that there is

8 a proper reaction to when there is a mental

9 health issue that manifests itself into a

10 police call.  We don't want people who are

11 unable to communicate properly and to defend

12 themselves properly to be treated as common

13 criminals.  That leads to some unfortunate

14 results, and we've all seen that, as you

15 pointed out, around the country.

16            But once again, if the direction is

17 the way it's stated here is that we're going

18 to study alternatives to the police and I

19 would much rather see the study pointed at

20 better training within the police department

21 for police who are responding to do know what

22 to do.  We certainly don't want to have the

23 specter of a social worker responding to

24 holdups or something like that.  That's

25 obviously not going to work.
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2            So once again, I would like to see

3 something that's directed more at training

4 within the police department and perhaps, if

5 necessary, maybe additions to the police

6 department, maybe people who are specially

7 trained to deal with this kind of situation to

8 be embedded within the police department.  But

9 I really do think that the function should not

10 be taken out of the police department.

11            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    To your point,

12 Legislator Kopel, this bill, actually this

13 resolution, has two components to it.  One in

14 which the crisis intervention team would

15 respond along with police.  This is not in

16 place of the police.  Would respond with the

17 police but take the lead.

18            The other proposal here to be

19 reviewed is to have a group that would be

20 embedded within the police department so that

21 they would be specially trained and they would

22 be embedded within the police department.  It

23 has two components that would be looked at.

24 None of which was eliminating police.

25            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    So perhaps we
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2 are not in disagreement.  Perhaps it's the

3 word over here where it says that it's

4 alternatives to the police.

5            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Studying

6 alternatives to how we respond to mental

7 health calls.

8            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Alternatives

9 to having it in the police.  Okay, whatever it

10 is it could be just a matter of semantics and

11 if that's the case --

12            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I don't think

13 it's even a matter of semantics.

14            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    I believe we

15 can agree to disagree on that.

16            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Just to be

17 clear.  It was never intended for us to have

18 this team respond without the police.  The

19 study was for this team that's already in

20 place, that the county is already utilizing,

21 that some police officers already sometimes

22 called to go with them when they know it's a

23 mental health issue.  And sometimes the family

24 can call this team directly without calling

25 the police.
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2            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    I will just

3 take another look.

4            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I want to be

5 clear that we weren't trying to substitute.

6            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Good.  I'll

7 take another look and if it's clear it's

8 clear.  If it's not perhaps we can just

9 clarify the wording a little bit before the

10 final vote at the full leg.

11            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

12 Ford.

13            LEGISLATOR FORD:    I understand

14 what you're saying Legislator Bynoe.  So that

15 there is something that's already in place

16 with the police department to be able to

17 respond to these calls that deal with mental

18 health issues.  Once a family member or

19 somebody who's making the call identifies it

20 like somebody is bipolar, they're acting

21 erratically.  So then the police would know.

22            So actually, in essence, this

23 committee may be able to come up with a plan

24 to say that a certain portion of police

25 officers should go for training, for extra
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2 training in regard to being able to identify

3 these types of situations and how to deal with

4 people who have mental health problems.

5 Correct?  It's not necessarily where we're

6 going to take social workers.  Me may be able

7 to identify within the police department and

8 do enhanced training and another specialized

9 task force so those people then can be -- I'm

10 just saying that this is something that can

11 come out of this committee.  I'm not saying

12 that it will.

13            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Correct.

14            LEGISLATOR FORD:    How many

15 members is it anticipating?  Because it's not

16 on here.  Is there a limit on the number of

17 committee members that are allowed to be on

18 this?  Because right now you just have

19 cochaired by the PD and human services.  You

20 just have a group of people, social workers,

21 mental health.  Is there like a limit on how

22 many people would be on this committee?

23            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    We did not

24 enumerate because we felt that the police

25 commissioner and the commissioner of human
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2 services would be able to identify experts in

3 their field that they feel that they would be

4 able to work with to come to a conclusion on

5 what that would look like.

6            LEGISLATOR FORD:    So then they

7 would also set the parameters of the committee

8 as well?

9            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    That's

10 correct.

11            LEGISLATOR FORD:    I sort of agree

12 with the presiding officer though in a way

13 that if we, as elected officials, have

14 somebody just to sit there and not to report

15 or anything but just to understand the process

16 and how these people are interacting and

17 everything.  Because it will give us, before

18 it comes to the full leg, maybe a basic idea

19 of what is happening within this committee.

20            But when we talk about -- I

21 understand -- but the community members, which

22 community members would they be?  I mean is

23 that just anybody who is in a community or are

24 we trying to limit it to people on this

25 committee that would be law enforcement,
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2 public health?  And then I guess and

3 individuals in organizations with expertise

4 and issues affecting individual's with mental

5 illness.  I guess it could be like group homes

6 and stuff like that.  They would be able to

7 know.  What community members would that be?

8 If we're saying that if you don't want

9 somebody from this community what community

10 members would they identify as being on this

11 committee?

12            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    When you say I

13 don't want someone from this community --

14            LEGISLATOR FORD:    When the

15 presiding officer had said about maybe having

16 representatives from minority and majority

17 legislature, you know, you wanted it to be

18 more like just the professionals.  I

19 understand your viewpoint.  I'm not arguing

20 with you on this.  I'm not arguing about this

21 legislation.  But what I'm saying is, what

22 community members would that be that you would

23 bring on to this committee?

24            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Again, we are

25 forming the committee but the committee would
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2 be led by the two commissioners.  So those

3 commissioners would be able to identify what

4 community groups or individuals within the

5 community they feel would be helpful in their

6 discussion as they work through the plan.

7            So, I think having staff, if we

8 wanted to have staffers attend the meetings I

9 don't see nothing wrong with that.  We just

10 didn't look to have appointments to that body

11 because we don't feel that we have that level

12 of expertise to have people be a part of it.

13 We feel like the commissioner of police and

14 the commissioner of human services who are

15 steeped in their respective roles in areas

16 will be able to identify those people.  But if

17 we want to have staffers attend the meetings

18 to be able to then brief the majority and the

19 minority I don't see anything wrong with that.

20            LEGISLATOR FORD:    So then even

21 with -- and the report would be issued within

22 six months?

23            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Correct.

24            LEGISLATOR FORD:    But what if

25 they can't meet?  I guess they would have to
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2 do zoom meetings.

3            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Yes.

4            LEGISLATOR FORD:    Thank you.

5            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

6 Walker then Legislator Schaefer.

7            LEGISLATOR WALKER:    As far as --

8 would you imagine that like the committee

9 would basically be the commissioner of the

10 police department and commissioner of human

11 services and then they would just meet?  They

12 really wouldn't be part of the committee but

13 they would consult with, as it says here, with

14 say social workers.  Maybe perhaps they would

15 have a meeting with some social workers, some

16 mental health professionals some public

17 health -- not necessarily all at once.  But

18 they would consult with these various group

19 leaders in those fields.  So those people

20 really wouldn't be part of the committee.

21 They would just be who they would consult with

22 and then the two cochairs would come up with

23 their report and give it back to us.  Is that

24 what --

25            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    Hold on a
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2 second.  I think Josh wants to weigh in.  Josh

3 do you want to weigh in?

4            LEGISLATOR LAFAZAN:    I'm here.

5 Can you hear me?  No, I just wanted to say I

6 appreciate working with Legislator Bynoe on

7 this important and timely piece of

8 legislation.  I'm personally fine with having

9 staffers as observers.  I know I worked in the

10 past on similar committees.  I know with

11 Legislator Schaefer working on our addiction

12 bill.  I think having staff with different

13 expertise can guide this process.  So I'm fine

14 having staff as observers working through the

15 process.

16            I'm also fine if we want to

17 enumerate specific changes in terms of the

18 committee.  It will be important for this

19 legislature in a bipartisan fashion to pass

20 this committee because I believe every police

21 department in America, including ours, can

22 benefit from a thorough review of new ideas

23 and processes.  Obviously this bill has my

24 full support and I'm hoping we can pass this

25 on to full leg.
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2            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Okay.  Are

3 you done?

4            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I thought Josh

5 was going to answer you.  So, the committee,

6 I've been on a couple of committees.  I served

7 on the Hamlin Task Force.  There are times

8 when the committee, a group of folks would

9 meet together and there were times when there

10 were one-offs.  These two chairs can determine

11 how they are going to move forward in

12 analyzing how the county can do better or

13 provide additional support to those that are

14 calling regarding mental health aided calls.

15 Okay?

16            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

17 Schaefer.

18            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    Maybe these

19 are questions for you or maybe these are more

20 for the study but I just figured I'd ask.  So

21 my understanding was we have a mobile health

22 crisis unit in the county already; is that

23 right?  We do.  Okay.  Do you know what their

24 role is?  You started to talk about it a

25 little bit before.  If you know, what do they



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

44

1            Rules 7-13-20

2 typically do?

3            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    There are

4 times when they are called directly and then

5 there are times when called directly by a

6 family member and there are times when they

7 are called to accompany police to a situation

8 that they know involves a mental health person

9 suffering from mental health.  So that's how

10 it works from my understanding.

11            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    Do we get a

12 lot of calls that involve mental health?

13            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I don't have

14 the statistics.  That would probably be for

15 the police commissioner.

16            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    I saw that

17 you said something in here about either just

18 expanding on the role of the current Nassau

19 County Mobile Crisis team, where you were

20 talking about creating Nassau County Police

21 Department Mental Health Response Unit.  Was

22 that something that you foresee or maybe this

23 is again maybe for the study.  Is it staffed

24 by police?  Is it staffed by mental health

25 professionals?



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

45

1            Rules 7-13-20

2            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    There's

3 various different models for that.  It's

4 playing out across the country.

5            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    That's what

6 I figured.  You would have information about

7 other models.

8            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    There are

9 several models to that.  As stated, there

10 could be a special task force within the

11 police department or it could be an expansion

12 of the mobile crisis unit.  And there could be

13 a third scenario that we might not have even

14 thought of.  The idea is for them to sit down

15 and work on this issue and bundle up maybe

16 potentially other ideas or figure out what's

17 best for this county and how to move forward.

18 That to me, working with the police

19 commissioner and the commissioner of human

20 services, the two experts in their

21 representative fields, that they would be able

22 to figure out how we can do better.

23            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    I think

24 that's all I have.

25            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator
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2 Ferretti.

3            LEGISLATOR FERRETTI:    Thank you

4 Presiding Officer.  Has anyone on the minority

5 reached out to either of the commissioners to

6 see if they support this legislation?

7            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I spoke

8 briefly with the commissioner of human

9 services and the mobile crisis unit is already

10 up and running.  So, I don't think that there

11 would be a problem with considering expanding

12 it.  And I have not spoken with the police

13 commission on this issue.  I've spoken with

14 the previous police commissioner about the

15 issue of mental health in so much that we

16 pushed in special trainers.  They came in and

17 trained our police cadets in the academy in

18 mental health first aid.  I think there were

19 over 400 plus cadets that came out from the

20 academy trained in mental health first aid.

21 I've been working on mental health as an issue

22 throughout my tenure here, but I have not

23 spoken to this police commissioner about this

24 particular initiative.

25            LEGISLATOR FERRETTI:    I'm not
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2 asking for you to speak for either of the

3 commissioners but logistically at least these

4 commissioners could form these committees on

5 their own, couldn't they?  It would not

6 require legislation if they so chose to.

7            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    If they so

8 chose to.  Just like other committees that

9 were birthed out of this legislature it could

10 have been done without a resolution, correct?

11            LEGISLATOR FERRETTI:    Thank you.

12            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

13 Schaefer.

14            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    I knew I

15 had another one.  I saw in here it said in the

16 legislation it talks about approximately 840

17 hours of instruction that police cadets get.

18 But this is based on an international, you

19 know, study I guess or report.  And that only

20 ten are devoted to mental illness.  Now I know

21 you've had some role in increasing some of the

22 training.  Do you know how many hours our

23 police officers get for mental health

24 training?  Especially with the bill you put in

25 a while back about increasing theirs.
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2            LEGISLATOR BYNOE:    I don't know.

3 I can't speak directly for the police

4 academy.  I know what I had worked towards

5 with Police Commissioner Krumpter was to

6 provide mental health first aid in the public

7 safety component and that training was eight

8 hours.  But there was also additional

9 instruction that was provided aside from that

10 training.

11            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    So it's

12 likely more than ten let's hope and that's

13 good.  Just my thoughts also, just because

14 like everybody else on the legislature I think

15 we see a lot of letters go back and forth and

16 I think, and obviously I don't have a say in

17 it, having someone from the respective unions

18 be involved in this too so that any changes

19 that could be made they can move forward with

20 them.  It doesn't have to be something where

21 they want to make certain changes and then the

22 unions are going to have a problem with it

23 contractual.  That's just my thoughts.

24            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Anyone

25 else?  Just wanted to note for the record that
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2 we have received public comment.  An email

3 this morning from Susan Gottehrer, the

4 director of the Nassau County section portion

5 of the New York Civil Liberties Union.

6 Comments with respect to the materials that

7 are posted on I guess the clerk's page or the

8 county's website in terms of what's on our

9 agenda as well as the public comment period.

10 She also has questions regarding how the

11 committee is going to be formed, the

12 formation, and that process.

13            I think perhaps Siela maybe if you

14 want to get back to her before the next

15 meeting might be useful.

16            Arnie just one other thing.  At the

17 next meeting we are going to seek to have the

18 commissioner of human services and the

19 commissioner of police here or their

20 representatives.  I really would like to hear

21 from them in terms of their view points of

22 this.  And specifically with respect to the

23 police department, maybe they can shed a

24 little bit more light on what procedures, what

25 processes they have in place already.  I think
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2 that would be useful to hear.  Again, I would

3 like to hear from both of them as well.  I

4 think we all would.

5            Legislator Drucker.

6            LEGISLATOR DRUCKER:    Thank you

7 Presiding Officer.  I just got an email though

8 from Susan Gottehrer who requested that her

9 statement be read into the record as has been

10 the practice since we have gone into no

11 public -- you know, people coming here

12 personally.  That public statements and the

13 like are read into the record as we normally

14 would.  I just wanted to tell that she had

15 sent me that email.

16            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    That

17 actually is not the practice that we've had.

18 We've had for the last three months plus.  We

19 have accepted the comments and made them part

20 of the record and each legislator gets the

21 comments.  And to the extent that responses

22 are needed then we can respond in that

23 fashion.  Specifically if there's an issue in

24 a legislator's district that legislator can

25 respond.
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2            But as I indicated, how it's

3 perceived the committee will be formed and I

4 think those are questions that perhaps those

5 sponsors would be best be able to answer.

6            And in terms of the process at the

7 legislature and/or the website of the county

8 in terms of posted materials that is something

9 that we will look at.  Those are the two main

10 points that she made.

11            LEGISLATOR DRUCKER:    Just thought

12 I would convey what I received.

13            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any other

14 comments or discussion?  Hearing none, all in

15 favor signify by saying aye.  Those opposed?

16 Carries unanimously.

17            139 is a local law to extend the

18 deadline -- I'm sorry, that's where we

19 started.  153 of 2020 is a resolution setting

20 forth the officers and employees deemed to

21 hold policy-making positions for filing year

22 2020, fiscal year 2019 annual statements of

23 financial disclosure.

24            That will be moved by Minority

25 Leader Abrahams.  Seconded by Legislator
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2 Rhoads.  Any debate or discussion on this

3 item?  Just as a reminder, they are due by

4 August 15th.  No debate or discussion?  I'm

5 sorry.  August 10th they're due by.  The

6 statements are due August 10th.

7            No further debate or discussion?

8 All in favor signify by saying aye.  Those

9 opposed?  Carries unanimously.

10            155 is a resolution to authorize

11 the transfer of appropriations heretofore made

12 within the budget for the year 2020.

13            Moved by Legislator Bynoe.

14 Seconded by Legislator DeRiggi-Whitton.  Any

15 debate or discussion?  Hearing none, all in

16 favor signify by saying aye.  Those opposed?

17 Carries unanimously.

18            156 and 157 these are ordinances

19 supplemental to the annual appropriations

20 ordinance in connection with the Office of

21 Emergency Management and the police

22 department.

23            Moved by Legislator Schaefer.

24 Seconded by Deputy Presiding Officer Kopel.

25 Any debate or discussion on these supplemental
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2 appropriations?  Hearing none, all in favor

3 signify by saying aye.  Those opposed? Carries

4 unanimously.

5            The next several items starting

6 with 158 are resolutions to accept gifts

7 offered by the Nassau County Police Department

8 Foundation to the Nassau County Police

9 Department.  These are items 158, 159, 160,

10 161, 162, 163, 164, 165, 166, 167.

11            Moved by Legislator

12 DeRiggi-Whitton.  Seconded by Legislator

13 Schaefer.

14            Ms. Gottehrer in her comments had

15 asked for additional information about what

16 these gifts were.  I will just go through a

17 little bit of the backup.  158 is a donation

18 of PPE for use by the police department.

19 Surgical masks, N-95 masks, hand sanitizers,

20 sanitizing wipes.

21            159 is also surgical masks.  N-95

22 masks.  As well as boxes of Girl Scout

23 cookies.

24            160 is face masks, bottled water et

25 cetera.
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2            161 surgical masks, face shields.

3            162 is PPE.

4            163 is Nabisco cookies, Poland

5 Spring water, hand sanitizers.

6            164 is Easter candy and hand

7 sanitizer.

8            165 is N-95 masks, cleaning

9 supplies, food values.

10            166 surgical masks.  Treo

11 beverages.

12            167 electric atomizer, surface

13 cleaning gels et cetera.  Those are the

14 items.  I'm relatively certain these food

15 stuffs are probably given to those who are

16 working the COVID epidemic and putting the

17 time in and are unable to -- it's just a nice

18 gesture for some people who are working during

19 the COVID.

20            In any event, those are those

21 items.  Any debate or discussion?  Hearing

22 none, all in favor signify by saying aye.

23 Those opposed?  They carry unanimously.

24            168 and 169 these are resolutions

25 authorizing the county executive to execute
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2 intermunicipal agreements with the

3 incorporated village of Kensington in relation

4 to a project to install automatic irrigation

5 on parkland abutting Middle Country Road and

6 to install fencing on Middle Neck Road.

7            169 is a similar agreement with the

8 village of Massapequa Park in relation to a

9 project for the renovation of basketball

10 courts at Brady Park.

11            Moved by Legislator Kopel.  Deputy

12 Presiding Officer Kopel.  Seconded by

13 Legislator Rhoads.  Any debate or discussion?

14 Hearing none, all in favor signify by saying

15 aye.  Carries unanimously.

16            We have to move now to the second

17 addendum.  First addendum has contracts which

18 we will consider after all these items are

19 done.

20            Second addendum.  I will need a

21 motion to suspend the rules.  Moved by

22 Legislator Schaefer.  Seconded by Legislator

23 DeRiggi-Whitton.  All in favor of suspending

24 the rules signify by saying aye.  Those

25 opposed?  Carries unanimously.
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2            First item is 144.  That's going to

3 require an executive session.  So that's going

4 to be the last thing we do today.

5            170 and 171 these are ordinances

6 supplemental to the annual appropriation

7 ordinance in connection with the health

8 department.

9            Moved by Minority Leader Abrahams.

10 Seconded by Deputy Presiding Officer Kopel.

11 Any debate or discussion?  All in favor

12 signify by saying aye.  Those opposed?

13 Carries unanimously.

14            172 is a resolution making certain

15 determinations pursuant to the New York State

16 SEQRA and authorizing the county executive on

17 behalf of the county to execute an extension

18 to a lease agreement between the Massapequa

19 Union Free School District as landlord and the

20 county of Nassau.

21            Moved by Legislator Rhoads.

22 Seconded by Legislator Bynoe.  Is there any

23 debate or discussion on this item?  Hearing

24 none, all in favor signify by saying aye.

25 Those opposed?  Carries unanimously.
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2            173 is a resolution authorizing the

3 county executive to execute an intermunicipal

4 agreement with the City of Long Beach with

5 respect to assisting the county in

6 representation, recommendation and defense of

7 assessment challenges brought by municipal

8 employees of the county.

9            This is moved by Legislator Bynoe.

10 Seconded by Legislator Schaefer.  Any debate

11 or discussion on this item?  We did the same

12 thing last year.  All in favor signify by

13 saying aye.  Those opposed?  Carries

14 unanimously.

15            175 is a resolution establishing a

16 standard workday for elected officials in

17 Nassau County who are members of the New York

18 State and local retirement system.

19            Moved by Deputy Presiding Officer

20 Kopel.  Seconded by Minority Leader Abrahams.

21 Any debate or discussion?  Hearing none, all

22 in favor signify by saying aye.  Aye.

23            176 is a local law amending Local

24 Law 18 of 1994 as last amended by Local Law 9

25 of 2017 and as incorporated in Chapter 4 Title
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2 9 of the miscellaneous laws of the county in

3 relation to imposing additional rates of sales

4 and compensating use taxes authorized by

5 Section 1210 of the tax law and continuing a

6 local government assistance program authorized

7 by Section 1262E of the tax law.

8            That is moved by Legislator

9 Rhoads.  Seconded by Legislator Schaefer.  Any

10 debate or discussion?  Hearing none, all in

11 favor signify by saying aye.  Those opposed?

12 Carries unanimously.

13            177 is a resolution authorizing the

14 county executive to execute a grant agreement

15 between the county acting on behalf of the

16 Department of Parks and the Glen Cove Downtown

17 District Management Association.

18            Moved by Legislator

19 DeRiggi-Whitton.  Seconded by Legislator

20 Bynoe.  Any debate or discussion on this,

21 177?  Hearing none, all in favor signify by

22 saying aye.  Those opposed?  Carries

23 unanimously.

24            Going back to the contracts.  We

25 are going to contracts.  There are several in
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2 which the inspector general has flagged I

3 guess with respect to disclosure statements

4 and other such deficiencies that she's

5 apparently still working with.  What I'm going

6 to do is call the rest of the items and then

7 we will go back to the ones that she has

8 issues with, and if they're not resolved by

9 the end of the day we will wind up either not

10 calling them or tabling them.

11            Here is what we're going to do.  We

12 are going to call all these items together,

13 all the contracts together, at least with

14 respect to the ones on the main calendar.

15 When we get to ones that the IG has issues

16 with we will make a motion to table with

17 respect to those.  But here we go.

18            Again, I'm calling all these items

19 and as we go along if we need to table items

20 we will.

21            Items A-8 and A-30 of 2020.  These

22 are resolutions authorizing the commissioner

23 of shared services to award and execute a

24 purchase order between the county of Nassau

25 and Systems Engineering Technologies Corp. as
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2 well as Cogsdale Corporation.

3            A-28 is a resolution ratifying the

4 commissioner of shared services to award and

5 execute a purchase order between the county

6 and Solow and Company, Inc.

7            B-13, B-14, B-17, B-19, B-20, B-23

8 resolutions authorizing the county executive

9 to award and execute a contract or contract

10 amendment between the county and DF Stone

11 Contracting, Metro Paving L.L.C., WHM Plumbing

12 and Heating Contractors, Safety Markings,

13 Inc., Posillico Civil, Inc.

14            E-83, E-84, E-85, E-86, E-89, E-90,

15 E-91, E-92, E-93, E-94, E-96, E-97, E-98, E-99

16 resolutions authorizing the county executive

17 to execute personal services agreements or

18 amendments to personal service agreements

19 between the county and Liro Program and

20 Construction Management, Maximus Consulting

21 Services, Inc., Leadership Training, Inc., KS

22 Engineers, Gannett Fleming Engineers, Davis

23 Vision, Inc., Atlantic Tactical, Inc., Cameron

24 Engineers and Associates, Tomas Klimas, Inc.,

25 N and P Engineering, Architecture, Bee Ready
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2 Fishbein Hatter and Donovan and the Zoghlin

3 Group.

4            As to all of those items,

5 Legislator Rhoads makes a motion and

6 Legislator Schaefer seconds that motion.  All

7 those contracts are before us.

8            Start off with A-8 which is a

9 contract with the police department and Sytech

10 Corporation.

11            MR. FIELD:    Good afternoon.  I'm

12 William Field, deputy inspector for the Nassau

13 County Police Department's Personnel and

14 Accounting Bureau.

15            Item A-8-20 is a contract between

16 the county and Systems Engineering Technology

17 Corp.  Also known as Sytech.  This is a sole

18 source purchase request for an Adax Four, a

19 system upgrade, which includes an upgrade to

20 existing software that the county currently

21 owns as well as new hardware to replace

22 outdated and failing hardware.  The upgrade is

23 necessary to also bring our existing software

24 up to current technology standards and to keep

25 the Adax system functioning properly.
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2            Sytech Adax Four collection system

3 is a proprietary hardware-software system that

4 the police department has been using since

5 2004.  Sytech is the sole provider of the

6 system and does not use resellers.

7            Therefore, Sytech is the only

8 vendor that can provider the county with the

9 software upgrade and compatible hardware

10 that's necessary for the Adax 4 system.  This

11 purchase is necessary to allow the police

12 department to continue to provide state and

13 local and federal agencies with technical

14 support for court-ordered Title 3 wire taps.

15            The police department has

16 determined that the upgrade to the existing

17 software and the replacement of the outdated

18 hardware is in the county's best interest as

19 opposed to replacing it with a new system

20 which would be cost prohibitive.

21            The maximum amount authorized under

22 this purchase order is $192,750.

23            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Can you

24 tell us what a Title 3 wire tap is?

25            MR. FIELD:    In regards to that



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

63

1            Rules 7-13-20

2 I'm actually going to defer to detective

3 lieutenant Devon Ross.  He is our electronics

4 squad supervisor and has the most expertise

5 when it comes to the technical components that

6 the Sytech Adax system 4 offers us.

7            MR. ROSS:    A title 3 wire tap is

8 an eavesdropping warrant.  It's audio and

9 data.

10            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    These are

11 wire taps that are ordered by pursuant -- done

12 pursuant to court order?

13            MR. ROSS:    Never.  Always

14 pursuant to court order.

15            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    That was

16 the only question I had.  Anyone else have any

17 questions about this?  Thank you.  I think we

18 have two other police contracts.  We will hear

19 Cogsdale as well although we might wind up

20 holding that.  Tabling that.  A-30 is the

21 contract with Cogsdale Corp.

22            MS. STANTON:    Nancy Stanton, IT

23 commissioner.  Cogsdale Corporation.  This is

24 the annual renewal for maintenance and support

25 for the county's data warehouse.  Software
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2 supporting our county financial system known

3 as Famous.  This request is for $118,925.28.

4 The term is July 1, 2020 through June 30,

5 2021.

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Sergio.

7            MR. BLANCO:    Sergio Blanco from

8 the comptroller's office.  We're here to

9 answer any questions if asked from

10 comptroller's office as we are one of the

11 departments that use these services.

12            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

13 questions?  I think we're good.  Thank you

14 Sergio.  A-92.  That's the contract with

15 Atlantic Tactical.

16            MR. FIELD:    Good afternoon.  Item

17 E-92-2020 is a contract between the police

18 department and Atlantic Tactical.  This is an

19 amendment to an existing contract to provide

20 the police department with uniform services.

21 It is to exercise a one year remaining option

22 and to renew the term of the contract through

23 the end of 2020.  An RFP was initially issued

24 in June of 2015.  Two vendors submitted

25 proposals in response and Atlantic Tactical
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2 was the highest scoring proposer.

3            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

4 questions?  Thank you inspector.

5            Good.  How you doing?

6            MS. FRANZESE:    Jodi Franzese,

7 inspector general for Nassau County.  Hello.

8 So, we had a lot of contract review forms that

9 we sent to you I realize.  Should I go through

10 them?  Would it be easier to start with the --

11 those are done first?

12            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Unless

13 anyone has a question with respect to those

14 that have been done and satisfactory I think

15 we'll just go to the ones that have not

16 received all information on.

17            MS. FRANZESE:    The only two that

18 we are waiting on information from the

19 departments is Gannett Fleming Engineers and

20 Architects.  That's E-90 and E-93.

21            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    That's

22 it?

23            MS. FRANZESE:    There's one more.

24 And the other one that we haven't received any

25 information yet from the department is
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2 A-30-2020.  The remaining we either didn't

3 find anything of note or we did and the

4 department submitted appropriate forms and

5 information so that we're not going to take

6 any further action.

7            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    So the

8 only ones right now where information is

9 outstanding are A-30, E-90 and E-93.

10            MS. FRANZESE:    Yes.  That's

11 right.  Nice to see you.

12            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    I

13 just have one quick question.  Can you just

14 describe the information that you still need?

15            MS. FRANZESE:    Sure.  Gannett

16 Fleming we found it seems that the vendor

17 failed to disclose several of its affiliates

18 and we haven't seen them amend their forms yet

19 and we haven't gotten contact from the

20 department that they did that yet.  That's

21 that one.

22            The second one is Cogsdale

23 Corporation.  They also failed to disclose an

24 affiliated company on their business history

25 form.  And also one of the vendor's vice
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2 president failed to disclose that he is the

3 vice president of another company which is an

4 affiliate of the vendor.  It seems that they

5 have numerous vice presidents that didn't

6 submit principal questionnaire forms.  We

7 haven't gotten to the end of that yet.

8            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    So

9 what do you suggest?  That we table those?

10            MS. FRANZESE:    I have been told

11 that they are working on it right now.  If you

12 were to push it to the end I don't know if

13 they can get it done by the end of your

14 session.

15            It's not going to happen?  It's not

16 going to happen.

17            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

18 Schaefer.

19            MS. FRANZESE:    So Gannett is not

20 going to be done by today, the work that the

21 department is doing.  And Cogsdale will get

22 done?

23            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Nancy are

24 you still on the call?

25            MS. STANTON:    Yes, Nancy is
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2 here.  We did reach out to the vendor this

3 morning.  It seems that their parent company

4 is Constellation and then they have Harris and

5 Cogsdale beneath them.  They are updating the

6 disclosure form so that only EVP of Cogsdale

7 did and I'm surprised it hasn't been sent over

8 yet.

9            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    We are

10 going to table that and the Gannett contracts

11 and if you get us the information to the

12 satisfaction of the inspector general's office

13 we will move on Cogsdale today.  If not, we

14 will be having another Rules Committee in

15 three weeks.

16            MS. STANTON:    Thank you.

17            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    I had a

18 quick question.  Are both of these vendors new

19 to our contracting process?

20            MS. FRANZESE:    No.

21            MS. STANTON:    No, they're not.

22 Cogsdale is the sole source that we have been

23 using for years.  It's for our financial

24 system.  And I'm not really sure what went

25 wrong here.  But they are -- Constellation is
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2 the parent company, the umbrella, and the

3 other companies fall underneath it.  There's

4 only one EVP that works for Cogsdale and I

5 guess he misstated something on the form.  So

6 they are working on it now.  We are watching

7 emails go back and forth.

8            LEGISLATOR SCHAEFER:    Thank you.

9            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Thank

10 you.  Take a motion to table items A-30 of

11 2020, E-90 and E-93 of 2020.  Moved by

12 Legislator Schaefer.  Seconded by Deputy

13 Presiding Officer Kopel.  All in favor of

14 tabling signify by saying aye.  Those

15 opposed?  Carries unanimously.

16            Next contract is A-28 of 2020.  It

17 is an agreement involving Emergency Management

18 with Solow and Company.  Do we have anyone

19 here to speak on A-28?

20            MR. NOLAN:    Good afternoon.

21 Chris Nolan from the Office of Management and

22 Budget.  This is a purchase order that we are

23 asking you to ratify.  It was an emergency

24 purchase for three-ply surgical masks, 250,000

25 of them, in the amount of $150,000 total.
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2 These were purchased early on, about two

3 months ago, and the average cost for those

4 masks was 60 cents, which was a very good

5 price at that point in time.

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Is this

7 covered by CARES Act funding?

8            MR. NOLAN:    Yes.  We should be

9 able to get it back through either CARES Act

10 or FEMA funds.

11            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

12 Rhoads.

13            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Just a quick

14 procedural question.  When these contracts are

15 actually I guess being -- when vendors are

16 selected by emergency to provide services, do

17 we typically comply with our usual MWBE

18 requirements or no?

19            MR. NOLAN:    I know that every

20 attempt is made to reach out to as many

21 responsible vendors as possible.  I can't

22 speak to this specific effort on this one, but

23 I believe that is the practice that they look

24 to see where ever they can get it from.  In

25 this case sourcing surgical masks at one time
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2 was very difficult.  So I can't speak to the

3 exact answer that you're -- the exact question

4 that you're asking.

5            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Do we have

6 any knowledge as to what attempts we made in

7 this particular case?

8            MR. NOLAN:    Tom Delaney is I

9 believe on.  He could speak to what efforts he

10 pursued in order to execute this purchase

11 order.  Tom.

12            MR. DELANEY:    This is Tom

13 Delaney, Office of Emergency Management.  You

14 guys copy?

15            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Yes, we hear

16 you.

17            MR. DELANEY:    As we all know,

18 during the beginning of this emergency event

19 it was extremely difficult to try to obtain

20 any PPE from our normal channels.  That would

21 include great companies living Granger,

22 Vasenol.  But we had put in orders very early

23 on in the incident.  They are in fact still

24 standing waiting to be delivered.

25            We've reached out to find uncommon
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2 sources to secure vital PPE including face

3 masks that needed to protect our employees and

4 others performing emergency response work.

5 The price that we obtained from Draxcello at

6 60 cents each was by far the best price I had

7 seen at the time that we made this

8 procurement.  Other vendors were charging

9 double that price.  So we did make a best

10 effort that we could but we needed to get this

11 emergency PPE in and we could not wait for our

12 normal channels to deliver.

13            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Thank you.

14            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Next

15 contract is they're going to be public works

16 contracts.  Starting with B-13.  DF Stone

17 Contracting.

18            MR. ARNOLD:    Ken Arnold, public

19 works.  DF Stone is a contract amendment to

20 restore funds that were utilized on the

21 Wheatley Road emergency project.  Looking to

22 raise the cap by $2 million.

23            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

24 questions?  No?  Go to the next one.

25            MR. ARNOLD:    B-14.  B-14 is a
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2 resurfacing phase PR5.  It covers

3 approximately 65 lane miles of road.  We had

4 five bidders.  Metro was the second lowest

5 bidder.  The lowest bidder was found

6 nonresponsive and was eliminated.  Metro is

7 below the engineer's estimate and they're

8 using MWBE at 3.5 percent.

9            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Quick

10 question on repaving in general.  How did you

11 do during the peak of the pandemic?  No one

12 was on the roads.  Were you able to accomplish

13 more repaving at that time?

14            MR. ARNOLD:    Unfortunately most

15 of that was before all our contracts were in

16 place.  We did a little bit of work.  We were

17 able to do a couple of roads during the day

18 that normally we would have to do at night.

19 But it was a little bit before we were ready

20 to go.  We didn't get really started with the

21 weather until April.

22            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Anyone

23 else have any questions?  Mr. Rhoads.

24            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    I just for

25 the record want to say that Merrick Road was
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2 done.

3            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

4 DeRiggi-Whitton.

5            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    Were

6 the funds necessary for these two items were

7 they already bonded for?

8            MR. ARNOLD:    We have

9 approximately at the start of the season we

10 have $42 million of cash proceeds for our

11 resurfacing program.  That gets us about 140

12 150 lane miles of road.  In addition, we

13 applied for our TRIPS funding which was

14 another I think five and a half million

15 dollars.  So we're hoping to get somewhere

16 around 160 lane miles of road done.  PR3 along

17 with PR1 and two would all fit under that

18 funding.

19            The only condition that can come up

20 is utility conflicts that may delay the

21 projects towards the end.  The three PRs that

22 you have seen to date are all funded with the

23 cash proceeds we have.  We'll be representing

24 a couple of more contracts either next session

25 or the session after, which is phases 62, 65
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2 and 66.  Cash proceeds will be problematic for

3 those stages and we will have to figure out

4 how we are going to proceed at that point.

5            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    So

6 two the million for the prior contract is also

7 covered?

8            MR. ARNOLD:    DF Stone is an

9 emergency contract.  That can be funded from a

10 number of sources.  If any emergency does

11 arise we will work with OMB on our cash

12 proceeds to address the emergencies.

13            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    I've

14 heard that we might have some type of lists

15 within the next like couple of weeks as to

16 what projects such as streetscape which would

17 not be under the paving, right?

18            MR. ARNOLD:    Correct.  The

19 streetscapes is a different funding sources.

20 They typically have their own capital

21 projects.  And yes, the department working

22 with OMB is putting together a priority list

23 of safety related projects for the cash

24 proceeds that we currently have.

25            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    Do
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2 you have any idea in your mind as to how many

3 will have to be cancelled or postponed?

4            MR. ARNOLD:    Not at this time.

5 We are proceeding with all designs because we

6 also want to be ready for shovel-ready

7 projects in case there's stimulus program.  So

8 designs have not slowed down because of this

9 issue.  But certain construction projects

10 have, yes.

11            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:

12 Hopefully we will have that list in the next

13 week or two?

14            MR. ARNOLD:    Probably be a little

15 bit longer than that.

16            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any other

17 questions?  B-17.

18            MR. ARNOLD:    B-17 is the Bay Park

19 rehab of the effluent screens disinfectant

20 facility.  It's under the county's 428

21 program, which means it's 100 percent

22 reimbursed.  We had five bidders.  WHM was the

23 lowest responsible bidder.  And the MWBE is at

24 20 percent.

25            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Is this



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

77

1            Rules 7-13-20

2 limited to Bay Park?

3            MR. ARNOLD:    Yes.  This is just a

4 Bay Park project through the funding that we

5 got through FEMA to do upgrades.

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Deputy

7 Presiding Officer Kopel.

8            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Thank you.

9 Ken, I see -- how long will it take for these

10 things to be fabricated and installed?

11            MR. ARNOLD:    This project, I

12 don't have in front of me, typically projects

13 like this take 18 to 24 months.

14            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Right now

15 three out of the four are not working?

16            MR. ARNOLD:    Correct.  We are

17 maintaining the units to keep the one working.

18            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    You're sure

19 that you'll be able to keep -- it sounds like

20 we're in a potential catastrophic situation

21 here.

22            MR. ARNOLD:    Effluent screening

23 is a polishing.  While we want to keep the

24 screens operating for permit, if there was an

25 emergency we would go out and address it as an
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2 emergency.  Once we have this contract on

3 board we have a little more leeway to get

4 certain things done quicker if we have to.

5            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    If I

6 understand you correctly then if this thing

7 failed it would not --

8            MR. ARNOLD:    It's a polishing of

9 what goes into Reynolds Channel.  So yes, we

10 want to keep the screens running but it's not

11 a --

12            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Not the end of

13 the world.

14            MR. ARNOLD:    Not the end of the

15 world.  But it is a permit requirement to have

16 effluent screens at Bay Park.

17            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Would it

18 affect the permit then?

19            MR. ARNOLD:    Yes.  We would have

20 to work with the state on how to address that.

21            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

22 Walker.

23            LEGISLATOR WALKER:    Thank you

24 Ken.  Can I ask how long have the three that

25 are not working have they not been working?
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2            MR. ARNOLD:    I don't have that

3 stuff in front of me.  I know it's been quite

4 a bit of time that we've had issues with the

5 effluent screens.  But I believe part of the

6 challenge is that we couldn't take the whole

7 plant down at the same time to do all the

8 repairs and everything at once.  So we had to

9 prioritize what we worked on first.  That's

10 why the effluent screens disinfectant facility

11 is one of the later things that we are doing.

12            LEGISLATOR WALKER:    Okay.  Thank

13 you.

14            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    The backup

15 indicates that the bids were opened nearly two

16 years ago.  Do you know why this was delayed

17 to this point?

18            MR. ARNOLD:    We had some issues

19 with disclosures.  We had issues just

20 prioritizing the work to get the package put

21 together.  I had both my engineers that do

22 this work retire.  We've had new staff on.

23 Brought them up to speed.  Some of this should

24 have happened nine months ago but we are doing

25 the best we can do.



516-747-7353
Regal Reporting Service

80

1            Rules 7-13-20

2            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Is this

3 eligible for FEMA reimbursement?

4            MR. ARNOLD:    One hundred

5 percent.

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    And the

7 delay then is not --

8            MR. ARNOLD:    Not impact it.

9            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any other

10 questions?  Let's move on to the next two

11 together, right?

12            MR. ARNOLD:    Yeah.  B-19 and

13 B-20.  I'll read them together.  B-19 and B-20

14 are paving marking contracts.  That's our

15 lines on the roads for those that may not

16 know.  And symbols.  Both are 80 percent

17 reimburse by New York State DOT.  In both

18 cases Safety Markings was the only bidder on

19 the project.  The department looked at this

20 and there are no really other competition for

21 Safety Markings in this area.  It's a similar

22 thing that New York State goes through.  And

23 Safety Marking does all our subcontracting

24 work on our resurfacing project.

25            We did receive New York State
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2 concurrence for utilizing Safety Markings and

3 they have been working with us for over the

4 last five years on all our work at a minimum.

5            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any debate

6 or discussion or questions?  Go to B-23.

7            MR. ARNOLD:    B-23 is another FEMA

8 project through our 428 program for the

9 reconstruction of the East Avenue ejector

10 station.  It's 100 percent reimbursed.  We had

11 four bids.  Posillico was the second lowest

12 bidder.  The lowest bidder, RJ, withdrew their

13 bid when they did their bid analysis and

14 realized they missed a major component of the

15 bid.

16            The MWBE is at ten percent for this

17 project.  It's a little lower than we like but

18 this is a smaller project and it's hard to get

19 20 percent on the smaller projects.

20            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

21 questions?  Minority Leader Abrahams.

22            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    Ken, to

23 item E-19 it's kind of hard to hear on my

24 device.  Are we still discussing B-19 and

25 B-20?
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2            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Yes.

3            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    Thank you.

4 My question as it relates to the backup from

5 what we can tell from the backup that the

6 company in question Side Markings.

7            MR. ARNOLD:    Safety Markings.

8            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    I

9 apologize.  I believe there was some issues in

10 regards to a local lawsuit that was filed or

11 discriminatory hostile racial environment at

12 their particular site.  From what I can tell

13 from the backup the Connecticut DOT as well as

14 the New York Department of Transportation both

15 did not find anything in their audit that

16 indicated that.  However, the two individuals

17 that did file the lawsuit also indicated I

18 guess they actually won their lawsuit and

19 there was some payment made.  Substantial.

20            My question is more related to,

21 one, are you satisfied with the fact that the

22 audit that was done by New York State and the

23 Connecticut Department of Transportation is a

24 satisfactory demonstration that Safety

25 Markings has basically ensured that their
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2 employees are working in a safe and not

3 hostile, racially charged environment?

4            And two, what would give you that

5 level of comfortability?  Have you brought

6 this up with Safety Markings?  I know they

7 disclosed it on the forms but I'm not too sure

8 if it came up in discussions after they were

9 awarded.

10            MR. ARNOLD:    The department did

11 their due diligence on this issue and we are

12 comfortable with their responses.

13            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    Describe

14 the due diligence the department has done.

15            MR. ARNOLD:    We spoke to them

16 about the backup on what occurred.  They

17 responded and they put in processes that look

18 to avoid it in the future.  We also talked to

19 New York State DOT who utilizes them on many

20 contracts and they felt the same.

21            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    From your

22 standpoint, you are confident that Safety

23 Markings corrected issues that they had in

24 their referenced lawsuit and they do not have

25 an environment that is discriminatory or in
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2 any way racially insensitive or a hostile work

3 environment?

4            MR. ARNOLD:    Yes.

5            LEGISLATOR ABRAHAMS:    Okay.

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any other

7 questions?  Hearing none, move on to the next

8 one, B-23.

9            MR. ARNOLD:    I read my statement

10 on B-23.

11            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

12 questions on B-23?  Let's go to the next two,

13 both with Liro.

14            MR. ARNOLD:    E-83 is an amendment

15 to the department's on call project management

16 contract with Liro.  We are looking to extend

17 it for two years.  There's no additional

18 funding required.  The main reason we are

19 extending this contract is that they are

20 involved with our tank program working with

21 our department staff in all our compliance

22 issues in responding.

23            Liro, we are looking to replace

24 this contract.  We have a draft that should go

25 out probably within the next month or so for
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2 the tank program specifically.  Not a project

3 management contract.  But in the interim I

4 want to make sure we have continued coverage

5 for this work.  This contract actually expires

6 August 8th.  So it's not a retro.

7            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Next one.

8            MR. ARNOLD:    E-85 is an amendment

9 for the Cedar Creek construction management

10 contract associated with the effluent screens

11 and disinfectant facility.  This is a retro

12 contract.  Expired on May of 2020.  The

13 amendment is to increase the cap and to add an

14 additional year.

15            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

16 questions as to these two contracts?  Hearing

17 none, why don't we skip -- next one is KS

18 Engineers.

19            MR. ARNOLD:    E-89 is a design

20 contract for the rehab of the Cutter Mill Road

21 Bayview Avenue Bridge over the Long Island

22 Railroad.  Four firms submitted.  KSE was the

23 highest technically ranked and also was the

24 lowest cost.  KSE is a minority business

25 enterprise and they're also using a WBE for
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2 surveying.  So this contract will have 90

3 percent MWBE.  This project design is

4 reimbursed in New York State at 80 percent.

5            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Is this

6 bridge a county bridge or is it owned by the

7 railroad?

8            MR. ARNOLD:    It's a county

9 bridge.  We would not work on it unless it was

10 our responsibility.

11            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Okay.  I

12 guess we're not calling -- we already tabled

13 Gannett Fleming.

14            MR. ARNOLD:    Yes.  That's takes a

15 little bit of work.  They're a large company

16 and the affiliate will require some research.

17 I don't want to rush it today.

18            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    As I said,

19 we will schedule a Rules Committee on the

20 third.  If it's done by then we will consider

21 it then.  E-94.

22            MR. ARNOLD:    E-94 is a

23 retrocontract.  I apologize for the delay on

24 getting this one to you.  It's an amendment

25 for time only associated with our Bonds Avenue
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2 Hempstead pump station.  It's only for time.

3 There's adequate funding in the contract.

4            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

5 questions on E-94?  Go ahead to Nelson and

6 Pope E-96.

7            MR. ARNOLD:    E-96 is the

8 construction management contract associated

9 with the pavement marking contract that we

10 just heard for Safety Markings.  Nelson and

11 Pope will oversee the work for those two

12 contracts under this.  This is also a New York

13 State reimbursed contract.  The MWBE is at 21

14 percent.  We had five proposals.  Nelson Pope

15 was the highest ranked and best value to the

16 county.

17            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Sorry.  Just

18 for my own education.  What kind of management

19 do you need for pavement markings?

20            MR. ARNOLD:    We need somebody at

21 the sites to make sure the roads are clear.

22 We need to inspect the work to make sure it's

23 done properly on it's layout.  I mean pavement

24 markings I'm always amazed at the detailed

25 drawings that are associated with putting
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2 marks on the road because of liability.  And

3 also to work on all the paperwork and

4 requirements for New York State for

5 reimbursement for both contractors' work.

6            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    So the

7 contractor themselves don't have all this

8 in-house?

9            MR. ARNOLD:    We have to have

10 oversight on what the contractor does for the

11 purposes of making sure it's all done

12 properly.

13            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Okay.

14            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any other

15 questions on this contract?  Hearing none,

16 while you are up Ken we have two contracts

17 that previously came before the committee that

18 we are going to untable.  So why don't we take

19 care of them at the same time.  First one --

20 actually we'll untable both of them at the

21 same time.  Both of which were tabled because

22 of discussions with the CSEA.

23            The two contracts are B-8 of 2020,

24 a contract between public works and Welsbach

25 Electric Corp. of Long Island.
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2            And E-66, a contract between the

3 public works department and Greenman

4 Pederson.

5            Legislator Schaefer makes a motion

6 to untable.  Legislator DeRiggi-Whitton

7 seconds that.  All in favor of untabling

8 signify by saying aye.  Those opposed?

9 Carries unanimously.  Why don't you go over

10 these contracts?

11            MR. ARNOLD:    Thank you.  B-8 and

12 E-66 are both associated with the traffic

13 management center.  B-8 is with Welsbach and

14 it covers the in-field maintenance and

15 operation of the cameras, the controllers and

16 everything associated with bringing data back

17 to the management center.

18            E-66 is a personal services

19 contract with Greenman Pederson and that is

20 our staff that manages, not manages but

21 maintains 24-7 presence in the control room

22 and puts out changes to the system as required

23 and notifications of items that we get back to

24 the public.  We have a website, we have a

25 Facebook page, we have a lot of different ways
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2 that we put information on what is occurring

3 on our roads back to the public.

4            In addition, we request utilities

5 to inform us of road closures and when they do

6 this is all put on our website as information.

7            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

8 questions about these two contracts?  Hearing

9 none, I think that's it for public works

10 contracts.  Thanks.

11            Next contract is E-84.  It is a

12 contract with the Maximus Consulting Services,

13 Inc. and the comptroller's office.

14            MR. BLANCO:    Good afternoon.

15 Sergio Blanco from the comptroller's office.

16 Thank you for giving me the opportunity here

17 to present this contract.  This is again a

18 contract with Maximus Consulting Services.

19 They help us create our indirect cost

20 allocation plan.  It is a wonderful contract.

21 We spend just under $30,000 and we actually

22 recovered almost $2.7 million in 2019 as a

23 result of these services.  So I'm very excited

24 for this to go forward.

25            I should note that we expect to
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2 issue an RFP this month or early in August for

3 these very same services going forward.  So

4 this will be last amendment with this vendor.

5 Thank you.

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

7 questions?  Sounds like you got the better of

8 this deal.

9            MR. BLANCO:    Yes, sir.

10            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    No

11 questions?  Move on to the next one.  Thank

12 you Sergio.  Probation department.  Next

13 contract is E-86, 2020, a contract with the

14 Leadership Training Institute, Inc.

15            MR. SCHRILLO:    This is Joe

16 Schrillo, fiscal officer, county department of

17 probation.  This is a contract for educational

18 services provided at the juvenile detention

19 center.  The dollar amount is $342,342.

20            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Could you

21 just repeat your name for the record.

22            MR. SCHRILLO:   Joe Schrillo,

23 fiscal officer for the Nassau County

24 Department of Probation fiscal.

25            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any
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2 questions on this contract?  Hearing none,

3 thank you.  Move on to the next one.  Next one

4 is with human resources and Davis Vision, Inc.

5 Speaker for human resources?  This is the

6 contract with Davis Vision.

7            MS. HORST:    Marissa are you on

8 the line?

9            MS. HOWARD:    Marissa Howard,

10 director of human resources.  Item E-91-20 is

11 a ten year amendment contract between the

12 county and Davis Vision, the county's eye

13 provider.  There is no increase in cost per

14 relief for the contract period.  It's good

15 through the end of the year.

16            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

17 questions?  Thank you.  Next one is human

18 services and Tomas Klimas-Mikalauskas.  Anyone

19 here from human services?

20            MR. HALL:    Brian Hall from human

21 services.  This is a contract with Tomas

22 Klimas.  He's one of our lawyers who goes to

23 the mental health court and he takes care of

24 the AOL and some other items that they have to

25 do in the courts.  This is 100 percent grant
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2 funded by New York State Office of Mental

3 Health.

4            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

5 questions?  Thank you Brian.  Next three

6 contracts are with the county attorney's

7 office.  First two are with the law firm of

8 Bee, Ready, Fishbein, Hatter and Donovan.

9 They are 97 and 98.

10            MS. KALPAKIS:    Good afternoon.

11 County attorney Jessica Moninares Kalpakis.

12 I'm here to answer any questions you may have.

13            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    If you can

14 give us just a brief overview of what the two

15 contracts are for.  Two contracts with Bee

16 Ready.

17            MS. KALPAKIS:    We have two

18 contracts.  They are separated by subject

19 matter.  One relates to labor and employment

20 discrimination matters, and the second

21 contract, E-98, relates to wage and hour

22 matters under the Fair Labor Standards Act.

23            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

24 questions on these two?  Why don't you cover

25 the third contract.  I think it's Zoghlin
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2 Group.  I don't know if that goes through the

3 Office of Legal Counsel for the planning

4 commission.

5            MS. KALPAKIS:    Excuse me.  E-99?

6            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Yes.

7            MS. KALPAKIS:    That's a contract

8 for counsel services with the Zoghlin Group.

9 That's the legal services to be provided to

10 the Nassau County Planning Commission.

11            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Is that

12 with respect to a specific matter or in

13 general?

14            MS. KALPAKIS:    Generally

15 speaking.  It relates to providing legal

16 interpretations under the New York State

17 Environmental Quality Review Act which relates

18 to the Willow View Estates project, also known

19 as the Woodmere Country Club.

20            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Any

21 questions?  We're good.  Thank you.

22            MS. KALPAKIS:    Thank you.

23            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Why don't

24 we have a vote on these contracts that are

25 before us and then we're going to move on to
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2 the three addendums which we will cover

3 separately.  But these are all the contracts

4 that have been called with the exception of

5 A-30, E-90, E-93.  Those three are tabled but

6 these are all the rest of the contracts we

7 have heard about today.  All in favor signify

8 by saying aye.  Those opposed?  They carry

9 unanimously.

10            Now we move to the addendum.  We've

11 already had a motion to suspend the rules.  We

12 have three contracts on the addendum.  First

13 addendum.  E-79, E-80 and E-82.

14            E-79 is a resolution authorizing

15 the county executive to execute a personal

16 services agreement between the county of

17 Nassau and Coliseum Kitchen, Inc.

18            E-80 and 82 are resolutions

19 authorizing the county executive to execute a

20 license agreement between the county and

21 Lessings, Inc. and Culinart Group Inc.

22            That's moved by Legislator

23 DeRiggi-Whitton.  Seconded by Legislator

24 Bynoe.  Those contracts are before us.  Who do

25 we have to speak about these things?
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2            MS. KASO:    Victoria Kaso from the

3 parks department.  So, E-79 is a license

4 agreement for the operation and promotion of

5 catering services for special events and

6 picnics in Nassau County parks.  This is

7 intended to be one of three options that will

8 be able to provide residents so that they have

9 a selection of different caterers to choose

10 from for their permitted picnics.  They will

11 be paying the county 12 percent of gross

12 receipts for their permits.

13            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

14 Rhoads.

15            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Good

16 afternoon.  Just in my understanding of the

17 backup material is that these aren't -- E-79

18 for example is with respect to specific

19 parks.  My understanding is this isn't to

20 provide residents with a menu of options from

21 which to choose.  These three contracts are

22 for services to be provided at specific

23 locations.  There is no overlap between the

24 three.

25            MS. KASO:    No.  This is
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2 specifically for permitted picnics.  All three

3 caterers that we are hoping to eventually have

4 agreements with will be options for each

5 park.  There's no exclusivity with the

6 permitted picnic caterers.

7            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Looking at

8 E-79 of '20.  It's Coliseum Kitchen is

9 providing services at Eisenhower, North

10 Woodmere Park, Bay Park, Christopher Morley,

11 Wantagh Park, Mitchel Athletic Complex, Inwood

12 Park, Grant Park, Centenial Park, Reverend

13 Mackey Park, Cedar Creek, Washington Avenue

14 Park, Garvey's Point Museum and Preserve,

15 Tackapusha and all preserves except

16 Elderfields, Bailey Arboretum, the Holocaust

17 Center, Sands Point Preserve, Chelsea Mansion

18 and grounds and Cedarmere.

19            Then you have the Culinart Group

20 which is to provide catering operations at

21 Chelsea Mansion, which is specifically

22 excluded from the other agreement.  And then

23 you have Lessings Incorporated which is to

24 provide catering operations solely at Old

25 Bethpage Village Restoration.
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2            How is that providing residents

3 with a choice?  In other words, if I want to

4 go to Wantagh Park I can only deal with one

5 vendor not three.

6            MS. KASO:    No.  The other two

7 caterers that we are intending on having those

8 contracts are not before you yet.  They are

9 still getting departmental approvals.  So

10 Lessings and Culinart are both for -- Lessings

11 is obviously is for the barn at OBVR and then

12 Culinart is for Chelsea Mansion.  Those are

13 for the catering and marketing of private

14 gatherings such as weddings.  And they're

15 contributing a much more significant amount of

16 revenue to the county in their contracts.

17            The other picnic caterers that

18 aren't before you yet they will, both of them,

19 also have all of those parks that are listed

20 for Coliseum available to them for this

21 specific service.

22            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    So why

23 wouldn't you present them all at the same

24 time?

25            MS. KASO:    Because just the
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2 negotiations for the other two took a little

3 bit longer and getting the forms finalized.

4 So, there is a little bit of a delay because

5 they will also be operating our concessions.

6 So it was a little bit more complicated for

7 their contracts.

8            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    So Coliseum

9 is not going to be operating the concessions,

10 correct?

11            MS. KASO:    Correct.  Our RFP that

12 we issued gave proposers the option to specify

13 services in parks and not necessarily have to

14 take on everything.  And Coliseum Caterers did

15 not want to operate stand-alone concession

16 stands.

17            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Is there an

18 overall plan on the part of the administration

19 as to how this, how operations at the parks

20 and how concessions at the parks and how food

21 at the parks is going to be delivered and when

22 will we be provided with that overall plan?

23            MS. KASO:    In terms of in the

24 current state or just an overall view of how

25 it's going to be operating?
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2            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    For example,

3 there isn't a relation between the two.  For

4 example, operating a concession may not be as

5 profitable.  So typically you have the

6 catering services provided by the same company

7 because the catering services are more

8 profitable.  So it makes it possible for them

9 to operate the concession.  What's the

10 interrelationship between the three?

11            MS. KASO:    So the two other

12 agreements that are on their way for

13 consideration they both operate concessions in

14 specific parks and also have the option to --

15 they are one of three picnic caterers and they

16 have all of the parks open to them.  So when a

17 resident or a group books a picnic we give

18 them the contact information for all three no

19 matter which park they're in.  Concessions are

20 obviously limited to the specific parks that

21 they will be operating in.

22            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    I know we're

23 getting a little bit ahead of ourselves but

24 with respect to the concessions how does what

25 the county executive done with respect to food
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2 trucks going to impact concessions?  Are the

3 concessions going to replace the food trucks,

4 operating in conjunction with the food

5 trucks?  Are the concessionaires even aware of

6 the fact that there are food trucks

7 theoretically undercutting the sales in

8 individual parks?  How does that work?

9            MS. KASO:    In terms of food

10 trucks, in our parks that have pools and ice

11 rinks and then also Eisenhower and Cedar

12 Creek, the two concessionaires whose

13 agreements will hopefully be in front of you

14 next time around, they both have the

15 coordinating ability to oversee the two.  The

16 food trucks currently in Eisenhower are under

17 the umbrella of the concessionaire for

18 Eisenhower.  It's just not ad hoc food trucks

19 coming in to Eisenhower Park.

20            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    But I guess

21 it kind of underscores my point in the sense

22 that for myself as a legislator I would like

23 to see all of the agreements at the same time

24 because I would like to see how all of the

25 agreements interrelate to make sure that there
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2 isn't competing services, to make sure that

3 there aren't areas where those agreements

4 overlap.  Sort of addressing these on an ad

5 hoc piecemeal basis prohibits us from doing

6 that.

7            MS. KASO:    Well, that's certainly

8 understandable.  We have been trying to get

9 these through to you as soon as possible.

10 Lessings and Culinart are not -- I would say

11 they are separate from the overall concessions

12 agreement.  Since those are like they're

13 on-site catering and they're marketing and

14 booking weddings and showing the location and

15 everything like that.

16            In terms of competing services, I

17 would say that one reason that the other two

18 aren't in front of you is because we have been

19 doing a very thorough job of trying to ensure

20 that there aren't competing services.

21            For example, one of the contracts

22 will be the concessionaire for Eisenhower and

23 Cedar Creek and the food trucks will be under

24 his umbrella.  And then concessions obviously

25 will be his as well.  And then the other one
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2 will be for the parks with pools and then also

3 Cow Meadow.

4            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    So the only

5 one where that presents a potential issue from

6 my understanding of your answer is E-79.  E-80

7 and E-82, Lessings and Culinart Group, are to

8 provide specific catering services at a

9 specific location?

10            MS. KASO:    Correct.

11            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    The intention

12 of the administration is that they will be the

13 only caterer at that particular venue?

14            MS. KASO:    Yes.

15            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Okay.  Is

16 there a particular -- I notice in the term of

17 79 that the services were actually to start I

18 guess retroactive to March 5 of 2020 for a

19 five-year term.  What's the rational behind

20 that and why is this getting to us so late?

21            MS. KASO:    The rational behind

22 that is before everything had to be shut down

23 so permits for picnics open up in February.

24 And so obviously once you book a picnic you

25 want to book everything else that goes along
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2 with it.  So, we had been working very

3 diligently to get all three of the picnic

4 catering contracts submitted for approval as

5 quick as possible so that they would be able

6 to book their caterers for these picnics.  And

7 then obviously everything sort of shut down

8 and people couldn't find notaries to get

9 contracts notarized.  It just was a very much

10 more slower than usual process trying to get

11 everything completed.

12            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    If I wanted

13 to go to Wantagh Park yesterday for a picnic,

14 which I guess in theory I can do?

15            MS. KASO:    To book a picnic?

16            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    If I had

17 wanted to have had a picnic yesterday who

18 would I have contacted in order to arrange a

19 group?

20            MS. KASO:    Who would you have

21 contacted?  You would have contacted Wantagh

22 and you would have booked your picnic permit

23 there, in theory, if we were permitting

24 picnics at the moment, and then they would

25 give you the information for the caterers.
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2            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    So we're not

3 issuing picnic permits at the moment?

4            MS. KASO:    No.

5            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Do we have

6 any plans to be issuing picnic permits any

7 time in the near future?

8            MS. KASO:    I believe as soon as

9 safely possible.

10            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Do we have

11 any idea as to when that is?

12            MS. KASO:    If you give me one

13 second I can ask or I can get that answer to

14 you as soon as possible after.

15            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    We're

16 considering it now though that's the problem.

17            MS. KASO:    Sure.  Give me one

18 second.  We are issuing them for picnics that

19 are under 25 people and then for anything

20 larger than that we are waiting for the state

21 guidelines and guidance on that.  We do have

22 some picnics that were on the books in

23 February that haven't yet been cancelled

24 because everybody is holding out hope.

25            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    As of right
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2 now if I wanted to book a picnic for 25 or

3 fewer people I'm able to bring in food on my

4 own because there's no contract for a

5 caterer?

6            MS. KASO:    You can bring your own

7 food any time.  But if you're going to have it

8 catered it has to be through one of the

9 caterers.

10            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    But you have

11 no caterer right now, right?

12            MS. KASO:    We have short-term

13 permits so that they are all able to book

14 these picnics.  But obviously once the longer

15 term contract comes into place it will

16 supersede them.

17            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    I guess my

18 question is, it's not going to prohibit people

19 who are booking a picnic for 25 or fewer

20 people from obtaining a caterer if we were to

21 wait for consideration of E-79 until we have

22 the other two contracts with the other vendors

23 that are providing those services, correct?

24            MS. KASO:    In terms of providing

25 the service to the residents or the group
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2 booking the picnic not at this moment, no.

3            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Thank you.

4            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Legislator

5 DeRiggi-Whitton.

6            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:

7 Could you possibly provide us with the list of

8 the other companies that answered this RFP?

9            MS. KASO:    All of them or the

10 ones that were --?

11            LEGISLATOR DERIGGI-WHITTON:    All

12 of them.  You don't have to do it right now

13 but in the next week or so.

14            MS. KASO:    I actually sent that

15 to leg affairs previously but I will follow-up

16 and have them send it along again.

17            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Deputy

18 Presiding Officer Kopel.

19            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    What kind of

20 controls do we have in place?  In other words,

21 can these vendors just charge whatever they

22 want?  What kind of controls do you have to

23 make sure that they are fair and reasonable?

24 And what about quality controls?

25            MS. KASO:    Can you hold on one
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2 moment?

3            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Even two.  Go

4 ahead.

5            MR. MCDERMOTT:    Legislators,

6 presiding officer, this is Dennis McDermott,

7 deputy county attorney.  I think I can answer

8 that question Legislator Kopel.  All of these

9 licenses require the licensee to submit to

10 parks not less than 60 days before the first

11 day of each operating year's schedule which

12 includes --

13            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    I'm sorry.

14 I'm having a little difficult understanding.

15            MR. MCDERMOTT:    And is subject to

16 the parks approval.

17            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Please do me a

18 favor and say that again.  Would you mind

19 because I had a little bit of difficulty

20 understanding you.

21            MR. MCDERMOTT:    No problem.

22 Every license has a requirement in it for the

23 licensee to submit to parks prior to each

24 operating year all of their schedules, which

25 is prices, rates for catering services,
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2 products to be provided, and they all are

3 subject to the reasonable approval of parks.

4 Any change in the prices during the year must

5 receive prior approval from the parks in

6 writing.

7            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    If there were

8 some perceived deterioration in quality, I

9 suppose that's rather subjective, there's no

10 way for anyone to monitor that is there?  In

11 other words, if I go to a venue --

12            MR. MCDERMOTT:    I think that

13 would come that we would get feedback I think

14 if someone was providing less than good food

15 in this case and the parks would address it to

16 them.  And we always have a right to terminate

17 all of these contracts if the services aren't

18 being provided.

19            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    One way it

20 might manifest itself should that happen is a

21 dramatic drop off in business and concurrently

22 in remittances to the county.

23            One more question please.  We have

24 some very significant minorities in the

25 county.  Specifically those who eat either
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2 halal or kosher food.  What do these people

3 do?  Are they just simply precluded?

4            MR. MCDERMOTT:    Was that question

5 for me legislator?

6            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Whoever it is

7 that wants to answer it.  I don't know.

8            MS. KASO:    So the concessionaires

9 do take into consideration people's specific

10 diet needs.  For example, I know that one of

11 the concessionaires whose contract isn't in

12 front of you has been working on a kosher

13 options for other -- sorry, work from home

14 brain -- for one of the parks, Woodmere.

15            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    You would have

16 Woodmere, you would have Grant Park and I

17 suppose some others as well.

18            MS. KASO:    It is something that

19 they all are very aware of and taking into

20 consideration.  And I would say that one of

21 the benefits of having the ability to have the

22 diversity of food trucks is that if we end up

23 having a food truck tussle or something like

24 that or just a regular food truck that is at

25 one of the parks food trucks are very specific
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2 to the type of food they are serving and you

3 can bring in varying options for people's --

4            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    I'm not really

5 clear.  You said one of the vendors is working

6 on these options at one park?

7            MS. KASO:    That was just an

8 example that I knew off the top of my head.

9            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Is it fair to

10 say you don't know the answer yet?

11            MS. KASO:    On what type of

12 options they specifically have or the fact

13 that they are considering these specific diet

14 needs?

15            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    Yes.  Both.

16            MS. KASO:    I do know.  I can say

17 assuredly that they are considering these

18 special dietary needs.  Their exact menus I am

19 not 100 percent sure of.

20            LEGISLATOR KOPEL:    They are

21 considering.  Okay.

22            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    This is

23 Rich Nicolello just to follow-up.  When do you

24 believe that you can -- that the other

25 concession agreements can be brought to the
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2 legislature?

3            MS. KASO:    They are already

4 routing through the approvals so we will work

5 to get them to you as soon as possible for the

6 next meeting.

7            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Just a

8 general question as to the food trucks that

9 are anticipated to be somewhat under the

10 umbrella of the concessions.  Who is going to

11 be choosing those food trucks?  Who is going

12 to be monitoring what they do?  Is it the

13 intention of the county to put them under the

14 jurisdiction of the vendors that have the

15 concessions and they will make those

16 decisions?

17            MS. KASO:    So, we have gotten

18 some interest of food trucks to come in and we

19 do give their information to the

20 concessionaires for consideration.  For the

21 specific parks that the concessionaires are in

22 charge of the food trucks for they will be the

23 ones bringing them in.  Obviously if they

24 aren't popular we have a say in the matter of

25 whether or not they stay there.  Also if
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2 they're not doing great business I'm sure they

3 don't want to stay there and pay a permit

4 fee.

5            Then in terms of health department

6 and all of those regulatory permits they are

7 all required meet all of the standards and

8 have all of the necessary permits for that.

9            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    It seems

10 that the whole picture with respect to these

11 concessions remains vague, and I think we need

12 additional details especially as to E-79.

13 E-80 and E-82 the agreements with Lessings and

14 Culinart seem to be different because they are

15 for one venue and my understanding is that

16 these vendors need to get up and running as

17 soon as possible at those locations to be able

18 to book events, which hopefully can happen in

19 the fall, as well as they have obligations for

20 capital services.

21            But from my perspective, the

22 contract with Coliseum Kitchens is only part

23 of a larger picture and the entire picture

24 remains very cloudy to us.  Anyone else have

25 any questions?
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2            LEGISLATOR RHOADS:    Not a

3 question but I would make a motion to table

4 E-79 at this time.

5            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    Seconded

6 by Deputy Presiding Officer Kopel.  All in

7 favor of tabling E-79 signify by saying aye.

8 Carries unanimously.

9            The other two remaining are E-80

10 and E-82.  Does anyone have any additional

11 questions on those two?  Hearing none, all in

12 favor of E-80 and 82 signify by saying aye.

13 Those opposed?  Those two carry unanimously.

14 Thank you very much.

15            MS. KASO:    Thank you.

16            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    We have a

17 meeting on August 3rd.  I don't know what kind

18 of timeline you're looking at but that will

19 probably be our last meeting until September.

20            The one item that remains

21 outstanding is 144 of '20.  It's a resolution

22 authorizing the county executive to compromise

23 and settle the claims of plaintiff as set

24 forth in the action entitled United States of

25 American versus County of Nassau.  The
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2 settlement will be pursuant to the county law,

3 the government law and the administrative

4 code.

5            That is moved by Legislator

6 Rhoads.  Seconded by Legislator

7 DeRiggi-Whitton.  Now that that's before us we

8 need a motion to go into executive session.

9 Moved by Legislator Rhoads.  Seconded by

10 Legislator DeRiggi-Whitton.  All in favor of

11 going into executive session signify by saying

12 aye.  Those opposed?  Carries unanimously.

13            (A recess was taken.)

14            LEGISLATOR NICOLELLO:    We are out

15 of recess and we have this item 144 of 2020.

16 Any debate or discussion?  Hearing none, all

17 in favor signify by saying aye.  Those

18 opposed? Carries unanimously.

19            Need a motion to adjourn.  Moved by

20 Legislator Schaefer.  Seconded by Legislator

21 Walker.  All in favor of adjourning signify

22 by -- that's seconded by Legislator Rhoads.

23 All in favor of adjourning signify by saying

24 aye.  Those opposed?  Carries unanimously.

25 Thank you.
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2            (Committee was adjourned at four

3 p.m.)

4
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1

2                 CERTIFICATION

3

4            I, FRANK GRAY, a Notary

5      Public in and for the State of New

6      York, do hereby certify:

7            THAT the foregoing is a true and

8      accurate transcript of my stenographic

9      notes.

10            IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have

11      hereunto set my hand this 23rd day of

12      August 2020

13

14

15              ---------------------------------

16                        FRANK GRAY

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25





































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Certifed: 

NIFS ID:    Department: Public Works

Capital: X
SERVICE: BPSTP Effluent Screening&Disinfect S35121-11G-B17-20

Contract ID #:S35121-11G NIFS Entry Date: Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# B17-20

1) Mandated Program: Y

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: Y

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): N

5) Insurance Required N

Vendor Info:

Name: W.H.M. Plumbing & 
Heating Contractors, Inc.

Vendor ID#: 

Address: 6H Enterprise Drive

East Setauket, NY 11733

Contact Person: 

Phone: 

Department:

Contact Name: John Domenica

Address: NCDPW

3340 Merrick Road

Building R, 3rd Floor

Wantagh, NY 11793

Phone: 516-571-7529

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 27-MAY-20 -- LDIONISIO

Department NIFS Approval: X 28-MAY-20 -- KARNOLD

DPW Capital Fund Approved: X 28-MAY-20 -- KARNOLD

OMB NIFA Approval: X 03-JUN-20 -- CNOLAN

OMB NIFS Approval: X 28-MAY-20 -- NGUMIENIAK

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 28-MAY-20 -- DGRIPPO

B-17-20



 

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 28-MAY-20 -- DGRIPPO

CPO Approval: X 22-JUN-20 -- KOHAGENCE

DCEC Approval: X 24-JUN-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 24-JUN-20 -- BSCHNEIDER

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- JSCHANTZ

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: The existing Plant SPDES permit requires that the County maintain the effluent (final) screening facility which is in need of 

replacement and rehabilitation. The project will install four (4) new Effluent Screens and associated appurtenance including HVAC 

and Electrical work. The current equipment is outdated, significantly worn, and only one (1) out of four (4) screens are in operation. 

The system improvements will ensure its continued reliability for the next twenty-five (25) year life cycle, while decreasing operation 

and maintenance burdens.

Method of Procurement: Formal Sealed Bid - a total of five bids were received and evaluated

Procurement History: Notice to Bidders: eProcure: 7/13/2018-8/21/2018; Newsday: 7/11/2018 & 8/10/2018; NYS Contract 

Reporter: 7/11/2018-8/21/2018. Bids opened 8/21/2018.

Description of General Provisions: New contract for construction services.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: Requires funding from Project 35121 in the amount of $8,350,000. It is expected that the full 

cost of these services will be eligible for reimbursement by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) under Robert T. 

Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act. Contract has current MWBE utilization rate of 20%

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: There is no prior procurement.

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as Submitted

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: CSW
Control: 35
Resp: 121
Object: 00004
Transaction: CH
Project #: 35121
Detail: 011

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

FUNDING
SOURCE

AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 0.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 8,350,000.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 8,350,000.00

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE

AMOUNT

1 PWCSW/35121/011
/00004

$ 8,350,000.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 8,350,000.00



RULES RESOLUTION  NO.  -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
W.H.M. PLUMBING & HEATING CONTRACTORS, INC. 

        WHEREAS, in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of 

Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract S35121-11G – BAY PARK 

SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT – EFFLUENT SCREENING & DISINFECTION 

FACILITY  IMPROVEMENTS [“Contract”], as more particularly described in the 

contract documents, a copy of which are on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the firm of W.H.M. PLUMBING & HEATING CONTRACTORS, INC. 

  [“Vendor”] has submitted the lowest responsible bid for the work described in 

the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as determined by the 

Department, and 

WHEREAS, the funding for this contract is from capital funds approved by the 

Nassau County Legislature and included in the current four year capital plan, and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Department is representing that the total 

contract is estimated to be $ 8,350,000 now therefore be it 

B17-20



   RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, 

based on the representations of the Department and the recommendation of the 

Commissioner of the Department, authorizes the County Executive to award and execute 

the said contract with the vendor.  



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: W.H.M. Plumbing & Heating Contractors, Inc.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $8350000

Amount to be encumbered:   $8350000

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 26 months from NTP
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? N  

If yes, please explain: 

4. Funding Source:

  General Fund (GEN) X Grant Fund (GRT)
X  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  100
  Other State % 0

County %   0

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

The existing Plant SPDES permit requires that the County maintain the effluent (final) screening facility which is in need of replacement and rehabilitation. 
The equipment is outdated, significantly worn, and only one (1) out of four (4) screens are in operation. The project will install four (4) new Effluent Screens 
and associated appurtenance including HVAC and Electrical work. The system improvements will ensure its continued reliability for the next twenty-five (25) 
year life cycle, while decreasing operation and maintenance burdens.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form  

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:



Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   CNOLAN   03-JUN-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.









Certificate of No Change Form

All fields must be filled. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification, and/or the failure to 
conduct appropriate due diligence in verifying the information that is the subject of this certification, may result in 
rendering the submitting entity non-responsible for the purpose of contract award. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification may subject the person 
making the false statement to criminal charges. 

I, William H Mauff state that I have read and understand all the items contained in the 
disclosure documents listed below and certify that as of this date, these items have not changed. I further certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, those answers are full, complete, and accurate; and that, to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief, those answers continue to be full, complete, and accurate.

In addition, I further certify on behalf of the submitting vendor that the information contained in the principal 
questionnaire(s) have not changed and have been verified and continue, to the best of my knowledge, to be full, 
complete and accurate.

I understand that Nassau County will rely on the information supplied in this certification as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting entity.

Vendor Disclosures
This refers to the vendor integrity and disclosure forms submitted for the vendor doing business with the County.

 Name of Submitting Entity: W.H.M. Plumbing & Heating Cotractors, Inc.

Vendor's Address: 6h enterprise drive east setauket NY US 11733

 Vendor's EIN or TIN: 11-2731372

 Forms Submitted:

Political Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form: 
01/07/2020 10:38:52 AM

Lobbyist Registration and Disclosure Form: 
01/07/2020 10:39:37 AM

Business History Form certified: 
02/26/2020 12:25:40 PM

Consultant's, Contractor's, and Vendor's Disclosure Form: 
01/13/2020 11:08:19 AM



Principal Questionnaire(s)
This refers to the most recent principal questionnaire submissions.
 

Principal Name Date Certified
William H Mauff [WILLIAMHMAUFF@GMAIL.COM] 05/22/2020 12:15:25 PM
 

I, William H Mauff hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement willfully or 
fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any 
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I further certify that I have read and understand all the items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete 
answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in 
writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied 
by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the 
information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT 
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY 
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES."

William H Mauff
Name 

President
Title 

W.H.M. Plumbing and Heating Contractors, Inc.
Name of Submitting Entity 

05/23/2020 05:58:13 PM
Date 
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Sarah Browne [SARAH.B@WHMPLUMBING.COM]

Dated: 01/07/2020 10:38:52 AM Vendor: W.H.M. Plumbing & Heating Contractors, Inc.

Title: Administrator



Page 1 of 3 Rev. 3-2016

COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1.  Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term "lobbyist" means any and every
person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - 
Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not 
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not 
limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, 
procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the 
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

NONE

2.  List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New York State):

NONE

3.  Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained, employed 
or designated:

N/A

4.  Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for each activity 
listed. See the last page for a complete description of lobbying activities.

N/A

5.  The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

N/A

6.  If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or employment, you must attach 
a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or employment is oral, attach a written statement of the 
substance thereof. If the written agreement of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the 
client by whom you have been authorized to lobby. separately attach such a written authorization from the client.
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7.  Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign contributions pursuant to 
the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or 
(b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of
this disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  If none, you must so state:

I understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of Information Technology ("IT") to 
be posted on the County's website.

I also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must give written notice to the County 
Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing 
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees listed above were 
made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Sarah Browne [SARAH.B@WHMPLUMBING.COM]

Dated: 01/07/2020 10:39:37 AM Vendor: W.H.M. Plumbing & Heating 
Contractors, Inc.

Title: Administrator
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature,
or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or 
resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation 
or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an 
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or 
construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests 
for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or 
administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by 
the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions department 
heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning 
Commission with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation,
or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals, 
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an elected county official or
an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of any 
interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with 
respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency 
of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding 
before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the 
calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County 
Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to 
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or 
oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has 
been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or "lobbying activities" does not include: Persons engaged in drafting legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates,
where such professional services are not otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or 
administrative action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and television 
stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection with proposed legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of news items, editorials or other comment, or paid 
advertisements; persons who participate as witnesses. attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-
making proceedings of a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public 
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to influence a County 
agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York State Administrative Procedure Act.
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: William H. Mauff
Date of birth: / /
Home address:
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country: US

Business Address: 6H Enterprise Drive
City: East Setauket State/Province/Territory: NM Zip/Postal Code: 11733
Country US
Telephone: (631) 473-3568

Other present address(es):
City: east setauket State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code: 11733
Country: US
Telephone: 6314733568

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President 03/18/1985 Treasurer 03/18/1985
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary 03/18/1985
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
100% Owner/Stockholder

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
6 Enterprise Drive, LLC. and 4 Enterprise Drive, LLC. - Companies own property



Page 2 of 5 Rev. 3-2016

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, William H Mauff , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, William H Mauff , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

W.H.M. plumbing & Heating Contractors, Inc.
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
William H Mauff [ @ .

President
Title

05/22/2020 12:15:25 PM
Date
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: W.H.M. Plumbing & Heating Contractors, Inc.

Address: 6H Enterprise Drive

City: East Setauket State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11733

Country: 

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number:

3. Type of Business: (specify)

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

First Name William
Last Name Mauff
MI H Suffix
Address 6H Enterprise Drive
City East Setauket State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11733
Country US
Position President

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
William H. Mauff - 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

None. 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client 
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, 
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real 
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, 
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.
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Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New
York State):

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Sarah Browne [SARAH.B@WHMPLUMBING.COM]

Dated: 01/13/2020 11:08:19 AM

Title: Administrator
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.







S35121-11G - General Contracting

Bid 
Amount

Bid Opening: Engineer:

Contractor
Alternate

 Bid

Phone:

Insurance Payment

Nassau DPW B.I.D.S - Summary of Bid Opening 8/21/2018
BPSTP- Effluent Screening & Disinfection Facility Improvements

8 /21/2018 Damon Urso (516) 571-7534

Address

$8,250,000.00W.H.M. Plumbing  6H Enterprise Drive East Setauket, NY 11733 $0.00Everest Reinsurance Company 10%

$8,400,000.00John P. Picone Inc.  31 Garden Lane, PO Box 913 Lawrence, NY 11559 $0.00Liberty Mutual Insurance Co. 10%

$8,648,800.00RJ Industries  75 East Bethpage Road Plainview, NY 11803-0349 $0.00Liberty Mutual Insurance Co. 10%

$8,794,000.00Posillico Civil, Inc.  1750 New Highway Farmingdale, NY 11735 $0.00Liberty Mutual Insurance Co. 10%

$9,390,000.00Silverite Construction Co., Inc  520 Old Country Road West Hicksville, NY 11801 $0.00Zurich American Insurance Co. 10%

tThe above is a review of the bids and subsequent list of all the bids that were read aloud at the public bid opening.  Listed bids may be subsequently withdrawn or disqualified.  The list 
does not reflect the Department’s determination of the lowest responsible bidder.
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Property of Nassau County Fire Marshal 

Weight: 

185 
Height: 

5' 10"

This certificate authorizes the bearer to 
operate within Nassau County but does not 

exclusively recommend the bearer 

Postage Guaranteed Drop in any mailbox. 
Nassau County Fire Marshal 

1194 Prospect Avenue, Westbury, NY 11590 
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NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation 
Minority- & Women- Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) Utilization Plan 

MWBE Utilization Plan (Rev. 10/2016) www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe       1 

Instructions for Contractors & Service Providers: 

Contractors and Service Providers must complete Sections 2 and 3.  Submit the completed, signed (electronic signature box checked and dated) form in Microsoft 
Word format to the SRF Recipient’s designated Minority Business Officer (MBO) no later than the date of contract execution.  Incomplete forms will be found 
deficient.   If more than 10 subcontractors are used, additional pages for Section 3 can be found in the form Additional Utilization Plan Section 3.   

If the prime contract is being performed by the parties to a Joint Venture, Teaming Agreement, or Mentor-Protégé Agreement that includes a certified 
MWBE, please contact EFC for assistance. 

MWBE firms must be certified by the NYS Empire State Development Corporation (ESD) in order to be counted towards satisfaction of MWBE participation goals. 
The utilization of certified MWBEs for non-commercially useful functions may not be counted towards utilization of certified MWBEs in the Utilization Plan.  

See the Bid Packet at www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe or consult your designated MBO for further guidance. 

Instructions for Minority Business Officers (MBO): 

The MBO must complete Section 1.  The MBO may designate an Authorized Representative to complete and submit quarterly payment reports on its behalf, and, if so 
designated, the MBO’s Authorized Representative must also complete Section 1.  The Authorized Representative may only submit quarterly payment reports on behalf 
of the MBO and may not submit any other required forms or reports for the MBO.  The MBO must complete Section 1 even if designating an Authorized 
Representative.  Submit the completed, signed (electronic signature box checked and dated) form in Microsoft Word format via e-mail to your EFC MWBE 
Representative.   

The subject heading of the e-mail to the EFC MWBE Representative should follow the format “UP, SRF Number, Contractor.”  EFC will review the Utilization Plan 
and notify the MBO via e-mail of its acceptance or denial.   

Within 10 days of EFC’s acceptance of a Utilization Plan, EFC will post the approved Utilization Plan on the EFC website. 

http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe
http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe


NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation 
Minority- & Women- Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) Utilization Plan 

MWBE Utilization Plan (Rev. 10/2016) www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe       2 

SECTION 1: MUNICIPAL INFORMATION 

Recipient/Municipality:  County: 

SRF Project No.: GIGP/EPG No.: Contract ID: Registration No. (NYC only): 

Minority Business Officer: Email: Phone #: 
Address of MBO: 
Electronic Signature of MBO: 

 I certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. Date: 

Complete if applicable: 
Authorized Representative: Title: 

Authorized Rep. Company: Email: Phone #: 
Electronic Signature of Authorized Rep.: 

 I certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. Date: 

SECTION 2: PRIME CONTRACTOR / SERVICE PROVIDER INFORMATION 

Firm Name:  WHM Plumbing and Heating Contractors, Inc. Contract Type:  Construction     Other Services 

Prime Firm is Certified as:   MBE     WBE    N/A    Other:     
Please repeat information in the Utilization Plan below (Section 3). If dual certified, you must select either MBE or WBE. 
Address:  6H enterprise Drive, East Setauket, NY 11733 Phone #: 631 473 3568 Fed. Employer ID #: 11-2731372 
Description of Work: Effluent Screening and Disinfection Facility 
Award Date: Start Date: Completion Date: MWBE GOAL Total PROPOSED MWBE Participation 

Total Contract Amount: $ 8,250,000.00 
MWBE Eligible Contract Amount: $ 5,000,000.00 
(MWBE Goals are applied to this amount and includes all change orders, amendments, & waivers)

MBE: %    $ MBE: %    $ 

WBE: %    $ WBE: %    $ 
Total: 20%    $ 1,000,000.00 Total: 20%    $ 1,000,000.00 

http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe
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SECTION 3: M/WBE SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION 
This Submittal is:  The First/Original Utilization Plan    Revised Utilization Plan #: 

NYS Certified M/WBE Subcontractor Info  
Contract Amount: For EFC 

Use: MBE ($) WBE ($) 
Name: EMECH Fed. Employer ID#: 11-3200070 

 800,000.00 
Address: 247 West 24th Street, Deer Park, NY 11729 Phone #: 631-920-0764 
Scope of Work: Mechanical installation Email: emechinc@optonline.net 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $  800,000.00 Completion Date: 

Name: PCS Pump and Process Fed. Employer ID#: 22-3714238 

 200,000.00 
Address: 41 plymouth Street, Fairfield, NJ 07004 Phone #: 973-575-7464 
Scope of Work: Instrumentation & Controls Email: ptabone@pcspump.com 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ 200,000.00 Completion Date: 

Name: Fed. Employer ID#: 
Address: Phone #: 
Scope of Work: Email: 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ Completion Date: 

Name: Fed. Employer ID#: 
Address: Phone #: 
Scope of Work: Email: 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ Completion Date: 

Name: Fed. Employer ID#: 
Address: Phone #: 
Scope of Work: Email: 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ Completion Date: 

http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe
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SECTION 3: M/WBE SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION continued 
Name: Fed. Employer ID#: 
Address: Phone #: 
Scope of Work: Email: 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ Completion Date: 

Name: Fed. Employer ID#: 
Address: Phone #: 
Scope of Work: Email: 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ Completion Date: 

Name: Fed. Employer ID#: 
Address: Phone #: 
Scope of Work: Email: 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ Completion Date: 

Name: Fed. Employer ID#: 
Address: Phone #: 
Scope of Work: Email: 
Select Only One:  MBE    WBE  Other: Start Date: 
Full Contract Amount: $ Completion Date: 

SIGNATURE 
Electronic Signature of Contractor:  I certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge 
and that all MWBE subcontractors will perform a commercially useful function. 
Name (Please Type): Jay Johneas 

Date: 9/25/18 

http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe
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Instructions for Contractors & Service Providers:  
Contractors and Service Providers must complete Sections 2, 3, and 4.  Submit the completed, signed (electronic signature box checked and dated) form in 
Microsoft Word format to the SRF Recipient’s designated Minority Business Officer (MBO).  Incomplete forms will be found deficient.    

See the Bid Packet at www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe or consult your designated MBO for further guidance. 

Instructions for Minority Business Officers (MBO):  
The MBO must complete Section 1.  Submit the completed, signed (electronic signature box checked and dated) form in Microsoft Word format via e-mail to 
your EFC MWBE Representative.  The subject heading of the e-mail to the EFC MWBE Representative should follow the format “Waiver Request, SRF Number, 
Contractor.”  EFC will review and notify the MBO via e-mail of its acceptance or denial. 

If a partial MWBE waiver is requested, an MWBE Utilization Plan must also be submitted for the amount of proposed MWBE participation. 

SECTION 1: MUNICIPAL INFORMATION 

Recipient/Municipality:  County: 

SRF Project No.: GIGP/EPG No.: Contract ID: Registration No. (NYC only): 

Minority Business Officer (MBO): Email: Phone #: 
Address of MBO: 
Signature of MBO: 

 I certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. Date: 

SECTION 2: PRIME CONTRACTOR / SERVICE PROVIDER INFORMATION 

Firm Name:  WHM Plumbing and Heating Contractors, Inc. Contract Type:  Construction     Other Services 

Prime Firm is Certified as:   MBE     WBE    N/A    Other: 
Address:  6 H enterprise drive, East Setauket, NY 11733 Phone #: 631-473-3568 Fed. Employer ID #: 
Contact Information of Firm Representative Authorized to Discuss Waiver Request: 
Name: Jay Johneas                                                       Title: VP               Phone #: 631-473-3568                   E-mail: 
Description of Work: Effluent Screening and Disinfection Facility EFC MWBE GOAL Total 
Award Date: Start Date: Completion Date: MBE: 10 %    $ 500,000.00 
Total Contract Amount: $ 8,250,000.00    
MWBE Eligible Contract Amount: $ 5,000,000.00 
(MWBE Goals are applied to this amount and includes all change orders, amendments, & waivers) 

WBE: 10%    $ 500,000.00 

Total: 20%    $ 1,000.000.00 

http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe
http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe
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SECTION 3: TYPE OF MWBE WAIVER REQUESTED 

1. Full Waiver  (No MWBE participation)

2. Partial Waiver  (Less than the MWBE goals; indicate below the proposed MWBE participation)

PROPOSED MWBE Participation 

MBE:      %    $ 200,000    

WBE:      %    $ 800,000 

Total: 12%    $ 1,000,000.00 

3. Specialty Equipment/Services Waiver  (Must be of SIGNIFICANT cost - list of equipment and cost must be attached in addition to the supporting
documentation outlined below)

SECTION 4: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

To be considered, the Request for Waiver Form must be accompanied by the documentation requested in items 1 – 9, as listed below.  If a Specialty Equipment 
Waiver is requested, it must be accompanied by the documentation requested in items 1 - 13.  If a Specialty Services Waiver is requested, it must be accompanied 
by the items requested in items 1 – 9 and item 14.  Copies of the following information and all relevant supporting documentation must be submitted along with 
the request.  Please contact EFC for assistance, including sample documentation. 
1. A letter of explanation setting forth your basis for requesting a partial or total waiver and detailing the good faith efforts that were made.

2. Copies of advertisements in any general circulation, trade association, and minority- and women-oriented publications in which you solicited MWBEs for the
purposes of complying with your participation goals, with the dates of publication.

3. Screenshots of search results (by business description or commodity code) from Empire State Development Corporation’s (ESD) MWBE Directory of all
certified MWBEs that were solicited for purposes of complying with your MWBE participation goals.

4. Copies of faxes, letters, or e-mails sent to MWBE firms to solicit participation and their responses.

5. A log of solicitation results, consisting of the list of MWBE firms solicited for the contract and the outcome of the solicitations. The log should be broken out
into separate areas for each task that is solicited (e.g., trucking, materials, electricians) and clearly provide a rationale for firms included on the completed
Utilization Plan as well as for those not chosen. The log should show: that each MWBE firm was contacted twice by two different methods (e.g., fax and phone);
who was spoken to; what was said; and the final outcome of the solicitation.

http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe
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6. A description of any contract documents, plans, or specifications made available to MWBEs for purposes of soliciting their bids and the date and manner in
which these documents were made available.  Specifically, include information on the scope of work in the contract and a breakout of tasks or equipment, such as
a schedule of values for a construction contract or a proposal or excerpt from a professional services agreement.

7. Documentation of any negotiations between you, the Contractor, and the MWBEs undertaken for purposes of complying with your MWBE participation goals.

8. Any other information you deem relevant which may help us in evaluating your request for a waiver.  Examples may include sign-in sheets from any pre-bid
meetings where MWBE firms were invited, attendance at MWBE forums, etc.

9. EFC and the MBO reserve the right to request additional information and/or documentation.

Additional Documentation for Requests for Specialty Equipment Waivers: 

10. Copies of the appropriate pages of the technical specification related to the equipment showing the choices for manufacturers or other information that limits
the choice of vendor.

11. Letter, e-mail or screenshot of website from the manufacturer listing their distributors in NYS and the locations.

12. Screenshots of ESD’s MWBE Directory searches for the manufacturer and distributor showing that they are not found in the Directory.

13. An invoice or purchase order showing the value of the equipment.

Additional Documentation for Requests for Specialty Service Waivers: 

14. A letter of explanation containing information about the scope of work and why no MWBE firms could be subcontracted to provide that service.

Note: Unless a Total Waiver has been granted, Firms will be required to submit all reports and documents pursuant to the provisions set forth in the procurement 
and/or contract, as deemed appropriate by EFC, to determine MWBE compliance.  In cases where EFC accepts a full or partial waiver of MWBE participation 
goals, the waiver request will be posted to EFC’s website. 

SIGNATURE 
Electronic Signature of Contractor: 
  I certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge. 
Name: (Please Type): Jay Johneas 

Date: 9/25/18 

http://www.efc.ny.gov/mwbe


Contract Item NAME Cost 
Effluent Screen WESTECH $1,100,000.00
Butterfly Valves PRATT $1,650,000.00
Valves DEZURIK $17,500.00

TOTAL EXEMPTIONS $2,767,500.00
CONTRACT AMOUNT $8,250,000.00
ADJUSTED CONTRACT PRICE AFTER EXEMPTIONS $5,482,500.00
WMBE @  20% REQUIREMENT AFTER EXEMPTIONS $1,096,500.00

Exclusions from MBE/WBE Requirements



Certifed: 

NIFS ID:    Department: Public Works

Capital: X
SERVICE: FED AID-Pavement Markings-Ph 10-H62153-10G-PIN 0760.56

Contract ID #:H62153-10G NIFS Entry Date: Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: Y

4) Vendor Ownership & Mgmt.
Disclosure Attached: Y

5) Insurance Required N

Vendor Info:

Name: Safety Marking Inc. Vendor ID#: 06-1267005
Address: 255 Hancock Avenue

Bridgeport, CT 06605

Contact Person: Mark Kelly

Phone: 203-333-6870

Department:

Contact Name: David Cotter

Address: NCDPW

1194 Prospect Ave

Westbury, NY 11590

Phone: 516-571-3913

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 03-JUN-20 -- LDIONISIO

Department NIFS Approval: X 04-JUN-20 -- KARNOLD

DPW Capital Fund Approved: X 04-JUN-20 -- KARNOLD

OMB NIFA Approval: X 18-JUN-20 -- CNOLAN

OMB NIFS Approval: X 04-JUN-20 -- NGUMIENIAK

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 05-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 05-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

CPO Approval: X 25-JUN-20 -- KOHAGENCE
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DCEC Approval: X 30-JUN-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 30-JUN-20 -- BSCHNEIDER

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- GCASTILLO

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: The purpose of this contract is to establish a construction agreement between Nassau County and Safety Markings Inc. to 

provide construction services for the project known as Pavement Marking Phase 10 in the amount of $1,142,807.70 to be paid from 

capital project number H62153. FEDERAL AID. PIN 0760.56.

Method of Procurement: The Pavement Marking Contract was advertised in Newsday on February 20th, 27th and March 6th, and 

13th of 2019; and in the New York State Contract Reporter from February 20, 2019 through March 20, 2019; and in eProcure from 

February 22, 2019 through March 26, 2019.  Following a review of one (1) received bid and an inquiry into non-bidding companies 

that viewed the solicitation on eProcure but did not bid on the contract, Safety Markings Inc. was determined to be qualified with a 

cost proposal that is fair and reasonable.  

Procurement History: The Pavement Marking Contract was advertised in Newsday on February 20th, 27th and March 6th, and 13th 

of 2019; and in the New York State Contract Reporter from February 20, 2019 through March 20, 2019; and in eProcure from 

February 22, 2019 through March 26, 2019.  Following an inquiry into non-bidding companies that viewed the solicitation on 

eProcure but chose not bid on the contract, it was determined that a rebidding of the contract would not result in the receiving of 

additional bids.

Description of General Provisions: The purpose of this contract is to establish a construction agreement between Nassau County and

Safety Marking Inc. to provide construction services for the project known as Pavement Markings Phase 10 in the amount of 

$1,142,807.70 to be paid from capital project number H62153.  This includes the refurbishment of existing pavement markings, 

including long lines, stop bars, cross hatching, crosswalks, letters, and symbols; with high durability epoxy paint on approximately 32 

miles of County owned and maintained roadway.  

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: The costs associated with this contract have been budgeted in the Capital Plan, project 62153.  

This agreement is valued at $1,142,807.70.  the contract is 80% reimbursable with Federal Funding resulting in a $228,561.54 expense

to the County. FEDERAL AID. PIN 0760.56.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: N/A

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as Submitted

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: CAP
Control: 62
Resp: 153
Object: 00004
Transaction: CH

FUNDING
SOURCE AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 0.00
Federal $ 914,246.16

LINE
INDEX/OBJECT 

CODE AMOUNT

1
PWCAPCAP/62153/
00004

$ 1,142,807.70

$ 0.00

$ 0.00



 

Project #: 62153
Detail: 056

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

State $ 0.00
Capital $ 228,561.54
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 1,142,807.70

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 1,142,807.70



RULES RESOLUTION NO.  -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
SAFETY MARKING INC. 

        WHEREAS, in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of 

Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract H62153-10G, for NASSAU 

COUNTY PAVEMENT MARKING IMPROVEMENTS- PHASE 10, PIN 0760.56, 

VARIOUS LOCATIONS, NASSAU COUNTY, NY[“Contract”], as more particularly 

described in the contract documents, a copy of which are on file with the Clerk of the 

Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the firm of SAFETY MARKING INC. 

  [“Vendor”] has submitted the lowest responsible  bid for the work described in 

the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as determined by the 

Department, and 

WHEREAS, the funding for this contract is from capital funds approved by the 

Nassau County Legislature and included in the current four year capital plan, and 

B19-20



WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Department is representing that the total 

contract is estimated to be $ 1,142,807.70 now therefore be it 

   RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, 

based on the representations of the Department and the recommendation of the 

Commissioner of the Department, authorizes the County Executive to award and execute 

the said contract with the vendor.  



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Safety Marking Inc.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $1142807.7

Amount to be encumbered:   $1142807.7

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 12 Months
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? N  

If yes, please explain: 

4. Funding Source:

  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
X  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  80
  Other State % 0

County %   20

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

The purpose of this contract is to establish a construction agreement between Nassau County and Safety Markings Inc. to provide construction services for 
the project known as Pavement Marking Phase 10 in the amount of $1,142,807.70 to be paid from capital project number H62153.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:

Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   CNOLAN   18-JUN-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.









Certificate of No Change Form 

All fields must be filled. 

A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification, and/or the failure to 
conduct appropriate due diligence in verifying the information that is the subject of this certification, may result in 
rendering the submitting entity non-responsible for the purpose of contract award. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification may subject the person 
making the false statement to criminal charges. 

I, Mark Kelly state that I have read and understand all the items contained in the 
disclosure documents listed below and certify that as of this date, these items have not changed. I further certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, those answers are full, complete, and accurate; and that, to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief, those answers continue to be full, complete, and accurate. 

In addition, I further certify on behalf of the submitting vendor that the information contained in the principal 
questionnaire(s) have not changed and have been verified and continue, to the best of my knowledge, to be full, 
complete and accurate. 

I understand that Nassau County will rely on the information supplied in this certification as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting entity. 

Vendor Disclosures 
This refers to the vendor integrity and disclosure forms submitted for the vendor doing business with the County. 

Name of Submitting Entity: 

Vendor's Address: 

Vendor's EIN or TIN: 

Forms Submitted: 

Safety Marking, Inc. 

255 Hancock Avenue Bridgeport CT US 06605 

061267005 

Political Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form: 
05/20/2020 04:19:50 PM 

Lobbyist Registration and Disclosure Form: 
05/20/2020 04:23:50 PM 

Business History Form certified: 
04/08/2020 11 :54:46 AM 

Consultant's, Contractor's, and Vendor's Disclosure Form: 
04/07/2020 01 :01 :00 PM 



Principal Questionnaire{s) 
This refers to the most recent principal questionnaire submissions. 

Principal Name Date Certified 
I Mark Kelly [MKELL Y@SAFETYMARKING.NET] I 04/08/2020 02:01 :21 PM 

I, Mark Kelly hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement willfully or 
fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any 
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges. 

I further certify that I have read and understand all the items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete 
answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in 
writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied 
by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the 
information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity 

CERTIFICATION 

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT 
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY 
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES." 

Mark Kell 
Name 

President 
Title 

Safety Marking, Inc. 
Name of Submitting Entity 

06/03/2020 12: 13:02 PM 
Date 
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 05/20/2020 04:19:50 PM Vendor: Safety Marking, Inc.

Title: President
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1.  Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term "lobbyist" means any and every
person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - 
Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not 
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not 
limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, 
procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the 
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

NONE

2.  List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New York State):

NONE

3.  Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained, employed 
or designated:

NONE

4.  Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for each activity 
listed. See the last page for a complete description of lobbying activities.

NONE

5.  The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

NONE

6.  If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or employment, you must attach 
a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or employment is oral, attach a written statement of the 
substance thereof. If the written agreement of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the 
client by whom you have been authorized to lobby. separately attach such a written authorization from the client.
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7.  Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign contributions pursuant to 
the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or 
(b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of
this disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  If none, you must so state:

I understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of Information Technology ("IT") to 
be posted on the County's website.

I also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must give written notice to the County 
Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing 
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees listed above were 
made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 05/20/2020 04:23:50 PM Vendor: Safety Marking, Inc.

Title: President
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature,
or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or 
resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation 
or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an 
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or 
construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests 
for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or 
administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by 
the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions department 
heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning 
Commission with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation,
or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals, 
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an elected county official or
an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of any 
interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with 
respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency 
of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding 
before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the 
calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County 
Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to 
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or 
oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has 
been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or "lobbying activities" does not include: Persons engaged in drafting legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates,
where such professional services are not otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or 
administrative action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and television 
stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection with proposed legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of news items, editorials or other comment, or paid 
advertisements; persons who participate as witnesses. attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-
making proceedings of a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public 
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to influence a County 
agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York State Administrative Procedure Act.
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Phone (516) 333-0489

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President 02/10/1989 Treasurer 02/10/1989
Chairman of Board Shareholder 02/10/1989
Chief Exec. Officer 02/10/1989 Secretary 05/01/2016
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President
(Other)

 
Type Description Start Date
Treasurer 02/10/1989

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Own 100% of Shares

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Sole Owner of Safety Marking of NY, Inc. since May 1, 2016.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. exclusively provides 
union labor to Safety Marking, Inc.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. will not be performing any active work on these 
projects.

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Principal Questionnaire Form-Safety Marking of NY, Inc..pdf, Safety Marking of NY, Inc. 
PQ April 2020.pdf 

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES X NO If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
In July 2016, the NYC Parks & Recreation Dept. performed two audits and alleged that a Painter-
Striper should have been classified as a Painter-Lineperson. SMC disputed these findings. In order to 
resolve the disputes, SMC paid the underpayments to resolve the apparent violations. SMC did not 
admit that any violations occurred, but nonetheless discloses the matter.

On March 28, 2018 - Citation 1 - OSHA Other-than-Serious Violation (please see attached for detail)

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Attachment for Question 9 f.pdf, Item 9f.pdf 

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
YES X NO If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
NYSDOT & CTDOT conducted a compliance review due to the lawsuit and concluded that Safety Marking, Inc.
to be a responsible contractor and no sanctions were imposed.  Please see detail in the attachments and 
Letter from the President.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
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had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Mark Kelly , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Mark Kelly , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Safety Marking, Inc.
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

President
Title

04/08/2020 02:01:21 PM
Date
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 Letter from the President regarding SMC’s involvement in a litigation 

 

Safety Marking, Inc. feels that it is important to be forth coming that it was indeed the subject of 

litigation for several years involving two former employees. These two employees alleged that they 

were victims of discrimination for incidents relating to the conduct of five Safety Marking, Inc. 

employees that occurred sometime between 2008-2012. The company fought the unsubstantiated 

litigation through trial and then through post-trial motions, but due to what it believes were grievous 

errors of law and clearly erroneous rulings by the judge, in March 2016, a verdict was rendered in favor 

of the two former employees. The jury held Safety Marking, Inc. liable for the conduct of five of the 

employees. However, after the verdict, the parties settled the matter confidentially. Following 

the verdict, both CT DOT and NY DOT did their due diligence and investigated Safety Marking and its 

practices and both concluded that there were no findings of non-responsibility.  Both confirmed Safety 

Marking’s status as a responsible contractor and Safety Marking was awarded the contracts.  

Safety Marking believes strongly in its EEO policies and employs approximately 50% minorities. Safety 

Marking and its management do not tolerate harassment or discrimination of any kind and 

communicate our Company’s policies and Complaint Procedures with each and every employee.  Our 

Company’s Employee Handbook was updated in 2015 and revised in 2017 and includes all policies and 

procedures. It has been distributed and reviewed with every employee by our Human Resources 

Manager who was hired in January 2015.  All of our employees, supervisors and managers attend 

mandatory annual training that is conducted each year by our Human Resources Manager which covers 

Harassment training and our Company’s EEO Policy. And our EEO Policy is posted on our bulletin boards 

at each of our locations as well as in our Compliance Books that we have on our work sites.   

 

Our company prides itself on our Company’s 360 Review processes which we have been doing since 

1997.  This process gives each employee the opportunity to evaluate every employee, supervisor and 

manager that he/she works with in the company and has the opportunity to confidentially review the 

person’s ability, attitude and how the person helped, taught or provided the tools to help the employee 

do their job. In the past, I conducted these reviews with every employee. Last year, we enhanced the 

process and now each employee meets with three other members of our management team in addition 

to me in their review process. Each employee sits down with the Safety Director, the Operations 

Manager, the Human Resources Manager and then I. During these meetings the employee is able to 

discuss the pertinent aspects of their job, bring up any ideas or suggestions they may have on making 

things better or any problems or concerns that they may have as well.  We spend over three months 

each year on the employee review process and take it very seriously to ensure that our employees are in 



the right position, getting the right tools and training to do their job and address any concerns that they 

bring to our attention.  

 

Safety Marking, Inc. is committed to providing a work environment in which all individuals are treated 

with respect and dignity. Each individual has the right to work in a professional atmosphere that 

promotes equal employment opportunities and prohibits any unlawful discriminatory practices. Through 

our continued communications, training and Open Door Policy that we have with our employees, we are 

confident that our employees feel good about the company that they work for. Unfortunately, anyone 

can accuse you of something without any witness or proof that it in fact occurred and all you can do is 

defend yourself. There were many facts that we were not allowed by the judge to be presented to the 

jury in our defense case which if allowed may have led to a different outcome. But the process is far 

from being perfect and the grievous errors of law and rulings by the judge only compounded our fate.  

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or if you require any further information pertaining to 

this matter.  You can also reach out to our Human Resources Manager, Kelly Lavoie, who would be 

happy to answer any questions or provide you with any other information you may need. She can be 

reached at 203-814-3416. We welcome you to visit our operation as well if you wish so that you have a 

better understanding of what we do. I would be happy to give you a tour of our facility and have you 

meet our Safety Marking family.  

 

Mark Kelly 

President 

           Mark Kelly





















STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DBPAR'l'MDl'r or 'l'RANSPOll'l'A'l'ION 

2800 BZRLIR '1'UIQl]jtiltlt, P,O. BOX 3175CS 
DWING':fON, COIDIKCTICO'r 06131-7546 

Phone: 860-594-3128 

June 16, 2016 

Mark Kelly, President 
Safety Marking, Inc. 
460 Bostwick Avenue 
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06605 

Dear Mr. Kelly; 

Re: Contractor's Prequalification 
Statement (CON-16) 

This is to notify you that your Firm's subject statement has been 
found to be satisfactory by this Department. 

It will expire June 30, 2019 
------'---------------

Your Maximum Capacity Rating is 

Your Construction Group Classifications are: 

Group No. 16 Pavement Markings 

A Proposal Request {Part "C"} can be obtained via this link: 
http://www.ct._ov/dot/lib/dot/documents/dcontractdev/partc.xls 

No bidders that have mutual financial interests, or common
ownership, directors, officers or principal shareholders (i.e., 
shareholders holding at least five percent [5%] of either the common or 
the preferred shares of the company' s stock) may bid for the same 
Department contract. Such proscribed bidders shall include, but not be 
limited to, affiliates and subsidiaries of each other. If any non
bidding party has an ownership interest in more than one bidder that is 
bidding for a given contract, either directly or through the former's 
ownership interests in another company, no matter how high up or far 
removed in a vertical or horizontal chain of ownership that party might 
be from the bidders, the bids of those bidders shall not be accepted. 

In addition, with respect to any given Department contract that is 
advertised for bidding, no bidder owned by, or in the chain of ownership 
of, a company which provides surety bonds may bid against a bidder for 
whom a bond has been or will be provided by that company for the given 
contract bidding. All bids proscribed by the terms of this paragraph 
will be rejected by the Com:rnissioner. 



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

ITEM #10 

 

Over four years ago, the Company was involved in a lawsuit filed by two former employees under 42 U.S.C. 

Sec. 1981, relating to the conduct of five Safety Marking employees that occurred sometime between 2008-

2012. In March 2016, a verdict was rendered in favor of the two former employees. The jury held Safety 

Marking, Inc. liable for the conduct of five of the employees. However, after the verdict, the parties settled 

the matter confidentially. Due to this litigation, in Spring 2016, both CTDOT and NYDOT conducted an 

in depth Contract Compliance Review of Safety Marking, Inc. and both concluded that Safety Marking, 

Inc. was a responsible bidder. 

 

In 2018, the New York State Department of Transportation investigated Safety Marking’s qualifications as 

a responsible contractor/bidder arising out of an allegation raised that Safety Marking was somehow 

affiliated with another company.  After a hearing was held in August 2018 before the New York State 

Department of Transportation, Safety Marking was determined to be a responsible contractor/bidder under 

New York regulations. 
 

 

On April 5, 2019 the company received a civil investigative demand from the United States Attorney’s 

office, Northern District of New York. The civil demand requires the company to provide documentation 

to the government relating to The Fence Man, Inc., an unaffiliated company.  The company is complying 

with the investigative demand and disclosing documents in accordance thereto. 

 

In January 2020 an employee who was terminated for aggressive and bullying conduct filed a Charge with 

the NLRB alleging that his bullying conduct was protected speech under the NLRA.  No Complaint was 

issued by the NLRB and the Charge was withdrawn in February 2020 after a settlement.   
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Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 04/08/2020

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Safety Marking, Inc.

2) Address of Place of Business: 255 Hancock Avenue

   City: Bridgeport State/Province/Territory: CT Zip/Postal Code: 06605

Country: US

Address: 500 Bostwick Avenue
City: Bridgeport State/Province/Territory: CT Zip/Postal Code: 06605
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 460 Bostwick Avenue
City: Bridgeport State/Province/Territory: CT Zip/Postal Code: 06605
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 84 Sylvester Street
City: Westbury State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11590
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 85 New York Avenue
City: Westbury State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11590
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 59 Stilson Road
City: Richmond State/Province/Territory: RI Zip/Postal Code: 02898
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

3) Mailing Address (if different):
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   City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

  Phone:

  Does the business own or rent its facilities? Rent If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: 010138881

5) Federal I.D. Number: 061267005

6) The proposer is a: Corporation  (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

    YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
    When a contract requires unionized labor, Safety Marking, Inc. will utilize Safety Marking of NY, Inc's personnel 

as Safety Marking of NY, Inc. is a unionized company.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. supplies unionized labor to 
Safety Marking, Inc, exclusively.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. will not be performing any active work on these 
projects.

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Safety Marking, Inc. is affiliated with Safety Marking of NY, Inc. which provides union labor solely and 
exclusively to Safety Marking, Inc.

 3 File(s) Uploaded: Business History Form-Safety Marking of NY, Inc..pdf, Safety Marking of NY, Inc  Business
Questionnaire Form.pdf, Safety Marking of NY, Inc. BHF April 2020.pdf 

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Affiliate:  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. whose sole function is to provide union labor exclusively to Safety Marking, 
Inc.

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
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prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES X NO If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
On May 9, 2016 a former employee, Peter P. Klosterman, filed an administrative complaint with the State of NY,
Division of Human Rights against Safety Marking of NY, Inc. an affiliate of Safety Marking, INc.  Mr. Klosterman
alleged that he was terminated in violation of NY disability discrimination laws.  After an investigation & 
following opportunity for review of related information & evidence by the named parties, the Division of Human 
Rights determined that there was NO PROBABLE CAUSE to believe that the respondent had engaged in or is 
engaging in the unlawful discriminatory practice complained of.  The complaint was dismissed and the file was 
closed. Please also see attachment for #13 and a letter from the President.

 9 File(s) Uploaded: 201704281208-CTDOT Con-16.pdf, 201704281211-NYDOT Responsible Bidder letter.pdf, 
201704281342- letter.pdf, 201808220930-NYDOT CRU's Determination Letter.pdf, BHF Item 13.pdf, Business 
History - Item 13.pdf, Business History Form Item 13 Attachment.pdf, Letter from Pres.updated 2020.pdf, Letter 
from President.pdf 

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
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circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES X NO If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
In July 2016, the NYC Parks & Recreation Dept. performed two audits and alleged that a Painter-Striper should 
have been classified as a Painter-Lineperson. SMC disputed these findings. In order to resolve the disputes, 
SMC paid the underpayments to resolve the apparent violations. SMC did not admit that any violations 
occurred, but nonetheless discloses the matter.

Citation 1 - OSHA Other-than-Serious Violation (please see attached for detail)

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Attachment for Question 14e.pdf, SMC 14 e.pdf 

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.
No conflict exists

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of 
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interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
If a Safety Marking, Inc. employee had any conflict of interest, that employee would not be allowed to be
involved with the project in any capacity nor would have access to any information regarding the project.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive 
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be 
identified. 

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES NO X

Is the proposer an individual?
YES NO X Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;
02/10/1989

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including 
shareholders, members, general or limited partner.  If none, explain.
Mark Kelly, President and Sole Officer - owns 100% of Safety Marking, Inc.'s shares - Home Address:  55 
West Road, Easton, CT 06612

 
First Name Mark
Last Name Kelly
MI Suffix
Address
City Bridgeport State/Province/Territory CT Zip/Postal Code 06605
Country US
Position President

 

 3 File(s) Uploaded: C.O.N.C.O.R.D..pdf, C.O.N.C.O.R.pdf, C.O.N.C.O.R.pdf 

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.
Mark Kelly,  - President & Sole Officer

 
First Name Mark
Last Name Kelly
MI Suffix
Address
City Bridgeport State/Province/Territory CT Zip/Postal Code 06605
Country US
Position President
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iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);
CT

v) The number of employees in the firm;
150

vi) Annual revenue of firm;
45000000

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments
Please see attachment A.

 4 File(s) Uploaded: A. with attached History & Resumes.pdf, SMC History & Resumes.pdf, SMC History-
Resumes-Equipment List.pdf, SMC Item A - Attachment.pdf 

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business.
47

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity 
and reliability to perform these services.
Please see attachment with company history, resumes and equipment list

 2 File(s) Uploaded: SMC Equipment List (2).pdf, SMC Equipment List.pdf 

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar 
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company NYS Dept of Transportation
Contact Person Jeffrey Dionisio
Address 3380 Veterans Memorial Highway
City Bohemia State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone (
Fax #
E-Mail Address

Company The Port Authority of NY & NJ
Contact Person Marcelo Morelli, Chief Operations Supervisor
Address JFK International Airport
City Queens State/Province/Territory NY
Country US 
Telephone
Fax #
E-Mail Address

Company Nassau County DPW
Contact Person Harold Lutz, Directory of Traffic Engineering
Address 1194 Prospect Avenue
City Westbury State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone
Fax #
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E-Mail Address
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I, Mark Kelly , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Mark Kelly , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information 
and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: Safety Marking, Inc,

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

President
Title

04/08/2020 11:54:46 AM
Date







































































Connecticut's Official

 
State Website

The Office of

 
Secretary of the State Denise W. Merrill

Business Inquiry
Business Details

Business Name: SAFETY MARKING, INC.

Business ID: 0228841

Business Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Mailing Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Date Inc/Registration: Feb 10, 1989  

Annual Report Due Date: 02/07/2019  

 

Principals Details
Name/Title Business Address Residence Address

MARK K. KELLY  PRESIDENT, SECRETARY AND TREASURER 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

MARK K. KELLY  DIRECTOR 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

 
`

Agent Summary
Agent Name MARK K. KELLY

Agent Business Address C/O SAFETY MARKING, INC., 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Agent Residence Address

Agent Mailing Address NONE



Connecticut's Official

 
State Website

The Office of

 
Secretary of the State Denise W. Merrill

Business Inquiry
Business Details

Business Name: SAFETY MARKING, INC.

Business ID: 0228841

Business Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Mailing Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Date Inc/Registration: Feb 10, 1989  

Annual Report Due Date: 02/07/2019  

 

Principals Details
Name/Title Business Address Residence Address

MARK K. KELLY  PRESIDENT, SECRETARY AND TREASURER 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

MARK K. KELLY  DIRECTOR 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

 
`

Agent Summary
Agent Name MARK K. KELLY

Agent Business Address C/O SAFETY MARKING, INC., 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Agent Residence Address

Agent Mailing Address NONE
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Safety Marking, Inc,

Address: 255 Hancock Avenue

City: Bridgeport State/Province/Territory: CT Zip/Postal Code: 06605

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 061267005

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) S Corp

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

1 File(s) uploaded C.O.N.C.O.R.pdf 

 No principals have been attached to this form.  

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
Mark Kelly, 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

Safety Marking of NY, Inc is an affiliate whose sole function is to supply union labor to Safety Marking, Inc. when a 
contract requires unionized labor.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. supplies unionized labor to Safety Marking, Inc. exclusively
and will not be performing any active work on these projects. 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads,
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee,
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
NONE
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
NONE

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New
York State):
NONE

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 04/07/2020 01:01:00 PM

Title: President
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.



Connecticut's Official

State Website

The Office of

 
Secretary of the State Denise W. Merrill

Business Inquiry
Business Details

Business Name: SAFETY MARKING, INC.

Business ID: 0228841

Business Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Mailing Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Date Inc/Registration: Feb 10, 1989

Annual Report Due Date: 02/07/2019

Principals Details
Name/Title Business Address Residence Address

MARK K. KELLY  PRESIDENT, SECRETARY AND TREASURER 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605 55 WEST ROAD, EASTON, CT, 06612

MARK K. KELLY  DIRECTOR 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605 55 WEST ROAD, EASTON, CT, 06612

`

Agent Summary
Agent Name MARK K. KELLY

Agent Business Address C/O SAFETY MARKING, INC., 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Agent Residence Address 55 WEST ROAD, EASTON, CT, 06612

Agent Mailing Address NONE
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Safety Marking of NY, Inc.

Address: 90 Sylvester Street

City: Westbury State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11590

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 208807933

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) S Corporation

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

1 File(s) uploaded Safety Marking of NY, Inc. - Officer Information.pdf 

 No principals have been attached to this form.  

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.

 1 File(s) uploaded Safety Marking of NY, Inc. - Officer Information.pdf 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

Affiliate - Safety Marking, Inc. - 255 Hancock Avenue, Bridgeport, CT 06605 

 1 File(s) uploaded ccvd - Safety Marking, Inc..pdf 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads,
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee,
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
NONE
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
NONE

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New
York State):
NONE

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Caroline Sumner [CAROLINE.SUMNER@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 05/28/2020 07:44:51 AM

Title: Contract Specialist
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.



Safety Marking of NY, Inc. 

Mark Kelly, President & Sole Officer 

 Owns 100% of Shares 



COUNTY OF NASSAU 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Inter-Departmental Memo 

TO: Office of the County Executive 
Att: Brian J. Schneider, Deputy County Executive 

FROM: Department of Public Works 

DATE: December 27, 2019 

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 

Contract Number: H62153-10G 

Title: Pavement Markings Phase 10 

Engineer's Estimate: $1,146,001.20 

Bids Received On: March 26, 2019 

The bids received for the above referenced contract have been examined and the bid submitted by 
Safety Marking Inc., m the amount of $1,142,807.70 1s acceptable as the lowest bid. The low bid 
by Safety Marking Inc. is slightly above the engineer's estimate by $1,806.50 or .16%. Please 
note that adequate funds for this work are available in Capital Project H62153-10G. 

If you approve or disapprove of the above request, please signify below and return this memo to 
this office for appropriate action. 

Kenneth G. Arnold 
Commissioner 

KGA:JGP:HTL:jd 
--Attachments------ - -- --- --- - -·- - ---- ----- -·- -- - ----- ---- --- ------ -

c: Joseph G. Pecora, Deputy Commissioner 
Loretta Dionisio, Assistant to Deputy Commissioner 
Harold T.Lutz, Director of Traffic Engineering 
Christopher Paggi, Assistant Director of Traffic Engineering 
David Cotter, Traffic Engineer I 

APPROVED: 

_\{>.��� .... �����i1/1rr
Brian J. Sc ei er 
Deputy County Executive 

DISAPPROVED: 

Brian J. Schneider Date 
Deputy County Executive 

S :\SAN\Support Sta:ff\Author\Paggi, Christopher\Rec of Award BJS Approve H62153-IOG Phase 10 Safety Marking.cp.doc 



COUNTY OF NASSAU 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Inter-Departmental Memo 

TO: Kenneth G. Arnold, P.E., Commissioner 

FROM: Joseph G. Pecora, P.E., Deputy Commissioner 

DATE: December 16, 2019 

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 

Contract No.: H62153-10G I PIN 0760.56 

Title: Pavement Markings Phase 10 

Engineer's Estimate: $1,142,807.70 

Bids Received On: March 22, 2019 

'Ihe bids received for the above referenced contract have been examined and the bid submitted 
by Safety Marking Inc. in the amount of$1,142,807.70 is acceptable as the lowest responsible 
bidder. 

Since the low bid is below the engineer's estimate and adequate funds are budgeted in the 
operating budget, it is requested that the Recommendation of Award be prepared for the 
Commissioner's signature and forwarded to the Colmty Executive for his action. 

Joseph G. Pecora, P.E. 
Deputy Commissioner 

JGP: 

c: Harold T. Lutz, director of Traffic Engineering 

Ken.docx 

Christopher Paggi, Assistant Director of Traffic Engineering 
David Cotter, Traffic Engineer 

S:\H&GE\TRAFFIC\PAVEMARK\PM ph 10\ROA sent to typing\New Attempts\Recommendation of Award_Joe to 





H62153-10G - General Contracting

Bid 
Amount

Bid Opening: Engineer:

Contractor
Alternate 

Bid

Phone:

Insurance Payment

Nassau DPW B.I.D.S - Summary of Bid Opening 3/26/2019

Pavement Marking Improvements, Phase 10

3 /26/2019 Harold Lutz (516) 571-9453

Address

$1,142,807.70Safety Marking Inc.  255 Hancock Avenue Bridgeport, CT 06605 $0.00Travelers Casualty and Surety C 10% Amt Bid

The above is a review of the bids and subsequent list of all the bids that were read aloud at the public bid opening.  Listed bids may be subsequently withdrawn or disqualified.  The list  
does not reflect the Department’s determination of the lowest responsible bidder.
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H62153-10G - General Contracting

Bid 
Amount

Bid Opening: Engineer:

Contractor
Alternate 

Bid

Phone:

Insurance Payment

Nassau DPW B.I.D.S - Summary of Bid Opening 3/26/2019

Pavement Marking Improvements, Phase 10

3 /26/2019 Harold Lutz (516) 571-9453

Address

$1,142,807.70Safety Marking Inc.  255 Hancock Avenue Bridgeport, CT 06605 $0.00Travelers Casualty and Surety C 10% Amt Bid

The above is a review of the bids and subsequent list of all the bids that were read aloud at the public bid opening.  Listed bids may be subsequently withdrawn or disqualified.  The list  
does not reflect the Department’s determination of the lowest responsible bidder.
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8\r�'l'E OF , COtfNECTICUT 

Sil!, f Bridgeport 
Ce:il.lN'r'Y .till'· . F l},IRFI§LD 

OiSi t;h;L.s 26th d.iii:\( o.f 
<ratnf!; . Mark KeHy 

) 
March 2FIJ19 , be!foll;'e me }iiersQ:i:J,al l y 

to. me known.,. 
.sa;y for ldm.ss:Lf , t:h'1iit · he wt◊+ . i;,.atn11 l':iY me duly sworn, did depose axi.d 

l:''1l$,;i;il�s in Easton, CT 
1:ituit he is i'.'l:re President .of t:h!i?i SAFETY MARKING, INC. 
th@ <:Jcrrp.Qllfati;;:in d.eso:idba:ia ±n, a:nd whioh eKewted th, fo:teg-ping
lniiit1tt:Lrtl<lill.ttr tl"!l!f.e he knows the S:ei\i.l of said OQ:rpGD;i;af;liQnJ j;Ji;at: . the sa<1L1 
�£.f$;xed. t:¢:r. �a.t<tl Ln.i:rtr:ume:nt ;1,s ll!U'Oh corporate seal r that it wits so 
al:f•:tx:.e& J:\Y er�\!:' of th.e .B.<Qatd of DiWectto:rs elf said ao:rpo:ra.l::.ion, ·and that 
•hl!l s.ie:ned :i:ti Ill name; \the.reto by lik� o:rtle:r,

(11.cll:Wwled�ene b,Y Cllnt.1:::.actor if a pa:rt.:ne:rship} 

.$TAT!ll 'OF 

Ol:l this 
c,,al:r!'e 

-�-�---

Caroline·Surtmer 
My Cam mission Expires: January 31, 2024 

,. b:;ll;fo:r.,;i me vers.onally 
to nr.e · known lli:ri:ij kr.tOl'/n 

t9 . me t0 kil'!l a 1m1,mher pf 
the fi:tm deso:td,hed in ab.d . wlJ.ich <1:x:equted the :Eo:rewoinj hond or 
Qbl ;i_giil,t1Qn, ant'l he acknowle�ed to m@ that. he suJ:'lsa..r;iJJed the fiame .of 
said, firm .. t.luare.tQ on .beh.;llf o::f .said firm for tne purpollle the:ris:i,n 
m,;;.:nt 1.C1nsd., 

(Achr1owledwnent b y Contraotou if i:l:b. individual . l 

$!J'.'J.\J:rit OF 
-------

SJ!!. : 

CJOtm'l'Y OF �---- ) 

on, this day of , 20 1 before me pen'lonally 
l:!atne to me 
l,;nown and k:now:q, to me to be. t.h.e ;pe.:rson de1;1cr::/J::i<1lJ;l io and wli.o �l;luted tlie 
fQregoing instrument, and. he du1y aoknowled.§re.d that he ei:i1::eo-o:te.d the 
same, 

Nas�mi: County Payemertt /vl}tr)tin� l'liaae .10 
'.Nnss,m Cotmty Department:oillubllc Works 
NYSDOT PlN 0760.56 f H6Zl53 

Nassau County DPW 
31 of 470 

Notar:y Public 

Contract No. H62153-10G, PIN 0760,56 

Pavement Markin�1ase 10 

XXXXX





































PROPOSAL 
To the County of Nassau

NASSAU COUNTY PAVEMENT MARKING PHASE 10 IMPROVEMENTS 

P,I,N, 0760.56 

VARIOUS LOCATIONS 

NASSAU COUNTY NEW YORK 

Contract No. H62153 

TO THE COUNTY OF NASSAU: 
Pm::suant: t:o and in compliance with your Advertisement for Bids and

the Instructions to Bidders relating thereto, the undersigned hereby
proposes to furnish all plant, labor, materials, supplies, equipment
and other facilities necessary or proper for or incidental to the
above Contract, as required by and in strict accordance with the plans
and specifications for the amount named in the proposal hereinafter
described. 

In making this proposal the Bidder hereby declares that the
Addenda which has been issued by the county of Nassau and has been
received by him, that all provisions thereof have been complied with
in preparing his bids. 

Name of Bidder: 54 ii .M,;w-k_Jflc 171(,. 
( n vidual, or Corporation, as case may be) 

Bidder, s Address , .2. 5Z: tf7vwnft../fvt:lU!f:-; f;,rtdtJC/?171'½" C-Tc!,,yof;i 
Telephone: V�_ 33�-i,,}>Jp Date: .A,1,,ll,,r/42.i,,12.t?/'f

FAX Tele: .z.c;z. 7:??7-11?11 E-Mail: mkct?fj@::,,frfz:hjmMk 1t!f,,11ct·· 
NOTE: IF BIDDER IS A FIRM, FILL IN THE FOLLOWlNG BLANKS: 

Name of Partners Residence of Partners 

NOTE: IF BIDDER rs A CORPORA.Tl ON' FILL IN THE FOLLOWING BLANKS: 

Organized under the laws of the State of: ?/'7111t'?Tlt:?tt·· 

Name of President: ./11,MrL KtU/// 
��-------,./>---------------

7 ,President's Domicile: _ 
Na.me of Vice Pres: .JU.�ft:t17tvf ��--�--�1--------------
Vice Pres' s Domicile: .N, 

-"--;'-'-'�----------------

Corporate Officer: Jr1M'tL-kc:�?�f 
.

Title:7?Ct"t:_fM1j 

Corporate Officer I

s Domicile: 

�������nrpo.ratc-GfCH,efrr: �K--fbw_J Title :117,ftj,Ml"t: //'
CoJ:porate Officer, s Domicile, 

Nassau County Pavement Markings Phase IO 
Nassal¼�2ffii'tl'o\il1lll'll'/'JW'nt of Public Works 
NYSDOT PIN 0760,56 /l-162153 

41 o/470 Contract No. H62153-10G- PIN 0760.56 
Pavement Markings-Phase 10 

7/17 
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2. 

3. 

COUNTY OF NASSAU 

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM 

Name of the Entlty: __ ;51tfd;y .,;U,,tVf-/c.//11, 1//tC,
/ 

Address: Zzz. f/1U1U1'"?f__/f-VC f'U1,v 

City, State and Zip Code: 8rt:'dj-Cllftt, rr t?/,,(,,t? r;· 
I ; 

Entity's Vendor Identification Number: f??,- / 2t,-lt:7ZJ £
, . 

Type of Business: __ Public Corp __ Partnership __ Joint Venture 

__ Ltd. Liability Co __ Closely Held Corp _7@7?ff@#7'1, Other (specify) 

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals .serving on the Board of
Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties
of Joint Vent1u·es, and all members and officers of limited liability companies (attach additional
sheets ifnecessary):
M,M'k:- fv/;{j, Trt'7i4t:fti(;f,t�rttM1j1 -;ra:t-;5U rv·f' 

-

5. List names and addresses ofall shareholders, members, or prutners of the firm, If the
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholdres/pa.'iners/members. If a Publicly
held Corporation include a oopy of the I OK in lieu of completing this section. . ! 

A11A,,r/L..-Ktfhj1 !i3 Wt:f?t/?d 0t-1-f:m1/ c:-1111;,t,,11- - !?Jl'il!?f��; 
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B. 

C. 

A. Please see attached history & resumes

i) Incorporated February 10, 1989

ii) Mark Kelly, President, Secretary, Treasurer (sole offlcer)- 100% of Shares;

iii) See Item ii

iv) Incorporated in the State of Connecticut

v) 150 Employees

vi) Annual Revenue -$30 Million - $35 Million

vii) Awarded the 3 striping projects in 2011-12 for the County of Nassau DPW. Have had the

maintenance contract with the PANYNJ for JFK, LGA, EWR, SWF & TEB for over 13 years;

Have and have had the striping contract with the NYSDOT - Region 10 for over 20 years;

Have and have had multiple striping contracts with CTDOT - Have and have had striping

contracts with RIDOT; Have the Prime contract with the MTA TBTA; Have and have had the

striping contracts with the NYSTA.

viii) 

Opened a shop/office in Westbury, NY dedicated to Nassau and Suffolk Counties in 2005

Opened a shop/office in Richmond, RI dedicated to the State of RI in 1999

Acquired a waterblasting truck in 2012 and have added 3 more to our fleet

Not Applicable/None

In business for 46 Years

We own our own vehicles - please see attached equipment list
Safety Marking, Inc. has very little turn over and has high quality, experienced personnel.
Please see attached resumes



























PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM 

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who 
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or 
printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of 
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire. 

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO 
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL 
WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR 
AWARD 

1. Principal Name Af-l'vtrk" Kckhd - .5A:ft:-#j.A11irt..1ne;
,. 

171C.
Date of birth _/Home address 

Business address 2-'z:i tf?.11t17"?'/::.... :,--,f//C /1,?fv

City/state/zip b n,lkt_cpt; C1P//U''z
Telephone Z/7:.;,. �?->J,r-ffo-tz:' )< 1-0Z

b�/,�2��ms) � 
C�y/state/zrp ·

t� A% h-id. -?1" • c:n,, § · !?n> w,,,-f/,vf�Afc-;
... W-.01-bu- , NIJjl ,,· f!,:;iJVt'v/lijM'/c,//1i, W.tffbttt1j', Nlj ll'51tP

Telephone l-t,,/7, "3?;b�v$P.X 4--/17' 
List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached 

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President tJZ. ;J!!_;l!J_ Treasurer tJZ..;.!.!_; !Y'/

3. 

4. 

5. 

Chairman of Board __ / __ / __ Shareholder __ / __ / __
Chief Exec. Officer t72- !!!'__I .&1 Secretary 11'7 I t?{ I 2-'9/?,
Chief Financial Officer __ / __ / __ Partner __ / __ / __
Vice President __ / __ / __________ / __ / __
(other)

Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire? 
YES -A- NO _ If Yes, provide details( _'71

�--r-1;µ .Ai[Mrlt:1 J1,f] tf' f }\/ /!f; Inc,
fWr} IM¾ :f,/1A1a,l/f · .  '.A4.. Ull A, -tHJ�) ·; }' 

Are there any outstandi
�

/ff/rfara/4ees r any other form of security or lease or any 
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business 
submitting the questionnaire? YES_ NOL If Yes, provide details. 

Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not
for-profit organization other than the one submitting the questionnaire? YES L NO_;
If Yes, provide details.� kc� fh? fe7/e,. #{ft{ tK..._q-__ .::i:J,fad;t4,.d,i�1tfA4·N1,;J}tt'-c-+

�����:5tnrc:,�/ ZtPtf,. � _;{[;i;rto7:1 df _N lf., fnc - c/Nwt,J; /lc'Uf J · .
frmk-7 U,/UflY/ �wf --f( _jftfc1:ZJ A1Jutcr,rrlf "inc:.
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
DEPll!L'MENT 01!' TRANSPOR'l'A'l'ION 

2800 BE.RL:tN 'rtlNIPir.E, P.O. BOX 317546 
liEWDIG1'0ll, COllNEC�Ic:t1'r 06131-7546 

Phone: 860-594-3128 

June 16, 2016 

Mark Kelly, President 
Safety Marking, Inc. 
460 Bostwick Avenue 
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06605 

Dear Mr. Kelly; 

Re: Contractor's Prequalification 
Statement {CON-16) 

This is to notify you that your Firm's subject statement has been 
found to be satisfactory by this Department. 

It will expire June 30, 2019 
---�-------------

Your Maximum Capacity Rating is 

Your Construction Group Classifications are: 

Group No. 16 Pavement Markings 

A Proposal Request (Part "C") can be obtained via this link: 
http://www.ct.gov/dot/lib/dot/documents/dcontractdev/partc.xls 

No bidders that have mutual financial interests, or common 
ownership, directors, officers or principal shareholders (i.e., 
shareholders holding_ at_ lea�t_fi_v_e _p§.r_c:_eg:t;_[_:i_%:] of eithear ths:_,::9_l!J!!l_on.o;i;_ ___ 
th_e,_preferred-- shares - of. the company Is stock) may bid for the same 
Department contract. Such proscribed bidders shall include, but not be 
limited to, affiliates and subsidiaries of each other. If any non
bidding party has an ownership interest in more than one bidder that is 
bidding for a given contract, either directly or through the farmer's 
ownership interests in another company, no matter how high up or far 
removed in a vertical or horizontal chain of ownership that party might 
be from the bidders, the bids of those bidders shall not be accepted. 

In addition, with respect to any given Department contra�c�tc_"t£h�a�t_-=:,i§S __ ---�
advertised for bidding, no bi,ider owned b)t,-OJ;.--:kn-the-chat!lof ownership 

--�of_,___a-Gem,:,any-wh±ch proviaes surety bonds may bid against a bidder for 
whom a bond has been or will be provided by that company for the given 
contract bidding. All bids proscribed by· the terms of this paragraph 
will be rejected by the Commissioner. 

I I 
I 









































































































































































NOT.E: The bids shall be sworn to by the person signing them, in one 
of the following forms: 

(Form of affidavit where Bidder is a corporation) 
STATE OF �J;!Wh'¼O.AA )Mhrlt'c avr;: ) ss. : E:,rtil.tftfff V.
COUNTY OF l,lti��'t;l, ) 

.)lfM,-ft.- Being duly sworn, deposes and says: 
. . Street, in �J:. .That 

e 
he 

City 
resid-

that  he is the 'f'n:�t/lt'nt" of
?/1-(t-hA .,.flUr/£,t,/1.A J://..,C-
the c6rporatior:1 1 described in and which executed the foregoing 
instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal 
affixed to the said instrument is such corporate seal and was affixed 
by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation; that he signed 
his name thereto by like order; and that he has knowledge of the 
several matters therein stated and they are in all respects true. 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this Z//fh. day of �h , 2011 . ,??tn--1:/�m� 

)'Jotary 
?'d41'/,, 11:::,:-,11 m 11,::r:�u1nm,1:-;,:,i1-n t=.)11,!7,;,: tj:J?Jp

t?
V{-

(Form of Affidavit. where Bidder is a firm) 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) ss.: 
COUNTY OF NASSAU ) 

That he is a member of 
Being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

the firm described in and which executed the foregoing bid; that he 
duly subscribed the name of the firm hereunto on behalf of the .firm; 
and that the several matters therein stated are in all respects true. 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this day of , 20 

Notary 

(Form of Affidavit. where Bidder is a individual) 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) ss. : 
COUNTY OF NASSAU ) 

Being duly sworn, deposes and says, 
That he is the person described in and who executed the foregoing bid 
and that the several matters therein stated are in all respects true. 
Subscribed and swo:i:·n t.o before me 
this day of , 20 

Nassau County Pavement Mal'kings Phase 10 
Nassau County Department of Public Works 
NYSDOT PtN 0760.56 / H62153 

Nassau County DPW 99 of 470 

Notary 

Contract No. H62153-1DG-f'i'll'j'/1760.56 
Pavement Markings-Phase 1 O 



















Safety Marking of NY, Inc. supplies union labor exclusively to Safety Marking, Inc. and does not bid prime contracts or 
subcontracts. 

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications,
demonstrating extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and
the results of these experiences, must be identified.
Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) 

ii) 

iii) 
iv) 
v) 

Date of formation; Apl'il 5, 2007

Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the 
company, including shareholders, members, general or limited partner; 
Mark Kelly_ is the sole officer and shareholder -

Name, aadress ancf"position of all officers and directors of ihe compan
 y; Please see ii) above 

State of incorporation (if applicable); New York

The number of employees in the firm; 18 Employees

vi) Annual revenue of firm; $2 Million to 2.4 Million

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments None

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits. Not Applicable/None

8. Indicate number of years in business. 12 Years

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the
Proposer's capacity and reliability to perform these services.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer
has provided simila,Ls.erllice.s..!lLwho...aL[e_qJJJalified!a.ce.iLillu..llil.iruLE.to.i:lOSe.t:Ju:.;ip;:!hilitjLto_ _____ _
perform this work. Safety Marking of NY, Inc. supplies union labor exclusively to Safety Marking, Inc. and does not bid

contracts or work as a subcontractor for anyone else.

Company __ -.!'=====================---------

Contact Person, _________________________ _

Address ________________________ _

City/State ______________________ _

Telephone ________________________ _

Fax# ________________________ _

E-Mail Address. ______________________ _

Rev. 3-2016 







PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM 

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who 
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or 
printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of 
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire. 

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO 
SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL 
WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR 
AWARD 

1. Principal Name Mark Kelly --- Safety Marking of NY, Inc.

Date of birth _

Home address 

-����--------------------- Ci I y /state/zip 

Business address �9
"'
0
-"S"'yl"'ve""st""e.,__r S"'tr,.,e"'et,.__ _________________ _ 

City/state/zip Westbur , NY 11590

Telephone 203.814.3400 or 203.333---6870 x 400

Other present address(es) _____________________ _ 
City/slate/zip ________________________ _ 
Telephone __________________________ _ 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President .s&....J....Sl.L.! 2016 Treasurer .s&....J__fil_) 2016 

Chairman of Board __ / __ / __ Shareholder ...M..}_fil__}...1J!QJ 

Chief Exec. Officer __ / __ / __ Secretary -21...) ...fil._j 2007 

Chief Financial Officer __ ! __ ! __ Partner __ / __ / __ 

Vice President __ / __ / 

(Other) 
/_/__

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES ..x.._ NO_ If Yes, provide details. Mark Kelly owns 100% of Shares since May 1, 2016

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES_ NO .x.._ If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not
-------rer-prefit-organization-other-thafflh,nme1mbmitl1ng fne questionnaire? YES ..lL NO_; 

If Yes, provide details. Mark Kelly is the sole officer of Safely Marking,Inc. since May 1, 2016 and has owned 100%
of its shares since Pebruary 10, 1989.

Rev. 3-2016 

j_ 
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COUNTY OF NASSAU 

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM 

1. Name oftheEntity: SAFETY MARKING of NY, INC. 

Address: 90 Sylvester Street

City, State and Zip Code: Westbury, NY 11590

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number:_2_0_-_8_8_0_7_9_3_3 ________ _

3. Type of Business: __ Public Corp __ Partnership Joint Venture 

__ Ltd. Liability Co __ Closely Held Corp S Corporation Other (specify)

4. List nan1es and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of 
Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties 
of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limited liability companies ( attach additional 
sheets if necessary):

Mark Kelly, President, Secretary, Treasurer 
 

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholdres/partners/members. If a Publicly
held Corporation include a copy of the 1 OK in lieu of completing this section.

Mark Kelly, 55 West Road, Easton, CT 06612 - 100% of Shares 

















































































































































































































































NOT.E: The bids shall be sworn to by the person signing them, in one 
of the following forms: 

(Form of affidavit where Bidder is a corporation) 
STATE OF �J;!Wh'¼O.AA )Mhrlt'c avr;: ) ss. : E:,rtil.tftfff V.
COUNTY OF l,lti��'t;l, ) 

.)lfM,-ft.- Being duly sworn, deposes and says: 
. . Street, in 

That 
e he 

Cityhat
 he is the 'f'n:�t/lt'nt" of

?/1-(t-hA .,.flUr/£,t,/1.A J://..,C-
the c6rporatior:1 1 described in and which executed the foregoing 
instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal 
affixed to the said instrument is such corporate seal and was affixed 
by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation; that he signed 
his name thereto by like order; and that he has knowledge of the 
several matters therein stated and they are in all respects true. 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this Z//fh. day of �h , 2011 . ,??tn--1:/�m� 

)'Jotary 
?'d41'/,, 11:::,:-,11 m 11,::r:�u1nm,1:-;,:,i1-n t=.)11,!7,;,: tj:J?Jp

t?
V{-

(Form of Affidavit. where Bidder is a firm) 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) ss.: 
COUNTY OF NASSAU ) 

That he is a member of 
Being duly sworn, deposes and says: 

the firm described in and which executed the foregoing bid; that he 
duly subscribed the name of the firm hereunto on behalf of the .firm; 
and that the several matters therein stated are in all respects true. 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this day of , 20 

Notary 

(Form of Affidavit. where Bidder is a individual) 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

) ss. : 
COUNTY OF NASSAU ) 

Being duly sworn, deposes and says, 
That he is the person described in and who executed the foregoing bid 
and that the several matters therein stated are in all respects true. 
Subscribed and swo:i:·n t.o before me 
this day of , 20 

Nassau County Pavement Mal'kings Phase 10 
Nassau County Department of Public Works 
NYSDOT PtN 0760.56 / H62153 

Nassau County DPW 99 of 470 

Notary 

Contract No. H62153-1DG-f'i'll'j'/1760.56 
Pavement Markings-Phase 1 O 

















Certifed: 

NIFS ID:    Department: Public Works

Capital: X
SERVICE: FED AID-Pavement Markings-Ph 11-H62153-11G-PIN 0760.61

Contract ID #:H62153-11G NIFS Entry Date: Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: Y

4) Vendor Ownership & Mgmt.
Disclosure Attached: Y

5) Insurance Required N

Vendor Info:

Name: Safety Marking Inc. Vendor ID#: 
Address: 255 Hancock Avenue

Bridgeport, CT 06605

Contact Person: 

Phone: 

Department:

Contact Name: David Cotter

Address: NCDPW

1194 Prospect Ave

Westbury, NY 11590

Phone: 516-571-3913

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 03-JUN-20 -- LDIONISIO

Department NIFS Approval: X 04-JUN-20 -- KARNOLD

DPW Capital Fund Approved: X 04-JUN-20 -- KARNOLD

OMB NIFA Approval: X 19-JUN-20 -- CNOLAN

OMB NIFS Approval: X 04-JUN-20 -- NGUMIENIAK

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 05-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 05-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

CPO Approval: X 25-JUN-20 -- KOHAGENCE

B-20-20



 

DCEC Approval: X 30-JUN-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 30-JUN-20 -- BSCHNEIDER

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- JSCHANTZ

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: The purpose of this contract is to establish a construction agreement between Nassau County and Safety Markings Inc. to 

provide construction services for the project known as Pavement Markings Phase 11 in the amount of $1,783,183.49 to be paid from 

capital project number H62153. FEDERAL AID. PIN 0760.61.

Method of Procurement: The Pavement Marking Contract was advertised in Newsday on March 1st, 8th, and 15th of 2019; and in 

the New York State Contract reporter from March 1, 2019 through March 26, 2019; and in eProcure from March 1, 2019 through 

March 26, 2019.  Following a review of one (1) received bid and an inquiry into non-bidding companies that viewed the solicitation 

on eProcure but did not submit a bid for the contract, Safety Markings Inc. was determined to be qualified with a cost proposal that is 

fair and reasonable.

Procurement History: The Pavement Marking Contract was advertised in Newsday on March 1st, 8th, and 15th of 2019; and in the 

New York State Contract reporter from March 1, 2019 through March 26, 2019; and in eProcure from March 1, 2019 through March 

26, 2019.  Following an inquiry into non-bidding companies that viewed the solicitation on eProcure but chose not to bid on the 

contract, it was determined that a rebidding of the contract would not result in the receiving of additional bids.

Description of General Provisions: The purpose of this contract is to establish a construction agreement between Nassau County and

safety Markings Inc. to provide construction services for the project known as Pavement Markings Phase 11 in the amount of 

$1,783,183.49 to be paid from capital project number H62153.  This includes the refurbishment of existing pavement markings, 

including long lines, stop bars, cross hatching, crosswalks, letters, and symbols; with high durability epoxy paint on approximately 45 

miles of County owned and maintained roadway.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: The costs associated with this contract have been budgeted in the Capital Plan, project 62153.  

The max value of this agreement $1,783,183.49.  The contract is 80% reimbursable with Federal Funding resulting in a $356,636.70 

expense to the County. FEDERAL AID - PIN 0760.61.Contract currently has a 5% DBE utilization plan

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: N/A.

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) 

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: CAP
Control: 62
Resp: 153
Object: 00004
Transaction: CH
Project #: 62153
Detail: 061

FUNDING
SOURCE

AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract: X

County $ 0.00
Federal $ 1,426,546.79
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 356,636.70

LINE
INDEX/OBJECT 

CODE AMOUNT

1 PWCAPCAP/62153/
00004

$ 1,783,183.49

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00



 

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

Other $ 0.00
TOTAL $ 1,783,183.49

$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 1,783,183.49



RULES RESOLUTION NO.  -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
SAFETY MARKING INC. 

        WHEREAS, in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of 

Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract H62153-11G, for NASSAU 

COUNTY PAVEMENT MARKING IMPROVEMENTS- PHASE 11, PIN 0760.61, 

VARIOUS LOCATIONS, NASSAU COUNTY, NY[“Contract”], as more particularly 

described in the contract documents, a copy of which are on file with the Clerk of the 

Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the firm of SAFETY MARKING INC. 

  [“Vendor”] has submitted the lowest responsible bid for the work described in 

the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as determined by the 

Department, and 

WHEREAS, the funding for this contract is from capital funds approved by the 

Nassau County Legislature and included in the current four year capital plan, and 

B20-20



WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Department is representing that the total 

contract is estimated to be $ 1,783,183.49 now therefore be it 

   RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, 

based on the representations of the Department and the recommendation of the 

Commissioner of the Department, authorizes the County Executive to award and execute 

the said contract with the vendor.  



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Safety Marking Inc.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $1783183.49

Amount to be encumbered:   $1783183.49

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 12 months
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? N  

If yes, please explain: 

4. Funding Source:

  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
X  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  80
  Other State % 0

County %   20

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

The purpose of this contract is to establish a construction agreement between Nassau County and Safety Markings Inc. to provide construction services for 
the project known as Pavement Markings Phase 11 in the amount of $1,783,183.49 to be paid from capital project number H62153.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:

Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   CNOLAN   19-JUN-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.











Principal Questionnaire{s) 
This refers to the most recent principal questionnaire submissions. 

Principal Name Date Certified 
I Mark Kelly [MKELL Y@SAFETYMARKING.NET] I 04/08/2020 02:01 :21 PM 

I, Mark Kelly hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement willfully or 
fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any 
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges. 

I further certify that I have read and understand all the items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete 
answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in 
writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied 
by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the 
information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity 

CERTIFICATION 

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT 
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY 
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES." 

Mark Kell 
Name 

President 
Title 

Safety Marking, Inc. 
Name of Submitting Entity 

06/03/2020 12: 13:02 PM 
Date 
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 05/20/2020 04:19:50 PM Vendor: Safety Marking, Inc.

Title: President
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1.  Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term "lobbyist" means any and every
person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - 
Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not 
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not 
limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, 
procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the 
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

NONE

2.  List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New York State):

NONE

3.  Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained, employed 
or designated:

NONE

4.  Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for each activity 
listed. See the last page for a complete description of lobbying activities.

NONE

5.  The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

NONE

6.  If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or employment, you must attach 
a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or employment is oral, attach a written statement of the 
substance thereof. If the written agreement of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the 
client by whom you have been authorized to lobby. separately attach such a written authorization from the client.
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7.  Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign contributions pursuant to 
the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or 
(b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of
this disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  If none, you must so state:

I understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of Information Technology ("IT") to 
be posted on the County's website.

I also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must give written notice to the County 
Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing 
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees listed above were 
made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 05/20/2020 04:23:50 PM Vendor: Safety Marking, Inc.

Title: President
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature,
or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or 
resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation 
or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an 
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or 
construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests 
for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or 
administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by 
the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions department 
heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning 
Commission with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation,
or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals, 
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an elected county official or
an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of any 
interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with 
respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency 
of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding 
before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the 
calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County 
Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to 
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or 
oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has 
been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or "lobbying activities" does not include: Persons engaged in drafting legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates,
where such professional services are not otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or 
administrative action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and television 
stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection with proposed legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of news items, editorials or other comment, or paid 
advertisements; persons who participate as witnesses. attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-
making proceedings of a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public 
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to influence a County 
agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York State Administrative Procedure Act.
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Phone (516) 333-0489

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President 02/10/1989 Treasurer 02/10/1989
Chairman of Board Shareholder 02/10/1989
Chief Exec. Officer 02/10/1989 Secretary 05/01/2016
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President
(Other)

 
Type Description Start Date
Treasurer 02/10/1989

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Own 100% of Shares

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Sole Owner of Safety Marking of NY, Inc. since May 1, 2016.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. exclusively provides 
union labor to Safety Marking, Inc.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. will not be performing any active work on these 
projects.

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Principal Questionnaire Form-Safety Marking of NY, Inc..pdf, Safety Marking of NY, Inc. 
PQ April 2020.pdf 

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES X NO If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
In July 2016, the NYC Parks & Recreation Dept. performed two audits and alleged that a Painter-
Striper should have been classified as a Painter-Lineperson. SMC disputed these findings. In order to 
resolve the disputes, SMC paid the underpayments to resolve the apparent violations. SMC did not 
admit that any violations occurred, but nonetheless discloses the matter.

On March 28, 2018 - Citation 1 - OSHA Other-than-Serious Violation (please see attached for detail)

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Attachment for Question 9 f.pdf, Item 9f.pdf 

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
YES X NO If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
NYSDOT & CTDOT conducted a compliance review due to the lawsuit and concluded that Safety Marking, Inc.
to be a responsible contractor and no sanctions were imposed.  Please see detail in the attachments and 
Letter from the President.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
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had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Mark Kelly , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Mark Kelly , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Safety Marking, Inc.
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

President
Title

04/08/2020 02:01:21 PM
Date
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 Letter from the President regarding SMC’s involvement in a litigation 

 

Safety Marking, Inc. feels that it is important to be forth coming that it was indeed the subject of 

litigation for several years involving two former employees. These two employees alleged that they 

were victims of discrimination for incidents relating to the conduct of five Safety Marking, Inc. 

employees that occurred sometime between 2008-2012. The company fought the unsubstantiated 

litigation through trial and then through post-trial motions, but due to what it believes were grievous 

errors of law and clearly erroneous rulings by the judge, in March 2016, a verdict was rendered in favor 

of the two former employees. The jury held Safety Marking, Inc. liable for the conduct of five of the 

employees. However, after the verdict, the parties settled the matter confidentially. Following 

the verdict, both CT DOT and NY DOT did their due diligence and investigated Safety Marking and its 

practices and both concluded that there were no findings of non-responsibility.  Both confirmed Safety 

Marking’s status as a responsible contractor and Safety Marking was awarded the contracts.  

Safety Marking believes strongly in its EEO policies and employs approximately 50% minorities. Safety 

Marking and its management do not tolerate harassment or discrimination of any kind and 

communicate our Company’s policies and Complaint Procedures with each and every employee.  Our 

Company’s Employee Handbook was updated in 2015 and revised in 2017 and includes all policies and 

procedures. It has been distributed and reviewed with every employee by our Human Resources 

Manager who was hired in January 2015.  All of our employees, supervisors and managers attend 

mandatory annual training that is conducted each year by our Human Resources Manager which covers 

Harassment training and our Company’s EEO Policy. And our EEO Policy is posted on our bulletin boards 

at each of our locations as well as in our Compliance Books that we have on our work sites.   

 

Our company prides itself on our Company’s 360 Review processes which we have been doing since 

1997.  This process gives each employee the opportunity to evaluate every employee, supervisor and 

manager that he/she works with in the company and has the opportunity to confidentially review the 

person’s ability, attitude and how the person helped, taught or provided the tools to help the employee 

do their job. In the past, I conducted these reviews with every employee. Last year, we enhanced the 

process and now each employee meets with three other members of our management team in addition 

to me in their review process. Each employee sits down with the Safety Director, the Operations 

Manager, the Human Resources Manager and then I. During these meetings the employee is able to 

discuss the pertinent aspects of their job, bring up any ideas or suggestions they may have on making 

things better or any problems or concerns that they may have as well.  We spend over three months 

each year on the employee review process and take it very seriously to ensure that our employees are in 



the right position, getting the right tools and training to do their job and address any concerns that they 

bring to our attention.  

 

Safety Marking, Inc. is committed to providing a work environment in which all individuals are treated 

with respect and dignity. Each individual has the right to work in a professional atmosphere that 

promotes equal employment opportunities and prohibits any unlawful discriminatory practices. Through 

our continued communications, training and Open Door Policy that we have with our employees, we are 

confident that our employees feel good about the company that they work for. Unfortunately, anyone 

can accuse you of something without any witness or proof that it in fact occurred and all you can do is 

defend yourself. There were many facts that we were not allowed by the judge to be presented to the 

jury in our defense case which if allowed may have led to a different outcome. But the process is far 

from being perfect and the grievous errors of law and rulings by the judge only compounded our fate.  

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or if you require any further information pertaining to 

this matter.  You can also reach out to our Human Resources Manager, Kelly Lavoie, who would be 

happy to answer any questions or provide you with any other information you may need. She can be 

reached at 203-814-3416. We welcome you to visit our operation as well if you wish so that you have a 

better understanding of what we do. I would be happy to give you a tour of our facility and have you 

meet our Safety Marking family.  

 

Mark Kelly 

President 

           Mark Kelly























PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

ITEM #10 

 

Over four years ago, the Company was involved in a lawsuit filed by two former employees under 42 U.S.C. 

Sec. 1981, relating to the conduct of five Safety Marking employees that occurred sometime between 2008-

2012. In March 2016, a verdict was rendered in favor of the two former employees. The jury held Safety 

Marking, Inc. liable for the conduct of five of the employees. However, after the verdict, the parties settled 

the matter confidentially. Due to this litigation, in Spring 2016, both CTDOT and NYDOT conducted an 

in depth Contract Compliance Review of Safety Marking, Inc. and both concluded that Safety Marking, 

Inc. was a responsible bidder. 

 

In 2018, the New York State Department of Transportation investigated Safety Marking’s qualifications as 

a responsible contractor/bidder arising out of an allegation raised that Safety Marking was somehow 

affiliated with another company.  After a hearing was held in August 2018 before the New York State 

Department of Transportation, Safety Marking was determined to be a responsible contractor/bidder under 

New York regulations. 
 

 

On April 5, 2019 the company received a civil investigative demand from the United States Attorney’s 

office, Northern District of New York. The civil demand requires the company to provide documentation 

to the government relating to The Fence Man, Inc., an unaffiliated company.  The company is complying 

with the investigative demand and disclosing documents in accordance thereto. 

 

In January 2020 an employee who was terminated for aggressive and bullying conduct filed a Charge with 

the NLRB alleging that his bullying conduct was protected speech under the NLRA.  No Complaint was 

issued by the NLRB and the Charge was withdrawn in February 2020 after a settlement.   
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Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 04/08/2020

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Safety Marking, Inc.

2) Address of Place of Business: 255 Hancock Avenue

   City: Bridgeport State/Province/Territory: CT Zip/Postal Code: 06605

Country: US

Address: 500 Bostwick Avenue
City: Bridgeport State/Province/Territory: CT Zip/Postal Code: 06605
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 460 Bostwick Avenue
City: Bridgeport State/Province/Territory: CT Zip/Postal Code: 06605
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 84 Sylvester Street
City: Westbury State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11590
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 85 New York Avenue
City: Westbury State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11590
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

Address: 59 Stilson Road
City: Richmond State/Province/Territory: RI Zip/Postal Code: 02898
Country: US
Start Date: End Date:

3) Mailing Address (if different):
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   City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

  Phone:

  Does the business own or rent its facilities? Rent If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: 010138881

5) Federal I.D. Number: 061267005

6) The proposer is a: Corporation  (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

    YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
    When a contract requires unionized labor, Safety Marking, Inc. will utilize Safety Marking of NY, Inc's personnel 

as Safety Marking of NY, Inc. is a unionized company.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. supplies unionized labor to 
Safety Marking, Inc, exclusively.  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. will not be performing any active work on these 
projects.

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Safety Marking, Inc. is affiliated with Safety Marking of NY, Inc. which provides union labor solely and 
exclusively to Safety Marking, Inc.

 3 File(s) Uploaded: Business History Form-Safety Marking of NY, Inc..pdf, Safety Marking of NY, Inc  Business
Questionnaire Form.pdf, Safety Marking of NY, Inc. BHF April 2020.pdf 

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Affiliate:  Safety Marking of NY, Inc. whose sole function is to provide union labor exclusively to Safety Marking, 
Inc.

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
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prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES X NO If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
On May 9, 2016 a former employee, Peter P. Klosterman, filed an administrative complaint with the State of NY,
Division of Human Rights against Safety Marking of NY, Inc. an affiliate of Safety Marking, INc.  Mr. Klosterman
alleged that he was terminated in violation of NY disability discrimination laws.  After an investigation & 
following opportunity for review of related information & evidence by the named parties, the Division of Human 
Rights determined that there was NO PROBABLE CAUSE to believe that the respondent had engaged in or is 
engaging in the unlawful discriminatory practice complained of.  The complaint was dismissed and the file was 
closed. Please also see attachment for #13 and a letter from the President.

 9 File(s) Uploaded: 201704281208-CTDOT Con-16.pdf, 201704281211-NYDOT Responsible Bidder letter.pdf, 
201704281342- letter.pdf, 201808220930-NYDOT CRU's Determination Letter.pdf, BHF Item 13.pdf, Business 
History - Item 13.pdf, Business History Form Item 13 Attachment.pdf, Letter from Pres.updated 2020.pdf, Letter 
from President.pdf 

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
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circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES X NO If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
In July 2016, the NYC Parks & Recreation Dept. performed two audits and alleged that a Painter-Striper should 
have been classified as a Painter-Lineperson. SMC disputed these findings. In order to resolve the disputes, 
SMC paid the underpayments to resolve the apparent violations. SMC did not admit that any violations 
occurred, but nonetheless discloses the matter.

Citation 1 - OSHA Other-than-Serious Violation (please see attached for detail)

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Attachment for Question 14e.pdf, SMC 14 e.pdf 

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.
No conflict exists

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of 
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interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
If a Safety Marking, Inc. employee had any conflict of interest, that employee would not be allowed to be
involved with the project in any capacity nor would have access to any information regarding the project.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive 
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be 
identified. 

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES NO X

Is the proposer an individual?
YES NO X Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;
02/10/1989

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including 
shareholders, members, general or limited partner.  If none, explain.
Mark Kelly, President and Sole Officer - owns 100% of Safety Marking, Inc.'s shares -  

 
First Name Mark
Last Name Kelly
MI Suffix
Address
City Bridgeport State/Province/Territory CT Zip/Postal Code 06605
Country US
Position President

 

 3 File(s) Uploaded: C.O.N.C.O.R.D..pdf, C.O.N.C.O.R.pdf, C.O.N.C.O.R.pdf 

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.
Mark Kelly,  (Home) - President & Sole Officer

 
First Name Mark
Last Name Kelly
MI Suffix
Address
City Bridgeport State/Province/Territory CT Zip/Postal Code 06605
Country US
Position President
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iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);
CT

v) The number of employees in the firm;
150

vi) Annual revenue of firm;
45000000

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments
Please see attachment A.

 4 File(s) Uploaded: A. with attached History & Resumes.pdf, SMC History & Resumes.pdf, SMC History-
Resumes-Equipment List.pdf, SMC Item A - Attachment.pdf 

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business.
47

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity 
and reliability to perform these services.
Please see attachment with company history, resumes and equipment list

 2 File(s) Uploaded: SMC Equipment List (2).pdf, SMC Equipment List.pdf 

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar 
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company NYS Dept of Transportation
Contact Person Jeffrey Dionisio
Address 3380 Veterans Memorial Highway
City Bohemia State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone
Fax # (
E-Mail Address j

Company The Port Authority of NY & NJ
Contact Person Marcelo Morelli, Chief Operations Supervisor
Address JFK International Airport
City Queens State/Province/Territory NY
Country US 
Telephone (
Fax #
E-Mail Address

Company Nassau County DPW
Contact Person Harold Lutz, Directory of Traffic Engineering
Address 1194 Prospect Avenue
City Westbury State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone
Fax #
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E-Mail Address
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I, Mark Kelly , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Mark Kelly , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information 
and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: Safety Marking, Inc,

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

President
Title

04/08/2020 11:54:46 AM
Date









































































Connecticut's Official

 
State Website

The Office of

 
Secretary of the State Denise W. Merrill

Business Inquiry
Business Details

Business Name: SAFETY MARKING, INC.

Business ID: 0228841

Business Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Mailing Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Date Inc/Registration: Feb 10, 1989  

Annual Report Due Date: 02/07/2019  

 

Principals Details
Name/Title Business Address Residence Address

MARK K. KELLY  PRESIDENT, SECRETARY AND TREASURER 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

MARK K. KELLY  DIRECTOR 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

 
`

Agent Summary
Agent Name MARK K. KELLY

Agent Business Address C/O SAFETY MARKING, INC., 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Agent Residence Address

Agent Mailing Address NONE
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
NONE

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New
York State):
NONE

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Mark Kelly [MKELLY@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 04/07/2020 01:01:00 PM

Title: President



Page 3 of 3

The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.



Connecticut's Official

State Website

The Office of

 
Secretary of the State Denise W. Merrill

Business Inquiry
Business Details

Business Name: SAFETY MARKING, INC.

Business ID: 0228841

Business Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Mailing Address: 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Date Inc/Registration: Feb 10, 1989

Annual Report Due Date: 02/07/2019

Principals Details
Name/Title Business Address Residence Address

MARK K. KELLY  PRESIDENT, SECRETARY AND TREASURER 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605 55 WEST ROAD, EASTON, CT, 06612

MARK K. KELLY  DIRECTOR 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605 55 WEST ROAD, EASTON, CT, 06612

`

Agent Summary
Agent Name MARK K. KELLY

Agent Business Address C/O SAFETY MARKING, INC., 255 HANCOCK AVENUE, BRIDGEPORT, CT, 06605

Agent Residence Address 55 WEST ROAD, EASTON, CT, 06612

Agent Mailing Address NONE



Page 1 of 3

COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Safety Marking of NY, Inc.

Address: 90 Sylvester Street

City: Westbury State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11590

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 208807933

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) S Corporation

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

1 File(s) uploaded Safety Marking of NY, Inc. - Officer Information.pdf 

 No principals have been attached to this form.  

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.

 1 File(s) uploaded Safety Marking of NY, Inc. - Officer Information.pdf 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

Affiliate - Safety Marking, Inc. - 255 Hancock Avenue, Bridgeport, CT 06605 

 1 File(s) uploaded ccvd - Safety Marking, Inc..pdf 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads,
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee,
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
NONE
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
NONE

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New
York State):
NONE

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Caroline Sumner [CAROLINE.SUMNER@SAFETYMARKING.NET]

Dated: 05/28/2020 07:44:51 AM

Title: Contract Specialist
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.



Safety Marking of NY, Inc. 

Mark Kelly, President & Sole Officer 

 Owns 100% of Shares 









H62153-11G - General Contracting

Bid 
Amount

Bid Opening: Engineer:

Contractor
Alternate 

Bid

Phone:

Insurance Payment

Nassau DPW B.I.D.S - Summary of Bid Opening 3/26/2019

Pavement Marking Improvements, Phase 11-PIN 0760.61

3 /26/2019 Harold Lutz (516) 571-9453

Address

$1,783,183.49Safety Marking Inc.  255 Hancock Avenue Bridgeport, CT 06605 $0.00Travelers Casualty And Surety 10% Amt Bid

The above is a review of the bids and subsequent list of all the bids that were read aloud at the public bid opening.  Listed bids may be subsequently withdrawn or disqualified.  The list  
does not reflect the Department’s determination of the lowest responsible bidder.

























(Acknowledgment by Contractor if a corporation) 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

s s . : Bridgeport 
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD 

On this 26th day of March 20 19 , before me personally 
came Mark Kelly 
who, being by me duly sworn, 
resides in 

to me known, 
did depose and say for himself, that he 

that he is the President of the SAFETY MARKING, INC. 
the corporation described in, and which executed the foregoing 
instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal 
affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so 
affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that 
he signed his name thereto by like order, 

/4nif ,ljpf /flljff
Notary Public 

Caroline Sumner 

(Acknowledgment by Contractor if a partnership) 

STATE OF 

My Commission F,xpires; January 31, 2024 

ss.: 
COUNTY OF 

on this 
came 

--------

day of , 20 , before me personally 
to me known and known 

to me to be a member of 
the firm described in and which executed the foregoing bond or 
obligation, and he acknowledged to me that he subscribed the name of 
said firm thereto on behalf of said firm for the purpose therein 
mentioned. 

Notary Public 

(Acknowledgment by Contractor if an individual.) 

STATE OF 

ss.: 

COUNTY OF 

On this 
came 
known and 
foregoing 
same. 

day of , 20 , before me personally 
to me 

known to me to be the person described in and who executed the 
instrument, and he duly acknowledged that he executed the 

Notary Public 

Nassau County DPW 31 of518 Contract No. H62153 11G - PIN 0760.61 
Pavement Markings�Phase 11 

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Certifed: 

NIFS ID:    Department: Public Works

Capital: X
SERVICE: PS Mitigation-East Ave Ejector Sta-S3P311-08G-B23-20

Contract ID #:S3P311-08G NIFS Entry Date: Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: Y

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: Y

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): N

5) Insurance Required N

Vendor Info:

Name: Posillico Civil, Inc. Vendor ID#: 11-1529032
Address: 1760 New Highway

Farmingdale, NY 11736

Contact Person: John Boehm

Phone: 516-252-8905

Department:

Contact Name: Edward F. Visone

Address: NCDPW

3340 Merrick Road

Building R, 3rd Floor

Wantagh, NY 11793

Phone: 516-571-7359

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 09-JUN-20 -- LDIONISIO

Department NIFS Approval: X 09-JUN-20 -- KARNOLD

DPW Capital Fund Approved: X 09-JUN-20 -- KARNOLD

OMB NIFA Approval: X 26-JUN-20 -- CNOLAN

OMB NIFS Approval: X 09-JUN-20 -- NGUMIENIAK

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 09-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

B-23-20



 

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 09-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

CPO Approval: X 30-JUN-20 -- KOHAGENCE

DCEC Approval: X 01-JUL-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 01-JUL-20 -- BSCHNEIDER

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- GCASTILLO

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: Conversion of an ejector station located in Inwood, to an updated, modern pump station. Two (2) existing ejector pods will 

be replaced by three (3) submersible pumps, each capable of handling peak flow plus a safety factor for redundancy/reliability. 

Ancillary work includes removal and replacement of electrical and mechanical equipment, piping and valves, and structural 

modifications. Conversion will ensure approximately twenty (20) additional years of service at the current flow capacity.

Method of Procurement: Formal Sealed Bid. Four bids were received and evaluated with Posillico Civil being the lowest responsible

bidder

Procurement History: Notice to Bidders: eProcure: 3/8/2019-4/9/2019; Newsday: 3/6/2019; NYS Contract Reporter: 3/6/2019-

4/9/2019. Bids opened 4/9/2019. Four bids were received.

Description of General Provisions: Conversion of an ejector station located in Inwood, to an updated, modern pump station. Two (2)

existing ejector pods will be replaced by three (3) submersible pumps, each capable of handling peak flow plus a safety factor for 

redundancy/reliability. Ancillary work includes removal and replacement of electrical and mechanical equipment, piping and valves, 

and structural modifications. Conversion will ensure approximately twenty (20) additional years of service at the current flow 

capacity.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: Maximum amount - $4,153,770. It is expected that the full cost of these services will be 

eligible for reimbursement by Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) under Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and 

Emergency Assistance Act.Funding under Project 3P311. Contract currently calls for 10.48% MWBE utilization

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: There is no prior procurement.

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as Submitted

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: CSW
Control: 3P
Resp: 311
Object: 00004
Transaction: CH
Project #: 3P311
Detail: 008

RENEWAL

FUNDING
SOURCE AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 0.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 4,153,770.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 4,153,770.00

LINE
INDEX/OBJECT 

CODE AMOUNT

1 PWCSWCSW/3P31
1/008/00004

$ 4,153,770.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 4,153,770.00



 

% 
Increase

% 
Decrease



RULES RESOLUTION NO.            -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
POSILLICO CIVIL, INC. 

             WHEREAS, in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of 

Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract S3P311-08G, for PUMP 

STATION MITIGATION-EAST AVENUE EJECTOR STATION-CONVERSION TO 

PUMPING STATION, NASSAU COUNTY, NY [“Contract”], as more particularly 

described in the contract documents, a copy of which are on file with the Clerk of the 

Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the firm of POSILLICO CIVIL, INC. 

  [“Vendor”] has submitted the lowest responsible bid for the work described in 

the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as determined by the 

Department, and 

WHEREAS, the funding for this contract is from capital funds approved by the 

Nassau County Legislature and included in the current four year capital plan, and 

B23-20



WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Department is representing that the total 

contract is estimated to be $ 4,153,770.00, now therefore be it 

   RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, 

based on the representations of the Department and the recommendation of the 

Commissioner of the Department, authorizes the County Executive to award and execute 

the said contract with the vendor.  



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Posillico Civil, Inc.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $4153770

Amount to be encumbered:   $4153770

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 18 months from NTP
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? N  

If yes, please explain: 

4. Funding Source:

  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
X  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 0

County %   0

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

Conversion of an ejector station located in Inwood, to an updated, modern pump station. Two (2) existing ejector pods will be replaced by three (3) 
submersible pumps, each capable of handling peak flow plus a safety factor for redundancy&#x2F;reliability. Ancillary work includes removal and 
replacement of electrical and mechanical equipment, piping and valves, and structural modifications. Conversion will ensure approximately twenty (20) 
additional years of service at the current flow capacity.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:



Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   CNOLAN   26-JUN-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.









Certificate of No Change Form

All fields must be filled. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification, and/or the failure to 
conduct appropriate due diligence in verifying the information that is the subject of this certification, may result in 
rendering the submitting entity non-responsible for the purpose of contract award. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification may subject the person 
making the false statement to criminal charges. 

I, Carleen King state that I have read and understand all the items contained in the 
disclosure documents listed below and certify that as of this date, these items have not changed. I further certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, those answers are full, complete, and accurate; and that, to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief, those answers continue to be full, complete, and accurate.

In addition, I further certify on behalf of the submitting vendor that the information contained in the principal 
questionnaire(s) have not changed and have been verified and continue, to the best of my knowledge, to be full, 
complete and accurate.

I understand that Nassau County will rely on the information supplied in this certification as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting entity.

Vendor Disclosures
This refers to the vendor integrity and disclosure forms submitted for the vendor doing business with the County.

 Name of Submitting Entity: Posillico Civil, Inc.

Vendor's Address: 1750 New Highway Farmingdale NY US 11735

 Vendor's EIN or TIN: 111529032

 Forms Submitted:

Political Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form: 
11/26/2019 01:11:47 PM

Lobbyist Registration and Disclosure Form: 
12/03/2019 10:39:42 AM

Business History Form certified: 
01/31/2020 02:09:42 PM

Consultant's, Contractor's, and Vendor's Disclosure Form: 
01/31/2020 02:11:31 PM



Principal Questionnaire(s)
This refers to the most recent principal questionnaire submissions.
 

Principal Name Date Certified
Joseph K Posillico [JKPOSILLICO@POSILLICOINC.COM] 02/06/2020 10:48:55 AM
Michael J. Posillico [MPOSILLICO@POSILLICOINC.COM] 02/06/2020 08:23:06 AM
Joseph D Posillico III [JP3@POSILLICOINC.COM] 02/06/2020 08:39:57 AM
 

I, Carleen King hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement willfully or 
fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any 
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I further certify that I have read and understand all the items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete 
answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in 
writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied 
by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the 
information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT 
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY 
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES."

Carleen King
Name 

Preconstruction Manager
Title 

Posillico Civil, Inc.
Name of Submitting Entity 

03/26/2020 10:46:59 AM
Date 
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Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 01/28/2020

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Posillico Civil, Inc.

2) Address of Place of Business: 1750 New Highway

   City: Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735

Country: US

3) Mailing Address (if different):

   City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

  Phone:

  Does the business own or rent its facilities? Both If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number:

5) Federal I.D. Number:

6) The proposer is a: Other  (Describe) S. Corporation

No information shared with Nassau 
County is to be disclosed. Posillico and 
its affiliates are privately held, therefore,
all corporate and financial information is
confidential and shall not be disclosed 
to other parties, pursuant to Federal 
Freedom of Information Law and New 
York State Freedom of Information Act.

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Bylaws.pdf, Good Standing 22719 PCI (1).pdf 

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

    YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
    See Attachment Rent/Own Office Space

Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
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New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: 2020 Principals_Ownership_Shares_Rentals.pdf 

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Yes, see attachment Subsidiary/Affiliate by laws
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
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allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
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(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
as directed in the instructions above, lease disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If 
no conflicts exist, please expressly state 'No conflict exists.'

ANSWER: NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST EXISTS

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.

 

There are no other known relationships that could create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest.

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
This is the same question as (ii) and we answer the same in response. 

 

 

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of 
interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
Posillico employees are subject to agreement in writing to our Employee Policies and Procedures as 
outlined in our Employee Handbook (attached hereto).  This handbook addresses Client Relationships, 
Conflicts of Interest, Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Policy, Client Gratuities, Socializing with Clients and
Subcontractors, Documentation of All Client Related Activities, 
Reciprocity.  

Posillico will adopt a conflict of interest procedure that includes relationships (family and personal) that 
could give the appearance of impropriety, or that should be disclosed. (Such as the SAMPLE attached)

 2 File(s) Uploaded: Posillico Employee Handbook.pdf, SAMPLE Conflict of Interest Policy.pdf 

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive 
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be 
identified. 

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES NO X

Is the proposer an individual?
YES NO X Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;
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02/04/1946

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including 
shareholders, members, general or limited partner.  If none, explain.

 
First Name Joseph
Last Name Posillico
MI K Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Chief Exec. Officer and 

President

First Name Joseph
Last Name Posillico
MI D Suffix III
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Sr. Vice President - Field 

Operations

First Name Michael
Last Name Posillico
MI J Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Executive Vice President and 

Secretary

 

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.

 
First Name Joseph
Last Name Boren
MI Suffix
Address
City
Country US
Position Executive Board of Directors

First Name Thomas
Last Name Cassidy
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MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Business Development

First Name Lisa
Last Name Dippel
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Human Resources

First Name Anthony
Last Name Evangelista
MI C Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Sr. Vice President/Chief Engineer

First Name Charles
Last Name Forte
MI A Suffix Jr.
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Paving Division Manager

First Name Charles
Last Name Forte
MI A Suffix Sr.
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Sales Executive

First Name Frank
Last Name Franzini
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Risk Management

First Name Paul
Last Name Giordano
MI Suffix
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Address

Country US
Position Executive Board Member

First Name Fred
Last Name Locher
MI W Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Purchasing

First Name Richard
Last Name Nota
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer (not an equity shareholder)

First Name Michael
Last Name Perciballi
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President/Environmental Division Mangaer

First Name Joseph
Last Name Posillico
MI D Suffix III
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Sr. Vice President - Field Operations

First Name Thomas
Last Name Spatafora
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Sr. Vice President, Business Development and Strategy

First Name David
Last Name Sposito
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
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City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, NYC Division Manager

First Name Michael
Last Name Trotta
MI J Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory NY Zip/Postal Code 11735
Country US
Position Vice President

 

iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);
NY

v) The n

vi) Annual revenue of firm;

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments
See attached

 1 File(s) Uploaded: Posillico Brochure.pdf 

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B.

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity 
and reliability to perform these services.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: Posillico Presentation 2018.pptx 

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar 
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company NYS Department of Transportation - Region 11
Contact Person Brett Garvar
Address
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Company NYCDEP
Contact Person

 

Company Town of Babylon
Contact Person ichard Grohn
Address
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I, Carleen King , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Carleen King , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information 
and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: Posillico Civil, Inc.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Carleen King [CKING@POSILLICOINC.COM]

Title

01/31/2020 02:09:42 PM
Date
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*Managing Member

Note: All members are currently with the firm.  

Posillico Materials, LLC 
 

 
 
 

manufacturing and selling of asphalt

P Five Management, LLC 
 

Posillico Materials East, LLC 
(Operating Agreement signed  

 
 
 

*Posillico Materials East owns Holtsville facility

ATTACHMENT A
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DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Contractor Responsibility Form
Part V: Questions A., B., P., Q., R.
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

JOINT VENTURE(S) 
Gateway‐Posillico Joint Venture   

 

 

Tully‐Posillico Joint Venture 
 

 
 

 Joint Venture 

 

Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico-Skanska Joint Venture 
Posillico Civil, Inc. and Skanska USA Civil Northeast, Inc. 

 

 

Hinck-Posillico Joint Venture LLC
 

, New York 11716

Tully-Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico/Bove JV 
 

OHL/Posillico/SELI Overseas, JV 
 

ONFI

OR N
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NLY
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Posillico Inc.  Signatories :No Checks  Holding Company  

 
 

 

President/CEO 
Executive VP/Secretary 
Senior VP 
Treasurer/CFO   
Posillico Civil, Inc.      
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Michael J. Trotta 
Lisa Dippel
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

LIE Rental Inc.  Signatories: JKP, RN  Equipment Rental  

 
 

 
Treasurer 
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LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICERS:   2020 
 
JOSEPH K. POSILLICO - CEO/PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
MICHAEL J. POSILLICO - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT/SECRETARY          

   
   
     
JOSEPH D. POSILLICO, III - SR. VICE PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
RICHARD NOTA – CFO/TREASURER  

 
 

 
ANTHONY C. EVANGELISTA, P.E. -   SR. VICE PRESIDENT/CHIEF ENGINEER 

 
E, NY 11735 

 
MICHAEL J. TROTTA - VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF ESTIMATOR 

 
 

 
MICHAEL PERCIBALLI – VICE PRESIDENT/ENV. DIVISION MGR. 

 
   
FRED W. LOCHER - VICE PRESIDENT/ PURCHASING 

 
 
THOMAS SPATAFORA - SR. VICE PRESIDENT, SALES & MARKETING 

 
 

   
FRANK FRANZINI - VICE PRESIDENT/RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
 

  
CHARLES A. FORTE, JR. - VICE PRESIDENT/ PAVING DIVISION MGR. 

 
 
 
 

DE

F
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U
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NLY
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F
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CHARLES A. FORTE, SR. - VICE PRESIDENT/PRIVATE ASPHALT SALES 
 

 
     
LISA DIPPEL – VICE PRESIDENT/HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
 

 
DAVID SPOSITO, P.E. – VICE PRESIDENT/NYC DIVISION MANAGER 

 
 

 
THOMAS CASSIDY – VICE PRESIDENT/BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

 
NOELLE ANDREASSEN – VICE PRESIDENT, CONTROLLER 
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

RENTAL/OWNERSHIP OFFICE SPACE, STAFF, EQUIPMENT, 
SHARED EXPENSES
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 www.posillicoinc.com

MTA Emergency Vent Plant
Long Island City, NY



Main Office
1750 New Highway 
Farmingdale, NY 11735
P: 631.249.1872
F: 631.249.8124
www.posillicoinc.com

Safety
“At Posillico, we believe that safety requires open communication, accountability,  

ownership, and a personal commitment by members of the organization.  
Nothing is more important than maintaining an injury and incident free workplace.” 

- Joseph K. Posillico, President/CEO, 2017

We strive to be the best in our business, and we have enjoyed success and sustainability due to the  
hard work and dedication of the people within our organization, who have been and continue to  

be our most valuable and important resource.

Our corporate health and safety program reflects our commitment to ensuring safe work sites and the safety of 
our workers and subcontractors. We work hard to ensure a safety culture that addresses and integrates safety into 

everything that we do. From pre-construction, through pre-planning and implementation, we believe that  
a well-trained, informed and aware organization translates into safe work and projects built on time and on budget.  

We focus on preventing loss, incidents, and injuries before they occur, and we provide health and safety training and 
mentoring programs for all new employees and on-going training to our managers and crews. Regular training and 
constant reinforcement gives all of our employees the knowledge to identify and the authority to correct hazardous 

situations before accidents happen. Everyone working on our construction sites or in our facilities can hit the  
“Stop Button” when unsafe conditions exist.

We strive to continuously improve and impart best practices to all of our employees and subcontractors.  
Providing a safe working environment ensures that we will continue to set the standard for our industry.

Our dedicated employees are vigilant in training. They are aware of and apply basic safety principals.  
Teamwork and awareness make our construction sites and our people safe.

Construction of suburbia on 
Long Island. J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
hauls brick for new homes for 
returning GI’s.

MILESTONES

 -  January 30, 1946: 
J.D. Posillico, Inc. is started by 
Joseph D. Posillico, Sr., Americo 
Posillico and Virginia Seeley.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. expands 
with providing subcontractor 
site construction services for 
residential developments.

MILESTONES

 -  Dominic and Mario Posillico 
join the � rm in 1956.

 -  Dominic Posillico heads the 
estimating and engineering 
departments. He is instrumental 
in developing an innovative 
steel sheeting system for the 
installation of deep drainage 
and sewer systems.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. expands 
subcontracting capacity 
for new roads and schools 
being built for the � rst baby 
boomers.

MILESTONES

 -  Mario A. Posillico returns in 
1960—after three years in 
the U.S. Navy—and begins 
reshaping the company into a 
major general contractor. He 
is instrumental in promoting 
public works projects for local 
and state governments.
 -  1963 Charles Gargano, P.E. 
joins the � rm, transforming J.D. 
Posillico, Inc. � eld operations 
into one of the best on Long 
Island.
 -  Joseph D. Posillico, Jr. joins 
the � rm in 1965 and guides 
the company expansion into 
the asphalt business and the 
installation of deep drainage 
and sewer systems.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. and Posillico 
Bros. Asphalt Co. expand their 
capacity in road and bridge 
construction during NYSDOT 
major highway and bridge 
reconstruction programs. J.D. 
Posillico, Inc. performs major 
Long Island land� ll closures.

MILESTONES

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. focuses 
on major New York State 
road construction and bridge 
initiatives.

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. initiates 
construction on the 
Meadowbrook and Northern 
State Parkways.

 -  Construction of the Nassau 
Expressway.

 -  Major rehabilitation of the 
Southern State Parkway.

 -  Joseph D. Posillico, Sr., 
Dominic Posillico and Virginia 
Seeley retire.

 -  Charles Gargano leaves for 
government service.

 -  Third generation of Posillico 
family completes engineering 
degrees and begins reshaping 
the future of Posillico.

Posillico Bros. Asphalt Co., LLC 
and Blue Water Environmental, 
Inc. team up to develop 
innovative soil and asphalt 
recycling technologies in 
response to limited disposal 
space created by the push to 
close Long Island land� lls.

MILESTONES

 -  1991 Blue Water 
Environmental, Inc. is formed.

 -  1992 J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
constructs the � rst HOV project 
on the Long Island Expressway.

 -  1992 Posillico Bros. Asphalt 
Co., LLC receives one of New 
York State’s � rst petroleum 
contaminated soil recycling 
permits.

 -  1996 J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
celebrates 50 years in business.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. becomes a 
general contractor performing 
bridgework, roadwork and 
becomes a major builder of 
sewer infrastructure for Nassau 
and Suffolk Counties.

MILESTONES

 -  1971 Posillico Bros. Asphalt 
Co. is formed and the plant is 
erected in Farmingdale, NY.

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. innovatively 
implements the use of vibratory 
steel sheeting and large scale 
dewatering for sewer programs 
in Nassau and Suffolk Counties, 
saving millions of taxpayer 
dollars.

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. completes 
over $500 million in sewer 
infrastructure.

Faced with new challenges of an 
aging suburbia, Posillico looks to 
develop an integrated construction 
approach to solving regional 
transportation, environmental and 
developmental problems.

MILESTONES

 -  Posillico’s corporate of� ce relocates, 
providing nearly 20,000 sq. ft. state-of-
the art of� ce and training space.

 -  Posillico Civil, Inc. wins a $360 
million JV project with Tully 
Construction to reconstruct the Belt 
Pkwy. 

 -  Posillico Development, LLC embarks 
on its � rst “Brown� eld Project.”

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. completes last two 
HOV expansion projects capping a 
$600+ million portion of a $1 billion 
HOV construction program.

 -  Leadership and project management 
training is implemented to elevate 
standards of excellence across all 
business units.

 -  Business units unite within one 
organization, one brand, “Posillico.”

J.D. Posillico, Inc. is now 
Posillico Civil, Inc.

Posillico Bros. Asphalt Co., LLC is now 
Posillico Materials, LLC

Blue Water Environmental, Inc. is now 
Posillico Environmental, Inc.

Piles, Drilling & Underground Solutions 
is now Posillico Drilling, Inc.

Metron Development Service, LLC is 
now Posillico Consulting, LLC

Posillico Development Company, LLC is 
now Posillico Development, LLC

Posillico continues to grow and approach 
each challenge as a new opportunity. Our 
mission statement of completing projects 
safely and on time continues to propel us 
into the future by embracing Design-Build 
and Value Engineering as a way to meet the 
challenges of large-scale public works.

MILESTONES

 -  2010 Posillico’s fourth generation begins 
working at the company.
 -  2013 Posillico is awarded its � rst design-build 
project; NYSDOT Design-Build Accelerated 
Bridge Program.
 -  2013 Posillico Materials, LLC unveils its new 
rail siding and materials transfer depot.
 -  2014 Posillico Civil, Inc. completes its 
Replacement of Belt Parkway Bridges project 
for $364 million. 
 -  2015 Posillico acquires a full-service utility 
contractor now known as Northeast Utilities to 
capture a new market.
 -  2016 Posillico Civil, Inc. celebrates its 70th 
year, Posillico Materials, LLC celebrates its 
45th year and Posillico Environmental, Inc. 
celebrates its 25th year.
 -  2017 Posillico opens a second asphalt plant, 
Posillico Materials East, LLC, located in 
Holtsville, NY.
 -  2017 Posillico and its partners break ground 
at Garvies Point in Glen Cove, NY; a 27 acre 
mixed used land reclamation project. 

Posillico is New York’s Premier Self-Performing General Contractor

Experience. Since 1946, we have been one of the leaders in the construction industry for the Tri-State area. 
From first breaking ground on the Long Island Expressway to foundation and environmental projects in 
Manhattan, we have been successful in mastering the complexities of New York construction. 

Confidence. When the reputations of all those involved are on the line, we maintain a high-level of 
confidence - We know how to get the job done, especially in evolving environments. Our family of clients 
is confident of their project’s success because they have prospered from our results in the past.    

People. Experience and confidence define our team. We have the best people in the industry working 
together towards a common goal. From our project managers and engineers to foremen, key laborers, and 
support staff, every member of our team is highly qualified and work together as a team. The construction 
industry is challenging, complicated and demanding. Our qualified professionals possess the fundamental 
experience necessary to impart confidence that our client’s projects will succeed.

Safety. When people are involved, safety is more important than just a slogan. We are committed  
to achieving top safety performance in our industry. Our people and projects both come home  
on time… safely.

We Embrace Complex Projects

Not only do we like the tough jobs, but we also excel at them. The key to our continued success is the 
seamless integration of our various business units. We offer a multi-disciplinary excellence – we thrive on 
value engineering innovative solutions for challenging projects. Our management approach allows us to 
gauge project complexity from the start and appropriately manage along the way.

In the construction industry, scopes continually change, and issues arise. Our collaborative effort is the key 
to getting complex projects completed safely, on time and on budget.



Queens Plaza Residential Development
Long Island City, NYFoundations

Subgrade to Sidewalk

A history of past success, 
exceeding expectations, 
confidence, industry 
relationships, and continuous 
communication are the keys to 
building award-winning belowground 
projects. Our ability to self-perform 
the majority of belowground work 
gives us a distinct advantage in 
controlling costs and meeting 
difficult schedules.

Our professional engineering 
staff has developed the 
necessary experience through 
our past experience in public sector 
projects to the private sector. We have 
the experience in building foundations 
and other structures in tight urban 
locations and around existing 
infrastructures, such as subways, 
railways, tunnels, and utilities. 

We are committed to our private 
clients to ensure their projects move 
as quickly as possible to maximize 
their investment returns.

Our years of experience include the 
following services:

•   Soil Excavation
•   Rock Removal
•    Design, Engineering 
and Construction of 
Support of Excavation 
and Underpinning 
Systems

•   Deep Foundations
•   Dewatering

Replacement of Belt Parkway Bridges
Brooklyn & Queens, NY
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confidence, industry 
relationships, and continuous 
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building award-winning belowground 
projects. Our ability to self-perform 
the majority of belowground work 
gives us a distinct advantage in 
controlling costs and meeting 
difficult schedules.

Our professional engineering 
staff has developed the 
necessary experience through 
our past experience in public sector 
projects to the private sector. We have 
the experience in building foundations 
and other structures in tight urban 
locations and around existing 
infrastructures, such as subways, 
railways, tunnels, and utilities. 

We are committed to our private 
clients to ensure their projects move 
as quickly as possible to maximize 
their investment returns.

Our years of experience include the 
following services:

•   Soil Excavation
•   Rock Removal
•    Design, Engineering 
and Construction of 
Support of Excavation 
and Underpinning 
Systems

•   Deep Foundations
•   Dewatering

Replacement of Belt Parkway Bridges
Brooklyn & Queens, NYInnovation, Planning & 

Design-Build

Our “know how” is the 
hallmark of large complex 
civil projects. We have built our 
reputation on complex municipal 
projects by leveraging our diverse 
capabilities and utilizing our various 
divisions.

Our Team includes design engineers 
and valued subcontractors that 
work together on complex projects 
delivering cost-effective solutions 
while maintaining an aggressive 
schedule.

We successfully perform design-
build projects with innovation, 
collaboration and teamwork. We 
have taken the lead in the design-build 
project delivery system on various 
government contracts. Most of these 
projects include the construction of 
complex infrastructure that required 
accelerated schedules delivered in 
tight timeframes to better the 
communities we serve. From the 
expansion of the Long Island Rail 
Road, to various road and bridge 
projects throughout the Tri-State 
region, we have been selected time 
and time again to partner with various 
design firms to achieve valued results.

Bergen Point Wastewater Treatment Plant
West Babylon, NY



Innovation, Planning & 
Design-Build

Our “know how” is the 
hallmark of large complex 
civil projects. We have built our 
reputation on complex municipal 
projects by leveraging our diverse 
capabilities and utilizing our various 
divisions.

Our Team includes design engineers 
and valued subcontractors that 
work together on complex projects 
delivering cost-effective solutions 
while maintaining an aggressive 
schedule.

We successfully perform design-
build projects with innovation, 
collaboration and teamwork. We 
have taken the lead in the design-build 
project delivery system on various 
government contracts. Most of these 
projects include the construction of 
complex infrastructure that required 
accelerated schedules delivered in 
tight timeframes to better the 
communities we serve. From the 
expansion of the Long Island Rail 
Road, to various road and bridge 
projects throughout the Tri-State 
region, we have been selected time 
and time again to partner with various 
design firms to achieve valued results.

Bergen Point Wastewater Treatment Plant
West Babylon, NY Partnering & Planning  

We provide creative solutions 
for complex wastewater projects 
in the New York metropolitan 
area. Our success over the past 
70 years has been based on our 
commitment to professionalism, 
partnerships and becoming the 
thought leader in our industry. These 
qualities, as well as our experience, 
have helped us set today’s standard in 
the wastewater industry.  

We have worked with 
a multitude of regional 
government agencies on 
virtually all types of wastewater 
projects, each with their 
own challenges. Our success 
is attributable to understanding 
the special needs of each project, 
while offering innovative and 
value engineering options with a 
partnering approach. Detailed 
planning and safe execution are some 
of the key benefits we deliver to our 
clients. 

•    Wastewater Treatment 
Plants

•   Pump Stations
•    Sanitary Support 
Buildings and 
Equipment

•    Force Mains and 
Sanitary Piping
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We provide creative solutions 
for complex wastewater projects 
in the New York metropolitan 
area. Our success over the past 
70 years has been based on our 
commitment to professionalism, 
partnerships and becoming the 
thought leader in our industry. These 
qualities, as well as our experience, 
have helped us set today’s standard in 
the wastewater industry.  

We have worked with 
a multitude of regional 
government agencies on 
virtually all types of wastewater 
projects, each with their 
own challenges. Our success 
is attributable to understanding 
the special needs of each project, 
while offering innovative and 
value engineering options with a 
partnering approach. Detailed 
planning and safe execution are some 
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Buildings and 
Equipment

•    Force Mains and 
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Quality, Flexibility & 
Schedule

Our commitment to quality 
starts at our plants. We manage 
everything that goes on at our sites, 
including the materials we use. Our 
regional plants are leading materials 
handling facilities in the region, 
specializing in producing asphalt for 
our jobs and customers. By producing 
only as much material as required, 
we have the f lexibility needed for 
complex construction projects. 

With state-of-the-art facilities 
that provide the highest quality 
construction aggregates in 
the market, we guarantee the 
quality production and timely 
delivery to our clients. Our 
rail offloading expansion to our 
Farmingdale facility drastically 
improves aggregate delivery and 
reduces the impact of fuel, tolls, and 
other trucking costs. 

•   Hot Mix Asphalt
•    Recycled Asphalt 
Pavement (RAP)

•   Stone, Sand, Clean Fill
•    Recycling-Concrete/
Brick/Clean Fill/
Asphalt

•    Recycling of 
Contaminated Soils

Hoboken Block 110 Remediation
Hoboken, NJ



Quality, Flexibility & 
Schedule

Our commitment to quality 
starts at our plants. We manage 
everything that goes on at our sites, 
including the materials we use. Our 
regional plants are leading materials 
handling facilities in the region, 
specializing in producing asphalt for 
our jobs and customers. By producing 
only as much material as required, 
we have the f lexibility needed for 
complex construction projects. 

With state-of-the-art facilities 
that provide the highest quality 
construction aggregates in 
the market, we guarantee the 
quality production and timely 
delivery to our clients. Our 
rail offloading expansion to our 
Farmingdale facility drastically 
improves aggregate delivery and 
reduces the impact of fuel, tolls, and 
other trucking costs. 

•   Hot Mix Asphalt
•    Recycled Asphalt 
Pavement (RAP)

•   Stone, Sand, Clean Fill
•    Recycling-Concrete/
Brick/Clean Fill/
Asphalt

•    Recycling of 
Contaminated Soils

Hoboken Block 110 Remediation
Hoboken, NJRemediating Industrial 

Contamination for a 
Greener Future

It is a fact: the New York 
metropolitan area is running 
out of greenfield properties. 
Most construction and development 
projects in the future are likely to 
require some level of environmental 
remediation. In 1991, we recognized 
these changes and have been at the 
forefront of this new direction in 
construction. Converting unusable 
land into a highly desirable property 
is complicated. Environmental 
remediation demands expertise.

We have become an expert in 
environmental remediation by using 
both industry standards as well as 
developing our own site-specific 
techniques. No single function is more 
important to construction today. No 
company integrates Environmental 
with Civil better than us.

•     Efficient Delivery of 
New Infrastructure 
in Contaminated 
Environments

•    Qualified Expertise in 
Treatment Systems for 
Large Scale Clean-Ups

•    Experts in Soil 
and Contaminant 
Stabilization and 
Applications for Various 
Redevelopments 

•    Wetland Restorations 
and Storm Water 
Systems to Improve 
Water Quality

Long Island Expressway
Islandia, NY



Remediating Industrial 
Contamination for a 
Greener Future

It is a fact: the New York 
metropolitan area is running 
out of greenfield properties. 
Most construction and development 
projects in the future are likely to 
require some level of environmental 
remediation. In 1991, we recognized 
these changes and have been at the 
forefront of this new direction in 
construction. Converting unusable 
land into a highly desirable property 
is complicated. Environmental 
remediation demands expertise.

We have become an expert in 
environmental remediation by using 
both industry standards as well as 
developing our own site-specific 
techniques. No single function is more 
important to construction today. No 
company integrates Environmental 
with Civil better than us.
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New Infrastructure 
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Environments
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Large Scale Clean-Ups
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and Contaminant 
Stabilization and 
Applications for Various 
Redevelopments 

•    Wetland Restorations 
and Storm Water 
Systems to Improve 
Water Quality

Long Island Expressway
Islandia, NYExperience & Latest 

Technology

We believe, that over 45 years 
of paving qualifies us as 
experts. Since 1971, we have been 
providing top quality paving services 
throughout the Tri-State area. From 
resurfacing most of Long Island’s 
main thoroughfares including the 
Long Island Expressway, to paving 
commercial parking lots, our 
knowledge and experience in paving 
are the keys to our success.

We not only break ground 
to maintain our country’s 
infrastructure, but we break 
ground in new technology. The 
quality and workmanship of our 
Paving division is at the forefront 
of the industry. Our equipment is 
constantly updated with the newest 
and latest technology including 
intelligent compaction for density and 
3D GPS systems for our pavers.

•    Highways
•    Airport Runways
•    Municipal Roadways
•    Parking Lots 

Rockefeller University
New York, NY



Experience & Latest 
Technology

We believe, that over 45 years 
of paving qualifies us as 
experts. Since 1971, we have been 
providing top quality paving services 
throughout the Tri-State area. From 
resurfacing most of Long Island’s 
main thoroughfares including the 
Long Island Expressway, to paving 
commercial parking lots, our 
knowledge and experience in paving 
are the keys to our success.

We not only break ground 
to maintain our country’s 
infrastructure, but we break 
ground in new technology. The 
quality and workmanship of our 
Paving division is at the forefront 
of the industry. Our equipment is 
constantly updated with the newest 
and latest technology including 
intelligent compaction for density and 
3D GPS systems for our pavers.

•    Highways
•    Airport Runways
•    Municipal Roadways
•    Parking Lots 

Rockefeller University
New York, NYIntegrated Engineered 

Solutions

We have been installing 
foundation support systems 
for over 40 years. Starting with 
innovative vibration hammer 
techniques in 1970, we have 
always strived for obtaining, 
understanding, and perfecting the 
latest technology. Our forward-
thinking mindset combined with a 
staff of talented professional engineers 
and managers enables us to solve 
complex foundation problems that our 
competitors cannot.

•    Steel Sheet Piling
•    Drilled CFA Piles
•    Mini/Micropiles
•    Deep Soil Mixing
•    Slurry Walls
•    Timber Piles
•    Underpinning
•    Tie-backs
•    Driven H Piles
•    Drilled Caissons
•    Marine Bulkheads
•    Noise Wall Foundations
•    Low Vibration 
Applications

Con Edison
Westchester, NY



Integrated Engineered 
Solutions

We have been installing 
foundation support systems 
for over 40 years. Starting with 
innovative vibration hammer 
techniques in 1970, we have 
always strived for obtaining, 
understanding, and perfecting the 
latest technology. Our forward-
thinking mindset combined with a 
staff of talented professional engineers 
and managers enables us to solve 
complex foundation problems that our 
competitors cannot.

•    Steel Sheet Piling
•    Drilled CFA Piles
•    Mini/Micropiles
•    Deep Soil Mixing
•    Slurry Walls
•    Timber Piles
•    Underpinning
•    Tie-backs
•    Driven H Piles
•    Drilled Caissons
•    Marine Bulkheads
•    Noise Wall Foundations
•    Low Vibration 
Applications

Con Edison
Westchester, NYSafety, Schedule & Skill Set

We are a full-service utility 
contractor in the natural gas 
transmission and distribution 
industry as well as the 
telecommunications industry. 
Our experienced team focuses on 
delivering cost-effective solutions, 
bringing projects in safely, on time, 
and on budget.

Our repeat client base is built on an 
experienced management team 
with specific skill sets working 
throughout the natural gas and 
telecommunications industries. Our 
team can handle the challenges and 
obstacles by focusing on industry-
specific tasks. The knowledge gained 
from each project helps us reduce 
costs in the future with better 
planning and awareness of what 
challenges may arise.

Affiliations and Certifications: 
Members of the Northeast Gas 
Association (NGA), our employees 
are OSHA certified, confined space 
trained, and Gas Operator Qualified 
through the NGA and Con Edison. 

•    Electrical Infrastructure
•    Telecommunications
•    Natural Gas  
Main/Services/Leaks

Development & 
Consulting

Garvies Point Site Plan
Glen Cove, NY
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Development & 
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Garvies Point Site Plan
Glen Cove, NY

Construction of suburbia on 
Long Island. J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
hauls brick for new homes for 
returning GI’s.

MILESTONES

 -  January 30, 1946: 
J.D. Posillico, Inc. is started by 
Joseph D. Posillico, Sr., Americo 
Posillico and Virginia Seeley.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. expands 
with providing subcontractor 
site construction services for 
residential developments.

MILESTONES

 -  Dominic and Mario Posillico 
join the fi rm in 1956.
 -  Dominic Posillico heads the 
estimating and engineering 
departments. He is instrumental 
in developing an innovative 
steel sheeting system for the 
installation of deep drainage 
and sewer systems.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. expands 
subcontracting capacity 
for new roads and schools 
being built for the � rst baby 
boomers.

MILESTONES

 -  Mario A. Posillico returns in 
1960—after three years in 
the U.S. Navy—and begins 
reshaping the company into a 
major general contractor. He 
is instrumental in promoting 
public works projects for local 
and state governments.

 -  1963 Charles Gargano, P.E. 
joins the fi rm, transforming J.D. 
Posillico, Inc. fi eld operations 
into one of the best on Long 
Island.

 -  Joseph D. Posillico, Jr. joins 
the fi rm in 1965 and guides 
the company expansion into 
the asphalt business and the 
installation of deep drainage 
and sewer systems.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. and Posillico 
Bros. Asphalt Co. expand their 
capacity in road and bridge 
construction during NYSDOT 
major highway and bridge 
reconstruction programs. J.D. 
Posillico, Inc. performs major 
Long Island land� ll closures.

MILESTONES

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. focuses 
on major New York State 
road construction and bridge 
initiatives.

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. initiates 
construction on the 
Meadowbrook and Northern 
State Parkways.

 -  Construction of the Nassau 
Expressway.

 -  Major rehabilitation of the 
Southern State Parkway.

 -  Joseph D. Posillico, Sr., 
Dominic Posillico and Virginia 
Seeley retire.

 -  Charles Gargano leaves for 
government service.

 -  Third generation of Posillico 
family completes engineering 
degrees and begins reshaping 
the future of Posillico.

Posillico Bros. Asphalt Co., LLC 
and Blue Water Environmental, 
Inc. team up to develop 
innovative soil and asphalt 
recycling technologies in 
response to limited disposal 
space created by the push to 
close Long Island land� lls.

MILESTONES

 -  1991 Blue Water 
Environmental, Inc. is formed.
 -  1992 J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
constructs the fi rst HOV project 
on the Long Island Expressway.
 -  1992 Posillico Bros. Asphalt 
Co., LLC receives one of New 
York State’s fi rst petroleum 
contaminated soil recycling 
permits.
 -  1996 J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
celebrates 50 years in business.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. becomes a 
general contractor performing 
bridgework, roadwork and 
becomes a major builder of 
sewer infrastructure for Nassau 
and Suffolk Counties.

MILESTONES

 -  1971 Posillico Bros. Asphalt 
Co. is formed and the plant is 
erected in Farmingdale, NY.

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. innovatively 
implements the use of vibratory 
steel sheeting and large scale 
dewatering for sewer programs 
in Nassau and Suffolk Counties, 
saving millions of taxpayer 
dollars.

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. completes 
over $500 million in sewer 
infrastructure.

Faced with new challenges of an 
aging suburbia, Posillico looks to 
develop an integrated construction 
approach to solving regional 
transportation, environmental and 
developmental problems.

MILESTONES

 -  Posillico’s corporate offi ce relocates, 
providing nearly 20,000 sq. ft. state-of-
the art offi ce and training space.
 -  Posillico Civil, Inc. wins a $360 
million JV project with Tully 
Construction to reconstruct the Belt 
Pkwy. 
 -  Posillico Development, LLC embarks 
on its fi rst “Brownfi eld Project.”
 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. completes last two 
HOV expansion projects capping a 
$600+ million portion of a $1 billion 
HOV construction program.
 -  Leadership and project management 
training is implemented to elevate 
standards of excellence across all 
business units.
 -  Business units unite within one 
organization, one brand, “Posillico.”

J.D. Posillico, Inc. is now 
Posillico Civil, Inc.

Posillico Bros. Asphalt Co., LLC is now 
Posillico Materials, LLC

Blue Water Environmental, Inc. is now 
Posillico Environmental, Inc.

Piles, Drilling & Underground Solutions 
is now Posillico Drilling, Inc.

Metron Development Service, LLC is 
now Posillico Consulting, LLC

Posillico Development Company, LLC is 
now Posillico Development, LLC

Posillico continues to grow and approach 
each challenge as a new opportunity. Our 
mission statement of completing projects 
safely and on time continues to propel us 
into the future by embracing Design-Build 
and Value Engineering as a way to meet the 
challenges of large-scale public works.

MILESTONES

 -  2010 Posillico’s fourth generation begins 
working at the company.
 -  2013 Posillico is awarded its fi rst design-build 
project; NYSDOT Design-Build Accelerated 
Bridge Program.
 -  2013 Posillico Materials, LLC unveils its new 
rail siding and materials transfer depot.
 -  2014 Posillico Civil, Inc. completes its 
Replacement of Belt Parkway Bridges project 
for $364 million. 
 -  2015 Posillico acquires a full-service utility 
contractor now known as Northeast Utilities to 
capture a new market.
 -  2016 Posillico Civil, Inc. celebrates its 70th 
year, Posillico Materials, LLC celebrates its 
45th year and Posillico Environmental, Inc. 
celebrates its 25th year.
 -  2017 Posillico opens a second asphalt plant, 
Posillico Materials East, LLC, located in 
Holtsville, NY.
 -  2017 Posillico and its partners break ground 
at Garvies Point in Glen Cove, NY; a 27 acre 
mixed used land reclamation project. 

Concept to Concrete

Brownfield sites, waterfront 
revitalization, and energy 
efficient housing—we have done 
it all. As part of our commitment 
to improving life in the Tri-State 
region, we have put environmentally 
compromised land to productive reuse 
instead of developing on untouched 
land.

As a developer, we are able to take 
advantage of all of our business 
units to solve complex construction 
problems. Our various business units 
merge to provide a seasoned line-up  
of experts, who get the job done 
safely, on time and on budget. 

We also offer the following 
consulting services:

•    Evaluation of Critical 
Infrastructure

•    Permit Management
•    Pre-construction 3D 
Scanning

•    Environmental 
Strategies

•    Owner Representation 
and Project 
Management

This is what makes us different. 
This is what makes us Posillico.

Development & 
Consulting

The Posillico Family

For four generations, Posillico has combined an ironclad commitment to quality and 
performance with an unequaled family work ethic, making the company a leader in 
public and private work projects. 

Incorporated in 1946 under the presidency of Joseph D. Posillico, Sr. as a small trucking 
contractor, with five employees, the company has grown to become one of the  
top construction firms in New York. We serve the entire Tri-State area and employ 
hundreds of people.

The culture of the company has been of great importance from the beginning. The 
natural “family” atmosphere that Posillico began with has extended to incorporate all 
those who choose to work here.  Many of our employees have been with us for 30 or 40 
years and some families are on their 3rd generation. 

History & Culture



Main Office
1750 New Highway 
Farmingdale, NY 11735
P: 631.249.1872
F: 631.249.8124
www.posillicoinc.com

Safety
“At Posillico, we believe that safety requires open communication, accountability,  

ownership, and a personal commitment by members of the organization.  
Nothing is more important than maintaining an injury and incident free workplace.” 

- Joseph K. Posillico, President/CEO, 2017

We strive to be the best in our business, and we have enjoyed success and sustainability due to the  
hard work and dedication of the people within our organization, who have been and continue to  

be our most valuable and important resource.

Our corporate health and safety program reflects our commitment to ensuring safe work sites and the safety of 
our workers and subcontractors. We work hard to ensure a safety culture that addresses and integrates safety into 

everything that we do. From pre-construction, through pre-planning and implementation, we believe that  
a well-trained, informed and aware organization translates into safe work and projects built on time and on budget.  

We focus on preventing loss, incidents, and injuries before they occur, and we provide health and safety training and 
mentoring programs for all new employees and on-going training to our managers and crews. Regular training and 
constant reinforcement gives all of our employees the knowledge to identify and the authority to correct hazardous 

situations before accidents happen. Everyone working on our construction sites or in our facilities can hit the  
“Stop Button” when unsafe conditions exist.

We strive to continuously improve and impart best practices to all of our employees and subcontractors.  
Providing a safe working environment ensures that we will continue to set the standard for our industry.

Our dedicated employees are vigilant in training. They are aware of and apply basic safety principals.  
Teamwork and awareness make our construction sites and our people safe.

Construction of suburbia on 
Long Island. J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
hauls brick for new homes for 
returning GI’s.
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J.D. Posillico, Inc. is started by 
Joseph D. Posillico, Sr., Americo 
Posillico and Virginia Seeley.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. expands 
with providing subcontractor 
site construction services for 
residential developments.

MILESTONES

 -  Dominic and Mario Posillico 
join the � rm in 1956.

 -  Dominic Posillico heads the 
estimating and engineering 
departments. He is instrumental 
in developing an innovative 
steel sheeting system for the 
installation of deep drainage 
and sewer systems.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. expands 
subcontracting capacity 
for new roads and schools 
being built for the � rst baby 
boomers.

MILESTONES

 -  Mario A. Posillico returns in 
1960—after three years in 
the U.S. Navy—and begins 
reshaping the company into a 
major general contractor. He 
is instrumental in promoting 
public works projects for local 
and state governments.
 -  1963 Charles Gargano, P.E. 
joins the � rm, transforming J.D. 
Posillico, Inc. � eld operations 
into one of the best on Long 
Island.
 -  Joseph D. Posillico, Jr. joins 
the � rm in 1965 and guides 
the company expansion into 
the asphalt business and the 
installation of deep drainage 
and sewer systems.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. and Posillico 
Bros. Asphalt Co. expand their 
capacity in road and bridge 
construction during NYSDOT 
major highway and bridge 
reconstruction programs. J.D. 
Posillico, Inc. performs major 
Long Island land� ll closures.

MILESTONES

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. focuses 
on major New York State 
road construction and bridge 
initiatives.

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. initiates 
construction on the 
Meadowbrook and Northern 
State Parkways.

 -  Construction of the Nassau 
Expressway.

 -  Major rehabilitation of the 
Southern State Parkway.

 -  Joseph D. Posillico, Sr., 
Dominic Posillico and Virginia 
Seeley retire.

 -  Charles Gargano leaves for 
government service.

 -  Third generation of Posillico 
family completes engineering 
degrees and begins reshaping 
the future of Posillico.

Posillico Bros. Asphalt Co., LLC 
and Blue Water Environmental, 
Inc. team up to develop 
innovative soil and asphalt 
recycling technologies in 
response to limited disposal 
space created by the push to 
close Long Island land� lls.

MILESTONES

 -  1991 Blue Water 
Environmental, Inc. is formed.

 -  1992 J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
constructs the � rst HOV project 
on the Long Island Expressway.

 -  1992 Posillico Bros. Asphalt 
Co., LLC receives one of New 
York State’s � rst petroleum 
contaminated soil recycling 
permits.

 -  1996 J.D. Posillico, Inc. 
celebrates 50 years in business.

J.D. Posillico, Inc. becomes a 
general contractor performing 
bridgework, roadwork and 
becomes a major builder of 
sewer infrastructure for Nassau 
and Suffolk Counties.

MILESTONES

 -  1971 Posillico Bros. Asphalt 
Co. is formed and the plant is 
erected in Farmingdale, NY.
 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. innovatively 
implements the use of vibratory 
steel sheeting and large scale 
dewatering for sewer programs 
in Nassau and Suffolk Counties, 
saving millions of taxpayer 
dollars.
 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. completes 
over $500 million in sewer 
infrastructure.

Faced with new challenges of an 
aging suburbia, Posillico looks to 
develop an integrated construction 
approach to solving regional 
transportation, environmental and 
developmental problems.

MILESTONES

 -  Posillico’s corporate of� ce relocates, 
providing nearly 20,000 sq. ft. state-of-
the art of� ce and training space.

 -  Posillico Civil, Inc. wins a $360 
million JV project with Tully 
Construction to reconstruct the Belt 
Pkwy. 

 -  Posillico Development, LLC embarks 
on its � rst “Brown� eld Project.”

 -  J.D. Posillico, Inc. completes last two 
HOV expansion projects capping a 
$600+ million portion of a $1 billion 
HOV construction program.

 -  Leadership and project management 
training is implemented to elevate 
standards of excellence across all 
business units.

 -  Business units unite within one 
organization, one brand, “Posillico.”

J.D. Posillico, Inc. is now 
Posillico Civil, Inc.

Posillico Bros. Asphalt Co., LLC is now 
Posillico Materials, LLC

Blue Water Environmental, Inc. is now 
Posillico Environmental, Inc.

Piles, Drilling & Underground Solutions 
is now Posillico Drilling, Inc.

Metron Development Service, LLC is 
now Posillico Consulting, LLC

Posillico Development Company, LLC is 
now Posillico Development, LLC

Posillico continues to grow and approach 
each challenge as a new opportunity. Our 
mission statement of completing projects 
safely and on time continues to propel us 
into the future by embracing Design-Build 
and Value Engineering as a way to meet the 
challenges of large-scale public works.

MILESTONES

 -  2010 Posillico’s fourth generation begins 
working at the company.
 -  2013 Posillico is awarded its � rst design-build 
project; NYSDOT Design-Build Accelerated 
Bridge Program.
 -  2013 Posillico Materials, LLC unveils its new 
rail siding and materials transfer depot.
 -  2014 Posillico Civil, Inc. completes its 
Replacement of Belt Parkway Bridges project 
for $364 million. 
 -  2015 Posillico acquires a full-service utility 
contractor now known as Northeast Utilities to 
capture a new market.
 -  2016 Posillico Civil, Inc. celebrates its 70th 
year, Posillico Materials, LLC celebrates its 
45th year and Posillico Environmental, Inc. 
celebrates its 25th year.
 -  2017 Posillico opens a second asphalt plant, 
Posillico Materials East, LLC, located in 
Holtsville, NY.
 -  2017 Posillico and its partners break ground 
at Garvies Point in Glen Cove, NY; a 27 acre 
mixed used land reclamation project. 
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Concept to Concrete

Brownfield sites, waterfront 
revitalization, and energy 
efficient housing—we have done 
it all. As part of our commitment 
to improving life in the Tri-State 
region, we have put environmentally 
compromised land to productive reuse 
instead of developing on untouched 
land.

As a developer, we are able to take 
advantage of all of our business 
units to solve complex construction 
problems. Our various business units 
merge to provide a seasoned line-up  
of experts, who get the job done 
safely, on time and on budget. 

We also offer the following 
consulting services:

•    Evaluation of Critical 
Infrastructure

•    Permit Management
•    Pre-construction 3D 
Scanning

•    Environmental 
Strategies

•    Owner Representation 
and Project 
Management

This is what makes us different. 
This is what makes us Posillico.

Development & 
Consulting

The Posillico Family

For four generations, Posillico has combined an ironclad commitment to quality and 
performance with an unequaled family work ethic, making the company a leader in 
public and private work projects. 

Incorporated in 1946 under the presidency of Joseph D. Posillico, Sr. as a small trucking 
contractor, with five employees, the company has grown to become one of the  
top construction firms in New York. We serve the entire Tri-State area and employ 
hundreds of people.

The culture of the company has been of great importance from the beginning. The 
natural “family” atmosphere that Posillico began with has extended to incorporate all 
those who choose to work here.  Many of our employees have been with us for 30 or 40 
years and some families are on their 3rd generation. 

History & Culture



 www.posillicoinc.com

MTA Emergency Vent Plant
Long Island City, NY





Overview

• Founded in 1946 with more than 70 years of experience
• Fourth generation family owned
• Provides integrated services of civil, materials, 

environmental, paving, drilling, utilities, development and 
consulting

• Self perform our work
• Full suite of construction equipment 
• Comprehensive in-house training programs
• Industry leaders in Safety with an EMR of 0.62 (2018)

• Self insured rates can be as low as 3%



Mission

Posillico is dedicated to setting the standard for 
excellence in the construction industry relative to: 
infrastructure, quality of life, and making a 
difference by using innovation and solid 
relationships at all levels.

We know how to solve construction problems no 
matter the difficulty; completing all projects 
safely, on time, on target, and on budget.



Vision

We at Posillico wish to be the employer and 
organization of choice in each of the markets 
we serve.



Guiding Principals and Values

• Caring & Commitment: We respect our customers and 
colleagues through kindness, empathy and dedication.

• Open-Mindedness & Willingness to Learn: We are 
considerate of diverse ideas and value opportunities to 
learn, grow and share with others.

• Maturity & Self-Discipline: We practice emotional self-
regulation and strong work ethics.

• Ethics: We uphold our professional integrity, regulatory 
and moral responsibilities as we do business.

• Collaboration: We uphold productive working 
relationships with our customers and colleagues to 
achieve our goals.

• Accountability: We dependably and reliably honor our 
commitments.



Core Competencies

• Teamwork

• Communication

• Self-Regulation

• Empathy

• Motivation for Ourselves and the 
Company



Our Divisions 

• Drilling
• Environmental 
• Municipal
• NYC Civil 
• Paving 
• Utilities
• Wastewater
• Materials

• Posillico Materials
• Con-Strux
• P Park – Class B



Drilling 

• Steel Sheet Piling

• Drilled CFA Piles

• Mini/Micropiles

• Deep Soil Mixing

• Slurry Walls

• Secant Walls

• Timber Piles

• Underpinning

• Tie-backs

• Driven H Piles

• Drilled Caissons up to 54”

• Drilled Shafts up to 72”

• Marine Bulkheads

• Noise Wall Foundations

• Low Vibration Applications

• Rock Anchors

• Grouting



Drilling

• Complicated with potential Value 
Engineering

• Interaction with Public Agency (MTA, 
LIRR, Port Authority, Amtrack, etc.)

• Manhattan / Bronx / Brooklyn / Queens

• Currently Operate efficiently at $25-$35 
Million/year

• $1-15 million / 3 month duration 
for single project

• Target large public drill projects to JV







Environmental

• Efficient Delivery of New Infrastructure 
in Contaminated Environments

• Qualified Expertise in Treatment 
Systems for Large Scale Clean Ups

• Experts in Soil and Contaminant 
Stabilization and Applications for 
Various Redevelopment Opportunities

• Wetland Restorations and Storm Water 
Systems to Improve Water Quality



Environmental

• Safety coordination and monitoring

• Excavation and disposal of 
contaminated soil 

• Waste management

• Soil sampling, disposal assessment and 
approvals

• Dewatering, treatment and disposal of 
contaminated water

• Temporary enclosures operating 
negative pressure atmospheres

• Innovative ideas to solve complex work 
issues and problems

• Civil construction disciplines: support of 
excavation, excavation, backfill, 
restoration (ie: paving, concrete, 
landscaping)





Municipal

• We successfully perform design-build 
projects with innovation, collaboration 
and Teamwork.  

• NYC

• Long Island

• Bridges and Highways

• Design build 



NYC Civil

• Soil Excavation

• Rock Removal

• Design, Engineering and Construction 
of Support of Excavation and 
Underpinning Systems

• Deep Foundations

• Dewatering

• Foundations

• Waterproofing

• Self performing GC for Private and 
Public Clients

• Subgrade to Sidewalk



NYC Civil 

• Complicated with potential Value 
Engineering

• Interaction with Public Agency (MTA, 
LIRR, Port Authority, Amtrack, etc.)

• Manhattan / Bronx / Brooklyn / 
Queens / Staten Island

• Currently Operate efficiently at $75-
$90 Million/year

• $15-30 million / 10-16 months 
duration for-

single project

• Prevailing wage / PLA

• Self-insured projects







Paving 

• Highways

• Airport Runways

• Municipal Roadways

• Parking lots 

• Intelligent compaction for density 
and 3D GPS systems 



Utilities

• Electrical Substation Infrastructure

• Telecommunications Infrastructure

• Natural Gas Main/Services/Leaks

• Transmission and Distribution Gas 
Mains

• Commercial and residential Gas 
Services



Utilities

• 15-20 crews of certified Gas 
mechanics

• Connecticut - Eversource

• Long island & NYC
• Consolidated Edison

• Verizon

• National Grid

• PSEG Long Island







Wastewater Treatment

• Wastewater Treatment Plants

• Pump Stations

• Sanitary Support Buildings and 
Equipment

• Force Mains and Sanitary Piping







Materials 

• 2 Asphalt Plants -LI

• 3 Concrete Recycling Facilities - LI

• 1 Disposal and Recycling Facility - NJ



Material Plants

• ASPHALT PRODUCTION:
• Hot Mix Asphalt

• Recycled Asphalt Pavement (RAP)

• RAIL OFFLOADING

• MATERIAL PRODUCTION
• Stone, Sand, Clean Fill 

• Recycling-Concrete/ Brick/Asphalt/Clean 
Fill

• RECYCLING OF CONTAMINATED SOIL





PM Farmingdale Facility



PME Holtsville Facility



Con-Strux

Con-Strux Recycling Aggregate Division is 
dedicated to setting the standard for 
excellence in the recycling industry relative 
to: demolished concrete, masonry, and 
asphalt: improving quality of life by making 
a difference through conservation and 
material re-use through innovation and 
solid relationships at all levels and promote 
Green Building.

Lindenhurst

Westbury

Holtsville

Coming soon: Inwood, Farmingdale



Con-Strux





PPark NJ

• P.Park is an 80 acre Disposal and Recycling 
Facility 

• P.Park Takes in NJ residential Clean Fill and 
Urban Fill (soil w/ less than 30% 
Brick/Block/Concrete), Rock, Concrete, 
Brick/Block/Concrete (Comingled), Brick, and 
Asphalt from our customers

• P.Park Recycles Materials Inbound to Produce 
and Sell outbound materials of stone, tested 
clean fill, DGA, and engineered fill, and 
Recycled Concrete products.

• P.Park is located in Northern New Jersey (13 
Miles from the George Washington Bridge).

• P.Park is open Monday – Friday 7 AM – 4 PM 
and Saturdays 8 AM – 4PM (When Scheduled) 





PPark NJ

• INBOUND:

Clean Fill

Urban Fill 

Rock

Concrete mixed material

Brick

• OUTBOUND:

Clean Tested Fill

Crushed Rock

Stone Screenings



For more information regarding 
Design-Build, contact:

Paul Casazza, DBIA
Municipal Operations Manager
Phone: (631) 390-5791
Email: pecasazza@posillicoinc.com

Carleen King, Assoc. DBIA 
Phone: (631) 390-5736
Email: cking@posillicoinc.com

posillicoinc.com

Posillico Offices

Posillico Affiliates

Local Resources

NYSDOT Wellwood Avenue over Route 27
ASCE LI: 2018 Project of the Year - Highways

AGC NY: 2017 Jeffrey J. Zogg Build NY Award

NYSDOT Route 347, Phase III
NYSSPE LI: 2018 Outstanding Engineering Achievement Award

NYSDOT Accelerated Bridge Rehabilitation
ASCE LI: 2014 Project of the Year - Bridges

AGC NY: 2013 Excellence in Partnering Award

NYSDOT Route 347, Phase I 
ACEC: 2017 Engineering Excellence Gold Award

ASCE LI: 2016 Project of the Year - Highways

LIRR Second Track, Phase I
ASCE LI: 2017 Design-Build Award

LIRR Ellison Avenue Bridge Replacement 
ACEC: 2017 Excellence in Engineering Platinum 

Award - Category C: Structural Systems

ASCE LI: 2016 Project of the Year - Bridges

Design-Build Project Awards

Design-Build



BEST VALUE PRACTICES

Ronkonkoma Branch 
Second Track, Phase II

Construction of a second track 
from Central Islip to Farmingdale 
Station including the building of 
retaining walls and grading for 
track bed and installation of cable 
troughs for the placement of LIRR 
signal cables and wiring. Work 
was completed in an accelerated 
17 month schedule allowing for 
the placement of the new second 
track to be completed by fall 2018.  

Ronkonkoma Branch 
Second Track, Phase I

Installation of a second track 
running parallel to the existing 
Ronkonkoma Branch rail from 
Ronkonkoma Station to a point west 
of the Central Islip Station, a total of 
5.5 miles.  Construction operations 
included building of modular block 
and soldier pile with panel retaining 
walls, grading, placing and 
compacting sub-ballast, relocating 
a pedestrian bridge, and rebuilding 
four grade crossings to create 
the roadway for the second track.

Ellison Avenue Bridge 
Replacement

The team coordinated and executed 
a complete bridge replacement 
in a residential community, which 
required close coordination with the 
Village of Westbury and adequate 
advanced notification to residents 
affected by construction. Work 
was planned on weekdays during 
daytime hours to minimize impact 
to adjacent residences with only 
two LIRR weekend track outages.  

Wellwood Avenue Bridge 
over Route 27

This project provided for the 
replacement of the aluminum 
bridge on Wellwood Avenue 
over Route 27, an experimental 
bridge built over 50 years ago. 
The four-span aluminum bridge 
was replaced with a two-span 
adjacent prestressed box beam 
bridge supported on concrete stub 
abutments behind mechanically 
stabilized earth system walls 
and a concrete stem pier.

NY Route 347, 
Phase III

Improvements & reconstruction 
of Rte 347 from Terry Road 
to Gibbs Pond Road including 
highway widening to 3 lanes in 
each direction, raised landscaped 
medians, continuous sidewalks 
along the north side and a 
shared use path for bicycles 
and pedestrians along the south 
side. Other rehabilitations include 
pavement reconstruction, a positive 
drainage system, landscaping, bus 
shelters and utility relocations.

Wreck Lead Submarine 
Cable Replacement

Project involved the replacement of 
power, signal and communications 
submarine cables located across 
Reynolds Channel between 
Long Beach and Island Park.  
Restoration was necessary as a 
direct result of damage caused 
to LIRR’s infrastructure from 
Superstorm Sandy. The Long 
Beach branch was one of the 
four key areas on LIRR’s property 
severely damaged by the storm. 

Accelerated Bridge 
Replacement

Rehabilitation of six bridges at 
various locations in Nassau and 
Suffolk Counties.  Each project 
site included complete bridge 
deck replacement, new bridge 
sidewalks and railing, approach 
slabs, bridge joints, and repairs 
to the bearings and pedestals.  
This was a design-build project, 
selected by best-value combining 
price and technical approach.  

NY Route 347, 
Phase I

Project to rehabilitate a mile of 
Route 347 and add an additional
lane in each direction. Work included 
new drainage, sound walls, median
barrier, landscaping, and paving.
This project has improved safety 
and mobility by transforming 
Route 347 into a greenway for
Evergreen Status through the 
NYSDOT GreenLites program.

PRINCIPLES OF DESIGN-BUILD

Posillico prides itself on industry education and best practices. Many of our DB Team members are DBIA Certified 
Professionals dedicated to maintaining our relevance in the market.
 

1. All Design-Build Team members should be educated and trained in the Design-Build process, and be knowledgeable of
the differences between Design-Build and other delivery systems.

2. The DB Team should establish logistics and infrastructure to support integrated project delivery.

3. The DB Team, at the outset of the project, should establish processes to facilitate timely and effective communication,
collaboration, and issue resolution.

4. The DB Team should focus on the design management and commissioning/turnover processes and ensure that there is
alignment among the team as to how to execute these processes.

*Design-Build Institute of America, 2014

Together Employees Accomplish More. Health and safety of the local communities and our workers is our highest priority. 
Posillico works hard to maintain its safety culture and outstanding record of accomplishment. Our project supervisors are
keenly aware of the discipline required to perform high profile projects in a low profile, non-disruptive manner, safely and on 
time. Our program begins with the notion that safety begins with teamwork. 

Community outreach and communication avenues provide stakeholders with the opportunity to communicate 
their concerns and interests and are key to a project’s success. Obtaining feedback from and initiating a two-
way dialogue with stakeholders before construction begins and through project completion is crucial to working 
with the community and reducing the risk of costly delays from community contention or negative press. These
stakeholders include, but are not limited to, civic groups, emergency services, unions, local businesses, and Minority 
(MBE), Women (WBE), Disadvantaged (DBE), and Service Disabled Veteran (SDVOB) Owned Businesses.

       Safety

     Best Practices*

       Community Outreach

Posillico is experienced in partnering for Design-Build (DB)
success. We promote quality through continuous improvement and 
innovation during all stages of design and construction. We pride 
ourselves in Employing Design-Build Principles of Partnering: 
design excellence, integrated project delivery and cohesive 
organizational development that allows our DB Team to maximize 
benefits and optimize solutions for public and private owners; for all 
stakeholders. 

Our specialized proven procedures, methodology and management 
systems have been successful since our completion of Long Island’s 
first NYSDOT DB Project in 2006. This project won multiple awards 
for partnering (Accelerated Bridge Project DB 2014 Project of the 
Year Award from ASCE LI and the 2013 Excellence in Partnering 
Award from AGC NYS). In the twelve years since, we have been 
awarded 10 DB Projects (from multiple owners) with a total value 
exceeding over $660 Million dollars. Several of these projects have 
also received awards, including the 2017 Jeffrey J. Zogg Build 
New York Award for DB Services for Wellwood Avenue over Route 
27 and the 2017 ASCE LI DB Project of the Year Award for DB 
Services for the New Second Track on Main Line Ronkonkoma 
Branch, Phase I, as well as multiple other ACE Industry awards.

Posillico provides an unparalleled commitment to project quality
assurance/quality control from executive leadership, through to 
management and all levels of project delivery. Our detailed QA/
QC procedures have been applied successfully to a large number 
of complex projects including many owned by the NYSDOT, MTA, 
LIRR, and NYCT. 

Critical to DB, Posillico’s Health and Safety Department has
established and maintained a safe working environment through 
training, communication, and execution. They continually support 
the education, training, and assessment of activities that are 
required to help us identify and eliminate health and safety risks. 

Posillico facilitates best-value DB project delivery by creating
a unified flow of work through organizational development, 
stakeholder collaboration and optimizing benefits and solutions for 
public and private owners. Our cost-effective solutions maximize 
the lifetime of those critical public and private infrastructure projects:

• Bridges
• Roadways
• Structural (Drilling & Excavation)
• Transit
• Waste Water

Posillico has a stalwart commitment to project success. Our record of 
communicating with all stakeholders in a cooperative and functional 
manner has resulted in seventy-two years of delivering many large 
and highly complex civil construction projects safely, on-time and 
within budget to public agencies and private owners in the Greater 
NYC Metro Area. Posillico’s home offices are in Farmingdale,
however, we also have offices and a yard in College Point, and an 
office in Valley Cottage where we offer commercial, industrial, and 
municipal underground utility services. Posillico also has offices
and resources in Jersey City and Prospect Park, New Jersey.

Posillico is dedicated to setting the standard for excellence in
the construction industry relative to: infrastructure, environment, 
quality of life, and making a difference through innovation and 
solid relationships at all levels. We Know How to solve complex
construction problems, completing all projects safely, on time, on 
target, and on budget. 

+

    Vision - Mission - Core Values
Vision: To be the employer and organization of choice in each of the markets we serve.
Mission: Posillico is the company which knows how to solve complex construction problems, completing all projects safely,
on time, on target, and on budget. 
Core Values: All of our employees, in each of our companies, are expected to demonstrate the following core values in each
of their daily interactions with others, inside and outside of the company:

Caring and Committed           Open Minded and Teachable           Accountable
     Mature and Self-Disciplined Ethical Innovative/Collaborative



State of New York 

Department of State 
} ss: 

I hereby certify, that the Certificate of Incorporation of POSILLICO 

CIVIL, INC.  was filed on 02/04/1946, under the name of J. D. POSILLICO, 

INC., fixing the duration as perpetual, and that a diligent examination 

has been made of the Corporate index for documents filed with this 

Department for a certificate, order, or record of a dissolution, and upon 

such examination, no such certificate, order or record has been found, 

and that so far as indicated by the records of this Department, such 

corporation is an existing corporation. 

A Certificate of Amendment J. D. POSILLICO, INC., changing its name to 

POSILLICO CIVIL, INC. , was filed 04/17/2007. 

*** 

 Witness my hand and the official seal 

 of the Department of State at the City 

 of Albany, this 26th day of February 

 two thousand and nineteen. 

Whitney Clark 

Deputy Secretary of State 
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Sample Conflict of Interest Policy*

[Organization Name]

Policy on Conflicts of Interest
And Disclosure of Certain Interests

This conflict of interest policy is designed to help directors, officers, and 
employees of the [Organization Name] identify situations that present potential 
conflicts of interest and to provide [Organization Name] with a procedure that, if 
observed, will allow a transaction to be treated as valid and binding even though 
a director, officer, or employee has or may have a conflict of interest with respect 
to the transaction.  In the event there is an inconsistency between the 
requirements and the procedures prescribed herein and those in federal or state 
law, the law shall control.  All capitalized terms are defined in Part 2 of this policy.

1. Conflict of Interest Defined. For purposes of this policy, the following
circumstances shall be deemed to create Conflicts of Interest:

A. Outside Interests.

(i) A Contract or Transaction between [Organization Name] and a 
Responsible Person or Family Member.

(ii) A Contract or Transaction between [Organization Name] and an 
entity in which a Responsible Person or Family Member has a 
Material Financial Interest or of which such person is a director, 
officer, agent, partner, associate, trustee, personal 
representative, receiver, guardian, custodian, conservator, or 
other legal representative.

B. Outside Activities.

(i) A Responsible Person competing with [Organization Name] in 
the rendering of services or in any other Contract or Transaction 
with a third party.

(ii) A Responsible Person’s having a Material Financial Interest in; 
or serving as a director, officer, employee, agent, partner, 
associate, trustee, personal representative, receiver, guardian, 
custodian, conservator, or other legal representative of, or 
consultant to; an entity or individual that competes with 
[Organization Name] in the provision of services or in any other 
Contract or Transaction with a third party.



C. Gifts, Gratuities and Entertainment. A Responsible Person accepting 
gifts, entertainment, or other favors from any individual or entity that:

(i) does or is seeking business with, or is a competitor of 
[Organization Name]; or

(ii) has received, is receiving or is seeking to receive a loan or 
grant, or to secure other financial commitments from 
[Organization Name];

(iii) is a charitable organization;

under circumstances where it might be inferred that such action was 
intended to influence or possibly would influence the Responsible 
Person in the performance of his or her duties.  This does not preclude 
the acceptance of items of nominal or insignificant value or 
entertainment of nominal or insignificant value that are not related to 
any particular transaction or activity of [Organization Name].

2. Definitions.

A. A Conflict of Interest is any circumstance described in Part 1 of this 
Policy.

B. A Responsible Person is any person serving as an officer, employee or
member of the board of directors of [Organization Name].

C. A Family Member is a spouse, domestic partner, parent, child, or spouse 
of a child, brother, sister, or spouse of a brother or sister, of a 
Responsible Person. 

D. A Material Financial Interest in an entity is a financial interest of any kind 
that, in view of all the circumstances, is substantial enough that it would, 
or reasonably could, affect a Responsible Person’s or Family Member’s 
judgment with respect to transactions to which the entity is a party.  This 
includes all forms of compensation.  (The board may wish to establish an 
amount that it would consider to be a “material financial interest.”)

E. A Contract or Transaction is any agreement or relationship involving the 
sale of purchase of goods, services, or rights of any kind, the providing or 
receipt of a loan or grant, the establishment of any other type of pecuniary 
relationship or review of a charitable organization by [Organization 
Name].  The making of a gift to [Organization Name] is not a Contract or 
Transaction.



3. Procedures.

A. Before board or committee action on a Contract or Transaction involving 
a Conflict of Interest, a director or committee member having a Conflict 
of Interest and who is in attendance at the meeting shall disclose all facts 
material to the Conflict of Interest.  Such disclosure shall be reflected in 
the minutes of the meeting.

B. A director or committee member who plans not to attend a meeting at
which he or she has reason to believe that the board or committee will 
act on a matter in which the person has a Conflict of Interest shall 
disclose to the chair of the meeting all facts material to the Conflict of 
Interest.  The chair shall report the disclosure at the meeting and the 
disclosure shall be reflected in the minutes of the meeting.

C. A person who has a Conflict of Interest shall not participate in or be 
permitted to hear the board’s or committee’s discussion of the matter 
except to disclose material facts and to respond to questions.  Such 
person shall not attempt to exert his or her personal influence with 
respect to the matter, either at or outside the meeting.

D. A person who has a Conflict of Interest with respect to a Contract or 
Transaction that will be voted on at a meeting shall not be counted in 
determining the presence of a quorum for purposes of the vote.  The 
person having a conflict of interest may not vote on the Contract or 
Transaction and shall not be present in the meeting room when the vote 
is taken, unless the vote is by secret ballot.  Such person’s ineligibility to 
vote shall be reflected in the minutes of the meeting.  For purposes of 
this paragraph, a member of the board of directors of [Organization 
Name] has a Conflict of Interest when he or she stands for election as an 
officer or for re-election as member of the board of directors.

E. Responsible Persons who are not members of the board of directors of 
[Organization Name] or who have a Conflict of Interest with respect to a 
Contract or Transaction that is not the subject of board or committee 
action, shall disclose to the Chair or the Chair’s designee any Conflict of 
Interest that such Responsible Person has with respect to a Contract or 
Transaction.  Such disclosure shall be made as soon as the Conflict of 
Interest is known to the Responsible Person.  The Responsible Person 
shall refrain from any action that may affect [Organization Name]’s 
participation in such Contract or Transaction.

In the event it is not entirely clear that a Conflict of Interest exists, the 
individual with the potential conflict shall disclose the circumstances to 
the Chair or the Chair’s designee, who shall determine whether there 
exists a Conflict of Interest that is subject to this policy.



4. Confidentiality. Each Responsible Person shall exercise care not to 
disclose confidential information acquired in connection with such status or 
information the disclosure of which might be adverse to the interests of 
[Organization Name].  Furthermore, a Responsible Person shall not disclose 
or use information relating to the business of [Organization Name] for the 
personal profit or advantage of the Responsible Person or a Family 
Member.

5. Review of Policy.

A. Each new Responsible Person shall be required to review a copy of this 
Policy and to acknowledge in writing that he or she has done so.

B. Each new Responsible Person shall annually complete a disclosure from 
identifying any relationships, positions, or circumstances in which the 
Responsible Person is involved that he or she believes could contribute 
to a Conflict of Interest arising.  Such relationships, positions, or 
circumstance might include service as a director of or consultant to a not-
for-profit organization, or ownership of a business that might provide 
goods or services to [Organization Name]. Any such information 
regarding business interests of a Responsible Person or a Family 
Member shall be treated as confidential and shall generally be made 
available only to the Chair, the Executive Director, and any committee 
appointed to address Conflicts of Interests, except to the extent 
additional disclosure is necessary in connection with the implementation 
of this Policy.

C. This policy shall be reviewed annually by each member of the board of 
directors.  Any changes to the policy shall be communicated immediately 
to all Responsible Persons.



[Organization Name]

Conflict of Interest Information Form

Name:_________________________________   Date:____________________

Please describe below any relationships, positions, or circumstances in which 
you are involved that you believe could contribute to a Conflict of Interest (as 
defined in [Organization Name]’s Policy on Conflicts of Interest) arising.

I hereby certify that the information set forth above is true and complete to the 
best of my knowledge.  I have reviewed, and agree to abide by, the Policy of 
Conflict of Interest of [Organization Name] that is currently in effect.

Signature:________________________________   Date:__________________



Page 1 of 1 Rev. 3-2016

COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES X NO If yes, to what campaign committee?  
See attached relevant contribution spreadsheet.  There have been no additional Nassau County Contributions since our
updates as of 5/18/2019

2 File(s) uploaded: Copy of Nassau County Campaign Contributions 51820.xlsx, Nassau County Campaign 
Contributions 11262019.xlsx 

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Carleen King [CKING@POSILLICOINC.COM]

Dated: 06/05/2020 03:16:15 PM Vendor: Posillico Civil, Inc.

Title: Preconstruction Manager



Posillico Nassau County Political Contributions 04/01/2016 - 11/26/2019

Name Address Contribution Date Amount Recipient Filing Schedule Office Dist. County Municipality

Joseph K Posillico 

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

1/9/2017 500 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 
January 
Periodic 

A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Joseph K Posillico

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

10/13/2017 1000 Martins for 
Nassau

2017 11 
Pre 

General
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Joseph Posillico 

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

1/13/2017 200 Jack Schnirman 
for Nassau 

2017 
January 
Periodic 

A Comptroller NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Posillico

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

7/19/2017 1000 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 32 
Pre 

Primary 
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Posillico

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

11/6/2017 500 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 27 
Post 

General 
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Posillico 

750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

9/18/2017 1500 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 10 
Post 

Primary
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

John Trotta
40 Pine Street 
Lynbrook NY 

11563
5/1/2016 200

Nassau County 
Republican 
Committee

2016 27 
Post 

Special 
A N/A NA Nassau Nassau

John Trotta
40 Pine Street 
Lynbrook NY 

11563
10/5/2019 50

Nassau County 
Republican 
Committee

2019 11 
Pre 

General 
A N/A NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Trotta
218 Edgewater 
Avenue Bayport 

NY 11705
6/28/2017 300 Friends of Debra 

Mule
2017 July 
Periodic

A County Legislator 5 Nassau Nassau

Posillico Civil INC.

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

7/20/2017 500 YEVOLI 2017
2017 32 

Pre 
Primary 

B Legislator 16 Nassau Nassau



Posillico Nassau County Political Contributions 04/01/2016 - 5/18/2019

Name Address Contribution Date Amount Recipient Filing Schedule Office Dist. County Municipality

Joseph K Posillico 

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

1/9/2017 500 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 
January 
Periodic 

A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Joseph K Posillico

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

10/13/2017 1000 Martins for 
Nassau

2017 11 
Pre 

General
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Joseph Posillico 

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

1/13/2017 200 Jack Schnirman 
for Nassau 

2017 
January 
Periodic 

A Comptroller NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Posillico

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

7/19/2017 1000 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 32 
Pre 

Primary 
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Posillico

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

11/6/2017 500 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 27 
Post 

General 
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Posillico 

750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

9/18/2017 1500 Curran for 
Nassau

2017 10 
Post 

Primary
A County Executive NA Nassau Nassau

John Trotta
40 Pine Street 
Lynbrook NY 

11563
5/1/2016 200

Nassau County 
Republican 
Committee

2016 27 
Post 

Special 
A N/A NA Nassau Nassau

John Trotta
40 Pine Street 
Lynbrook NY 

11563
10/5/2019 50

Nassau County 
Republican 
Committee

2019 11 
Pre 

General 
A N/A NA Nassau Nassau

Michael Trotta
218 Edgewater 
Avenue Bayport 

NY 11705
6/28/2017 300 Friends of Debra 

Mule
2017 July 
Periodic

A County Legislator 5 Nassau Nassau

Posillico Civil INC.

1750 New 
Highway 

Farmingdale NY 
11735

7/20/2017 500 YEVOLI 2017
2017 32 

Pre 
Primary 

B Legislator 16 Nassau Nassau
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1.  Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term "lobbyist" means any and every
person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - 
Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not 
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not 
limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, 
procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the 
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

None

2.  List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New York State):

None

3.  Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained, employed 
or designated:

None

4.  Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for each activity 
listed. See the last page for a complete description of lobbying activities.

None

5.  The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

None

6.  If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or employment, you must attach 
a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or employment is oral, attach a written statement of the 
substance thereof. If the written agreement of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the 
client by whom you have been authorized to lobby. separately attach such a written authorization from the client.
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7.  Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign contributions pursuant to 
the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or 
(b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of
this disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  If none, you must so state:

I understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of Information Technology ("IT") to 
be posted on the County's website.

I also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must give written notice to the County 
Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing 
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees listed above were 
made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Carleen King [CKING@POSILLICOINC.COM]

Dated: 05/18/2020 05:19:59 PM Vendor: Posillico Civil, Inc.

Title: Preconstruction Manager
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature,
or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or 
resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation 
or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an 
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or 
construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests 
for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or 
administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by 
the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions department 
heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning 
Commission with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation,
or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals, 
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an elected county official or
an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of any 
interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with 
respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency 
of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding 
before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the 
calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County 
Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to 
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or 
oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has 
been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or "lobbying activities" does not include: Persons engaged in drafting legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates,
where such professional services are not otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or 
administrative action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and television 
stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection with proposed legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of news items, editorials or other comment, or paid 
advertisements; persons who participate as witnesses. attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-
making proceedings of a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public 
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to influence a County 
agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York State Administrative Procedure Act.
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Joseph D. Posillico, III
Date of birth:

Country: US

Business Address: 1750 New Highway
City: Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Telephone: 516 380 8338

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
. See Attachment - Directors and Principal Officers, Ownership, Interest in Property
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

 or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Yes, please refer to attached financial statements dated 12/31/2018, more specifically Notes 11, 14 , 15, 16 , 
17, 18.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.



Page 2 of 5 Rev. 3-2016

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
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taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
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taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Joseph D Posillico III , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Joseph D Posillico III , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Posillico Civil Inc
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Joseph D Posillico III [JP3@POSILLICOINC.COM]

Sr. Vice President
Title

02/06/2020 08:39:57 AM
Date



Posillico Civil, Inc. has marked the financial and corporate information in the Nassau County 
Vendor Portal “Exempt from Disclosure under FOIL.”  

We submit that if this corporate information was disclosed and in accordance with 
§87(2)(a)(b)(c) of the Freedom of Information Law:

1. Each agency shall, in accordance with its published rules, make available for public
inspection and copying all records, except that such agency many deny access to
records or portions thereof that:

a. Are specifically exempted from disclosure by state or federal statute;
b. If disclosed would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

under the provisions of subdivision two of section eighty- nine of this article;
and

c. If disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards or collective
bargaining negotiations.

Further, §86(3) of FOIL provides that Private corporations or companies are not subject 
to the Freedom of Information Law under the definition of “Agency.” 

Therefore, the financials and corporate information of Posillico Civil, Inc. is 
“Exempt from Disclosure” under FOIL.  Accordingly, we have marked each page of the 
financial and corporate documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: All corporate and financial information of Posillico Civil, Inc. submitted to 
Nassau County has been marked CONFIDENTIAL and shall not be disclosed to any other 
parties. 

Posillico Civil, Inc. Principals, Ownership, Shares and Rentals
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

JOINT VENTURE(S) 
Gateway‐Posillico Joint Venture   

 

 

Tully‐Posillico Joint Venture 
 

 
 

 Joint Venture 

 

Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico-Skanska Joint Venture 
Posillico Civil, Inc. and Skanska USA Civil Northeast, Inc. 

 

 

Hinck-Posillico Joint Venture LLC
 

, New York 11716

Tully-Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico/Bove JV 
 

OHL/Posillico/SELI Overseas, JV 
 

ONFI

OR N
ASSAU C

OUNTY O
NLY
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Posillico Inc.  Signatories :No Checks  Holding Company  

 
 

 

President/CEO 
Executive VP/Secretary 
Senior VP 
Treasurer/CFO   
Posillico Civil, Inc.      

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

      

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
  

 
 

 

ssen 

Michael J. Trotta 
Lisa Dippel
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LIE Rental Inc.  Signatories: JKP, RN  Equipment Rental  
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LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICERS:   2020 
 
JOSEPH K. POSILLICO - CEO/PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
MICHAEL J. POSILLICO - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT/SECRETARY          

   
   
     
JOSEPH D. POSILLICO, III - SR. VICE PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
RICHARD NOTA – CFO/TREASURER  

 
 

 
ANTHONY C. EVANGELISTA, P.E. -   SR. VICE PRESIDENT/CHIEF ENGINEER 

 
E, NY 11735 

 
MICHAEL J. TROTTA - VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF ESTIMATOR 

 
 

 
MICHAEL PERCIBALLI – VICE PRESIDENT/ENV. DIVISION MGR. 

 
   
FRED W. LOCHER - VICE PRESIDENT/ PURCHASING 

 
 
THOMAS SPATAFORA - SR. VICE PRESIDENT, SALES & MARKETING 

 
 

   
FRANK FRANZINI - VICE PRESIDENT/RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
 

  
CHARLES A. FORTE, JR. - VICE PRESIDENT/ PAVING DIVISION MGR. 
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CHARLES A. FORTE, SR. - VICE PRESIDENT/PRIVATE ASPHALT SALES 
 

 
     
LISA DIPPEL – VICE PRESIDENT/HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
 

 
DAVID SPOSITO, P.E. – VICE PRESIDENT/NYC DIVISION MANAGER 

 
 

 
THOMAS CASSIDY – VICE PRESIDENT/BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

 
NOELLE ANDREASSEN – VICE PRESIDENT, CONTROLLER 
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Posillico Civil, Inc. has marked the financial and corporate information in the Nassau County 
Vendor Portal “Exempt from Disclosure under FOIL.”  

We submit that if this corporate information was disclosed and in accordance with 
§87(2)(a)(b)(c) of the Freedom of Information Law:

1. Each agency shall, in accordance with its published rules, make available for public
inspection and copying all records, except that such agency many deny access to
records or portions thereof that:

a. Are specifically exempted from disclosure by state or federal statute;
b. If disclosed would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

under the provisions of subdivision two of section eighty- nine of this article;
and

c. If disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards or collective
bargaining negotiations.

Further, §86(3) of FOIL provides that Private corporations or companies are not subject 
to the Freedom of Information Law under the definition of “Agency.” 

Therefore, the financials and corporate information of Posillico Civil, Inc. is 
“Exempt from Disclosure” under FOIL.  Accordingly, we have marked each page of the 
financial and corporate documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: All corporate and financial information of Posillico Civil, Inc. submitted to 
Nassau County has been marked CONFIDENTIAL and shall not be disclosed to any other 
parties. 

Posillico Civil, Inc. Financial Statements
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Joseph K. Posillico
Date of birth:
Home address:
City: State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code:
Country: US

Business Address: 1750 New Highway
City: Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Telephone:

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner

 you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See Attachment - Directors and Principal Officers, Ownership, Interest in Property.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

 lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.

Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.
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 1 File(s) Uploaded: Financials for NC_Only (1).pdf 

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Yes, please see attached Entity Matrix for three (3) Principal's listed above.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Yes, see attached with all relevant government contract awards for the past three (3) years.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
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contract?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Joseph K Posillico , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Joseph K Posillico , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Posillico Civil Inc
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Joseph K Posillico [JKPOSILLICO@POSILLICOINC.COM]

President/CEO
Title

02/06/2020 10:48:55 AM
Date



Posillico Civil, Inc. has marked the financial and corporate information in the Nassau County 
Vendor Portal “Exempt from Disclosure under FOIL.”  

We submit that if this corporate information was disclosed and in accordance with 
§87(2)(a)(b)(c) of the Freedom of Information Law:

1. Each agency shall, in accordance with its published rules, make available for public
inspection and copying all records, except that such agency many deny access to
records or portions thereof that:

a. Are specifically exempted from disclosure by state or federal statute;
b. If disclosed would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

under the provisions of subdivision two of section eighty- nine of this article;
and

c. If disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards or collective
bargaining negotiations.

Further, §86(3) of FOIL provides that Private corporations or companies are not subject 
to the Freedom of Information Law under the definition of “Agency.” 

Therefore, the financials and corporate information of Posillico Civil, Inc. is 
“Exempt from Disclosure” under FOIL.  Accordingly, we have marked each page of the 
financial and corporate documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: All corporate and financial information of Posillico Civil, Inc. submitted to 
Nassau County has been marked CONFIDENTIAL and shall not be disclosed to any other 
parties. 

Posillico Civil, Inc. Principals, Ownership, Shares and Rentals



Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Parent Company 
  

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

Y 

EXEMPT FROM FOIL/
FOIA



*M
an
ag
in
g 
M
em

b
er

N
o
te
: A

ll 
m
e
m
b
er
s a

re
 c
u
rr
en

tl
y 
w
it
h
 th

e 
fi
rm

.  

Po
si

lli
co
 M

at
er

ia
ls

, L
LC
 

 

     

m
an
u
fa
ct
u
ri
n
g 
an
d
 se

lli
n
g 
o
f a
sp
h
al
t

P 
Fi

ve
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
LL

C 
 

Po
si

lli
co
 M

at
er

ia
ls
 E

as
t, 

LL
C 

(O
p
er
at
in
g 
A
gr
ee
m
e
n
t s
ig
n
ed

 

 
   

*P
o
si
lli
co
 M

at
er
ia
ls
 E
as
t o

w
n
s H

o
lt
sv
ill
e 
fa
ci
lit
y

AT
TA

CH
M

EN
T 

A
O

W
N

ER
SH

IP
/A

FF
IL

IA
TE

S/
SU

BS
ID

IA
RY

DI
RE

CT
O

RS
 A

N
D 

PR
IN

CI
PA

L 
O

FF
IC

ER
S

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 F
or

m
Pa

rt
 V

: Q
ue

st
io

ns
 A

., 
B.

, P
., 

Q
., 

R.

M
at

er
ia

ls

CONFID

 C
OUNTY O

NLY
 

E

OIL/
FOIA

mchristophersen
Highlight



Posillico Civil, Inc. 

JOINT VENTURE(S) 
Gateway‐Posillico Joint Venture   

 

 

Tully‐Posillico Joint Venture 
 

 
 

 Joint Venture 

 

Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico-Skanska Joint Venture 
Posillico Civil, Inc. and Skanska USA Civil Northeast, Inc. 

 

 

Hinck-Posillico Joint Venture LLC
 

, New York 11716

Tully-Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico/Bove JV 
 

OHL/Posillico/SELI Overseas, JV 
 

ONFI
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Posillico Inc.  Signatories :No Checks  Holding Company  

 
 

 

President/CEO 
Executive VP/Secretary 
Senior VP 
Treasurer/CFO   
Posillico Civil, Inc.      
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Michael J. Trotta 
Lisa Dippel

33.33%
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

LIE Rental Inc.  Signatories: JKP, RN  Equipment Rental  

 
 

 
Treasurer 
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LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICERS:   2020 
 
JOSEPH K. POSILLICO - CEO/PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
MICHAEL J. POSILLICO - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT/SECRETARY          

   
   
     
JOSEPH D. POSILLICO, III - SR. VICE PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
RICHARD NOTA – CFO/TREASURER  

 
 

 
ANTHONY C. EVANGELISTA, P.E. -   SR. VICE PRESIDENT/CHIEF ENGINEER 

 
E, NY 11735 

 
MICHAEL J. TROTTA - VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF ESTIMATOR 

 
 

 
MICHAEL PERCIBALLI – VICE PRESIDENT/ENV. DIVISION MGR. 

 
   
FRED W. LOCHER - VICE PRESIDENT/ PURCHASING 

 
 
THOMAS SPATAFORA - SR. VICE PRESIDENT, SALES & MARKETING 

 
 

   
FRANK FRANZINI - VICE PRESIDENT/RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
 

  
CHARLES A. FORTE, JR. - VICE PRESIDENT/ PAVING DIVISION MGR. 
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CHARLES A. FORTE, SR. - VICE PRESIDENT/PRIVATE ASPHALT SALES 
 

 
     
LISA DIPPEL – VICE PRESIDENT/HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
 

 
DAVID SPOSITO, P.E. – VICE PRESIDENT/NYC DIVISION MANAGER 

 
 

 
THOMAS CASSIDY – VICE PRESIDENT/BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

 
NOELLE ANDREASSEN – VICE PRESIDENT, CONTROLLER 

 
 

 
 

CONFID
ENTIAL F

OR N
ASSA

UNTY O
NLY

 

EXEMPT FROM FOIL



Posillico Civil, Inc. 

RENTAL/OWNERSHIP OFFICE SPACE, STAFF, EQUIPMENT, 
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Posillico Civil, Inc. has marked the financial and corporate information in the Nassau County 
Vendor Portal “Exempt from Disclosure under FOIL.”  

We submit that if this corporate information was disclosed and in accordance with 
§87(2)(a)(b)(c) of the Freedom of Information Law:

1. Each agency shall, in accordance with its published rules, make available for public
inspection and copying all records, except that such agency many deny access to
records or portions thereof that:

a. Are specifically exempted from disclosure by state or federal statute;
b. If disclosed would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

under the provisions of subdivision two of section eighty- nine of this article;
and

c. If disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards or collective
bargaining negotiations.

Further, §86(3) of FOIL provides that Private corporations or companies are not subject 
to the Freedom of Information Law under the definition of “Agency.” 

Therefore, the financials and corporate information of Posillico Civil, Inc. is 
“Exempt from Disclosure” under FOIL.  Accordingly, we have marked each page of the 
financial and corporate documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: All corporate and financial information of Posillico Civil, Inc. submitted to 
Nassau County has been marked CONFIDENTIAL and shall not be disclosed to any other 
parties. 

Posillico Civil, Inc. Financial Statements
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Michael J. Posillico
Date of birth:
Home address:
City:
Country: US

Business Address: 1750 New Highway
City: Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Telephone:

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary 1
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President
(Other)

 
Type Description Start Date
Other Executive Vice President

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See Attachment - Directors and Principal Officers, Ownership, Interest in Property
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Yes, please refer to attached financial statements dated  , 
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Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Yes, please see attached Entity Matrix for the three (3) Principal's listed above.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Not to be disclosed, Posillico and its affiliates are privately held. All corporate and financial information is 
confidential and shall not be disclosed to other parties, pursuant to Federal Freedom of Information Law and 
New York State Freedom of Information Act.

 1 File(s) Uploaded:  

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Michael J. Posillico , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Michael J. Posillico , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Posillico Civil, Inc.
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Michael J. Posillico [MPOSILLICO@POSILLICOINC.COM]

Secretary
Title

02/06/2020 08:23:06 AM
Date
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

JOINT VENTURE(S) 
Gateway‐Posillico Joint Venture   

 

 

Tully‐Posillico Joint Venture 
 

 
 

 Joint Venture 

 

Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico-Skanska Joint Venture 
Posillico Civil, Inc. and Skanska USA Civil Northeast, Inc. 

 

 

Hinck-Posillico Joint Venture LLC
 

, New York 11716

Tully-Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico/Bove JV 
 

OHL/Posillico/SELI Overseas, JV 
 

ONFI

OR N
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OUNTY O
NLY
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Posillico Inc.  Signatories :No Checks  Holding Company  

 
 

 

President/CEO 
Executive VP/Secretary 
Senior VP 
Treasurer/CFO   
Posillico Civil, Inc.      

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

      

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  
  

 
 

 

ssen 

Michael J. Trotta 
Lisa Dippel

33.33%
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

LIE Rental Inc.  Signatories: JKP, RN  Equipment Rental  

 
 

 
Treasurer 
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LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICERS:   2020 
 
JOSEPH K. POSILLICO - CEO/PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
MICHAEL J. POSILLICO - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT/SECRETARY          

   
   
     
JOSEPH D. POSILLICO, III - SR. VICE PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
RICHARD NOTA – CFO/TREASURER  

 
 

 
ANTHONY C. EVANGELISTA, P.E. -   SR. VICE PRESIDENT/CHIEF ENGINEER 

 
E, NY 11735 

 
MICHAEL J. TROTTA - VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF ESTIMATOR 

 
 

 
MICHAEL PERCIBALLI – VICE PRESIDENT/ENV. DIVISION MGR. 

 
   
FRED W. LOCHER - VICE PRESIDENT/ PURCHASING 

 
 
THOMAS SPATAFORA - SR. VICE PRESIDENT, SALES & MARKETING 

 
 

   
FRANK FRANZINI - VICE PRESIDENT/RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
 

  
CHARLES A. FORTE, JR. - VICE PRESIDENT/ PAVING DIVISION MGR. 
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CHARLES A. FORTE, SR. - VICE PRESIDENT/PRIVATE ASPHALT SALES 
 

 
     
LISA DIPPEL – VICE PRESIDENT/HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
 

 
DAVID SPOSITO, P.E. – VICE PRESIDENT/NYC DIVISION MANAGER 

 
 

 
THOMAS CASSIDY – VICE PRESIDENT/BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

 
NOELLE ANDREASSEN – VICE PRESIDENT, CONTROLLER 
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Posillico Civil, Inc. has marked the financial and corporate information in the Nassau County 
Vendor Portal “Exempt from Disclosure under FOIL.”  

We submit that if this corporate information was disclosed and in accordance with 
§87(2)(a)(b)(c) of the Freedom of Information Law:

1. Each agency shall, in accordance with its published rules, make available for public
inspection and copying all records, except that such agency many deny access to
records or portions thereof that:

a. Are specifically exempted from disclosure by state or federal statute;
b. If disclosed would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

under the provisions of subdivision two of section eighty- nine of this article;
and

c. If disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards or collective
bargaining negotiations.

Further, §86(3) of FOIL provides that Private corporations or companies are not subject 
to the Freedom of Information Law under the definition of “Agency.” 

Therefore, the financials and corporate information of Posillico Civil, Inc. is 
“Exempt from Disclosure” under FOIL.  Accordingly, we have marked each page of the 
financial and corporate documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: All corporate and financial information of Posillico Civil, Inc. submitted to 
Nassau County has been marked CONFIDENTIAL and shall not be disclosed to any other 
parties. 

Posillico Civil, Inc. Financial Statements



POSILLICO CIVIL, INC. AND AFFILIATES 

COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

CONFID
ENTIAL F

OR N
ASSAU C

OUNTY O
NLY

 

EXEMPT FROM D
ISCLO

SURE U
NDER FOIL/

FOIA



Submitted Price Final Price

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
   

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

EXHIBIT F
Posillico Companies Consolidated Projects Lists

Owner/Owner Contact Engineer of Record Partners/Designer Contract Number/ 
Project Title

Location & Description Contract Amount Award Date Contract Start Date Completion Date Level of Completion
%

Prime or 
Subcontractor

Self-Performance 
(Actual) %

Key Personnel

CO
FID

ENTIAL 

FOR N
CDPW O

NLY
 EXEMPT FROM FOIL



Submitted 
Price

Final Price

 
 

 

 
 

 

EXHIBIT F
Posillico Companies Consolidated Projects Lists

Owner/Owner Contact Engineer of Record Contract Number/Type 
Project Title

Location & Description Contract Amount Award Date Contract Start 
Date

Completion Date Level of 
Completion

%

Prime or 
Subcontractor

Self-
Performance 

(Actual) %

Key Personnel

CONFID
ENTIAL 

FOR N
CDPW O

NLY
 EXEMPT FROM FOIL



Submitted Price Final Price

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT F
Posillico Companies Consolidated Projects Lists
Owner/Owner Contact Engineer of Record Partners/Designer Contract Number/ 

Project Title
Location & Description Contract Amount Award Date Contract Start Date Completion 

Date
Prime or Subcontractor Self-

Performance 
(Actual) %

Key Personnel

CONFID
ENTIAL 

FOR
NCD

W O
NLY

 EXEMPT FROM FOIL



Submitted Price Final Price

 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

  
 

Contract Start 
Date

EXHIBIT F
Posillico Companies Consolidated Projects Lists
Drilling

Owner/Owner 
Contact

Engineer of Record Partners/Designer Contract Number/ Project Title Location & Description Contract Amount Award Date Completion 
Date

Level of 
Completion

%

Prime or 
Subcontractor

Self-
Performance 

(Actual) %

Key 
Personnel

ID
ENTIAL 

FOR N
CDPW 

Y EXEMPT FROM FOIL



Page 1 of 6

COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Posillico Civil, Inc.

Address: 1750 New Highway

City: Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 11-1529032

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) S-Corp

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable 
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and 
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

2 File(s) uploaded 2020 PRINCIPAL OFFICERS -ADDRESSES BUS AND HOME.pdf, 2020 
Principals_Ownership_Shares_Rentals.pdf 

 
 
First Name Michael
Last Name Trotta
MI J Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President

First Name Michael
Last Name Posillico
MI J Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Secretary

First Name Joseph
Last Name Posillico
MI D Suffix III
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Sr. Vice President, Partner

First Name David
Last Name Sposito
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
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City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, NYC Division Manager

First Name Paul
Last Name Giordano
MI Suffix
Address

Country US
Position Executive Board Member

First Name Joseph
Last Name Boren
MI Suffix
Address

Country US
Position Executive Board Member

First Name Frank
Last Name Franzini
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Risk Management

First Name Michael
Last Name Perciballi
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President/Environmental Division Mangaer

First Name Lisa
Last Name Dippel
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Human Resources

First Name Charles
Last Name Forte
MI A Suffix Sr.
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
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Country US
Position Vice President, Sales Executive

First Name Thomas
Last Name Spatafora
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Sr. Vice President, Business Development and Strategy

First Name Charles
Last Name Forte
MI A Suffix Jr.
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Paving Division Manager

First Name Fred
Last Name Locher
MI W Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Purchasing

First Name Thomas
Last Name Cassidy
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Vice President, Business Development

First Name Joseph
Last Name Posillico
MI K Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Chief Exec. Officer and President

First Name Anthony
Last Name Evangelista
MI C Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
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Position Sr. Vice President/Chief Engineer

First Name Richard
Last Name Nota
MI Suffix
Address 1750 New Highway
City Farmingdale State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11735
Country US
Position Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer (not an equity shareholder)

 

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an 
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
Posillico, Inc. 100% ownership of Posillico Civil, Inc. 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter 
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the 
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not 
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

Posillico Civil, Inc. has been awarded a contract with Nassau County. Posillico, Inc. is the parent company to Posillico 
Civil, Inc. and wholly owns Posillico Civil, its affiliates and is solely a holding company and will not participate in this 
contract. 

 1 File(s) uploaded 2020 Affiliated and Related Companies.pdf 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client 
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, 
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real 
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, 
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
none

(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
none

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New 
York State):
none
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8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Carleen King [CKING@POSILLICOINC.COM]

Dated: 01/31/2020 02:11:31 PM

Title: Preconstruction Manager
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.



Posillico Civil, Inc. has marked the financial and corporate information in the Nassau County 
Vendor Portal “Exempt from Disclosure under FOIL.”  

We submit that if this corporate information was disclosed and in accordance with 
§87(2)(a)(b)(c) of the Freedom of Information Law:

1. Each agency shall, in accordance with its published rules, make available for public
inspection and copying all records, except that such agency many deny access to
records or portions thereof that:

a. Are specifically exempted from disclosure by state or federal statute;
b. If disclosed would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

under the provisions of subdivision two of section eighty- nine of this article;
and

c. If disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards or collective
bargaining negotiations.

Further, §86(3) of FOIL provides that Private corporations or companies are not subject 
to the Freedom of Information Law under the definition of “Agency.” 

Therefore, the financials and corporate information of Posillico Civil, Inc. is 
“Exempt from Disclosure” under FOIL.  Accordingly, we have marked each page of the 
financial and corporate documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: All corporate and financial information of Posillico Civil, Inc. submitted to 
Nassau County has been marked CONFIDENTIAL and shall not be disclosed to any other 
parties. 

Posillico Civil, Inc. Principals, Ownership, Shares and Rentals



Posillico Civil, Inc. has marked the financial and corporate information in the Nassau County 
Vendor Portal “Exempt from Disclosure under FOIL.”  

We submit that if this corporate information was disclosed and in accordance with 
§87(2)(a)(b)(c) of the Freedom of Information Law:

1. Each agency shall, in accordance with its published rules, make available for public
inspection and copying all records, except that such agency many deny access to
records or portions thereof that:

a. Are specifically exempted from disclosure by state or federal statute;
b. If disclosed would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy

under the provisions of subdivision two of section eighty- nine of this article;
and

c. If disclosed would impair present or imminent contract awards or collective
bargaining negotiations.

Further, §86(3) of FOIL provides that Private corporations or companies are not subject 
to the Freedom of Information Law under the definition of “Agency.” 

Therefore, the financials and corporate information of Posillico Civil, Inc. is 
“Exempt from Disclosure” under FOIL.  Accordingly, we have marked each page of the 
financial and corporate documents. 

PLEASE NOTE: All corporate and financial information of Posillico Civil, Inc. submitted to 
Nassau County has been marked CONFIDENTIAL and shall not be disclosed to any other 
parties. 

Posillico Civil, Inc. Principal Officers
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

JOINT VENTURE(S) 
Gateway‐Posillico Joint Venture   

 

 

Tully‐Posillico Joint Venture 
 

 
 

 Joint Venture 

 

Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico-Skanska Joint Venture 
Posillico Civil, Inc. and Skanska USA Civil Northeast, Inc. 

 

 

Hinck-Posillico Joint Venture LLC
 

, New York 11716

Tully-Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico/Bove JV 
 

OHL/Posillico/SELI Overseas, JV 
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Posillico Inc.  Signatories :No Checks  Holding Company  

 
 

 

President/CEO 
Executive VP/Secretary 
Senior VP 
Treasurer/CFO   
Posillico Civil, Inc.      
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Michael J. Trotta 
Lisa Dippel

33.33%
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

LIE Rental Inc.  Signatories: JKP, RN  Equipment Rental  

 
 

 
Treasurer 
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LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICERS:   2020 
 
JOSEPH K. POSILLICO - CEO/PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
MICHAEL J. POSILLICO - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT/SECRETARY          

   
   
     
JOSEPH D. POSILLICO, III - SR. VICE PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
RICHARD NOTA – CFO/TREASURER  

 
 

 
ANTHONY C. EVANGELISTA, P.E. -   SR. VICE PRESIDENT/CHIEF ENGINEER 

 
E, NY 11735 

 
MICHAEL J. TROTTA - VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF ESTIMATOR 

 
 

 
MICHAEL PERCIBALLI – VICE PRESIDENT/ENV. DIVISION MGR. 

 
   
FRED W. LOCHER - VICE PRESIDENT/ PURCHASING 

 
 
THOMAS SPATAFORA - SR. VICE PRESIDENT, SALES & MARKETING 

 
 

   
FRANK FRANZINI - VICE PRESIDENT/RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
 

  
CHARLES A. FORTE, JR. - VICE PRESIDENT/ PAVING DIVISION MGR. 
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CHARLES A. FORTE, SR. - VICE PRESIDENT/PRIVATE ASPHALT SALES 
 

 
     
LISA DIPPEL – VICE PRESIDENT/HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
 

 
DAVID SPOSITO, P.E. – VICE PRESIDENT/NYC DIVISION MANAGER 

 
 

 
THOMAS CASSIDY – VICE PRESIDENT/BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

 
NOELLE ANDREASSEN – VICE PRESIDENT, CONTROLLER 
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

RENTAL/OWNERSHIP OFFICE SPACE, STAFF, EQUIPMENT, 
SHARED EXPENSES
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S3P311-08G - General Contracting

Bid 
Amount

Bid Opening: Engineer:

Contractor
Alternate 

Bid

Phone:

Insurance Payment

Nassau DPW B.I.D.S - Summary of Bid Opening 4/9/2019

Pump Station Mitigation-East Avenue Ejector Station Conversion to Pumping Station

4 /9 /2019 Edward Visone (516) 571-7359

Address

$2,947,700.00RJ Industries  75 East Bethpage Road Plainview, NY 11803-0349 $0.00Liberty Mutual Insurance Comp 10% Amt Bid

$4,153,770.00Posillico Civil, Inc.  1750 New Highway Farmingdale, NY 11735 $0.00Liberty Mutual Insurane Compa 10% Amt Bid

$4,451,750.00Philip Ross Industries, Inc.  88 Duryea Rd Suite 204 Melville, NY 11747 $0.00Liberty Mutual Insurance Comp 10% Amt Bid

$5,450,500.00Stratis Contracting Corp.  7 Corporate Drive Peekskill, NY 10566 $0.00Liberty Mutual Insurance Comp 10% Amt Bid

The above is a review of the bids and subsequent list of all the bids that were read aloud at the public bid opening.  Listed bids may be subsequently withdrawn or disqualified.  The list  
does not reflect the Department’s determination of the lowest responsible bidder.















(Acknowledgment by Contractor if a corporation) 

STATE OF, 1Jwl1f)Jt.)v )

ss.: J�. J,/.JJlkl 
COUNTY OF . <e-r(}t,,,y"- ) 

On this g<i/4...,i;iay of (/;r.v,d" . , 20 19 , before me.personally 
came "'fY) ._cA-,o...,;_)i -Q , ,:;£;:];,_i.::::t:i-., to me known, 
who, being .t?

7 
me. ctuly swornr, <;:l_i? dwose and say for himself, that he E 

resides in :J, 3 t:c(q__-€.AA)� �v/-"':>0..'1.P•� /U.f 
1 N 

that he is the VP of the toi:,.J._Lu:-0 Ci._v.J? .fJ.../1'\C, . � !�the corporat;ion . described.. in, and which !;ll{ecuted the foregoin
ll !l 

instrum.ent; that he know. s the seal of sa .. i.' d corporation; that the sea · � i1
affi.xed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was s �1-�affixed by orde.r Of. the Bo.ard of Directors of said corporation, and tha I�, :ti 
he signed his name thereto by like order. , "<'.1@1l � '°':,:i: 

I) .M: � .£, 
-felt/:, r.: • I � J w Notary ii>,. :it ·c:, .� 

a:... i:?.' �; 'A. 

(Acknowledgment by Contractor if a partnership) 

-s:e � : 

COUNTY OF-�----

on this day of 
came 
to me to be a member of 

, before me personally 
to me known and known 

the firm described. in and which executed the. foregoing bond or 
obligation, and he acknowledged to me that he sllbscribed the name of 
said firm thereto on behalf of said firm for the purpose therein 
m<:,ntioned. 

(Aoknowl<:,dgment by Contractor if an individual.) 

STATE OF 
--�-----

S$_-. !

COUNTY OF -------

Notary Public 

On this day of , 20 , before me personally 
came to me 
known and known to me to be the person described in and who ex<'lcUted the 
foregoing instrument, and he duly acknowH,dged that he executed th� 
same. 

Notary Public 
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LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICERS:   2020 
 
JOSEPH K. POSILLICO - CEO/PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
MICHAEL J. POSILLICO - EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT/SECRETARY          

   
   
     
JOSEPH D. POSILLICO, III - SR. VICE PRESIDENT 

   
   
 
RICHARD NOTA – CFO/TREASURER  

 
 

 
ANTHONY C. EVANGELISTA, P.E. -   SR. VICE PRESIDENT/CHIEF ENGINEER 

 
E, NY 11735 

 
MICHAEL J. TROTTA - VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF ESTIMATOR 

 
 

 
MICHAEL PERCIBALLI – VICE PRESIDENT/ENV. DIVISION MGR. 

 
   
FRED W. LOCHER - VICE PRESIDENT/ PURCHASING 

 
 
THOMAS SPATAFORA - SR. VICE PRESIDENT, SALES & MARKETING 

 
 

   
FRANK FRANZINI - VICE PRESIDENT/RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
 

  
CHARLES A. FORTE, JR. - VICE PRESIDENT/ PAVING DIVISION MGR. 
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CHARLES A. FORTE, SR. - VICE PRESIDENT/PRIVATE ASPHALT SALES 
 

 
     
LISA DIPPEL – VICE PRESIDENT/HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
 

 
DAVID SPOSITO, P.E. – VICE PRESIDENT/NYC DIVISION MANAGER 

 
 

 
THOMAS CASSIDY – VICE PRESIDENT/BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

 
NOELLE ANDREASSEN – VICE PRESIDENT, CONTROLLER 

 
 

 
 

CONFID
ENTIAL F

OR N
ASSA

UNTY O
NLY

 

EXEMPT FROM FOIL























XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



Page I of4 

COUNTY OF NASSAU 

CONSULTANT,S, CONTRACTOR:S AND VENDOR'S· DISCLOSURE FORM 

I. Name of the Entity:_P_o_s_ill_ic_o..;;.,_In_c_. ________________ _

Address: 1750 New Highway

City, State and Zip Code: Panningdale, New York _11735

2. Entity's Vendor Identifi9ation Number:.--::::2=6-=-0:..:4=08=0=3=0 ___ ..;.._ _______ _ 

3. Type of Business: __ Public Corp. _·_Partnership __ Joint Venture

__ Ltd. Liability Co __ Closely Held Corp Domestic Bus. Co;w. Other (specify)

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of
Directors or comparable body, all partners and J�mited partners, ?II corporate officers, all parties

. of Joint Ventures, and all.members and officers of limited liability companies (attach additional 
sheets if necessary):· 

Joseph K. Posillico, CEO�resident - 

Michael T. Posillico, �xecutive VP/Secretary- 

Joseph D. Posillico, III, Sr. Vice President/Field Operations  

� I .=.ii lt&HS I 4 C ,$1Jl,mltl#WP11�1ia, · 

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the 
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholdres/partners/members. If a Publicly
held Corporation include a copy of the 1 OK in lieu of completing this section_.

Joseph K. Posillico, CEO/President - 3 Kaiser Hill Roa�, Huntington, NY �1743 Partner: 33.33% 

Michael J. Posillico, Executive VP/Secretary- 9 Fox Meadow Court, Woodbury, NY 11797 Partner: 33.33% 
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COUNTY OF NASSAU 

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM 

1. Name of the Entity: B{1.Rfb!:ii©el e!\fU;i lN€, 
----------,1,,-,=

b
,....U m-

1
\le=

IJ\
m� Ht:tttrr191=1w=i:\n-y----------

Address: Farmingdale;. NY 11735 
---------�------'-----------

City, State and Zip Code: ___________________ _ 

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number:
----------------

3. Type ofBusiness: __ Public Corp __ Partnership __ Joint.Venture

__ Ltd. Liability Co __ Closely Held Corp i..--- rf5u.s � ne.55 Other (specify)
C--L�p 

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of
Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties
of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers oflimited liability companies ( attach additional
sheets ifnecessruy):

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
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XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

RENTAL/OWNERSHIP OFFICE SPACE, STAFF, EQUIPMENT, 
SHARED EXPENSES
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Parent Company 
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FOIA



*Managing Member

Note: All members are currently with the firm.  

Posillico Materials, LLC 
 

 
 
 

manufacturing and selling of asphalt

P Five Management, LLC 
 

Posillico Materials East, LLC 
(Operating Agreement signed  

 
 
 

*Posillico Materials East owns Holtsville facility

ATTACHMENT A
OWNERSHIP/AFFILIATES/SUBSIDIARY
DIRECTORS AND PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Contractor Responsibility Form
Part V: Questions A., B., P., Q., R.

Materials
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

JOINT VENTURE(S) 
Gateway‐Posillico Joint Venture   

 

 

Tully‐Posillico Joint Venture 
 

 
 

 Joint Venture 

 

Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico-Skanska Joint Venture 
Posillico Civil, Inc. and Skanska USA Civil Northeast, Inc. 

 

 

Hinck-Posillico Joint Venture LLC
 

, New York 11716

Tully-Posillico Joint Venture 
 

Posillico/Bove JV 
 

OHL/Posillico/SELI Overseas, JV 
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Posillico Civil, Inc •. 
Attaehments to Business History Form 

A1TACHMENTC 

Detailed Description of the bidder's/proposers professionc!I qualifications, demonstrating 
extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these 
experiences, must be identified. 

A. Resumes of Principal Partners for Posillico Civil and of Peter V. Brindley are attached.

i.) Date of format�on: The Certificate of Incorporation of Posiflico Civil, Inc. was fifed on 
02/04/1946, under the name of J. D. Posillico, ·Inc. A Certificate of AmendmentJ. D. 
Posillico, Inc., changing its name to Posillico Civil, Inc., was filed on 4/17/2007. (See 
attached Certificate of Good Standing issued by the New York State Department of 
State. 

ii.) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the 
company, including shareholders, members, general or limited partner: 

Posillico Civil, Inc. is owned 100% by Posillico, Inc. 

The shareholders of Posillico, Inc. are illustrated in Attachment B and restated: 

·SHAREHOLDER NAME/ADDRESS PERCENT OF OWNERSHIP 
33.33% 

33.33% 

JOSEPH K. POSILLICO- CEO/PRESIDENT 

MICHAELJ. POSILLICO- EVP, SECRETARY 

. - .. - ... · · ·· 

JOSEPH D. POSILLICO, 111-SVP, FIELD OPERATIONS 33.33% 



Posillico Civil, Inc. 

Posillico Inc.  Signatories :No Checks  Holding Company  

 
 

 

President/CEO 
Executive VP/Secretary 
Senior VP 
Treasurer/CFO   
Posillico Civil, Inc.      
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Michael J. Trotta 
Lisa Dippel

33.33%
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Posillico Civil, Inc. 

LIE Rental Inc.  Signatories: JKP, RN  Equipment Rental  

 
 

 
Treasurer 
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE-FORM 
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IV.   
 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 
B.  Prohibition of Gifts.  In accordance with County Executive Order 2-2018, the 

Contractor shall not offer, give, or agree to give anything of value to any County employee, 
agent, consultant, construction manager, or other person or firm representing the County (a 
“County Representative”), including members of a County Representative’s immediate family, in 
connection with the performance by such County Representative of duties involving 
transactions with the Contractor on behalf of the County, whether such duties are related to this 
Agreement or any other County contract or matter.  As used herein, “anything of value” shall 
include, but not be limited to, meals, holiday gifts, holiday baskets, gift cards, tickets to golf 
outings, tickets to sporting events, currency of any kind, or any other gifts, gratuities, favorable 
opportunities or preferences.  For purposes of this subsection, an immediate family member 
shall include a spouse, child, parent, or sibling.  The Contractor shall include the provisions of 
this subsection in each subcontract entered into under this Agreement.  

 
C.  Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest.  In accordance with County Executive 

Order 2-2018, the Contractor has disclosed as part of its response to the County’s Business 
History Form, or other disclosure form(s), any and all instances where the Contractor employs 
any spouse, child, or parent of a County employee of the agency or department that contracted 
or procured the goods and/or services described under this Agreement.  The Contractor shall 
have a continuing obligation, as circumstances arise, to update this disclosure throughout the 
term of this Agreement.  
 

D.  Vendor Code of Ethics.  By executing this Agreement, the Contractor hereby 
certifies and covenants that:   
                                 

(i) The Contractor has been provided a copy of the Nassau County Vendor 
Code of Ethics issued on June 5, 2019, as may be amended from time to 
time (the “Vendor Code of Ethics”), and will comply with all of its 
provisions; 
 

(ii) All of the Contractor’s Participating Employees, as such term is defined in 
the Vendor Code of Ethics (the “Participating Employees”), have been 
provided a copy of the Vendor Code of Ethics prior to their participation 
in the underlying procurement; 
 

(iii) All Participating Employees have completed the acknowledgment 
required by the Vendor Code of Ethics; 
 

(iv) The Contractor will retain all of the signed Participating Employee 
acknowledgements for the period it is required to retain other records 
pertinent to performance under this Agreement; 
 

(v) The Contractor will continue to distribute the Vendor Code of Ethics, 
obtain signed Participating Employee acknowledgments as new 
Participating Employees are added or changed during the term of this 
Agreement, and retain such signed acknowledgments for the period the 



Contractor is required to retain other records pertinent to performance 
under this Agreement; and 

The Contractor has obtained the certifications required by the Vendor Code of Ethics from any 
subcontractors or other lower tier participants who have participated in procurements for work 
performed under this Agreement.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________ 
Signature 
 
 
 
 
Richard Nota, CFO/Treasurer                                                                  
Printed Name and Title 
 
 
 
 
 
May 22, 2020          
Date 
 





















































































































NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation
Minority- & Women- Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) Utilization Plan

Instructions for Contractors & Service Providers:

Contractors and Service Providers must complete Sections 2 and 3. Submit the completed, signed (electronic signature box checked and dated) form in
Microsoft Word format to the Recipient’s designated Minority Business Officer (MBO) no later than the date of contract execution. Incomplete forms will be

found deficient. If more than 10 subcontractors are used, additional pages for Section 3 can be found on EEC’s website.

If the prime contract is being performed by the parties to a Joint Venture, Teaming Agreement, or Mentor-Protégé Agreement that includes a certified
MWBE, please contact EFC for assistance.

MWBE firms must be certified by the NYS Empire State Development Corporation (ESD) in order to be counted towards satisfaction of MWBE participation goals. The

utilization of certified MWBEs for non-commercially useful functions may not be counted towards utilization of certified MWBEs in the Utilization Plan. Please note

whether a firm is serving as a broker or supplier on the contract. A broker is denoted by NAICS code 425120 and is designated as a broker in ESD’s MWBE Directory.

A supplier is denoted by a NAICS code beginning with 423 or 424, or a NIGP code that does not begin with the number 9, and is designated as a supplier in ESD’s

MWBE Directory. If a firm is serving as a broker, please additionally provide the percentage of the broker’s commission on the contract.

See the Bid Packet at www.efc.ny.gov or consult your designated MBO for further guidance.

Instructions for Minority Business Officers (MBO):

The MBO must complete Section 1. The MBO may designate an Authorized Representative to complete and submit quarterly payment reports on its behalf, and, if so
designated, the MBO’s Authorized Representative must also complete Section 1. The Authorized Representative may only submit quarterly payment reports on behalf
of the MBO and may not submit any other required forms or reports for the MBO. The MBO must complete Section 1 even if designating an Authorized Representative.
Submit the completed, signed (electronic signature box checked and dated) form in Microsoft Word format via e-mail to your EFC MWBE Representative.

The subject heading of the e-mail to the EEC MWBE Representative should follow the format ‘UP, Project Number, Contractor.” EFC will review the Utilization Plan and
notify the MBO via e-mail of its acceptance or denial.

Within 10 days of EEC’s acceptance of a Utilization Plan, EEC will post the approved Utilization Plan on the EEC website.

MWBE Utilization Plan EFC Bid Packet (Revision Date: 10/1/201 7) 1



NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation
Minority- & Women- Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) Utilization Plan

SECTION 1 MUNICIPAL INFORMATION

RecipientlMunicipality: County:

Project No.: GIGP/EPG No.: Contract ID: Registration No. (NYC only):

Minority Business Officer: Email: Phone #:

Address of MBO:

Electronic Signature of MBO:
D tQ I certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief,

a e.

Complete if applicable:

Authorized Representative: Title:

Authorized Rep. Company: Email: Phone #:

Electronic Signature of Authorized Rep.:
DD I certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief,

ate.

SECTION 2: PRIME CONTRACTOR I SERVICE PROVIDER INFORMATION

Firm Name: Posillico Civil Contract Type: LJ Construction UOther Services

Prime Firm is Certified as: fl MBE WBE j N/A Other:
Please repeat information in the Utilization Plan below (Section 3). If dual certified, you must select either MBE or WBE.
Address: 1750 New Highway Farmingdale, NY 11735 Phone #: 631-249-1872 Fed. Employer ID #: 11-1529032

Description of Work: General Contractor

Award Date: Start Date: Completion Date: MWBE GOAL Total PROPOSED MWBE Participation

Total Contract Amount: $4153770 MBE: % $ MBE: 5.06 % $ 210000
MWBE Eligible Contract Amount: $ 4153770

WBE 0
. 5 42 0/ 225460(MWBE Goals are applied to this amount and includes all change orders, . /o $ WBE. 0 $

amendments, & waivers) Total: 20 % $830754 Total: 10.48 % $435460

MWBE Utilization Plan EEC Bid Packet (Revision Date: 10/1/2017) 2



NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation
Minority- & Women- Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) Utilization Plan

SECTION 3 MWBE SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION

This Submittal is: [The First/Original Utilization Plan Revised Utilization Plan #:

NYS Certified MIWBE Subcontractor Info

Name: LB Consulting Fed. Employer ID#:

Address: 296 Sport Hill Road Easton, CT 06612 Phone #:203-373-1195

Scope of Work: CPm schedule Email: JBoffalbconsultinginc.com

Select Only One: LIMBE IIWBE DOther: Start Date:

Select Only One: EjBroker jSupplier ZN/A Completion Date:

Full Contract Amount: $ 12160

Name: Bohemia Garden Center Fed. Employer ID#:

Address: 608 Johnson Ave Bohemia, NY 11716 Phone #: 631-580-3140

Scope of Work: Topsoil and seed Email: Donnabohemiagardens.com
15000

Select Only One: LJMBE IIWBE EjOther: Start Date:

Select Only One: EjBroker EjSupplier IIN/A Completion Date:

Full Contract Amount: $ 15000

Name: Rodbusters Inc Fed. Employer ID#:

Address: 36 Broadmoor Lane Westbury, NY 11590 Phone #: 516-333-7604

Scope of Work: Rebar install Email: info@rodbustersny.com
37600

Select Only One: UMBE JWBE EjOther: Start Date:

Select Only One: EjBroker Ej Supplier MN/A Completion Date:

Full Contract Amount: $ 37600

Name: FCS Group, LLC Fed. Employer lD#:

Address: 57-12 Grand Ave Maspeth, NY 11378 Phone #: 516-599-4100

Scope of Work: Painting Email:wg@finegrp.com
200000

Select Only One: JMBE UWBE flOther: Start Date:

Select Only One: fiBroker fiSupplier jIN/A Completion Date:

Full Contract Amount: $ 200000

12160

MWBE Utilization Plan EFC Bid Packet (Revision Date: 10/1/2017) 3



SECTION 3: MIWBE SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION continued

NYS Certified MIWBE Subcontractor Info Contract Amount: For EFC

MBE($) WBE($) Use:

Address: 15 Fairchild Court Plainview, NY 11803 Phone #: 516-349-7373

Scope of Work: pipe fabrication Email: franki@metrofabinc.com

Select Only One:UMBE I1WBE UOther: Start Date:

Select Only One: J Broker % Supplier jN/A Completion Date:

Address: 815 Route 25A Rocky Point, NY 11778 Phone #:631-689-0450

Scope of Work: pipe insulation Email: lnewins@haileyinsulation.com

SelectOnlyOne:UMBE I1WBE flOther: StartDate:

Select Only One: El Broker Supplier IAN/A Completion Date:

Full Contract Amount: $ 4700

Name: John Martinez Trucking Fed. Employer ID#:

Address: 112 Florida Street Farmingdale, NY 11735 Phone #:631-414-7770

Scope of Work: Trucking Email: jmartineztruckingl @hotmail.com

Select Only One:I1MBE UWBE DOther: Start Date:

Select Only One: U Broker USupplier JN/A Completion Date:

Full Contract Amount: $ 10000

Name: Turtle & Hughes Fed. Employer ID#:

Address: 1900 Lower Road Linden, NJ 07036 Phone #: 732-574-3600

Scope of Work: Electrical Supply Email:jszoke@turtle.com

Select Only One:UMBE IIWBE DOther: Start Date:

Select Only One: El Broker Supplier UN/A Completion Date:

10000

NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation
Minority- & Women- Owned Business Enterprise (MWBE) Utilization Plan

Name: Metrofab Fed. Employer ID#:

Full Contract Amount: $ 20000

Name: Hailey Insulation Fed. Employer ID#:

20000

4700

136000

Full Contract Amount: $ 136000

SIGNATURE

Electronic Signature of Contractor: jl certify that the information submitted herein is true, accurate and complete to the best of my
knowledge and that all MWBE subcontractors will perform a commercially useful function. Date: 12/19/19

Diglially &anod by ChdslopflorMaura

Name (Please Type): Christopher Mauro

MWBE Utilization Plan EFC Bid Packet (Revision Date: 10/1/2017) 4
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RULES RESOLUTION NO.      – 2020 
 
 
 
 

 
 
            A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO 

EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE 

NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND LIRO 

PROGRAM & CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PE, P.C. 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated an amendment to a personal services 

agreement with Liro Program & Construction Management PE P.C. for 

Construction Management Services in connection with certain Cedar Creek 

W.P.C.P. Improvements and related services , a copy of which is on file with the 

Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it 

  

 RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature 

authorizes the County Executive to execute the said amendment to an agreement 

with Liro Program & Construction Management PE P.C. 









































































































































































































Certifed: 

NIFS ID:CQPB20000010    Department: Probation

Capital: 
SERVICE: Mandated Education Services at JDC Nassau County

Contract ID #:CQPB20000010 NIFS Entry Date: 07-MAY-20 Term: from 01-JAN-20 to 31-DEC-20

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: Y

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: N

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): N

5) Insurance Required Y

Vendor Info:

Name: Leadership Training Inc. Vendor ID#: 112239383
Address: 50 Clinton Street, Suite 

607

Hempstead, NY 11550

Contact Person: Aster 

Mehreteab

Phone: 516-483-3400

Department:

Contact Name: Dominick DiMaggio Jr.

Address: 400 County Seat Drive

Mineola, NY 11501

Phone: 516-571-1513

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 07-MAY-20 -- JSCHILIRO

Department NIFS Approval: X 07-MAY-20 -- JSCHILIRO

DPW Capital Fund Approved: 

OMB NIFA Approval: X 08-MAY-20 -- IQURESHI

OMB NIFS Approval: X 08-MAY-20 -- SJACOB

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 08-MAY-20 -- AAMATO

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 08-MAY-20 -- MMISRA

E-86-20



 

CPO Approval: X 13-MAY-20 -- KOHAGENCE

DCEC Approval: X 15-MAY-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 18-MAY-20 -- TFOX

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 22-MAY-20 -- GCASTILLO

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: Leadership Training Institute will provide educational and instructional activity at each student's appropriate level of study 

in the areas of language arts, science, technology, mathematics, social studies and physical education.

Method of Procurement: This is a Human Services Contract with a not for profit agency with no competitive bid. The contractor is a 

preferred provider who has received a satisfactory evaluation. The Probation Department became responsible for the operation of the 

JDC on 1/1/12.

Procurement History: The Vendor has been providing Educational services to the Juvenile Detention Center for over 30 years.

Description of General Provisions: The Institute agrees to provide ongoing educational services at the Center 5 days a week, 

Monday through Friday. They will assess each child's basic educational skills in reading, writing and arithmetic and provide guidance 

and awareness of further educational ad occupational opportunities.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: Program is funded State 49% for In County population, 100% for Out of County population, 

and 100% for RTA population. The County is responsible for the difference. Total NYS reimbursement has ranged from 65% to 85%, 

depending upon the JDC population. 2019 Reimbursement is 85%.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: No Change

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as submitted

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: GEN
Control: PB10
Resp: 1400
Object: DE501
Transaction:
Project #:
Detail:

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

FUNDING
SOURCE

AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 167,748.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 174,594.00
Capital $ 0.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 342,342.00

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE

AMOUNT

1 PBGEN/DE501 $ 342,342.00
$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 342,342.00



 



                                                                                                                                              

   RULES RESOLUTION NO.           – 2020 

 

 

 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

TO EXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE 

PROBATION DEPARTMENT, AND LEADERSHIP TRAINING, INC.  

(“LTI”) 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated a personal services agreement 

with LTI to provide educational and instructional activity at each student's 

appropriate level of study, copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the 

Legislature; now, therefore, be it 

  

 RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County 

Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement 

with LTI. 



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Leadership Training Institute, Inc

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $342342

Amount to be encumbered:   $342342

This is a Renewal

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 01/01/2020 - 12/31/2020
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? Y  

If yes, please explain: Education services mandated by State of NY

4. Funding Source:

X  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 49

County %   51

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

Purpose:
Leadership Training Institute will provide educational and instructional activity at each student's appropriate level of study in the areas of language arts, 
science, technology, mathematics, social studies and physical education.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:

Contract ID Date Amount





AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   IQURESHI   08-MAY-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.









Certificate of No Change Form

All fields must be filled. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification, and/or the failure to 
conduct appropriate due diligence in verifying the information that is the subject of this certification, may result in 
rendering the submitting entity non-responsible for the purpose of contract award. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification may subject the person 
making the false statement to criminal charges. 

I, Aster Mehreteab, Chief Executive
Officer

state that I have read and understand all the items contained in the 

disclosure documents listed below and certify that as of this date, these items have not changed. I further certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, those answers are full, complete, and accurate; and that, to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief, those answers continue to be full, complete, and accurate.

In addition, I further certify on behalf of the submitting vendor that the information contained in the principal 
questionnaire(s) have not changed and have been verified and continue, to the best of my knowledge, to be full, 
complete and accurate.

I understand that Nassau County will rely on the information supplied in this certification as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting entity.

Vendor Disclosures
This refers to the vendor integrity and disclosure forms submitted for the vendor doing business with the County.

 Name of Submitting Entity: Leadership Training Inc.

Vendor's Address: 50 Clinton Street Suite 607 Hempstead NY US 11550

 Vendor's EIN or TIN: 112239383

 Forms Submitted:

Political Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form: 
12/16/2019 04:25:02 PM

Lobbyist Registration and Disclosure Form: 
12/16/2019 04:26:17 PM

Business History Form certified: 
01/08/2020 09:55:32 AM

Consultant's, Contractor's, and Vendor's Disclosure Form: 
12/16/2019 04:50:45 PM



Principal Questionnaire(s)
This refers to the most recent principal questionnaire submissions.
 

Principal Name Date Certified
Aster Mehreteab [ASTER@LTINY.ORG] 12/16/2019 04:44:36 PM
Marvin Smith [UMSINDISI93@OPTONLINE.NET] 12/26/2019 06:22:20 PM
Greta M, Rainsford [GONOWAY11@YAHOO.COM] 01/08/2020 11:56:53 AM
 

I, Aster Mehreteab, Chief Executive 
Officer

hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement willfully or 

fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any 
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I further certify that I have read and understand all the items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete 
answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in 
writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied 
by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the 
information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT 
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY 
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES."

Aster Mehreteab
Name 

Chief Exective Officer
Title 

Leadership Training Inc.
Name of Submitting Entity 

06/30/2020 03:03:49 PM
Date 









































































































































8 CORPORATE CENTER DR, 2ND FLR, MELVILLE, NEW YORK 117473166                   
| nysif.com               

CERTIFICATE OF WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE (RENEWED) 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 112239383
RAL SERVICES INC
240 PLANDOME RD
MANHASSET NY 11030

POLICYHOLDER CERTIFICATE HOLDER
LEADERSHIP TRAINING INSTITUTE INC
50 CLINTON ST STE 607
HEMPSTEAD NY 11550

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF YOUTH SERVICES
60 CHARLES LINDBERGH BOULEVARD
UNIONDALE  NY  11553

POLICY NUMBER CERTIFICATE NUMBER POLICY PERIOD DATE
H2320 4001 661374 12/31/2019   TO   12/31/2020 12/20/2019

SCAN TO VALIDATE
AND SUBSCRIBE

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT THE POLICYHOLDER  NAMED  ABOVE  IS  INSURED  WITH  THE  NEW  YORK STATE INSURANCE
FUND    UNDER    POLICY    NO.   2320 4001,    COVERING    THE     ENTIRE   OBLIGATION    OF    THIS    POLICYHOLDER   FOR
WORKERS'    COMPENSATION   UNDER   THE   NEW   YORK   WORKERS'   COMPENSATION   LAW   WITH   RESPECT   TO   ALL
OPERATIONS  IN   THE STATE  OF  NEW  YORK,  EXCEPT   AS   INDICATED  BELOW,   AND,  WITH  RESPECT  TO OPERATIONS
OUTSIDE  OF  NEW  YORK,  TO  THE  POLICYHOLDER'S  REGULAR  NEW  YORK  STATE  EMPLOYEES  ONLY.

IF YOU WISH TO RECEIVE NOTIFICATIONS REGARDING SAID POLICY, INCLUDING ANY NOTIFICATION OF CANCELLATIONS,
OR TO VALIDATE THIS CERTIFICATE, VISIT OUR WEBSITE AT HTTPS://WWW.NYSIF.COM/CERT/CERTVAL.ASP. THE  NEW
YORK  STATE INSURANCE FUND  IS NOT LIABLE IN THE EVENT OF  FAILURE  TO GIVE  SUCH  NOTIFICATIONS.

THIS   CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A   MATTER   OF   INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS   NO   RIGHTS    NOR  INSURANCE
COVERAGE    UPON    THE    CERTIFICATE     HOLDER.   THIS    CERTIFICATE    DOES     NOT    AMEND,   EXTEND   OR   ALTER
THE COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICY.

NEW YORK STATE INSURANCE FUND

�
DIRECTOR,INSURANCE FUND UNDERWRITING

VALIDATION NUMBER: 426462257
U26.3







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Certifed: 

NIFS ID:CLHS20000009    Department: Human Services

Capital: 
SERVICE: OMH- AOT Legal Services

Contract ID #:CQHS15000185 NIFS Entry Date: 08-JUN-20 Term: from 01-SEP-20 to 31-AUG-21

Amendment

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:X

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: N

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): N

5) Insurance Required Y

Vendor Info:

Name: Tomas Klimas-
Mikalauskas

Vendor ID#: 

Address: Contact Person: 

Phone: 

Department:

Contact Name: Donnie Eng

Address: 60 Charles Lindbergh Blvd

Uniondale, NY 11553

Phone: 516-227-7027

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 11-JUN-20 -- DENG

Department NIFS Approval: X 11-JUN-20 -- BHALL

DPW Capital Fund Approved: 

OMB NIFA Approval: X 19-JUN-20 -- CNOLAN

OMB NIFS Approval: X 18-JUN-20 -- NGUMIENIAK

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 15-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 16-JUN-20 -- MMISRA

CPO Approval: X 26-JUN-20 -- KOHAGENCE

E-95-20



 

DCEC Approval: X 29-JUN-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 01-JUL-20 -- KROSE-LOUDER

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- JSCHANTZ

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: Enter into a personal services contract with a highly qualified candidate to provide services that include preparing AOT

(Assisted Outpatient Treatment) legal documents, petitions, orders, judgments and subpoenas, on a weekly basis in concert with the 

Office of Mental Health and Chemical Dependency.

Method of Procurement: As reflected in the addendum to Executive Order #1, a selection process was employed because the

services being provided require a skill set that would not be available through the normal channels. The candidate was selected from 

various responses through a Monster.com ad by a committee that included James Dolan Acting Commissioner of Human Services. A 

sixth year has been added to the agreement to continue the services provided under this agreement.  Due to COVID-19 the 

procurement process for a new agreement was halted and delayed until 2021.

Procurement History: This professional began a relationship with the Department in September 2015. Award was based on job

listing on Monster.com which ran from July 22 ¿September 23, 2015. There were 15 responses to this add and the contractor was 

chosen by the evaluation committee.

Description of General Provisions: Provide 1680 billable hours of professional service consisting of assistance in the actual hearing

process wherein AOT petitions are adjudicated in the Supreme Court of the State of New York.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: Reimbursement for AOT Clerk at a rate of $52.00 per hour. This contract is 100% state

funded.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: Increase of hourly rate from $50 to $52.  Removal of reimbursement expenses and 

advance monies.

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) 

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: GRT
Control: 9A
Resp: 9AX2
Object: DE511
Transaction: 109
Project #:
Detail:

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

FUNDING
SOURCE AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 0.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 87,360.00
Capital $ 0.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 87,360.00

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE

AMOUNT

6 BHGRT9AX2FED/2
0/DE511

$ 87,360.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 87,360.00



 



   RULES RESOLUTION NO.    – 2020 

 

 

 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON 

BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN 

SERVICES, OFFICE OF MENTAL HEALTH, CHEMICAL 

DEPENDENCY AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES SERVICES, 

AND TOMAS KLIMAS-MIKALAUSKAS 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated an amendment to a personal 

services agreement with Tomas Klimas-Mikalauskas to provide services that 

include preparing AOT (Assisted Outpatient Treatment) legal documents, 

petitions, orders, judgments and subpoenas, on a weekly basis, a copy of 

which is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it 

  

 RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County 

Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said amendment 

to agreement with Tomas Klimas-Mikalauskas. 



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Tomas Klimas-Mikalauskas

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $87360

Amount to be encumbered:   $87360

This is a Amendment

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 2020-2021
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? N  

If yes, please explain: 

4. Funding Source:

  General Fund (GEN) X Grant Fund (GRT)
  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 100

County %   0

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

Enter into a personal services contract with a highly qualified candidate to provide services that include preparing AOT
(Assisted Outpatient Treatment) legal documents, petitions, orders, judgments and subpoenas, on a weekly basis in concert with the Office of Mental Health 
and Chemical Dependency.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:

Contract ID Date Amount





AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   CNOLAN   19-JUN-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.







































































































































Certifed: 

NIFS ID:CFPW20000013    Department: Public Works

Capital: X
SERVICE: FED AID-Pavement Marking H62153-1011CM

Contract ID #:CFPW20000013 NIFS Entry Date: 14-MAY-20 Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: Y

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): N

5) Insurance Required Y

Vendor Info:

Name: N&P Engineering, 
Architecture, and Land 
Surveying, PLLC.

Vendor ID#: 11-3551992

Address: 572 Walt Whitman Road

Melville, NY 11747

Contact Person: Russel Z Scott, 

PE

Phone: 631 427 5665

Department:

Contact Name: Saji Varughese

Address: NCDPW

1194 Prospect Ave

Westbury, NY 11590

Phone: 516 571 9651

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 15-MAY-20 -- LDIONISIO

Department NIFS Approval: X 15-MAY-20 -- KARNOLD

DPW Capital Fund Approved: X 15-MAY-20 -- KARNOLD

OMB NIFA Approval: X 03-JUN-20 -- CNOLAN

OMB NIFS Approval: X 18-MAY-20 -- NGUMIENIAK

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 18-MAY-20 -- AAMATO

E-96-20



 

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 18-MAY-20 -- NSARANDIS

CPO Approval: X 26-JUN-20 -- KOHAGENCE

DCEC Approval: X 06-JUL-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 06-JUL-20 -- BSCHNEIDER

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- JSCHANTZ

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: Approval of a Personal Services Agreement with N&P Engineering, Architecture and Land Surveying, PLLC. for 

Construction Management/Inspection Services (CMI) for Proposed pavement Markings Phase 10 and Phase 11 projects. This 

agreement involves to manage and the use of any of the various items in this pavement marking contracts. This service is to provide 

Construction Management and Inspection Services for these contracts. These services include investigation site conditions, monitoring

progress, implementing quality assurance programs, providing progress reports and other Construction Management duties. 

FEDERAL AID. PIN 0760.56 and PIN 0760.61

Method of Procurement: A qualification- based rating and ranking system of technical and cost proposal in accordance with standard

DPW, NYSDOT and FHWA procedures

Procurement History: The Contract was entered into after a written request for proposals was issued on September 10, 2019. 

Potential proposers were made aware of the availability of the RFP by public notice in Newsday, Contract Reporter and the County's 

eProcurement website. Proposals were due on October 9, 2019. Five (5) proposals were received and evaluated. Proposals were 

evaluated by professional staff within the Department by, Elisa Picca, Chief Deputy Commissioner, Harold Lutz, Director of traffic 

Engineering, Richard Iadevaio, Superintendent of Highway and Drainage Construction, and Saji Varughese, Project Manager II. The 

proposals were scored and ranked. As a result of the scoring and ranking (attached), the highest ranking proposer was selected. For 

more information, please refer to the attached RTI part II Memorandum

Description of General Provisions: Contract for services confirms to model personal services contract developed and approved by 

the office of the County Attorney and approval by NYSDOT

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: Funding for services to be provided under this agreement will come from Capital Project 

62153. This agreement will expire 24 months after its execution and has a maximum payment limitation of eight hundred forty two 

thousand and zero (842,000.00) dollars. There is potential for FEDERAL AID reimbursement up to eighty percent (80%). This 

contract currently calls for 20% DBE utilization. Funding from Project 62153.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: N/A

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as Submitted

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: CAP
Control: 62

FUNDING
SOURCE

AMOUNT

Revenue 

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE

AMOUNT

1 PWCAPCAP/62153/ $ 344,880.00



 

Resp: 153
Object: 00003
Transaction: CF
Project #: 62153
Detail: 056, 061

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

Contract:
County $ 0.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 842,000.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 842,000.00

056/00003

2 PWCAPCAP/62153/
061/00003

$ 497,120.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 842,000.00



RULES RESOLUTION NO.      – 2020 
 
 
 
 

 
 
            A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO 

EXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND N & P ENGINEERING, 

ARCHITECTURE & LAND SURVEYING, PLLC 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated a personal services agreement with 

N & P Engineering, Architecture & Land Surveying, PLLC for Construction 

Management and Inspection Services for Pavement Markings and related services, 

a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it 

  

 RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature 

authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement with N & P 

Engineering, Architecture & Land Surveying, PLLC. 



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: N&P Engineering, Architecture, and Land Surveying, PLLC.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $842000

Amount to be encumbered:   $842000

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: Two years from CE's Signature
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? N  

If yes, please explain: 

4. Funding Source:

  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
X  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 0

County %   0

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? Y

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? Y

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

Approval of a Personal Services Agreement with N&amp;P Engineering, Architecture and Land Surveying, PLLC. for Construction 
Management&#x2F;Inspection Services (CMI) for Proposed pavement Markings Phase 10 and Phase 11 projects. This agreement involves to manage and 
the use of any of the various items in this pavement marking contracts. This service is to provide Construction Management and Inspection Services for 
these contracts. These services include investigation site conditions, monitoring progress, implementing quality assurance programs, providing progress 
reports and other Construction Management duties. FEDERAL AID. PIN 0760.56 and PIN 0760.61

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:



Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   CNOLAN   03-JUN-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.









Certificate of No Change Form

All fields must be filled. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification, and/or the failure to 
conduct appropriate due diligence in verifying the information that is the subject of this certification, may result in 
rendering the submitting entity non-responsible for the purpose of contract award. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification may subject the person 
making the false statement to criminal charges. 

I, Thomas F. Lembo state that I have read and understand all the items contained in the 
disclosure documents listed below and certify that as of this date, these items have not changed. I further certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, those answers are full, complete, and accurate; and that, to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief, those answers continue to be full, complete, and accurate.

In addition, I further certify on behalf of the submitting vendor that the information contained in the principal 
questionnaire(s) have not changed and have been verified and continue, to the best of my knowledge, to be full, 
complete and accurate.

I understand that Nassau County will rely on the information supplied in this certification as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting entity.

Vendor Disclosures
This refers to the vendor integrity and disclosure forms submitted for the vendor doing business with the County.

 Name of Submitting Entity: N&P Engineering, Architecture and Land  Surveying, PLLC

Vendor's Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD MELVILLE NY US 11747

 Vendor's EIN or TIN: 11-3551992

 Forms Submitted:

Political Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form: 
05/19/2020 04:52:52 PM

Lobbyist Registration and Disclosure Form: 
05/19/2020 04:54:14 PM

Business History Form certified: 
03/24/2020 05:03:39 PM

Consultant's, Contractor's, and Vendor's Disclosure Form: 
04/30/2020 01:51:14 PM



Principal Questionnaire(s)
This refers to the most recent principal questionnaire submissions.
 

Principal Name Date Certified
Thomas F. Lembo, PE [TLEMBO@NELSONPOPE.COM] 03/24/2020 04:09:54 PM
Robert G. Nelson, Jr., PE [RNELSON@NELSONPOPE.COM] 03/24/2020 04:44:40 PM
Gregory D. Peterman, PLS [GPETERMAN@NELSONPOPE.COM] 03/24/2020 04:31:53 PM
Russell Z. Scott, PE [RSCOTT@NELSONPOPE.COM] 03/24/2020 04:24:48 PM
Thomas C. Dixon, PE [TDIXON@NELSONPOPE.COM] 03/24/2020 04:20:06 PM
Eric J. McFerran, PE [EMCFERRAN@NELSONPOPE.COM] 03/24/2020 04:15:52 PM
 

I, Thomas F. Lembo hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement willfully or 
fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any 
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I further certify that I have read and understand all the items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete 
answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in 
writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied 
by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the 
information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT 
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY 
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES."

Thomas F. Lembo, PE
Name 

Senior Partner/Compliance Officer
Title 

N&P Engineering, Architecture and Land  Surveying, PLLC
Name of Submitting Entity 

05/19/2020 04:58:27 PM
Date 



Page 1 of 1 Rev. 3-2016

COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES X NO If yes, to what campaign committee?  
N&P's Accounting Department has reviewed the financial records of Nelson & Pope, as well as our affiliate companies. 
Based on this review, contributions were made to: Friends of Ed Mangano, Friends of James Kennedy, Friends of 
Laura Curran, Friends of Mackenzie, Friends of Laura Schafer, Friends of Rose Walker, Friends of Kate Murray, 
Maureen O'Connell for County Clerk, Citizens for Nicollelo, Martins for Nassau and Labriola for Comptroller between 
April 1, 2016 and the date of this disclosure.

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Thomas F. Lembo, PE [TLEMBO@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Dated: 05/19/2020 04:52:52 PM Vendor: N&P Engineering, Architecture and Land  
Surveying, PLLC

Title: Senior Partner/Compliance Officer
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1.  Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term "lobbyist" means any and every
person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - 
Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not 
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not 
limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, 
procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the 
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or promote a 
matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees.

2.  List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New York State):

NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or promote a 
matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees.

3.  Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained, employed 
or designated:

NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or promote a 
matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees.

4.  Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for each activity 
listed. See the last page for a complete description of lobbying activities.

NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or promote a 
matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees.

5.  The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or promote a 
matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees.

6.  If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or employment, you must attach 
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a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or employment is oral, attach a written statement of the 
substance thereof. If the written agreement of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the 
client by whom you have been authorized to lobby. separately attach such a written authorization from the client.

7.  Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign contributions pursuant to 
the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or 
(b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of
this disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  If none, you must so state:

I understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of Information Technology ("IT") to 
be posted on the County's website.

I also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must give written notice to the County 
Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing 
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees listed above were 
made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Thomas F. Lembo, PE [TLEMBO@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Dated: 05/19/2020 04:54:14 PM Vendor: N&P Engineering, Architecture and 
Land  Surveying, PLLC

Title: Senior Partner/Compliance Officer
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature,
or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or 
resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation 
or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an 
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or 
construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests 
for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or 
administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by 
the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions department 
heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning 
Commission with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation,
or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals, 
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an elected county official or
an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of any 
interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with 
respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency 
of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding 
before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the 
calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County 
Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to 
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or 
oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has 
been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or "lobbying activities" does not include: Persons engaged in drafting legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates,
where such professional services are not otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or 
administrative action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and television 
stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection with proposed legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of news items, editorials or other comment, or paid 
advertisements; persons who participate as witnesses. attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-
making proceedings of a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public 
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to influence a County 
agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York State Administrative Procedure Act.
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Eric J. McFerran, PE

State/Province/Territory: NY
Country: US

Business Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD
City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747
Country US
Telephone: (631) 427-5665

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See attached.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Affiliates of N&P have been awarded governmental contracts.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Eric J. McFerran, PE , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Eric J. McFerran, PE , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

N&P Engineering, Architecture, & Land  Surveying, PLLC
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Eric J. McFerran, PE [EMCFERRAN@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Partner
Title

03/24/2020 04:15:52 PM
Date



N & P Engineering, 
Architecture and 
Land  Surveying, 

PLLC

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, LLC

N&P 
Construction 

Layout

572 Walt Whitman 
Road Associates, 

LLC

Vornel 
Management

HWJ Engineering & 
Surveying PLLC 

d/b/a Hawkins Webb 
Jaeger

East Coast 
Geoservices LLC

N & P 
Engineering LLC

Hawkins Webb, 
LLC

Haks-Nelson &  
Pope JV N&P-GdB

Tax ID 11-3551992 11-3353292 11-3237008 11-3332281 42-1564513 20-0466961 26-3957238 81-0721476  (81-3261538) 27-4404689 46-0604678

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas

Peterman, Gregory

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas

Scott, Russell 
 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matthew

Voorhis, Charles

McGinn, Steven

Eiseman, Kathryn

O'Farrell, Carrie

Franson, Bonnie  (Maria)

Stach, Maximilian 

Russo, Michael 

Monahan, Patrick

N&P, Engineers & Land Surveyor, PLLC - - - - -
Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC - - - - - - - -
Haks Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors - - - - - - -                    - - -
Gayron de Bruin, Land Surveying and Engineering, PC - - - - - - - - - -

Description of Services 

Provides Engineering 
& Surveying to 
Nelson Pope & 

Voorhis and Hawkins 
Webb & Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Environmental 

Consulting 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
and Hawkins 

Webb & Jaeger 
and General 

Public

Provides 
Surveying 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
Exclusively

Owns Buildings 
Leased by Nelson & 

Pope Exclusively

Provides 
Management 
Services to 

Hawkins Webb & 
Jaeger Exclusively

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying Eervices 
to Nelson & Pope 

and Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis and General 

Public

Provides 
Drilling/Soil 

Sampling Services 
to Nelson and Pope, 

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, Hawkins 
Webb Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying 
Services in the 

State of 
Connecticut

Provides 
Construction/

Contract 
Management to 
General Public

Environmental 
Consulting On 

Call services for 
Nassau County, 

NY

Provides 
Topographic 

Surveying Services 
to New York City 
Department of 

Design and 
Construction

- - - - - - -
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Thomas C. Dixon, PE

State/Province/Territory: NY
Country: US

Business Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD
City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747
Country US
Telephone: (631) 427-5665

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See attached.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Affiliates of N&P have been awarded governmental contracts.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?



Page 4 of 5 Rev. 3-2016

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Thomas C. Dixon, PE , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Thomas C. Dixon, PE , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

N&P Engineering, Architecture, & Land  Surveying, PLLC
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Thomas C. Dixon, PE [TDIXON@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Partner
Title

03/24/2020 04:20:06 PM
Date
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Jaeger

East Coast 
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Tax ID 11-3551992 11-3353292 11-3237008 11-3332281 42-1564513 20-0466961 26-3957238 81-0721476  (81-3261538) 27-4404689 46-0604678

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas

Peterman, Gregory

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas

Scott, Russell 
 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matthew

Voorhis, Charles

McGinn, Steven

Eiseman, Kathryn

O'Farrell, Carrie

Franson, Bonnie  (Maria)

Stach, Maximilian 

Russo, Michael 

Monahan, Patrick

N&P, Engineers & Land Surveyor, PLLC - - - - -
Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC - - - - - - - -
Haks Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors - - - - - - -                    - - -
Gayron de Bruin, Land Surveying and Engineering, PC - - - - - - - - - -

Description of Services 

Provides Engineering 
& Surveying to 
Nelson Pope & 

Voorhis and Hawkins 
Webb & Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Environmental 

Consulting 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
and Hawkins 

Webb & Jaeger 
and General 

Public

Provides 
Surveying 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
Exclusively

Owns Buildings 
Leased by Nelson & 

Pope Exclusively

Provides 
Management 
Services to 

Hawkins Webb & 
Jaeger Exclusively

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying Eervices 
to Nelson & Pope 

and Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis and General 

Public

Provides 
Drilling/Soil 

Sampling Services 
to Nelson and Pope, 

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, Hawkins 
Webb Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying 
Services in the 

State of 
Connecticut

Provides 
Construction/

Contract 
Management to 
General Public

Environmental 
Consulting On 

Call services for 
Nassau County, 

NY

Provides 
Topographic 

Surveying Services 
to New York City 
Department of 

Design and 
Construction

- - - - - - -

Nelson & Pope etal.  - Partners Ownership Percentages - 01/01/2020
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Thomas F. Lembo, PE

State/Province/Territory: NY
Country: US

Business Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD
City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747
Country US
Telephone: (631) 427-5665

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See attached.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Affiliates of N&P have been awarded governmental contracts.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Thomas F. Lembo, PE , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Thomas F. Lembo, PE , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

N&P Engineering, Architecture, & Land  Surveying, PLLC
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Thomas F. Lembo, PE [TLEMBO@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Partner, Compliance Officer
Title

03/24/2020 04:09:54 PM
Date



N & P Engineering, 
Architecture and 
Land  Surveying, 

PLLC

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, LLC

N&P 
Construction 

Layout

572 Walt Whitman 
Road Associates, 

LLC

Vornel 
Management

HWJ Engineering & 
Surveying PLLC 

d/b/a Hawkins Webb 
Jaeger

East Coast 
Geoservices LLC

N & P 
Engineering LLC

Hawkins Webb, 
LLC

Haks-Nelson &  
Pope JV N&P-GdB

Tax ID 11-3551992 11-3353292 11-3237008 11-3332281 42-1564513 20-0466961 26-3957238 81-0721476  (81-3261538) 27-4404689 46-0604678

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas

Peterman, Gregory

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas

Scott, Russell 
 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matthew

Voorhis, Charles

McGinn, Steven

Eiseman, Kathryn

O'Farrell, Carrie

Franson, Bonnie  (Maria)

Stach, Maximilian 

Russo, Michael 

Monahan, Patrick

N&P, Engineers & Land Surveyor, PLLC - - - - -
Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC - - - - - - - -
Haks Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors - - - - - - -                    - - -
Gayron de Bruin, Land Surveying and Engineering, PC - - - - - - - - - -

Description of Services 

Provides Engineering 
& Surveying to 
Nelson Pope & 

Voorhis and Hawkins 
Webb & Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Environmental 

Consulting 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
and Hawkins 

Webb & Jaeger 
and General 

Public

Provides 
Surveying 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
Exclusively

Owns Buildings 
Leased by Nelson & 

Pope Exclusively

Provides 
Management 
Services to 

Hawkins Webb & 
Jaeger Exclusively

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying Eervices 
to Nelson & Pope 

and Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis and General 

Public

Provides 
Drilling/Soil 

Sampling Services 
to Nelson and Pope, 

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, Hawkins 
Webb Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying 
Services in the 

State of 
Connecticut

Provides 
Construction/

Contract 
Management to 
General Public

Environmental 
Consulting On 

Call services for 
Nassau County, 

NY

Provides 
Topographic 

Surveying Services 
to New York City 
Department of 

Design and 
Construction

- - - - - - -

Nelson & Pope etal.  - Partners Ownership Percentages - 01/01/2020
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Russell Z. Scott, PE

State/Province/Territory: NY
Country: US

Business Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD
City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747
Country US
Telephone: (631) 427-5665

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See attached.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Affiliates of N&P have been awarded governmental contracts.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Russell Z. Scott, PE , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Russell Z. Scott, PE , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

N&P Engineering, Architecture, & Land  Surveying, PLLC
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Russell Z. Scott, PE [RSCOTT@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Partner
Title

03/24/2020 04:24:48 PM
Date



N & P Engineering, 
Architecture and 
Land  Surveying, 

PLLC

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, LLC

N&P 
Construction 

Layout

572 Walt Whitman 
Road Associates, 

LLC

Vornel 
Management

HWJ Engineering & 
Surveying PLLC 

d/b/a Hawkins Webb 
Jaeger

East Coast 
Geoservices LLC

N & P 
Engineering LLC

Hawkins Webb, 
LLC

Haks-Nelson &  
Pope JV N&P-GdB

Tax ID 11-3551992 11-3353292 11-3237008 11-3332281 42-1564513 20-0466961 26-3957238 81-0721476  (81-3261538) 27-4404689 46-0604678

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas

Peterman, Gregory

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas

Scott, Russell 
 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matthew

Voorhis, Charles

McGinn, Steven

Eiseman, Kathryn

O'Farrell, Carrie

Franson, Bonnie  (Maria)

Stach, Maximilian 

Russo, Michael 

Monahan, Patrick

N&P, Engineers & Land Surveyor, PLLC - - - - -
Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC - - - - - - - -
Haks Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors - - - - - - -                    - - -
Gayron de Bruin, Land Surveying and Engineering, PC - - - - - - - - - -

Description of Services 

Provides Engineering 
& Surveying to 
Nelson Pope & 

Voorhis and Hawkins 
Webb & Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Environmental 

Consulting 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
and Hawkins 

Webb & Jaeger 
and General 

Public

Provides 
Surveying 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
Exclusively

Owns Buildings 
Leased by Nelson & 

Pope Exclusively

Provides 
Management 
Services to 

Hawkins Webb & 
Jaeger Exclusively

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying Eervices 
to Nelson & Pope 

and Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis and General 

Public

Provides 
Drilling/Soil 

Sampling Services 
to Nelson and Pope, 

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, Hawkins 
Webb Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying 
Services in the 

State of 
Connecticut

Provides 
Construction/

Contract 
Management to 
General Public

Environmental 
Consulting On 

Call services for 
Nassau County, 

NY

Provides 
Topographic 

Surveying Services 
to New York City 
Department of 

Design and 
Construction

- - - - - - -

Nelson & Pope etal.  - Partners Ownership Percentages - 01/01/2020
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Robert G. Nelson, Jr., PE

State/Province/Territory: NY
Country: US

Business Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD
City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747
Country US
Telephone: (631) 427-5665

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See attached.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Affiliates of N&P have been awarded governmental contracts.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Robert G. Nelson, Jr., PE , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Robert G. Nelson, Jr., PE , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

N&P Engineering, Architecture, & Land  Surveying, PLLC
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Robert G. Nelson, Jr., PE [RNELSON@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Partner
Title

03/24/2020 04:44:40 PM
Date



N & P Engineering, 
Architecture and 
Land  Surveying, 

PLLC

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, LLC

N&P 
Construction 

Layout

572 Walt Whitman 
Road Associates, 

LLC

Vornel 
Management

HWJ Engineering & 
Surveying PLLC 

d/b/a Hawkins Webb 
Jaeger

East Coast 
Geoservices LLC

N & P 
Engineering LLC

Hawkins Webb, 
LLC

Haks-Nelson &  
Pope JV N&P-GdB

Tax ID 11-3551992 11-3353292 11-3237008 11-3332281 42-1564513 20-0466961 26-3957238 81-0721476  (81-3261538) 27-4404689 46-0604678

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas

Peterman, Gregory

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas

Scott, Russell 
 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matthew

Voorhis, Charles

McGinn, Steven

Eiseman, Kathryn

O'Farrell, Carrie

Franson, Bonnie  (Maria)

Stach, Maximilian 

Russo, Michael 

Monahan, Patrick

N&P, Engineers & Land Surveyor, PLLC - - - - -
Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC - - - - - - - -
Haks Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors - - - - - - -                    - - -
Gayron de Bruin, Land Surveying and Engineering, PC - - - - - - - - - -

Description of Services 

Provides Engineering 
& Surveying to 
Nelson Pope & 

Voorhis and Hawkins 
Webb & Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Environmental 

Consulting 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
and Hawkins 

Webb & Jaeger 
and General 

Public

Provides 
Surveying 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
Exclusively

Owns Buildings 
Leased by Nelson & 

Pope Exclusively

Provides 
Management 
Services to 

Hawkins Webb & 
Jaeger Exclusively

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying Eervices 
to Nelson & Pope 

and Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis and General 

Public

Provides 
Drilling/Soil 

Sampling Services 
to Nelson and Pope, 

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, Hawkins 
Webb Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying 
Services in the 

State of 
Connecticut

Provides 
Construction/

Contract 
Management to 
General Public

Environmental 
Consulting On 

Call services for 
Nassau County, 

NY

Provides 
Topographic 

Surveying Services 
to New York City 
Department of 

Design and 
Construction

- - - - - - -

Nelson & Pope etal.  - Partners Ownership Percentages - 01/01/2020
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Gregory D. Peterman, PLS

State/Province/Territory: NY
Country: US

Business Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD
City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747
Country US
Telephone: (631) 427-5665

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
See attached.
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 1 File(s) Uploaded: PQF_Ques 5_ ALL Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020.pdf 

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Affiliates of N&P have been awarded governmental contracts.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Gregory D. Peterman, PLS , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Gregory D. Peterman, PLS , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

N&P Engineering, Architecture, & Land  Surveying, PLLC
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Gregory D. Peterman, PLS [GPETERMAN@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Partner
Title

03/24/2020 04:31:53 PM
Date



N & P Engineering, 
Architecture and 
Land  Surveying, 

PLLC

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, LLC

N&P 
Construction 

Layout

572 Walt Whitman 
Road Associates, 

LLC

Vornel 
Management

HWJ Engineering & 
Surveying PLLC 

d/b/a Hawkins Webb 
Jaeger

East Coast 
Geoservices LLC

N & P 
Engineering LLC

Hawkins Webb, 
LLC

Haks-Nelson &  
Pope JV N&P-GdB

Tax ID 11-3551992 11-3353292 11-3237008 11-3332281 42-1564513 20-0466961 26-3957238 81-0721476  (81-3261538) 27-4404689 46-0604678

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas

Peterman, Gregory

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas

Scott, Russell 
 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matthew

Voorhis, Charles

McGinn, Steven

Eiseman, Kathryn

O'Farrell, Carrie

Franson, Bonnie  (Maria)

Stach, Maximilian 

Russo, Michael 

Monahan, Patrick

N&P, Engineers & Land Surveyor, PLLC - - - - -
Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC - - - - - - - -
Haks Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors - - - - - - -                    - - -
Gayron de Bruin, Land Surveying and Engineering, PC - - - - - - - - - -

Description of Services 

Provides Engineering 
& Surveying to 
Nelson Pope & 

Voorhis and Hawkins 
Webb & Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Environmental 

Consulting 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
and Hawkins 

Webb & Jaeger 
and General 

Public

Provides 
Surveying 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
Exclusively

Owns Buildings 
Leased by Nelson & 

Pope Exclusively

Provides 
Management 
Services to 

Hawkins Webb & 
Jaeger Exclusively

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying Eervices 
to Nelson & Pope 

and Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis and General 

Public

Provides 
Drilling/Soil 

Sampling Services 
to Nelson and Pope, 

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, Hawkins 
Webb Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying 
Services in the 

State of 
Connecticut

Provides 
Construction/

Contract 
Management to 
General Public

Environmental 
Consulting On 

Call services for 
Nassau County, 

NY

Provides 
Topographic 

Surveying Services 
to New York City 
Department of 

Design and 
Construction

- - - - - - -

Nelson & Pope etal.  - Partners Ownership Percentages - 01/01/2020

-

--

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - -

-

-

-

-

-

-

---

- -

-

-

-

-

- --

-

--

-

-

-

-

-

-

- -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

--

--

-

- - - -

- -

- -

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

-

-

-

-

-

-

- -- - - - - -



Page 1 of 6 Rev. 3-2016

Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 03/24/2020

1) Proposer's Legal Name: N&P Engineering, Architecture and Land  Surveying, PLLC

2) Address of Place of Business: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD

   City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747

Country: US

3) Mailing Address (if different): 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD

   City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

  Phone: (631) 427-5665

  Does the business own or rent its facilities? If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: 057732869

5) Federal I.D. Number: 11-3551992

6) The proposer is a: Partnership  (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

    YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
    

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_Ques 7_ ALL Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020.pdf 

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES X NO If yes, please provide details:

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_Ques 8_ ALL Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020 .pdf 

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
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YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Please see attached

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_Ques 9_ ALL Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020 .pdf 

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES X NO If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
See attached.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: Business History Form Q13 Response_10.17.19.pdf 

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
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c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
Refer to attached page.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_ Ques _ 17 A i_ii_iii (Bus Hx Form resp 17 A_i_ii_iii_rev 09.17.2019).pdf 

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.
Refer to attached page.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_ Ques _ 17 A i_ii_iii (Bus Hx Form resp 17 A_i_ii_iii_rev 09.17.2019).pdf 

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
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conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
Refer to attached page.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_ Ques _ 17 A i_ii_iii (Bus Hx Form resp 17 A_i_ii_iii_rev 09.17.2019).pdf 

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of 
interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
Refer to attached page.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_Ques _ 17 B (Bus Hx Form resp 17 B_rev 09.17.2019).pdf 

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive 
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be 
identified. 

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES NO X

Is the proposer an individual?
YES NO X Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;
01/01/1954

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including 
shareholders, members, general or limited partner.  If none, explain.

No individuals with a financial interest in the company have been attached..

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_Ques_A ii_iii_NP ONLY Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020.pdf 

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.

No officers and directors from this company have been attached. 

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_Ques_A ii_iii_NP ONLY Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020.pdf 

iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);
NY

v) The number of employees in the firm;

vi) Annual revenue of firm;

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments
see proposal submission

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

 1 File(s) Uploaded: BHF_Ques_A viii_ NP Cert of Auth Eng & Sur.pdf 
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B. Indicate number of years in business.
65

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity 
and reliability to perform these services.
See proposal submitted.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar 
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company Suffolk County Department of Public Works
Contact Person
Address 335 Yaphank Avenue
City Yaphank State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone
Fax #
E-Mail Address

Company Town of Oyster Bay Department of Public Works
Contact Person
Address Division of Engineering, 150 Miller Place
City Syosset, NY State/Province/Territory NY
Country US 
Telephone
Fax # (
E-Mail Address

Company Town of Brookhaven Highway Department
Contact Person
Address 1140 Old Town Road
City Coram, NY State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone
Fax #
E-Mail Address
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I, Thomas F. Lembo, PE , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Thomas F. Lembo, PE , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information 
and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: N&P Engineering, Architecture, & Land  Surveying, PLLC

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Thomas F. Lembo, PE [TLEMBO@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Partner/Compliance Officer
Title

03/24/2020 05:03:39 PM
Date



 

 



N & P Engineering, 
Architecture and 
Land  Surveying, 

PLLC

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, LLC

N&P 
Construction 

Layout

572 Walt Whitman 
Road Associates, 

LLC

Vornel 
Management

HWJ Engineering & 
Surveying PLLC 

d/b/a Hawkins Webb 
Jaeger

East Coast 
Geoservices LLC

N & P 
Engineering LLC

Hawkins Webb, 
LLC

Haks-Nelson &  
Pope JV N&P-GdB

Tax ID 11-3551992 11-3353292 11-3237008 11-3332281 42-1564513 20-0466961 26-3957238 81-0721476  (81-3261538) 27-4404689 46-0604678

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas

Peterman, Gregory

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas

Scott, Russell 
 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matthew

Voorhis, Charles

McGinn, Steven

Eiseman, Kathryn

O'Farrell, Carrie

Franson, Bonnie  (Maria)

Stach, Maximilian 

Russo, Michael 

Monahan, Patrick

N&P, Engineers & Land Surveyor, PLLC - - - - -
Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC - - - - - - - -
Haks Engineers, Architects and Land Surveyors - - - - - - -                    - - -
Gayron de Bruin, Land Surveying and Engineering, PC - - - - - - - - - -

Description of Services 

Provides Engineering 
& Surveying to 
Nelson Pope & 

Voorhis and Hawkins 
Webb & Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Environmental 

Consulting 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
and Hawkins 

Webb & Jaeger 
and General 

Public

Provides 
Surveying 
Services to 

Nelson & Pope 
Exclusively

Owns Buildings 
Leased by Nelson & 

Pope Exclusively

Provides 
Management 
Services to 

Hawkins Webb & 
Jaeger Exclusively

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying Eervices 
to Nelson & Pope 

and Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis and General 

Public

Provides 
Drilling/Soil 

Sampling Services 
to Nelson and Pope, 

Nelson Pope & 
Voorhis, Hawkins 
Webb Jaeger and 

General Public

Provides 
Architectural, 
Engineering & 

Surveying 
Services in the 

State of 
Connecticut

Provides 
Construction/

Contract 
Management to 
General Public

Environmental 
Consulting On 

Call services for 
Nassau County, 

NY

Provides 
Topographic 

Surveying Services 
to New York City 
Department of 

Design and 
Construction

- - - - - - -

Nelson & Pope etal.  - Partners Ownership Percentages - 01/01/2020
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NELSON & POPE 

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | SURVEYORS 
 

JOSEPH R. EPIFANIA, PE • ROBERT G. NELSON JR., PE • THOMAS F. LEMBO, PE • ERIC J. McFERRAN, PE 
THOMAS C. DIXON, PE • GREGORY D. PETERMAN, PLS • RUSSELL Z. SCOTT, PE • MICHAEL A. SCIARA, RA 

 
VICTOR BERT, PE • GARY S. BECKER, PE 

 
572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD, MELVILLE NY 11747-2188 

PHONE: 631.427.5665 • FAX: 631.427.5620 • NELSONPOPE.COM 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Business History Form  
Response to Question 13: Investigations 

 
 
Nassau County Integrity Monitoring Agreement: 
 
Nelson & Pope’s Business History Form filings have disclosed existing familial relationships  

that could have the appearance of a conflict of interest.   
Nelson & Pope voluntarily entered into an  Agreement with Nassau County.  

The express purpose of the agreement is to assure the County of N&P’s commitment to business 
integrity and compliance with County requirements  

   
 
 

 As a result of the  review, N&P agreed to commit to maintaining an effective 
“Compliance Program” as set forth in the County’s document.   

 
 

  In compliance with the document, N&P 
has completed the follow actions: 
 

• The company has assigned a partner, approved by the County, to function as a Compliance 
Officer, responsible for monitoring and enforcing the Company’s Compliance and Ethics 
Policies. 

• The Company has prepared and adopted the “N&P Protocols for Nassau County Projects”, 
approved by the County, that contains the Company’s policy and procedure relating to 
preventing and monitoring actual or relationships that could be perceived as conflicts of interest. 

• The Company has incorporated the N&P Protocols and the “Nassau County Vendor Code of 
Ethics” into the Company Employee Handbook. 

• All Company staff have submitted signed “Acknowledgement” disclosure forms identifying the 
existence or non-existence of having Covered Relationships, in compliance with the N&P 
Protocols. 

• All Company staff have received the required compliance and ethics training. 
• The Company has filed an updated Business History Form to reflect the implementation of the 

compliance and ethics policies and results of the staff “Acknowledgement” disclosures. 
• The Company’s new employee package includes the “Acknowledgement” disclosure form and 

individual compliance and ethics training.  
 
 



NELSON & POPE 

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | SURVEYORS 
 

JOSEPH R. EPIFANIA, PE • ROBERT G. NELSON JR., PE • THOMAS F. LEMBO, PE • ERIC J. McFERRAN, PE 
THOMAS C. DIXON, PE • GREGORY D. PETERMAN, PLS • RUSSELL Z. SCOTT, PE • MICHAEL A. SCIARA, RA 

 
VICTOR BERT, PE • GARY S. BECKER, PE 

 
572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD, MELVILLE NY 11747-2188 

PHONE: 631.427.5665 • FAX: 631.427.5620 • NELSONPOPE.COM 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Business History Form  
Responses to Question 17A (i), 17 A(ii) and 17(iii) 

 
 
17A (i), 17 A(ii) and 17(iii) Response:  
 
A few years after beginning  employment at N&P, 

 
. As discussed in our response to  all N&P staff are required to sign 

an , that is included with our Nassau County approved “N&P 
Protocols for Nassau County Projects”. In the Acknowledgment, the staff must identify any 
“Covered Relationships” that exist.  After reviewing the definition of a Family Member on page 
111 of the Nassau County Vendor Code of Ethics, it is our opinion and that of attorney, the 
N&P employee does not have any “Covered Relationships”.  Therefore, there exists no actual or 
appearance of a conflict of interest. 
 
Five (5) N&P staff did identify in their signed Acknowledgement Certifications that they had 
“Covered Relationships”.  Three (3) staff members identified relations that were Nassau County 
Police Officers, one (1) staff member identified a brother who is a Nassau County Police 
Detective and one (1) employee who identified a daughter who in 2017 was hired as a Clerk 
Laborer I in the Nassau County Clerk’s Office, two (2) years following his commencing 
employment with N&P.  Due to the work responsibilities of the individuals identified as 
“Covered Relationships”, there is no existing actual or appearance of a conflict of interest that 
would prevent these N&P staff from working on all aspects of  Nassau County projects or 
soliciting or prepare proposals for future Nassau County projects. 
 
 
 



NELSON & POPE 

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | SURVEYORS 
 

JOSEPH R. EPIFANIA, PE • ROBERT G. NELSON JR., PE • THOMAS F. LEMBO, PE • ERIC J. McFERRAN, PE 
THOMAS C. DIXON, PE • GREGORY D. PETERMAN, PLS • RUSSELL Z. SCOTT, PE • MICHAEL A. SCIARA, RA 

 
VICTOR BERT, PE • GARY S. BECKER, PE 

 
572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD, MELVILLE NY 11747-2188 

PHONE: 631.427.5665 • FAX: 631.427.5620 • NELSONPOPE.COM 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Business History Form  
Responses to Question 17B 

 
 
17B Response:  
 
All N&P employees have signed and are bound by Section 2.33 Duty of Loyalty/Code of Ethics, 
Conflict of Interest, pages 49 through 54 of the N&P Employee Handbook (dated 2019) 
which describes the responsibility of the employee with respect to conflicts of interest.  
Additionally, contained in the Appendix of the Handbook are N&P Protocols for Nassau County 
Projects and a copy of the Nassau County Vendor Code of Ethics pages 106 through 123. N&P 
Protocols for Nassau County Projects has been reviewed and approved by the Compliance 
section of the Nassau County’s Office of the County Executive.  It Contains an 
Acknowledgement Certification, which all Staff must sign and identify any “Covered 
Relationships” that is an actual or may have the appearance of a conflict of interest. It is N&P’s 
company-wide policy that all potential projects and proposals are reviewed by partners and 
senior staff to identify the potential existence or appearance of conflicts of interest prior to 
accepting the project.  If an actual or may have the existence of a, the company will make full 
disclosure and implement appropriate measures to mitigate the potential conflict.   For Nassau 
County projects, our Nassau County designated Compliance Officer is notified, and the 
appropriate mitigation will be implemented.  If it is found that an employee did not disclose a 
potential conflict of interest, they are subject to disciplinary action as stated in the handbook.  
Additionally, the ethical requirements of the professional licenses of partners and professional 
staff prohibit them from not disclosing known potential conflicts of interest that may exist. 
 
 



Ownership Position Profession State Lic #

Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas NY 74701

FL 58849

Peterman, Gregory NY 50213

CT 70061

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas NY 80973

CT 24626

Scott, Russell 

 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matt NY

- - - -

NY 31986

N & P Engineering, Architecture and Land  Surveying, PLLC

57296

Partners Information as of  01/01/2020

Partner Engineer NY

NY 76844Partner Engineer

Partner Surveyor

Partner Engineer

NY 87707

Partner 

Partner 

Engineer

Engineer

Partner Surveyor 50065

Partner Architect
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: N&P Engineering, Architecture and Land  Surveying, PLLC

Address: 572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD

City: MELVILLE State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11747

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 11-3551992

3. Type of Business: Partnership (specify)

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable 
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and 
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

1 File(s) uploaded VDF_Ques 4 & 5_NP ONLY Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020.pdf 

 No principals have been attached to this form.  

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an 
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
 

 1 File(s) uploaded VDF_Ques 4 & 5_NP ONLY Partners_Ownership w-add_01.03.2020.pdf 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter 
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the 
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not 
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

See attached. 

 1 File(s) uploaded CCVD Q6 Response _Proposal_GOSR.pdf 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client 
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, 
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real 
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, 
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or 
promote a matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or 
committees.
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or 
promote a matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or 
committees.

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New 
York State):
NONE - N&P nor any of our affiliates engages or has engaged the services of a lobbyist to influence or 
promote a matter before the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or 
committees.

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Thomas F. Lembo, PE [TLEMBO@NELSONPOPE.COM]

Dated: 04/30/2020 01:51:14 PM

Title: Senor Partner/Compliance Officer
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.
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Nelson, Robert, Jr.

Lembo, Thomas NY 74701

FL 58849

Peterman, Gregory NY 50213

CT 70061

McFerran, Eric

Dixon, Thomas NY 80973

CT 24626

Scott, Russell 

 

Sciara, Michael 

Crane, Matt NY
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N & P Engineering, Architecture and Land  Surveying, PLLC
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Partners Information as of  01/01/2020

Partner Engineer NY

NY 76844Partner Engineer

Partner Surveyor

Partner Engineer

NY 87707

Partner 

Partner 

Engineer

Engineer

Partner Surveyor 50065

Partner Architect



NELSON & POPE 

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | SURVEYORS 
 

JOSEPH R. EPIFANIA, PE • ROBERT G. NELSON JR., PE • THOMAS F. LEMBO, PE • ERIC J. McFERRAN, PE 
THOMAS C. DIXON, PE • GREGORY D. PETERMAN, PLS • RUSSELL Z. SCOTT, PE • MICHAEL A. SCIARA, RA 

 
VICTOR BERT, PE • GARY S. BECKER, PE 

 
572 WALT WHITMAN ROAD, MELVILLE NY 11747-2188 

PHONE: 631.427.5665 • FAX: 631.427.5620 • NELSONPOPE.COM 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Consultant’s, Contractor’s and Vendor’s Disclosure (CCVD)  
Form Response to Question 6 

 
 
The following is a list of all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to Nelson & Pope:   
 

• N&P Construction Layout (N&P Partners are Individual Owners) 
• Nelson Pope & Voorhis, LLC (N&P Majority Owner) 
• 572 Walt Whitman Road Associates, LLC (N&P Partners are Individual Owners) 
• Vornel Management (N&P Majority Owner) 
• HWJ Engineering & Surveying PLLC d/b/a Hawkins Webb Jaeger (N&P Majority Owner) 
• N&P Engineering LLC (N&P Majority Owner) 
• East Coast Geoservices LLC (N&P Minority Owner) 

 
It is anticipated for the PROPOSALS: CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT & INSPECTION 
PABEMENT MARKINGS (pin 0760.56 & 0760.61)) that none of the above affiliates/related 
companies may take part in the performance of the contract.   







































































U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS 
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER 

Certification Regarding 
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion 

Lower Tier Covered Transactions 
(Sub-Recipient) 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment 
and Suspension, 28 CFR Part 67, Section 67.510, Participants' responsibilities. The regulations 
were published as Part VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal Register (pages 19160�19211 ). 
(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE) 
(1) The prospective lower tier participant certlfies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it
nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any Federal
department of agency.
(2) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Thomas F. Lembo, PE, Partner 

Name and Title of Aut ntative m/d/yy 

�< 
/'--. ___,,_,,,,. 

04/06/2020 

Signature Date 

N & P Engineering, Architecture and Land Surveying, PLLC 

Name of Organization 

572 Walt Whitman Road, Melville, NY 11747 

Address of Organization 

"'"""°"OJP FORM 4061/1 (REV. 2/89) Previous editions are obsolete 



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

2/27/2020

PG Genatt Group LLC
3333 NEW HYDE PARK RD
SUITE 409
NEW HYDE PARK NY 11042

Alyson Graziosi
516-869-8788 1-516-706-2973

agraziosi@crpgrp.com

Trumbull Insurance Company
NPENGIN Continental Insurance 35289

N & P Engineering, Architecture and Land Surveying
PLLC d/b/a Nelson & Pope, Engineers & Surveyors
572 Walt Whitman Road
Melville NY 11747

Travelers Indemnity Company 25658
Berkley Insurance Company 32603

698266017

B X 1,000,000
X 100,000

X Contractual Liab 5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

X

6020187116 8/14/2019 8/14/2020

2,000,000

EMP BEN. 1,000,000

A 1,000,000
X

XX

12UENBJ3980 8/14/2019 8/14/2020

C X X 11,000,000ZUP81M3928119NF

11,000,000

8/14/2019 8/14/2020

D PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY AEC-9035314-06 3/8/2020 3/8/2021 $2,000,000
$4,000,000

PER CLAIM
AGGREGATE

NAMED INSURED ADDRESS: 572 Walt Whitman Road, Melville, 11747
Nassau County is included as an additional insured under General Liability
where required by written contract.

30 day notice applies

NASSAU COUNTY
1194 PROSPECT AVENUE
WESTBURY NY 11590-2723







Certifed: 

NIFS ID:CQAT20000002    Department: County Attorney

Capital: 
SERVICE: Special counsel

Contract ID #:CQAT20000002 NIFS Entry Date: 08-JAN-20 Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: N

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): Y

5) Insurance Required Y

Vendor Info:

Name: Bee Ready Fishbein 
Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Vendor ID#: 113299284

Address: 170 Old Country Road

Mineola, NY 11501

Contact Person: Peter Bee

Phone: 

Department:

Contact Name: Jaclyn Delle

Address: 1 West Street

Mineola, NY 11501

Phone: 5165713054

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 06-FEB-20 -- JDELLE

Department NIFS Approval: X 03-MAR-20 -- SBERMAN

DPW Capital Fund Approved: 

OMB NIFA Approval: X 16-MAR-20 -- IQURESHI

OMB NIFS Approval: X 03-MAR-20 -- JNOGID

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 04-MAR-20 -- AAMATO

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 03-MAR-20 -- DMCDERMOTT

CPO Approval: X 02-APR-20 -- KOHAGENCE

E-97-20



 

DCEC Approval: X 03-APR-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 06-JUL-20 -- HWILLIAMS

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- JSCHANTZ

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: This is a new contract with the law firm Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP for representation of the County in 

litigations alleging discriminatory practices by the County.  The specific litigations assigned under this contract are more fully set 

forth in Appendix A of the contract.  Such litigations were previously assigned to the law firm under County contract number 

CQAT15000002, which expired on December 31, 2018.  This new contract is to ensure continuity of services on the litigations until 

they are resolved.

Method of Procurement: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP was assigned the litigations set forth in Appendix A of this 

contract under a previous contract with the County (CQAT15000002) after a written Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") was issued 

and a panel of firms qualified to provide legal services for the County was established.  The firm was selected from the panel to handle

the matters based on the firm, and specifically Peter Bee's, expertise, experience, and qualifications in the area of employment and 

labor law.  The firm was re-qualified after an RFQ was issued on April 25, 2018.

Procurement History: New contract.  Please see method of procurement above.

Description of General Provisions: As described above.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: $816,250 maximum amount, with an initial partial encumbrance of $424,275.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: N/A

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as submitted.

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: GEN/PDD/GEN
Control: CC/PD/AT
Resp: 1540/2490/1100
Object: DE500/500/502
Transaction:
Project #:
Detail:

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

FUNDING
SOURCE

AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 424,275.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 0.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 424,275.00

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE

AMOUNT

1 CCGEN1540/DE500 $ 149,000.00

2 PDPDD2490/DE500 $ 65,000.00

3 ATGEN1100/DE502 $ 210,275.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 424,275.00



   RULES RESOLUTION NO.           – 2020 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

TO EXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, AND BEE READY FISHBEIN 

HATTER & DONOVAN, LLP. 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated a personal services agreement 

with Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP to provide legal services, 

a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, 

be it 

  

 RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County 

Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement 

with Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP. 



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $816250

Amount to be encumbered:   $424275

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 01/01/2019 - completion of services
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? Y  

If yes, please explain: Services continuing on active litigation as contract is routed for 
approvals.

4. Funding Source:

X  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 0

County %   100

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

This is a new contract with the law firm Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter &amp; Donovan, LLP for representation of the County in litigations alleging discriminatory 
practices by the County.  The specific litigations assigned under this contract are more fully set forth in Appendix A of the contract.  Such litigations were 
previously assigned to the law firm under County contract number CQAT15000002, which expired on December 31, 2018.  This new contract is to ensure 
continuity of services on the litigations until they are resolved.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:



Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   IQURESHI   16-MAR-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES X NO If yes, to what campaign committee?  
Maureen O'Connell for County Clerk
Friends of Ed Mangano
Friends of Maragos
Friends of Norma Gonsalves
Friends of Laura Curran
Martins for Nassau
Friends of Paul Sapienza
Howard Kopel for Legislature
Labriola for Comptroller
Friends for the Election of Vincent Muscarella
Friends of Rose Walker
Citizens for Nicolello
Pete King for Congress
Friends for Steven Rhoads
Friends of Bruce Blakeman
Friends of Laura Schaefer

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Laura L. Hansen [LHANSEN@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Dated: 03/31/2020 04:09:06 PM Vendor: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Title: Office Manager
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Richard P. Ready
Date of birth:
Home address:
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:

Business Address: 170 Old Country Road, Ste. 200
City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501
Country US
Telephone: (516) 746-5599

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner 03/01/1995
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
50% equity interest in the law firm.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
50% owner - Executive Settlement Company, LLC
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Richard P. Ready , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Richard P. Ready , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Richard P. Ready [LHANSEN@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Partner
Title

03/31/2020 03:29:15 PM
Date
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Peter A. Bee
Date of birth:
Home address:
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:

Business Address: 170 Old Country Road
City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501
Country US
Telephone: (516) 746-5599

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner 03/01/1977
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
50% owner

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
As equity partner, personally liable on certain firm obligations

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
VP & 50% owner of Executive Settlement Company LLC, 170 Old Country Road, Mineola, NY 11501
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Peter A. Bee , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Peter A. Bee , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Peter A. Bee [PBEE@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Partner
Title

04/01/2020 03:13:43 PM
Date
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Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 01/21/2020

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

2) Address of Place of Business: 170 Old Country Road, Ste. 200

   City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501

Country: US

3) Mailing Address (if different): None

   City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

  Phone:

  Does the business own or rent its facilities? Rent If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: N/A

5) Federal I.D. Number: 11-3299284

6) The proposer is a: Partnership  (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

    YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
    Executive Settlement Company, LLC

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:
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10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
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element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.
No conflict exists

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists except for instances wherein this form represents a co-defendant in litigation and a 
cross-claim against the County may be appropriate.  In all such cases, this office would obtain a waiver 
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from respective clients before proceeding.

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of 
interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
This firm utilizes both a manual and computer based program to review for any conflict of issue 
questions.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive 
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be 
identified. 

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES X NO

Is the proposer an individual?
YES X NO Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including 
shareholders, members, general or limited partner.  If none, explain.

No individuals with a financial interest in the company have been attached..

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.

No officers and directors from this company have been attached. 

iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);

v) The number of employees in the firm;

vi) Annual revenue of firm;

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business.
36

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity 
and reliability to perform these services.
N/A
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D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar 
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company Town of Hempstead
Contact Person William Sammon
Address One Washington Street, Town Hall Plaza
City Hempstead State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone (516) 489-2506
Fax #
E-Mail Address wsammon@tohmail.org

Company Inc. Village of Garden City
Contact Person Ralph Suozzi
Address 351 Stewart Avenue
City Garden City State/Province/Territory NY
Country US 
Telephone (516) 465-4000
Fax # (516) 742-5223
E-Mail Address rsuozzi@gardencityny.net

Company Village of Freeport
Contact Person Howard Colton
Address 46 N. Ocean Avenue
City Freeport State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone (516) 377-2393
Fax #
E-Mail Address hcolton@freeportny.gov
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I, Laura L. Hansen , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Laura L. Hansen , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information 
and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Laura L. Hansen [LHANSEN@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Office Manager
Title

03/31/2020 04:14:01 PM
Date
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Address: 170 Old Country Road, Ste. 200

City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 11-3299284

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) Limited Liability Partnership

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable 
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and 
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

1 File(s) uploaded NC CCV Disclosure form.pdf 

 
 
First Name Peter
Last Name Bee
MI A Suffix
Address
City State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country
Position partner

First Name Richard
Last Name Ready
MI P Suffix
Address
City State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country
Position Partner

 

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an 
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
Same as above 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter 
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the 
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not 
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.
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Executive Settlement, LLC 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client 
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, 
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real 
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, 
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
None

(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
None

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New 
York State):
None

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Laura L. Hansen [LHANSEN@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Dated: 03/31/2020 04:17:38 PM

Title: Office Manager
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.















































Certifed: 

NIFS ID:CQAT20000001    Department: County Attorney

Capital: 
SERVICE: Special counsel

Contract ID #:CQAT20000001 NIFS Entry Date: 08-JAN-20 Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: N

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): Y

5) Insurance Required Y

Vendor Info:

Name: Bee Ready Fishbein 
Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Vendor ID#: 113299284

Address: 170 Old Country Road

Mineola, NY 11501

Contact Person: Peter Bee

Phone: 

Department:

Contact Name: Jaclyn Delle

Address: 1 West Street

Mineola, NY 11501

Phone: 5165713054

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 06-FEB-20 -- JDELLE

Department NIFS Approval: X 03-MAR-20 -- SBERMAN

DPW Capital Fund Approved: 

OMB NIFA Approval: X 16-MAR-20 -- IQURESHI

OMB NIFS Approval: X 03-MAR-20 -- JNOGID

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 04-MAR-20 -- AAMATO

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 03-MAR-20 -- DMCDERMOTT

CPO Approval: X 02-APR-20 -- KOHAGENCE

E-98-20



 

DCEC Approval: X 03-APR-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 06-JUL-20 -- HWILLIAMS

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- GCASTILLO

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: This is a new contract with the law firm Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP for representation of the County as 

outside counsel in litigation challenging the calculation of overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act ("FLSA").  The law firm has 

been handling these matters under a previous contract (County contract number CQAT15000002).  CQAT15000002 expired on 

December 31, 2018 and this new contract is to ensure continuity of services on the matters until the matters are resolved. 

Method of Procurement: The law firm Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP was assigned the litigations set forth in 

"Appendix A" of the attached agreement under a previous contract (CQAT15000002) after a Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") was 

issued and a panel of firms qualified to provide legal services for the County was established.  The firm was selected from the panel to

handle the matters based on the firm, and specifically the attorney Peter Bee's, expertise, experience, and qualifications in the area of 

employment and labor law.  The firm was re-qualified after an RFQ was issued on April 25, 2018.

Procurement History: New contract.  Please see method of procurement above.

Description of General Provisions: As described above.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: $1,002,625 maximum amount, with an initial partial encumbrance of $424,250.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: N/A

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as submitted.

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: GEN/PDD/GEN
Control: CC/PD/AT
Resp: 1540/2490/1100
Object: DE500/500/502
Transaction:
Project #:
Detail:

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

FUNDING
SOURCE

AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 424,250.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 0.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 424,250.00

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE

AMOUNT

1 CCGEN1540/DE500 $ 24,000.00

2 PDPDD2490/DE500 $ 217,000.00

3 ATGEN1100/DE502 $ 183,250.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 424,250.00



   RULES RESOLUTION NO.           – 2020 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

TO EXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, AND BEE READY FISHBEIN 

HATTER & DONOVAN, LLP. 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated a personal services agreement 

with Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP to provide legal services, 

a copy of which is on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, 

be it 

  

 RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County 

Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said agreement 

with Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP. 



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $1002625

Amount to be encumbered:   $424250

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 01/01/2019-completion of services
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? Y  

If yes, please explain: Services continuing on active litigation as contract routed for 
approvals.

4. Funding Source:

X  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 0

County %   100

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

This is a new contract with the law firm Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter &amp; Donovan, LLP for representation of the County as outside counsel in litigation 
challenging the calculation of overtime under the Fair Labor Standards Act (&quot;FLSA&quot;).  The law firm has been handling these matters under a 
previous contract (County contract number CQAT15000002).  CQAT15000002 expired on December 31, 2018 and this new contract is to ensure continuity 
of services on the matters until the matters are resolved. 

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:



Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   IQURESHI   16-MAR-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES X NO If yes, to what campaign committee?  
Maureen O'Connell for County Clerk
Friends of Ed Mangano
Friends of Maragos
Friends of Norma Gonsalves
Friends of Laura Curran
Martins for Nassau
Friends of Paul Sapienza
Howard Kopel for Legislature
Labriola for Comptroller
Friends for the Election of Vincent Muscarella
Friends of Rose Walker
Citizens for Nicolello
Pete King for Congress
Friends for Steven Rhoads
Friends of Bruce Blakeman
Friends of Laura Schaefer

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Laura L. Hansen [LHANSEN@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Dated: 03/31/2020 04:09:06 PM Vendor: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Title: Office Manager
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Richard P. Ready
Date of birth:
Home address:
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:

Business Address: 170 Old Country Road, Ste. 200
City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501
Country US
Telephone: (516) 746-5599

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner 03/01/1995
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
50% equity interest in the law firm.

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
50% owner - Executive Settlement Company, LLC
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Richard P. Ready , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Richard P. Ready , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Richard P. Ready [RREADY@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Partner
Title

04/08/2020 09:13:14 AM
Date
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Peter A. Bee
Date of birth:
Home address:
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:

Business Address: 170 Old Country Road
City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501
Country US
Telephone: (516) 746-5599

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner 03/01/1977
Vice President
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
50% owner

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
As equity partner, personally liable on certain firm obligations

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
VP & 50% owner of Executive Settlement Company LLC, 170 Old Country Road, Mineola, NY 11501
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Peter A. Bee , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Peter A. Bee , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Peter A. Bee [PBEE@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Partner
Title

04/01/2020 03:13:43 PM
Date
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Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 01/21/2020

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

2) Address of Place of Business: 170 Old Country Road, Ste. 200

   City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501

Country: US

3) Mailing Address (if different): None

   City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

  Phone:

  Does the business own or rent its facilities? Rent If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: N/A

5) Federal I.D. Number: 11-3299284

6) The proposer is a: Partnership  (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

    YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
    Executive Settlement Company, LLC

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:
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10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
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element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.
No conflict exists

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists except for instances wherein this form represents a co-defendant in litigation and a 
cross-claim against the County may be appropriate.  In all such cases, this office would obtain a waiver 
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from respective clients before proceeding.

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of 
interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
This firm utilizes both a manual and computer based program to review for any conflict of issue 
questions.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive 
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be 
identified. 

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES X NO

Is the proposer an individual?
YES X NO Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including 
shareholders, members, general or limited partner.  If none, explain.

No individuals with a financial interest in the company have been attached..

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.

No officers and directors from this company have been attached. 

iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);

v) The number of employees in the firm;

vi) Annual revenue of firm;

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business.
36

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity 
and reliability to perform these services.
N/A
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D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar 
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company Town of Hempstead
Contact Person William Sammon
Address One Washington Street, Town Hall Plaza
City Hempstead State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone (516) 489-2506
Fax #
E-Mail Address wsammon@tohmail.org

Company Inc. Village of Garden City
Contact Person Ralph Suozzi
Address 351 Stewart Avenue
City Garden City State/Province/Territory NY
Country US 
Telephone (516) 465-4000
Fax # (516) 742-5223
E-Mail Address rsuozzi@gardencityny.net

Company Village of Freeport
Contact Person Howard Colton
Address 46 N. Ocean Avenue
City Freeport State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone (516) 377-2393
Fax #
E-Mail Address hcolton@freeportny.gov
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I, Laura L. Hansen , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Laura L. Hansen , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information 
and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Laura L. Hansen [LHANSEN@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Office Manager
Title

03/31/2020 04:14:01 PM
Date
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: Bee Ready Fishbein Hatter & Donovan, LLP

Address: 170 Old Country Road, Ste. 200

City: Mineola State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11501

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 11-3299284

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) Limited Liability Partnership

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable 
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and 
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

1 File(s) uploaded NC CCV Disclosure form.pdf 

 
 
First Name Peter
Last Name Bee
MI A Suffix
Address
City State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country
Position partner

First Name Richard
Last Name Ready
MI P Suffix
Address
City State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country
Position Partner

 

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an 
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
Same as above 

 No shareholders, members, or partners have been attached to this form.

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter 
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the 
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not 
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.
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Executive Settlement, LLC 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client 
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, 
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real 
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, 
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
None

(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
None

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New 
York State):
None

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Laura L. Hansen [LHANSEN@BEEREADYLAW.COM]

Dated: 03/31/2020 04:17:38 PM

Title: Office Manager
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.

























Appendix A 

 

The cases assigned to Counsel under this Agreement are as follows: 

Alberti, et al v. Nassau County (CSEA employees)  

Arciello, et al v. Nassau County (CSEA /COBA employees) 

Gurrieri, et al. v. Nassau County (Police Ambulance Medical Technicians)  

Chodkowski, et al.  v. Nassau County (Police Communications Operators and Supervisors) - #1 

Chodkowski, et al.  v. Nassau County (Police Communications Operators and Supervisors 

alleging breach of contract under Ebbert and Volpe settlement agreements to address gender 

pay discrepancies) - #2 

Chodkowski, et al. v. Nassau County (Police Communications Operators and Supervisors 

seeking leave to file late notice of claim related to Chadkowski #1 lawsuit) - #3 

Burns, et al. v. Nassau County (Corrections Officers Class Action regarding overtime) 

 























Certifed: 

NIFS ID:CQAT20000004    Department: County Attorney

Capital: 
SERVICE: Contract

Contract ID #:CQAT20000004 NIFS Entry Date: 04-JUN-20 Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: N

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): N

5) Insurance Required Y

Vendor Info:

Name: The Zoghlin Group, 
PLLC.

Vendor ID#: 

Address: 300 State Street

Suite 502

Rochester, NY  14614

Contact Person:  

Department:

Contact Name: Mary Nori, Esq.

Address: 1 West Street

Mineola, NY 11501

Phone: 516-571-6083

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 05-JUN-20 -- MREYNOLDSAT

Department NIFS Approval: X 05-JUN-20 -- SBERMAN

DPW Capital Fund Approved: 

OMB NIFA Approval: X 11-JUN-20 -- IQURESHI

OMB NIFS Approval: X 08-JUN-20 -- JNOGID

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 09-JUN-20 -- NSARANDIS

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 09-JUN-20 -- JDELLE

E-99-20



 

CPO Approval: X 29-JUN-20 -- KOHAGENCE

DCEC Approval: X 30-JUN-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 06-JUL-20 -- HWILLIAMS

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 06-JUL-20 -- JSCHANTZ

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: The services to be provided by Counsel under this Agreement shall consist of consulting and providing legal counsel to the 

Nassau County Planning Commission ("NCPC") on the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act ("SEQRA"), including 

providing legal interpretations of SEQRA review and advising on the legal aspects of the SEQRA process relating to the major 

subdivision at Willow View Estates (f/k/ a the Woodmere Country Club) ("Willow View Estates") (the "Services").

Method of Procurement: A Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") was issued and a panel of firms qualified to provide legal services 

for the County has been established. The firm Zoghlin Group PLLC has submitted a proposal in response to the RFQ and has been 

added to this panel.

Procurement History: After a review of the panel, based on the firm's experience, expertise in the subject matters, and availability, 

the firm has been determined to be qualified by the Department to have expertise in legal areas including the New York State 

Environmental Quality Review Act ("SEQRA"), land use and zoning, and assigned the matter more fully detailed in the attached 

routing documents. The attachment includes a specific delineation of the unique skills and experience, the specific reasons why a 

proposal is deemed superior, and/or why the proposer has been judged to be able to perform more quickly than other proposers. 

Description of General Provisions: Services under this Agreement shall include, but not be limited to, legal guidance; motion 

practice; pre-trial discovery; trial; appeals; transactional related issues; and such other Services as may be required to fully represent 

the County.

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: Maximum of $275,000 but only $150,000 to be encumbered at this time.  

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: n/a

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve as Submitted

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: ATGEN1100
Control:
Resp:
Object: DE502
Transaction:
Project #:
Detail:

RENEWAL
% 

Increase

FUNDING
SOURCE AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 150,000.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 0.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 150,000.00

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE AMOUNT

1 ATGEN1100/DE502 $ 150,000.00
$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 0.00
$ 0.00
$ 0.00

TOTAL $ 150,000.00



 

% 
Decrease



   RULES RESOLUTION NO.      – 2020 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

TO EXECUTE A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, AND ZOGHLIN GROUP PLLC 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the County has negotiated a personal services contract 

with Zoghlin Group PLLC to provide legal services, a copy of which is on 

file with the Clerk of the Legislature; now, therefore, be it 

  

 RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County 

Legislature authorizes the County Executive to execute the said personal 

services contract with Zoghlin Group PLLC 



       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: The Zoghlin Group, PLLC.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $275000

Amount to be encumbered:   $150000

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 3/25/2020 to completion
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? Y  

If yes, please explain: services needed to to litigation

4. Funding Source:

X  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 0

County %   100

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   Y

If not, will it require a future borrowing? N

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? N/A

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N/A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

The services to be provided by Counsel under this Agreement shall consist of consulting and providing legal counsel to the Nassau County Planning 
Commission (&quot;NCPC&quot;) on the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act (&quot;SEQRA&quot;), including providing legal interpreta ions 
of SEQRA review and advising on the legal aspects of the SEQRA process relating to the major subdivision at Willow View Estates (f&#x2F;k&#x2F; a the 
Woodmere Country Club) (&quot;Willow View Estates&quot;) (the &quot;Services&quot;).

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Y 

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:



Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   IQURESHI   11-JUN-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mindy L. Zoghlin [MINDY@ZOGLAW.COM]

Dated: 05/05/2020 12:26:54 PM Vendor: The Zoghlin Group, PLLC

Title: sole member
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Mindy L. Zoghlin
Date of birth:

Country: US

Business Address: 300 State Street, Suite 502
City: Rochester State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 14614
Country US
Telephone: (585) 434-0790

Other present address(es):
City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:
Country:
Telephone: 

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President
(Other)

 
Type Description Start Date
Other Sole Member 05/15/2016

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
I own 100% of the equity in The Zoghlin Group, PLLC

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.
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5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.
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8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Mindy L. Zoghlin , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Mindy L. Zoghlin , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

The Zoghlin Group, PLLC
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mindy L. Zoghlin [MINDY@ZOGLAW.COM]

Sole Member
Title

06/02/2020 10:23:34 AM
Date
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Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 06/02/2020

1) Proposer's Legal Name: The Zoghlin Group, PLLC.

2) Address of Place of Business: 300 State Street, Suite 502

   City: Rochester State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 14614

Country: US

3) Mailing Address (if different):

   City: State/Province/Territory: Zip/Postal Code:

Country:

  Phone:

  Does the business own or rent its facilities? Rent If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: 07-549-562

5) Federal I.D. Number: 81-2739650

6) The proposer is a: Sole Proprietorship  (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

    YES NO X If yes, please provide details:
    

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:
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10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
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element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists.

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.
No conflict exists.

(iii) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a 
conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
No conflict exists.
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b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that a conflict of 
interest would not exist for your firm in the future.
Our firm has procedure in place to review all new cases for any possible conflicts of interest.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer's professional qualifications, demonstrating extensive 
experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results of these experiences, must be 
identified. 

Have you previously uploaded the below information under in the Document Vault?
YES NO X

Is the proposer an individual?
YES NO X Should the proposer be other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include:

i) Date of formation;
05/15/2016

ii) Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the company, including 
shareholders, members, general or limited partner.  If none, explain.
Mindy Zoghlin, Sole Member, 111 Moul Road, Hilton, NY 14468

No individuals with a financial interest in the company have been attached..

iii) Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company. If none, explain.
Mindy Zoghlin, Sole Member, 111 Moul Road, Hilton, NY 14468

No officers and directors from this company have been attached. 

iv) State of incorporation (if applicable);
NY

v) The number of employees in the firm;
9

vi) Annual revenue of firm;
1500000

vii) Summary of relevant accomplishments
Mindy L. Zoghlin and associate attorneys represent more than 50+ years of combined experience in 
land use, zoning, municipal, energy law practice areas.

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business.
4
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C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful in determining the Proposer's capacity 
and reliability to perform these services.
Please see RFQ submission with resumes and detailed case references.

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer has provided similar 
services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to perform this work.

Company Village of Pittsford
Contact Person Mayor Corby
Address 21 North Main Street
City Pittsford State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone (585) 586-4332
Fax # (585) 586-4597
E-Mail Address mayorcorby@villageofpittsford.com

Company Town of Ellery
Contact Person Neil Robinson
Address PO Box 429
City Bemus Point State/Province/Territory NY
Country US 
Telephone (716) 386-3465
Fax # (716) 386-6948
E-Mail Address nrobinson@robinsonlawoffice.com

Company Town of Parma
Contact Person Jack Barton
Address 1300 Hilton Parma Corners Rd.
City Hilton State/Province/Territory NY
Country US
Telephone (585) 392-9461
Fax # (585) 392-6659
E-Mail Address supervisor@parmany.org
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I, Mindy L. Zoghlin , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Mindy L. Zoghlin , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after
the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information 
and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Name of submitting business: The Zoghlin Group PLLC

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Mindy L. Zoghlin [MINDY@ZOGLAW.COM]

Sole member
Title

06/02/2020 07:03:34 AM
Date
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT'S, CONTRACTOR'S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Entity: The Zoghlin Group, PLLC.

Address: 300 State Street

City: Rochester State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 14614

Country: US

2. Entity's Vendor Identification Number: 81-2739650

3. Type of Business: Other (specify) Professional Limited Liability Company 
(PLLC)

4. List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of Directors or comparable 
body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties of Joint Ventures, and all members and 
officers of limited liability companies (attach additional sheets if necessary):

 
 
First Name Mindy
Last Name Zoghlin
MI L Suffix
Address 300 State Street
City Rochester State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 14614
Country US
Position Principal

 

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an 
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
 

 
 
First Name Mindy
Last Name Zoghlin
MI L Suffix
Address 300 State Street
City Rochester State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 14614
Country
Position Principal

 

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter 
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the 
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performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not 
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

NONE 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client 
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, 
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real 
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, 
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
NONE

(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.
NONE

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New 
York State):
NONE

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Mindy L. Zoghlin [MINDY@ZOGLAW.COM]

Dated: 06/05/2020 03:39:58 PM

Title: Sole Member
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County 
Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local 
legislation or resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any 
local legislation or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any 
determination by an elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of 
goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the 
preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the 
solicitation, award or administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any 
determination made by the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, 
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory 
Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property 
subject to County regulation, or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to 
requests for proposals, bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition 
by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the
county, or with respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or 
rejection by an agency of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any 
rate making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any 
determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, 
modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an 
officer or employee of the county to support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any 
determination made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, 
whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been 
formally proposed.







































 



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

05/30/2019
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE
AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE
ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does
not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
LAVORO GROUP CORP
01216366
255 TECH PARK DRIVE
ROCHESTER NY 14623

CONTACT NAME

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext)

(877) 287-1316 FAX
(A/C, No)

(888) 443-6112

E-MAIL ADDRESS

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A The Sentinel Insurance Company 11000

INSURED

THE ZOGHLIN GROUP PLLC
300 STATE ST STE 502
ROCHESTER NY 14614-1019

INSURER B 

INSURER C 

INSURER D 

INSURER E 

INSURER F 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR

TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL
INSR

SUBR
WVD

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/Y YYY)

LIMITS

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

01 SBA RH4403 07/15/2019 07/15/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000
CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR DAMAGE TO RENTED

PREMISES (Ea occurrence)
$1,000,000

X General Liability MED EXP (Any one person) $10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000

GEN'L AGGREGATE L MIT APPL ES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000
POLICY PRO-

JECT X LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $4,000,000
OTHER:

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

01 SBA RH4403 07/15/2019 07/15/2020

COMB NED S NGLE L MIT
(Ea accident)

$2,000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

X H RED
AUTOS X NON-OWNED

AUTOS
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

A
X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB
X OCCUR

CLA MS-
MADE 01 SBA RH4403 07/15/2019 07/15/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
AGGREGATE $1,000,000

DED X RETENTION $ 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCR PTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/ A

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

Y/N E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY L MIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Nassau County is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
NASSAU COUNTY
1 WEST ST
MINEOLA NY 11501-4813

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD





PART 1. To be completed by Disability and Paid Family Leave Benefits Carrier or Licensed Insurance Agent of that Carrier 

Please Note: Only insurance carriers licensed to write NYS disability and paid family leave benefits insurance policies and NYS licensed insurance 
agents of those insurance carriers are authorized to issue Form DB-120.1.  Insurance brokers are NOT authorized to issue this form.  

DB-120.1 (10-17) 

PART 2. To be completed by the NYS Workers' Compensation Board (Only if Box 4C or 5B of Part 1 has been checked)
  State of New York 

Workers' Compensation Board 
According to information maintained by the NYS Workers' Compensation Board, the above-named employer has complied with the 
NYS Disability and Paid Family Leave Benefits Law with respect to all of his/her employees. 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE 
DISABILITY AND PAID FAMILY LEAVE BENEFITS LAW

1a. Legal Name & Address of Insured (use street address only)

Work Location of Insured (Only required if coverage is specifically limited to 
certain locations in New York State, i.e , Wrap-Up Policy)

1b. Business Telephone Number of Insured

1c. Federal Employer Identification Number of Insured 
      or Social Security Number

2. Name and Address of Entity Requesting Proof of Coverage  
    (Entity Being Listed as the Certificate Holder)

3a. Name of Insurance Carrier

3c. Policy effective period

3b. Policy Number of Entity Listed in Box "1a"

  4. Policy provides the following benefits: 
  
  
  
  
5. Policy covers: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Under penalty of perjury, I certify that I am an authorized representative or licensed agent of the insurance carrier referenced above and that the named 
insured has NYS Disability and/or Paid Family Leave Benefits insurance coverage as descr bed above. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
IMPORTANT: If Boxes 4A and 5A are checked, and this form is signed by the insurance carrier's authorized representative or NYS 

Licensed Insurance Agent of that carrier, this certificate is COMPLETE. Mail it directly to the certificate holder. 
  
  If Box 4B, 4C or 5B is checked, this certificate is NOT COMPLETE for purposes of Section 220, Subd. 8 of the NYS 

Disability and Paid Family Leave Benefits Law. It must be mailed for completion to the Workers' Compensation 
Board, Plans Acceptance Unit, PO Box 5200, Binghamton, NY 13902-5200.

to

A. Both disability and paid family leave benefits.
B. Disability benefits only.
C. Paid family leave benefits only.

Date Signed

Telephone Number Name and Title

By
(Signature of insurance carrier's authorized representative or NYS Licensed Insurance Agent of that insurance carrier)

A. All of the employer's employees eligible under the NYS Disability and Paid Family Leave Benefits Law.
B. Only the following class or classes of employer's employees:

Date Signed

Telephone Number Name and Title

By
(Signature of Authorized NYS Workers' Compensation Board Employee)

DB-120.1 (10-17)

R18604-000

■

Nassau County
1 West Street
Mineola, NY 11501

5/5/2020

■

Standard Security Life Insurance Company of New York

5854340790

SUPERVISOR-DBL/POLICY SERVICES

5/4/20217/1/2017

THE ZOGHLIN GROUP, PLLC
300 STATE STREET, SUITE 502
ROCHESTER , NY 14614

(212) 355-4141

81-2739650



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

05/30/2019
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE
AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE
ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does
not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
AP INTEGO INSURANCE GROUP LLC
76250846
375 WOODCLIFF DRIVE STE 103
FAIRPORT NY 14450

CONTACT NAME

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext)

(877) 287-1316 FAX
(A/C, No)

(888) 443-6112

E-MAIL ADDRESS

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Hartford Fire and Its P&C Affiliates 00914

INSURED

THE ZOGHLIN GROUP PLLC
300 STATE ST STE 502
ROCHESTER NY 14614-1019

INSURER B 

INSURER C 

INSURER D 

INSURER E 

INSURER F 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR

TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL
INSR

SUBR
WVD

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/Y YYY)

LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)
MED EXP (Any one person)
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GEN'L AGGREGATE L MIT APPL ES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE

POLICY PRO-
JECT

LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMB NED S NGLE L MIT
(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

H RED
AUTOS

NON-OWNED
AUTOS

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB
EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR
CLA MS-
MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION $

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCR PTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/ A 76 WEG ZQ7575 07/01/2019 07/01/2020

X PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

Y/N E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $100,000

E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $100,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY L MIT $500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Nassau County is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
NASSAU COUNTY
1 WEST ST
MINEOLA NY 11501-4813

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED
BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD









































































































































































































































Certifed: 

NIFS ID:    Department: Public Works

Capital: X
SERVICE: 2020 General Requirements Contract-H66302W-B15-20

Contract ID #:H66302W NIFS Entry Date: Term: from  to 

New

Time Extension: 

Addl. Funds:

Blanket Resolution: 

RES# 

1) Mandated Program: N

2) Comptroller Approval Form
Attached:

Y

3) CSEA Agmt. § 32 Compliance
Attached: Y

4) Material Adverse Information
Identified? (if yes, attach memo): N

5) Insurance Required N

Vendor Info:

Name: Pratt Brothers, Inc. Vendor ID#: 16-1620294
Address: 45 South Fourth Street

Bay Shore, NY 11706-1210

Contact Person: James Pratt

Phone: 631-667-6800

Department:

Contact Name: Jose Viteri

Address: NCDPW

1194 Prospect Avenue

Westbury, NY 11590

Phone: 516-571-6926

Routing Slip

Department NIFS Entry: X 20-MAY-20 -- LDIONISIO

Department NIFS Approval: X 20-MAY-20 -- KARNOLD

DPW Capital Fund Approved: X 20-MAY-20 -- KARNOLD

OMB NIFA Approval: X 08-JUL-20 -- CNOLAN

OMB NIFS Approval: X 20-MAY-20 -- NGUMIENIAK

County Atty. Insurance Verification: X 21-MAY-20 -- NSARANDIS

County Atty. Approval to Form: X 21-MAY-20 -- NSARANDIS

CPO Approval: X 09-JUL-20 -- KOHAGENCE

B-15-20



 

DCEC Approval: X 09-JUL-20 -- JCHIARA

Dep. CE Approval: X 09-JUL-20 -- BSCHNEIDER

Leg. Affairs Approval/Review: X 10-JUL-20 -- JSCHANTZ

Legislature Approval: 

Comptroller Deputy:  

NIFA NIFA Approval: 

Contract Summary

Purpose: 2020 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS CONTRACTS FOR VARIOUS CIVIL/SITE CONSTRUCTION, HIGHWAYS, 

DRAINAGE, BRIDGES, SITE, PARKING LOTS AND PARKS RELATED SPECIALIZED ITEMS

The work covered by this contract involves furnishing labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals as specified for the 

rehabilitation and/or installation, modification and/or removal of highways, drainage systems, pavement, parking lots, and parks 

related work, and/or emergency work at various locations to be selected in Nassau County during a period of Thirty-six (36) months.

Method of Procurement: The bid was advertised in Newsday (1/15/2020),eProcure (1/15/2020-2/18/2020) and NYSCR (1/15/2020-

2/18/2020).

The Contractor was selected through an open competitive bidding process.

Procurement History: On February 18,2020 sealed bids were received by the Clerk of the Nassau County Legislature. Bids were 

publicly opened and read aloud in the Meeting Room of the Nassau County Legislature.

 A total of two (2) firms bid on this contract and it is recommended to award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder, Pratt 

Brothers, Inc. who had the low bid of $5,480,670.83.

Description of General Provisions: The principle features of the work to be performed under this contract involves labor, materials, 

tools, equipment and incidentals as specified for the resurfacing of asphalt and/or concrete surfaces and other related work at various 

locations in Nassau County during thirty-six (36) month period. This is unit price contract. Contract has current MWBE utilization 

rate 7%

Impact on Funding / Price Analysis: The bid price of $5,480,670.83 is above the engineer's estimate of $3,995,230.43 and is for 

comparison purposes only. This contract will include an annual maximum cap of four million dollars ($4,000,000.00)

Funding being encumbered will come from approved and available Capital Project Numbers: 

41869/63029/66051/66017/66302/61587.

Initial encumbrances will be against the Projects indicated as follows: 41869: $1,100,000, 66017: $200,000, 63029: $250,000, 66051: 

$100,000, 66302: $200,000 and 61587: $100,000 for a total initial encumbrance of $1,950,000.

The term of this requirements contract is three (3) years, with the Department's option to extend the term of the Contract for an 

additional one (1) year period for a total Contract term of four (4) years. The estimated expenditures under this Contract, including 

during the period of any extension options that may be exercised by the Commissioner of the Department, is $ 16,000,000.00, at $ 

4,000,000.00 per year.

Change in Contract from Prior Procurement: This is a new contract- no prior procurement.

Recommendation: (approve as submitted) Approve Contract as submitted



 

Advisement Information

BUDGET CODES
Fund: CAP
Control: 41/66/63/66/66/61

Resp:
869/029/051/017/302

/587
Object: 00004
Transaction: CH

Project #:
41869/050-051-017-

302/587
Detail: Q20 - 007

RENEWAL
% 

Increase
% 

Decrease

FUNDING
SOURCE

AMOUNT

Revenue 
Contract:
County $ 0.00
Federal $ 0.00
State $ 0.00
Capital $ 1,950,000.00
Other $ 0.00

TOTAL $ 1,950,000.00

LINE INDEX/OBJECT 
CODE

AMOUNT

X PWCAPCAP/41869/
00004/Q20

$ 1,100,000.00

X
PWCAPCAP/63029/
00004/007

$ 250,000.00

X
PWCAPCAP/66051/
00004/Q20

$ 100,000.00

X PWCAPCAP/66017/
00004/Q20

$ 200,000.00

X
PWCAPCAP/66302/
00004/Q20

$ 200,000.00

X
PWCAPCAP/61587/
00004/Q20

$ 100,000.00

TOTAL $ 1,950,000.00



RULES RESOLUTION NO.  -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
PRATT BROTHERS, INC. 

        WHEREAS, in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of 

Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract H66302W, for the 2020 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS CONTRACT FOR VARIOUS CIVIL/SITE 

CONSTRUCTION, HIGHWAYS, DRAINAGE, BRIDGES, SITE, PARKING LOTS 

AND PARKS RELATED SPECIALIZED ITEMS [“Contract”], as more particularly 

described in the contract documents, a copy of which are on file with the Clerk of the 

Legislature; and 

WHEREAS, the Department is representing to the Rules Committee that the term 

of this requirements contract is three (3) years, with the Department’s option to extend the 

term of the Contract for an additional one (1) year period for a total Contract term of four (4) 

years,  and the estimated expenditures under this contract is a total of $ 16,000,000.00, at 

$ 4,000,000.00 per year, and 

B15-20



 
WHEREAS, the firm of PRATT BROTHERS, INC., 

 
 

  [“Vendor”] has submitted the lowest responsible comparison bid for the work 

described in the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as 

determined by the Department, and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Department is recommending to the Rules 

Committee that the contract be awarded to the vendor; now; therefore, be it  

             RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, based 

on the representations of the Department and the recommendation of the Commissioner 

of the Department, authorizes the County Executive to award and execute the said 

contract with the vendor.  







       NIFA Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Pratt Brothers, Inc.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: $16000000

Amount to be encumbered:   $1950000

This is a New

If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement – NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds above the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: Thirty- Six (36) months from Execution
     Has work or services on this contract commenced? N  

If yes, please explain: 

4. Funding Source:

  General Fund (GEN)  Grant Fund (GRT)
X  Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal %  0
  Other State % 0

County %   0

Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract?   N

If not, will it require a future borrowing? Y

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? Y

Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? N

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

2020 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS CONTRACTS FOR VARIOUS CIVIL;SITE CONSTRUCTION, HIGHWAYS, DRAINAGE, BRIDGES, SITE, PARKING 
LOTS AND PARKS RELATED SPECIALIZED ITEMS
The work covered by this contract involves furnishing labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals as specified for the rehabilitation and;or installation, 
modification and;or 
 removal of highways, drainage systems, pavement, parking.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form  

Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:



Contract ID Date Amount



AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approv
al Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true an
d accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in confor
mance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County Multi-
Year Financial Plan. I understand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official deliberation
s.

   CNOLAN   08-JUL-20

Authenticated User Date

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is
in conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau Cou
nty Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

  I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
  I certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.

 Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

  
Authenticated User Date

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:  

Payment is not guaranteed for any work commenced prior to this approval.

  

Authenticated User Date

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County's own routing slip, current NIFS pri
ntouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature communication docu
ments and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being su
bmitted to NIFA for review.

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.









Certificate of No Change Form

All fields must be filled. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification, and/or the failure to 
conduct appropriate due diligence in verifying the information that is the subject of this certification, may result in 
rendering the submitting entity non-responsible for the purpose of contract award. 
A materially false statement willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this certification may subject the person 
making the false statement to criminal charges. 

I, Joseph M. Williams, Jr., P.E. state that I have read and understand all the items contained in the 
disclosure documents listed below and certify that as of this date, these items have not changed. I further certify that, 
to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, those answers are full, complete, and accurate; and that, to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief, those answers continue to be full, complete, and accurate.

In addition, I further certify on behalf of the submitting vendor that the information contained in the principal 
questionnaire(s) have not changed and have been verified and continue, to the best of my knowledge, to be full, 
complete and accurate.

I understand that Nassau County will rely on the information supplied in this certification as additional inducement to 
enter into a contract with the submitting entity.

Vendor Disclosures
This refers to the vendor integrity and disclosure forms submitted for the vendor doing business with the County.

 Name of Submitting Entity: Pratt Brothers Inc.

Vendor's Address: 45 South Fourth Street Bay Shore NY US 11706

 Vendor's EIN or TIN: 161620294

 Forms Submitted:

Political Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form: 
02/13/2020 02:53:08 PM

Lobbyist Registration and Disclosure Form: 
02/25/2020 02:47:49 PM

Business History Form certified: 
02/25/2020 03:04:02 PM

Consultant's, Contractor's, and Vendor's Disclosure Form: 
02/28/2020 02:40:54 PM



Principal Questionnaire(s)
This refers to the most recent principal questionnaire submissions.
 

Principal Name Date Certified
Joseph M. Williams, Jr., P.E. [JWILLIAMS@PRATTBROTHERS.COM] 02/25/2020 02:52:28 PM
James J. Pratt, III [JPRATT@PRATTBROTHERS.COM] 02/25/2020 03:53:08 PM
Thomas Pratt [TPRATT@PRATTBROTHERS.COM] 02/25/2020 04:04:47 PM
Edward McCoy Jr. [EMCCOY@PRATTBROTHERS.COM] 02/25/2020 04:21:08 PM
 

I, Joseph M. Williams, Jr., P.E. hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement willfully or 
fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or any 
affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I further certify that I have read and understand all the items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete 
answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in 
writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied 
by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the 
information supplied in this form as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity

CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH 
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT 
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY 
SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES."

Joseph M.  Williams, Jr., P.E.
Name 

Sr. Vice President
Title 

Pratt Brothers, Inc.
Name of Submitting Entity 

03/05/2020 02:02:58 PM
Date 
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Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County, taking into 
consideration the reliability of the proposer and the capacity of the proposer to perform the services required by the 
County, offers the best value to the County and who will best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this questionnaire. The 
questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by an authorized representative of the firm, 
corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is "none" or "not-applicable." No blanks.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).

Date: 02/26/2019

1) Proposer's Legal Name: Pratt Brothers Inc.

2) Address of Place of Business: 45 South Fourth Street

City: Bay Shore State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11706

Country: US

3) Mailing Address (if different): 45 South Fourth Street

City: Bay Shore State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11706

Country: US

Phone: (631) 667-6800

Does the business own or rent its facilities? Rent If other, please provide details:

4) Dun and Bradstreet number: 176421117

5) Federal I.D. Number: 16-1620294

6) The proposer is a: Corporation  (Describe)

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other business?

YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Shares with Guy Pratt,  Inc.

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses?
YES NO X If yes, please provide details:

9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by, any other business?
YES X NO If yes, please provide details:
Scatt Materials, Corp.
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James J. Pratt, III and Thomas Pratt,stockholders in Pratt Brothers Inc., are also stockholders in Scatt Materials
Corp.
Scatt Materials is an asphalt hot mix manufacturer. Scatt Materials may supply some of the hot mix materials 
which is required for the construction in our projects.

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau County or any 
other government entity terminated?
YES NO X If yes, state the name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond 
and reason for such cancellation or forfeiture: or details regarding the termination (if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt?
YES NO X If yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business, 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated 
business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or
on behalf of an affiliated business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the 
circumstances and corrective action taken.

13) In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past 5 years, has any owner and/or officer of an affiliated business 
been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state and 
local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated 
business.
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had, either before 
or during such person's employment, or since such employment if the charges pertained to events that 
allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submitting business, and allegedly related to the 
conduct of that business:
a) Any felony charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

b) Any misdemeanor charge pending?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.
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c) In the past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony and/or any other crime, an 
element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

d) In the past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

e) In the past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or regulatory provisions?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated business had any 
sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional license 
held?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such investigation, an explanation of the
circumstances and corrective action taken.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable 
federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a detailed response to all 
questions checked 'YES'. If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the 
questionnaire.

17 Conflict of Interest:
a) Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If no conflicts exist, please expressly 

state "No conflict exists."
(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may create a conflict 
of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau County.
NO CONFLICT EXISTS

(ii) Any family relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public servant that may 
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau 
County.
NO CONFLICT EXISTS











Shareholders

James J. Pratt, III – President/Treasurer – 51%

Thomas Pratt – Vice President/Secretary – 49%



PROJECT OWNER ARCH./ENG.
 CONTRACT 

AMOUNT 
DATE 

COMPLETED % OF OUR WORK CONTACT
07-135 New York State  DOT New York State DOT 10,433,621.00$ 9/15/2009 94% New York State DOT
Southern State Parkway James Eldor James Eldor
Suffolk County D260416
08-290 Suffolk County DPW Lockwood, Kessler 22,641,805.00$ 7/31/2011 64% Suffolk County DPW
County Road 16 James Peterman and Bartlett Justin Hipperling
Reconstruction, Ronkonkoma (631) 852-4003  (631) 852-4006
No. 5511 (516) 938-0600
09-077 City of New York DDC City of New York DDC 4,979,762.40$   4/30/2011 81% City of New York
Milling Requirements - Queens Yuliya Ruvinova
HW2CR09C (718) 322-5053
10-268 Village of Valley Stream Village of Valley Stream 1,448,380.60$   12/31/2011 63% Village of Valley Stream
Culvert Replacement on Tony Cella Tony Cella
Valley Stream Road (516) 592-5105 (516) 592-5105
10-208 City of New York DDC City of New York DDC 1,971,345.18$   8/31/2011 70% City of New York
Milling Requirements - Queens Patrick Larkin
HW2CR11C (718) 391-1958
10-300 Suffolk County DPW Suffolk County DPW 1,201,304.47$   11/15/2011 66% Suffolk County DPW
CR19 Patchogue Holbrook Rd In-House Justin Hipperling 
Traffic Calming 3302/5014 (631) 852-4006
11-289 Deer Park Associates LLC Sidney B Bowne & Son 548,035.15$      12/31/2011 100% Deer Park Associates LLC
Sunset Plaza Shopping Len Abrams Len Abrams
Center (631) 667-9575 (631) 667-9575
09-155 Calverton National Carter Van Dyke 11,770,011.69$ 12/31/2011 66% GC&P Fabcon LLC
Calverton National Cemetery Cemetery (212) 345-5053 John Schleer
Expansion 805CM2036 GC&P Fabcon (908) 782-0526
11-011 Sysco  Food Services Vollmuth & Brush 5,445,493.96$   6/30/2012 85% Aurora Contractors
Sysco Warehouse Aurora Contractors (631) 363-2683 Barney Reilly
Central Islip Barney Riley (631) 981-3785 (631) 981-3785
11-059 Suffolk County DPW Suffolk County DPW 1,072,863.65$   2/17/2012 71% Suffolk County DPW
CR31 & 104 William  Hillman P.E. In-House Justin Hipperling
Intersection Reconstr. (631) 852-4006 (631) 852-4006
Hampton Bays CP5572
11-093 Village of Port Jefferson Dvirka & Bartilucci 2,761,192.92$   7/15/2012 77% Dvirka & Bartilucci
Viillage of Port Jefferson Robert Juliano Ken Pritchard Ed Kozik
2011 Road Improvements (516) 364-9890
11-413 Enxco Development Co. Enxco Development Co. 569,373.28$      12/31/2012 100% Eldor Contracting Corp.
Solar Array Project @ Eldor Contracting Corp. Keith Feldman
Cohalan Court Complex Keith Feldman (631) 218-0100
Central Islip
11-285 City of New York DDC City of New York DDC 3,328,891.23$   9/30/2012 88% City of New York DDC
Milling Requirements - Queens Patrick Larkin Patrick Larkin
HW2CR12C (718) 391-1958 (718) 391-1958

MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED 
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PROJECT OWNER ARCH./ENG.
 CONTRACT 

AMOUNT 
DATE 

COMPLETED % OF OUR WORK CONTACT

MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED 

11-335 Enxco Development Co. Enxco Development Co. 627,901.15$      12/31/2012 93% Eldor Contracting Corp.
Solar Array Project @ Eldor Contracting Corp. Keith Feldman
Riverhead County Complex Keith Feldman (631) 218-0100
12-104 Hofstra University Cameron Eng & Assoc. 504,205.00$      9/30/2012 60% Hofstra University
New Entrance Roadway Richard S Leddy Jack Ozyman Richard S.  Leddy
For School of Medicine (516) 827-4900 (516) 463-5258
12-174 Home Depot Home Depot 796,600.90$      12/31/2012 100% Opal Construction
Home Depot Parking Lot  Chris Cavoto
Commack (631) 242-7440
09-239 Nassau County DPW Nassau County DPW 1,252,924.00$   12/31/2011 85% Nassau County DPW
Nassau County DPW (516) 571-6655
Highway & Drainage Req.
H66302S
11-359 Suffolk County DPW Suffolk County DPW 1,294,862.00$   12/16/2013 90% Suffolk County DPW
Suffolk County DPW In-House Justin Hipperling
Storm Water Pollution (631) 852-4006
Remedption Phase 3
CP8239
11-393 Suffolk County DPW Nelson & Pope 5,693,653.00$   12/31/2013 66% Suffolk County DPW
Suffolk County DPW Justin Hipperling
Wicks Road Improvement (631) 852-4006
CP5539
12014 Suffolk County DPW Suffolk County DPW 3,779,594.00$   12/31/2013 77% Suffolk County DPW
Suffolk County DPW In-House Justin Hipperling
CR39 North Road (631) 852-4006
Improvements CP5528
12-018 Canon USA Turner Construction 5,563,069.00$   11/30/2013 56% Turner Construction
Canon Headquarters Chris Deschler
Phase II - Sitework (212) 229-6000
12-158 Prestige Properties & Dev. Stantec Consulting 1,799,983.00$   11/30/2013 98% Aurora Contractors
Mall at Bay Plaza Services Inc. Jonathan McGowan
Site Work - Bronx, NY (212) 366-5600 (631) 981-3785
12-166 Home Depot Home Depot 493,600.00$      12/31/2013 100% Opal Construction
Home Depot Parking Lot Chris Cavoto
Long Island City-Milling/Paving (631) 242-7440
13-033 Nassau County DPW Nassau County DPW 718,259.00$      12/31/2013 98% Nassau County DPW
Sheridan Blvd. Drainage Shila Shah Gavnoudias
Mineola (516) 571-9600
H6005001G
12-426 Suffolk County DPW Suffolk County DPW 3,791,800.00$   12/31/2014 86% Suffolk County DPW
Reconstruction of Justin Hipperling P.E. In-House Justin Hipperling
Sound Avenue, CR48 (631) 852-4006 (631) 852-4006
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PROJECT OWNER ARCH./ENG.
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COMPLETED % OF OUR WORK CONTACT

MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED 

Greenport - 5526

13-055 Aurora Contractors Rosenbaum Design 3,092,479.00$   12/31/2014 80% Aurora Contractors
Lowes of Commack Barney Riley Group Barney Reilly
Site Work (631) 981-3785 (631) 981-3785
13-049 Brookhaven Rail Terminal Brookhaven Rail 1,684,905.00$   12/31/2014 65% Brookhave Rail Term.
Clearspan Building Project Terminal Andy Kaufman

(631) 924-8800
13-089 Avalon Bay Communities Nelson & Pope 1,023,793.00$   12/31/2014 30% Avalon Bay Communities
Forcemain and Pump Matthew Gendron
Station - Huntingtion Sta. (617) 645-3937
13-183 Avalon Bay Communities Nelson & Pope 1,288,545.00$   6/30/2014 95% Avalon Bay Communities
Asphalt Paving Matthew Gendron
Huntington Station (617) 645-3937
13-219 State of New York H2M Architects & 670,176.00$      12/31/2014 100% Watral Bros. Inc.
Stony Brook Medical Center Dormatory Authority Engineers Jake Watral
East Parking Field Paving (631) 586-8300
13-261 Museum of American BDG Construction Corp 1,285,390.00$   8/29/2014 78% BDG Construction
Museum of American Armor Armor Anthony Galu
Site Work - Old Bethpage BDG Construction (516) 624-1979
13-283 Village of Freeport Village of Freeport 1,407,428.00$   12/31/2014 73% Village of Freeport
2013 Road Improvements In-House Robert Fisenne P.E.
Nassau Avenue (516) 377-2233
14-306 Green Acres Mall Savik & Murray LLP 889,154.46$      12/31/2014 95% Opal Construction
Green Acres Mall Opal Construction Chris Cavoto
Valley Stream - Parking (631) 242-7440
Field Pavement & Rehab
13-035 New York State DOT New York State DOT 5,634,311.00$   12/31/2015 98% P. Scalamandre & Sons
Reconstruction of Scalamandre  Tom Hayes
Rte 347 & 112  (516) 868-3000
D262168  
13-297 Village of Mineola Dvirka & Bartilucci 1,654,509.00$   12/31/2015 85% Village of Mineola
Village of Mineola Christopher Clement Thomas Rini
2013 Road Improvements (516)364-9890 (516) 746-0753
14-034 Suffolk County DPW Suffolk County DPW 1,848,219.00$   12/31/2015 75% Suffolk County DPW
Bridge Rehabilitation   Justin Hipperling
Various Locations (631) 852-4006
14-084 We're Associates, Inc. We're Associates Inc. 2,321,333.00$   7/27/2015 55% We're Associates, Inc.
Lake  Success Redevelopment  Gary R Woska  Philip Arnold
1 Dakota Drive (516) 931-5322
14-220 Village of Garden City Village of Garden City 4,746,069.00$   12/31/2015 70% Village of Garden City
2014 Road Improvements In-House Domenick Stanco

(516) 465-4017
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PROJECT OWNER ARCH./ENG.
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DATE 

COMPLETED % OF OUR WORK CONTACT

MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED 

14-294 LRC Construction LLC H2M Architects Engs 525,000.00$      7/27/2015 61% LRC Construction LLC
Ritz Carlton Residences Steve Feinstein
Off Site Sanitary Sewer (914) 773-7700
Connections SLRC1080018
15-241 We're Associates Inc. We're Associates Inc. 609,457.00$      12/31/2015 85% We're Associates
3&5 Dakota Gary R Woska Philip Arnold
Parking Lots (516) 931-5322
14-132 Rose Breslin Assoc. LLC Vollmuth & Brush 1,835,000.00$   4/30/2016 100% AVR Realty
The Meadows at Yaphank c/o AVR Realty Jeffrey Vollmuth, P.E. Tom Perna
Yaphank Woods Blvd. (631) 363-2683 (914) 965-3990 
Road Improvements
14-142 Aurora Contractors Inc. KSQ Architects, P.C. 1,980,789.00$   12/31/2016 87% Aurora Contractors
Stony Brook University State University of New (914) 682-3700 Frank Vero, Jr.
Toll Drive Residence Phase I York at Stony Brook (631) 981-3785
14-378 Aurora Contractors Inc. KSQ Architects, P.C. 2,146,774.00$   12/31/2016 70% Aurora Contractors
Stony Brook University State University of New (914) 682-3700 Frank Vero, Jr.
Toll Drive Residence Phase II York at Stony Brook (631) 981-3785
15-017 NYRA Belmont Dolph Rotfeld Eng. 538,413.00$      9/28/2016 87% EW Howell
Dormitories #A04B007 EW Howell (914) 631-8600 Travis Salvo
Sitework Travis Salvo (516) 921-7100
15-107 Rose Breslin Assoc. LLC Vollmuth & Brush 4,061,494.00$   12/31/2016 76% AVR Realty
William Floyd Parkway c/o AVR Realty Jeffrey Vollmuth, P.E. Tom Perna
Yaphank Woods Blvd. (631) 363-2683 (914) 965-3990 
15-149 Borrego Solar Systems Inc VHB Engineering 1,082,426.00$   9/28/2016 88% Eldor Contracting Corp.
Leavenworth Solar Farm Eldor Contracting Corp. (631) 234-3444 Keith Feldman
Shoreham Keith Feldman (631) 218-0100
15-315 Village of Floral Park Dvirka & Bartilucci 1,297,048.00$   12/31/2016 95% Valente Contracting Corp
2015 Road Improvements Valente Contracting Corp. Christopher Clement John Valente

(516) 364-9890 (516) 746-7933
15-305 Rose Breslin Assoc. LLC Vollmuth & Brush 978,895.00$      12/31/2016 100% AVR Realty
The Meadows at Yaphank c/o AVR Realty Jeffrey Vollmuth, P.E. Tom Perna
Yaphank Woods Blvd. (631) 363-2683 (914) 965-3990 
Phase 1A Sitework
15-181 We're Associates Inc. We're Associates Inc. 1,423,116.00$   4/30/2016 65% We're Associates Inc.
Lake Success Philip Arnold Gary R Woska Philip Arnold
Redevelopment (516) 931-5322 (516) 931-5322
3 Dakota -P.Lot & Ramp
15-255 Village of Mineola Dvirka & Bartilucci 742,821.00$      9/28/2016 100% Valente Contracting Corp
2015 Road Improvements Valente Contracting Corp. Christopher Clement John Valente

(516) 364-9890 (516) 746-7933
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MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED 

16-130 NYSDOT Stantec Consulting 1,578,526.00$   11/30/2016 100% P. Scalamandre & Sons
LIE Welcome Center P. Scalamandre & Sons Services Inc. Tom Hayes
Dix Hills (212) 366-5600 (516) 868-3000

16-152 Village of New Hyde Park Dvirka & Bartilucci 2,127,958.00$   12/31/2016 77% Village of New Hyde Park
2016 Road Improvements Christopher Clement Tom Gannon

(516) 364-9890 (516) 354-0064
16-218 Village of  Garden City Village of Garden City 1,447,250.00$   12/31/2016 65% Village of  Garden City
2016 Road Improvements In-House Domenick Stanco

(516) 465-4017
16-308 Village of Mineola Dvirka & Bartilucci 725,790.00$      12/31/2016 100% Valente Contracting Corp
2016 Road Improvements Valente Contracting Corp. Christopher Clement John Valente

(516) 364-9890 (516) 746-7933
15-221 Green Acres Adjacent LLC SPG3 Architects 6,523,195.00$   7/31/2017 90% Aurora Contractors
Green Acres Commons Aurora Contractors Inc. Bruce Keller Frank Vero, Jr.
Valley Stream Barney Reilly (631) 981-3785
15-243 Green Acres Adjacent LLC SPG3 Architects 1,560,664.00$   7/31/2017 93% Aurora Contractors
Green Acres Commons Aurora Contractors Inc. Bruce Keller Frank Vero, Jr.
Valley Stream - Paving Barney Reilly (631) 981-3785
16-034 South Side Hospital Sidney B. Bowne & Son 1,735,825.00$   9/30/2017 55% Schulmann Industries Inc
1933 & 1963 Union Blvd. Schulmann Industries Inc. (516) 746-2350 Harry Haralambous
Sitework Harry Haralambous (631) 499-7974
16-160 Roslyn UF School District VHB Engineering 589,403.00$      9/30/2017 98% Watral Brothers Inc.
Roslyn Schools Watral Brothers Inc. (631) 234-3444 Jake Watral
Paving  (631) 586-8300
16-358 Northville Industries Corp. U.N.I Engineering Inc. 786,034.00$      12/26/2017 41% Northville Industries Corp.
Culverts 1 & 2  Edward J. Sapp (631) 475-5060
Holtsville Terminal
17-273 Northwell Health Inc. Sidney B. Bowne & Son 548,425.00$      12/31/2017 70% Northwell Health Inc.
Parking Lot Construction Schulman Industries (516) 746-2350 Schulman Industries
Union Blvd., Bay Shore Harry Haralambous Harry Haralambous

(631) 499-7974
15-261 Avalon Bay Communities VHB Engineering 1,501,001.19$   1/31/2018 93% Avalon Bay Communities
Avalon at Great Neck Scott Fradenburg (631) 234-3444 Scott Fradenburg 
Site Work 516-501-6020 516-501-6020 
16-048 Avalon Bay Communities Nelson & Pope 1,373,303.43$   1/31/2018 95% Avalon Bay Communities
Avalon Rockville Centre II Scott Fradenburg (631) 427-5665 Scott Fradenburg 
Sitework 516-501-6020 516-501-6020 
16-286 Rose Breslin Assoc. LLC Volllmuth & Brush 679,748.50$      12/31/2018 100% AVR Realty
Common Area 2 Sitework c/o AVR Realty Jeffrey Vollmuth, P.E.  Tom Perna
The Meadows at Yaphank (631) 363-2683  (914) 965-3990
17-103 Shoreham Solar Commons LLC TRC Engineers Inc. 2,854,197.00$   11/30/2018 90% Eldor Contracting Corp.
Shoreham Solar Keith  Feldmann - Eldor (516) 671-3407  Keith  Feldmann
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Commons - Sitework (631) 218-0100 (631) 218-0100
17-189 Village of Garden City Village of Garden City 1,049,622.00$   12/31/2018 96% Valente Contracting Corp
Village of Garden City Valente Contracting Corp. In-House  John Valente
2017 Road Improvements John Valente (516) 746-7933

17-237 Talisen Construction Corp. Sidney B. Bowne & Son 908,330.81$      6/30/2018 59% Talisen Construction Corp
Northwell Lynbrook Joseph Rigazio (516) 746-2350  Joseph Rigazio
Site Work (212) 244-4581 (212) 244-4581
17-347 BDG Farmingdale LLC Bohler Engineering 4,327,684.00 12/31/2018 70% BDG Farmingdale LLC
Sky Drive Farmingdale Mike Christiano Joseph Deal  Mike Christiano
Sitework (516) 624-1948 (631) 738-1200  (516) 624-1948
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions pursuant to the New York 
State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning 
April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this 
disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator? 

YES X NO If yes, to what campaign committee?  
Laura Curran
Jack Schnirman

2. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts. 

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate. 

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees identified above were 
made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration. 

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Joseph M. Williams, Jr., P.E. [JWILLIAMS@PRATTBROTHERS.COM]

Dated: 02/13/2020 02:53:08 PM Vendor: Pratt Brothers, Inc.

Title: Sr. Vice President
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1.  Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term "lobbyist" means any and every
person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter before - 
Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not 
limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not 
limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, 
procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the 
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

None

2.  List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New York State):

None

3.  Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the lobbyist is retained, employed 
or designated:

None

4.  Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify client(s) for each activity 
listed. See the last page for a complete description of lobbying activities.

None

5.  The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist expects to lobby:

None

6.  If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a written agreement of retainer or employment, you must attach 
a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or employment is oral, attach a written statement of the 
substance thereof. If the written agreement of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the 
client by whom you have been authorized to lobby. separately attach such a written authorization from the client.
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7.  Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign contributions pursuant to 
the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or 
(b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of
this disclosure, to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign 
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County Executive, the County
Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?

YES NO X If yes, to what campaign committee?  If none, you must so state:

I understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of Information Technology ("IT") to 
be posted on the County's website.

I also understand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation I must give written notice to the County 
Attorney within thirty (30) days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing 
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign committees listed above were 
made freely and without duress. threat or any promise of a governmental benefit or in exchange for any benefit or 
remuneration.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Joseph M. Williams, Jr., P.E. [JWILLIAMS@PRATTBROTHERS.COM]

Dated: 02/25/2020 02:47:49 PM Vendor: Pratt Brothers, Inc.

Title: Sr. Vice President



Page 3 of 3 Rev. 3-2016

The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the Nassau County Legislature,
or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage, defeat, or substance of any local legislation or 
resolution; any determination by the County Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation 
or resolution, whether or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an 
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement of goods, services or 
construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including by not limited to the preparation of requests 
for proposals, or solicitation, award or administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or 
administration of a grant, loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by 
the County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards, commissions department 
heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning 
Commission with respect to the zoning, use, development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation,
or any agencies, boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals, 
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an elected county official or
an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the acquisition or disposition by the county of any 
interest in real property, with respect to a license or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with 
respect to a franchise, concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency 
of any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate making proceeding 
before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission; any determination regarding the 
calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing; the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County 
Executive Order; or any determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to 
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination made to support or 
oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or regulation, whether or not such legislation has 
been formally introduced and whether or not such rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or "lobbying activities" does not include: Persons engaged in drafting legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates; persons advising clients and rendering opinions on proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates,
where such professional services are not otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or 
administrative action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and television 
stations and owners and employees thereof, provided that their activities in connection with proposed legislation, rules, 
regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of news items, editorials or other comment, or paid 
advertisements; persons who participate as witnesses. attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-
making proceedings of a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public 
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to influence a County 
agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York State Administrative Procedure Act.
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5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.
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8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.
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10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Asphalt pickup contracts

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who hold a ten percent 
(10%) or greater ownership interest in the proposer. Answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you need more space to 
answer any question, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the 
questionnaire.

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE 
AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

1. Principal Name: Thomas Pratt
Date of birth: 10/06/1966
Home address: 61 Woodland Drive
City: Oyster Bay Cove State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11771
Country: US

Business Address: 45 South Fourth Street
City: Bay Shore State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11706
Country US
Telephone: 631-667-6800

Other present address(es):
City: Bay Shore State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11706
Country: US
Telephone: 6315860554

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

2. Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)

President Treasurer
Chairman of Board Shareholder 07/18/2002
Chief Exec. Officer Secretary 07/18/2002
Chief Financial Officer Partner
Vice President 07/18/2002
(Other)

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
49%

4. Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any other type of 
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
As required by bank and bonding company

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or notfor-profit organization 
other than the one submitting the questionnaire?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Scatt Materials Corp.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES X NO If Yes, provide details.
Asphalt pickup contracts

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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I, Thomas Pratt , hereby acknowledge that a materially false statement 
willfully or fraudulently made in connection with this form may result in rendering the submitting business entity and/or 
any affiliated entities non-responsible, and, in addition, may subject me to criminal charges.

I, Thomas Pratt , hereby certify that I have read and understand all the 
items contained in this form; that I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my 
knowledge, information and belief; that I will notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring 
after the submission of this form; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information and belief. I understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this form as additional 
inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business entity.

CERTIFICATION
A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 
QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON 
MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

Pratt Brothers Inc.
Name of submitting business

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by:
Thomas Pratt [TPRATT@PRATTBROTHERS.COM]

Vice President/Secretary
Title

02/25/2020 04:04:47 PM
Date





Page 2 of 5 Rev. 3-2016

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in the past
3 years while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by operation of law, or as a 
result of any action taken by a government agency. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you
need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

7. In the past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in Section 5
in which you have been a principal owner or officer:
a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts 
cancelled for cause?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract, including, but not 
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any action
pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose on 
contract?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action 
taken.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition and/or 
been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any portion of the 
last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initiated more than 7 
years ago and/or is any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptcy proceedings, whenever 
initiated?
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YES NO X If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to 
all questions check "Yes". If you need more space, photocopy the appropriate page and attached it to the 
questionnaire.)

9.
a. Is there any felony charge pending against you?

YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

b. Is there any misdemeanor charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

c. Is there any administrative charge pending against you?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

d. In the past 10 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other crime,
an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the conduct of 
business? Y
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

e. In the past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

f. In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action
taken.

10. In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you 
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local 
prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation was related 
to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed 
in response to Question 5?
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YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

11. In addition to the information provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization listed in response 
to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation and/or any other 
type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory 
agencies while you were a principal owner or officer?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

12. In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to Question 5 
had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to any professional 
license held?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.

13. For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any applicable federal, 
state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer charges?
YES NO X If yes, provide an explanation of the circumstances and corrective action taken.
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Position Vice President

 

5. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. If the shareholder is not an 
individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly held Corporation, include a copy of the 
10K in lieu of completing this section.
If none, explain.
 

 
 
First Name James
Last Name Pratt
MI J Suffix III
Address 92 Huntington Road
City Garden City State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11530
Country
Position President/Treasurer

First Name Thomas
Last Name Pratt
MI Suffix
Address 61 Woodland Drive
City Oyster Bay Cove State/Province/Territory: NY Zip/Postal Code: 11771
Country
Position Vice President/Secretary

 

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line 1. above (if none, enter 
"None"). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or subsidiary company that may take part in the 
performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not 
previously disclosed that participate in the performance of the contract.

Scatt Materials Corp. 

 5 File(s) uploaded Scatt Vendor Disclosure Form 2.13.20.pdf, Scatt Vendor Disclosure Form 2.21.20.pdf, Scatt Vendor 
Disclosure Form 2.28.20.pdf, Scatt Vendor Disclosure Form 9.13.19.pdf, Scatt Vendor Disclosure Form Feb 2020.pdf 

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid, bid, post-bid, etc.). If none, enter
"None." The term "lobbyist" means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any client 
to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards, commissions, department heads, 
legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission. Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real 
property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term "lobbyist" does not include any officer, director, trustee, 
employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

Are there lobbyists involved in this matter?
YES NO X

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete description of lobbying activities.

(c) List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau County, New 
York State):

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant, contractor or Vendor authorized as a 
signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing statements and they are, to 
his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

Electronically signed and certified at the date and time indicated by: 
Joseph M. Williams, Jr., P.E. [JWILLIAMS@PRATTBROTHERS.COM]

Dated: 02/28/2020 02:40:54 PM

Title: Sr. Vice President











H66302W - General Contracting

Bid 
Amount

Bid Opening: Engineer:

Contractor
Alternate 

Bid

Phone:

Insurance Payment

Nassau DPW B.I.D.S - Summary of Bid Opening 2/18/2020

2020 Reqmt-Civil/Site Reconstr-Hways,Drain,Bridge,Pking Lots,Park-Special Items

2 /18/2020 Jose Viteri (516) 571-6926

Address

$5,480,670.83Pratt Brothers, Inc.  45 South Fourth Street Bay Shore, NY 11706-1210 $0.00Philadelphia Indemnity Insuranc $400,000.00

$9,987,521.00The Landtek Group Inc.  235 County Line Road Amityville, NY 11701 $0.00The Hanover Insurance Compan $400,000.00

The above is a review of the bids and subsequent list of all the bids that were read aloud at the public bid opening.  Listed bids may be subsequently withdrawn or disqualified.  The list  
does not reflect the Department’s determination of the lowest responsible bidder.







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































      NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE

13th TERM MEETING AGENDA

       RULES COMMITTEE
                JULY 13, 2020 1:00 PM

Richard Nicolello – Chairman
Howard Kopel – Vice Chairman

Steve Rhoads
Laura Schaefer

Kevan Abrahams – Ranking
Delia DeRiggi-Whitton

Siela Bynoe

                                         Michael C. Pulitzer, Clerk of the Legislature



RULES  1

   Clerk Item
No.

 Proposed By  Assigned To Summary

139-20 LE R PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO.  – 2020
A LOCAL LAW TO EXTEND THE DEADLINE FOR THE IMPOSITION OF PENALTIES
AND INTEREST FOR THE LATE PAYMENT OF GENERAL TAXES DUE ON JULY 
FIRST IN THE YEAR 2020 ON PROPERTY OWNED BY DECEASED HEALTH CARE 
WORKERS. 139-20(LE)

147-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO CEREMONIALLY DESIGNATE A PORTION OF THE COUNTY 
ROAD KNOWN AS CHARLES LINDBERGH BOULEVARD FROM THE 
INTERSECTION OF GEOFFREY AVENUE TO THE INTERSECTION OF EARLE 
OVINGTON BOULEVARD IN UNIONDALE AS “WILLIAM M. WHEELER WAY”, 
AND DIRECTING THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TO INSTALL 
CONSPICUOUS SIGNAGE ALONG SAID ROADWAY. 147-20(PW)

149-20 LE R PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO.  – 2020
A LOCAL LAW TO AMEND THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE IN 
RELATION TO AMENDING THE NASSAU COUNTY HUMAN RIGHTS LAW TO 
PRECLUDE DISCRIMINATION BASED ON CERTAIN VISIBLE CHARACTERISTICS. 
149-20(LE)

151-20 LE R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A COMMITTEE TO STUDY ALTERNATIVE 
APPROACHES TO MENTAL HEALTH RESPONSE AND INTERVENTION BY LAW 
ENFORCEMENT. 151-20(LE)

152-20 CE R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
TO ENACT AND THE GOVERNOR TO APPROVE AN ACT AUTHORIZING THE
COUNTY OF NASSAU TO ALIENATE CERTAIN LANDS USED AS PARKLANDS TO
ENABLE THE PORT WASHINGTON WATER DISTRICT TO CONSTRUCT,
MAINTAIN AND OPERATE A WATER TREATMENT FACILITY. 152-20(CE)



RULES  2

   Clerk Item
No.

 Proposed By  Assigned To Summary

153-20 BE R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES DEEMED TO 
HOLD POLICY-MAKING POSITIONS FOR FILING YEAR 2020 (FISCAL YEAR 2019) 
AND WHO SHALL BE REQUIRED TO FILE ANNUAL STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL 
DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE NASSAU COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE § 

22-4.3 AND THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW. 153-20(BE)
155-20 OMB R RESOLUTION NO. -2020

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS 
HERETOFORE MADE WITHIN THE BUDGET FOR THE YEAR 2020. 155-20(OMB)

156-20 OMB R ORDINANCE NO.  – 2020
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION 
ORDINANCE IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFICE OF EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT. 156-20(OMB)

157-20 OMB R ORDINANCE NO.  – 2020
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION 
ORDINANCE IN CONNECTION WITH THE POLICE DEPARTMENT. 157-20(OMB)

158-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
158-20(PD)

159-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
159-20(PD)

160-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
160-20(PD)

161-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
161-20(PD)
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162-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
162-20(PD)

163-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
163-20(PD)

164-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
164-20(PD)

165-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
165-20(PD)

166-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
166-20(PD)

167-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A GIFT OFFERED BY THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT FOUNDATION TO THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
167-20(PD)

168-20 CE R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
INTER-MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF 
KENSINGTON IN RELATION TO A PROJECT TO INSTALL AUTOMATIC 
IRRIGATION ON PARKLAND ABUTTING MIDDLE NECK ROAD AND TO INSTALL 
FENCING ON MIDDLE NECK ROAD. 168-20(CE)
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169-20 CE R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
INTER-MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH THE VILLAGE OF MASSAPEQUA PARK IN
RELATION TO A PROJECT FOR THE RENOVATION OF BASKETBALL COURTS AT 
BRADY PARK. 169-20(CE)

A-8-20 PR R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COMMISIONER OF SHARED SERVICES TO 
AWARD AND EXECUTE A PURCHASE ORDER BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 
NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT 
AND SYSTEMS ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGIES CORP./SYTECH.  A-8-20

A-28-20 PR R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE COMMISSIONER OF SHARED SERVICES AWARD
AND EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE ORDER BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU,
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY OFFICE OF EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT, AND SOLOW & CO., INC.  A-28-20

A-30-20 PR R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COMMISIONER OF SHARED SERVICES TO 
AWARD AND EXECUTE A PURCHASE ORDER BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 
NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY, AND COGSDALE CORPORATION. A-30-20

B-13-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT AMENDMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS AND D.F. STONE CONTRACTING, LTD. B-13-20

B-14-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 
BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
METRO PAVING, LLC. B-14-20
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B-17-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 
BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
W.H.M. PLUMBING & HEATING CONTRACTORS, INC. B-17-20

B-19-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON
BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
SAFETY MARKING INC. B-19-20

B-20-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON
BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
SAFETY MARKING INC. B-20-20

       B-23-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON
BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
POSILLICO CIVIL, INC. B-23-20

E-83-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC WORKS, AND LIRO PROGRAM AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, PE 
P.C. E-83-20

E-84-20 CO R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE OFFICE OF THE NASSAU COUNTY 
COMPTROLLER, AND MAXIMUS CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. (“MAXIMUS”). E-
84-20
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E-85-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC WORKS AND LIRO PROGRAM AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, PE 
P.C. E-85-20

E-86-20 PB R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE PROBATION DEPARTMENT, AND LEADERSHIP 
TRAINING, INC. (“LTI”). E-86-20

E-89-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS AND KS ENGINEERS, P.C. E-89-20

E-90-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS, AND GANNETT FLEMING ENGINEERS AND ARCHITECTS, P.C. E-90-20

E-91-20 HR R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY OFFICE OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES, AND DAVIS VISION, INC. (“DAVIS”). E-91-20

E-92-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE 
DEPARTMENT, AND ATLANTIC TACTICAL, INC.  E-92-20
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E-93-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS, AND GANNETT FLEMING ENGINEERS AND ARCHITECTS, P.C. E-93-20

E-94-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC WORKS, AND CAMERON ENGINEERING AND ASSOCIATES, LLP. E-94-20

E-95-20 HS R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
HUMAN SERVICES, OFFICE OF MENTAL HEALTH, CHEMICAL DEPENDENCY 
AND DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES SERVICES, AND TOMAS KLIMAS-
MIKALAUSKAS. E-95-20

E-96-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS AND N & P ENGINEERING, ARCHITECTURE & LAND SURVEYING, PLLC.  
E-96-20

E-97-20 AT R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU,
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, AND BEE
READY FISHBEIN HATTER & DONOVAN, LLP. E-97-20
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E-98-20 AT R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, AND BEE 
READY FISHBEIN HATTER & DONOVAN, LLP. E-98-20

E-99-20 AT R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE, AND 
ZOGHLIN GROUP PLLC.  E-99-20

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS MAY BE UNTABLED
145-20 PW R ORDINANCE NO.  – 2020

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A CONTRACT WITH TRANSDEV SERVICES, INC. FOR THE 
MANAGEMENT, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF A NASSAU COUNTY BUS 
SYSTEM. 145-20(PW)

B-3-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 
BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.I.  B-3-20

B-8-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON 
BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND 
WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.I. B-8-20

E-35-20 SS R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
SOCIAL SERVICES, AND BERKSHIRE FARM CENTER & SERVICES FOR YOUTH 
(“BERKSHIRE”). E-35-20
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E-53-20 BU R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN 
AMENDMENT TO A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY 
OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY OFFICE OF RISK 
MANAGEMENT, AND TRIAD GROUP, LLC. E-53-20

E-66-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
WORKS, AND GREENMAN-PEDERSON, INC. E-66-20

E-69-20 PD R RESOLUTION NO. -2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A 
PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, 
ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY POLICE DEPARTMENT, AND 
CHANGE HEALTHCARE TECHNOLOGY ENABLED SERVICES, LLC. E-69-20
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E-79-20 PK R

RESOLUTION NO. -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A PERSONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF 
OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MUSEUMS, 
AND COLISEUM KITCHEN INC.  E-79-20

E-80-20 PK R

RESOLUTION NO. -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A LICENSE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MUSEUMS, AND LESSINGS, INC.  E-80-
20 
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E-82-20 PK R

RESOLUTION NO. -2020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A LICENSE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION AND MUSEUMS, AND CULINART GROUP, 
INC.  E-82-20 























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































NASSAU COUNTY LEGISLATURE

13th TERM MEETING AGENDA

       RULES COMMITTEE
                 ADDENDUM II
                                          JULY 13, 2020 1:00 PM

Richard Nicolello – Chairman
Howard Kopel – Vice Chairman

Steve Rhoads
Laura Schaefer

Kevan Abrahams – Ranking
Delia DeRiggi-Whitton

Siela Bynoe



                                     RULES ADDENDUM II  1

Michael C. Pulitzer, Clerk of the Legislature
   Clerk Item

No.
 Proposed

By
 Assigned

To
Summary

144-20 AT R RESOLUTION NO.  – 2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ATTORNEY TO COMPROMISE AND 
SETTLE THE CLAIMS OF PLAINTIFF, AS SET FORTH IN THE ACTION ENTITLED 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA V. COUNTY OF NASSAU, PURSUANT TO THE COUNTY 
LAW, THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT LAW OF NASSAU COUNTY AND THE NASSAU 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. 144-20(AT)

170-20 OMB R ORDINANCE NO.  – 2020

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH. 170-20(OMB)

171-20 OMB R ORDINANCE NO.  – 2020

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH. 171-20(OMB)
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172-20 PW R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN DETERMINATIONS PURSUANT TO THE NEW 
YORK STATE ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY REVIEW ACT AND AUTHORIZING THE 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE ON BEHALF OF THE COUNTY OF NASSAU TO EXECUTE AN 
EXTENSION TO LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MASSAPEQUA UNION FREE 
SCHOOL DISTRICT, AS LANDLORD, AND THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, AS TENANT, IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE LEASING OF CERTAIN PREMISES CONSISTING OF 
APPROXIMATELY 57,989 SQUARE FEET LOCATED AT 200 SECOND AVENUE, 
MASSAPEQUA, TOWN OF OYSTER BAY, COUNTY OF NASSAU, STATE OF NEW YORK.
172-20(PW)

173-20 AT R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE AN INTER-
MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF LONG BEACH FOR THE RELATION TO 
ASSISTING THE COUNTY IN REPRESENTATION, RECOMMENDATION AND DEFENSE 
OF ASSESSMENT CHALLENGES BROUGHT BY MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES OF THE 
COUNTY AND/OR THE CITY OF LONG BEACH. 173-20(AT)

175-20 CE R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A STANDARD WORKDAY FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS 
IN NASSAU COUNTY WHO ARE MEMBERS OF THE NEW YORK STATE AND LOCAL 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM. 175-20(CE)

176-20 OMB R PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. -2020
A LOCAL LAW AMENDING LOCAL LAW 18-1984, AS LAST AMENDED BY LOCAL LAW
9-2017 AND AS INCORPORATED IN CHAPTER 4 OF TITLE 9 OF THE MISCELLANEOUS 
LAWS OF NASSAU COUNTY, IN RELATION TO IMPOSING ADDITIONAL RATES OF 
SALES AND COMPENSATING USE TAXES AUTHORIZED BY SECTION TWELVE 
HUNDRED TEN OF THE TAX LAW AND CONTINUING A LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AUTHORIZED BY SECTION TWELVE HUNDRED SIXTY-TWO-
E OF THE TAX LAW. 176-20(OMB)
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177-20 PK R RESOLUTION NO.-2020
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO EXECUTE A GRANT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU, ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS, RECREATION, AND MUSEUMS AND THE GLEN COVE 
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION. 177-20(PK)
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